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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 26 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Chaska lson,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We a re  Cha i rperson.   There  a re  

two Counse l  who  shou ld  pu t  themse lves on  reco rd  a t  the  

s ta r t  o f  p roceed ings.   Mr  Mpofu .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Ms Goodman.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay l e t  them do so .   I  th ink  they w i l l  

come and do i t  a t  the  pod ium there  Mr  Chaska lson.    

ADV MPOFU:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Mr  Mpofu  i t  i s  good to  see  

you.  

ADV MPOFU:   A lways a  p leasure  to  see you Cha i r  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:   Cha i rperson I  appear  w i th  Mr  Na idoo my 

learned f r iend and jun io r  fo r  the  w i tness Mr  Ramosebud i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.  20 

ADV GOODMAN:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Morn ing .  

ADV GOODMAN:   I  appear  on  beha l f  o f  Nedbank 

Cha i rperson I  am ins t ruc ted  by  A l len  and Overy  and I  am 

accompanied by  my a t to rney Ms Carrs .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes g ive  me your  name p lease?  

ADV GOODMAN:   I sabe l  Goodman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you ve ry  much.  

ADV GOODMAN:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cha i r  Mr  Ramosebud i  w i l l  be  

tes t i f y ing  today.   Mr  Ramosebud i  has no t  fu rn ished a  fu l l  

w i tness s ta tement  bu t  he  has responded to  a  Ru le  10 .6  

Not ice  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You w i l l  f ind  tha t  10 .6  Not ice  

wh ich  is  da ted  5  October  2020 a t  page –  F low o f  Funds 

Bund le  4  page 8 .   And Mr  Ramosebud i ’s  responses to  the 

quest ions in  tha t  no t ice  run  f rom page 14 in  th i s  F low o f  

Funds Vo lume 4  Bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  d id  he  comply  w i th  the  10 .6  

D i rec t i ve?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes Cha i r  he  fu rn i shed answers  

to  quest ions.   We are  no t  sugges t ing  tha t  Mr  Ramosebud i  

was in  contempt  o f  the  no t ice .   He d id  fu rn ish  answers .   20 

They were  s l igh t ly  la te r  than the  an t ic ipa ted  re tu rn  da te  

and in  some respects  the  answers  were  fa i r l y  cu rsory  and  

ant ic ipa ted  answers  tha t  m ight  come in  these proceed ings.   

But  we do not  want  to  make an issue o f  tha t  a t  th is  s tage  

Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  does no t  appear  to  me tha t  he  

compl ied  w i th  the  10 .6  D i rec t i ve  tha t  I  i ssued.   The 10.6  

D i rec t i ve  d i rec ted  h im to  de l i ver  an  a f f idav i t  o r  a f f i rmed  

dec lara t ion .   What  I  have seen is  ne i ther  an  a f f idav i t  nor  

an  a f f i rmed dec la ra t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  –  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

Maybe we can cu re  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And there  seems to  be  –  he  does not  

seem to  have prov ided an exp lanat ion  as  to  why he d id  no t  

p rov ide  an  a f f idav i t  o r  a f f i rmed  dec lara t ion  when the  10 

d i rec t i ve  was qu i t e  c lea r.   That  i s  number  1 .  

2 .  There  are  a reas where  he  was supposed  to  g ive  

in fo rmat ion  and he says he  w i l l  g ive  i t  a t  the  hear ing .  

He does not  g i ve  i t  in  the  document  in  wh ich  he  is  

supposed –  was supposed to  g ive  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  t rue  too  Cha i r.   There  are  

–  there  are  a  number  o f  quest ions wh ich  he  does not  –  or  

there  are  two quest ions rea l l y  under  I tem 20 where  he  says 

in fo rmat ion  in  th is  regard  w i l l  be  p rov ided a t  the  hear ing .   I  

unders tand f rom Mr  Mpofu  tha t  in  cer ta in  –  tha t  in  respect  20 

o f  these quest ions the  w i tness w i l l  be  asser t ing  a  r igh t  

aga ins t  se l f - inc r im inat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you see i f  in  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  

what  he  sa id  then tha t  –  then one  wou ld  unders tand.   I t  i s  

jus t  tha t  he  says  I  w i l l  p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  a t  the  hear ing  
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bu t  he  is  no t  p rov id ing  i t  there .   That  i s  no t  –  tha t  does not  

appear  to  be  somebody who is  asser t ing  tha t  r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  t rue  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  o f  course  I  th ink  Mr  Mpofu  m ight  w ish  

to  say someth ing  on  th is  be fore  we  proceed.   Le t  me  hear.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  Mr  Mpofu .  

ADV MPOFU:    My –  Sha l l  I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   In  re la t ion  to  the  –  the  fa i lu re  to  10 

fu rn ish  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  submi t  cou ld  be  cu red  i f  Mr  

Ramosebud i  conf i rms the  contents  o f  h is  s ta tement  under  

oa th  in  f ron t  o f  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No i t  cou ld  be  cured bu t  I  am 

concerned about  the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  s t i l l  no t  compl iance.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know i f  you a re  d i rec ted  to  fu rn ish  an  

a f f idav i t  o r  a  a f f i rmed dec lara t ion  tha t  i s  what  you fu rn ish .   

You –  and there  –  because there  is  a  reason why the  

requ i rement  i s  i t  shou ld  be  an a f f idav i t  o r  an  a f f i rmed  20 

dec lara t ion  and not  jus t  a  s ta tement .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Cha i r  I  cer ta in l y  am not  

go ing  to  a rgue to  the  cont rary.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes le t  me hear  what  Mr  Mpofu  may 

have to  say.   Le t  them san i t i se  Mr  Mpofu  be fo re  you –  Mr  
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Mpofu .  

ADV MPOFU:    Yes Cha i r.   Cha i rperson we l l  I  was go ing  to  

address you anyway Cha i r  o r  jus t  on  the  approach  tha t  we  

are  go ing  to  take .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    So  may I  p ropose tha t  I  –  so  tha t  I  do  no t  

have to  come up and down but  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You can do every th ing .  

ADV MPOFU:     And then in  the  p rocess then dea l  w i th  the  

contents .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   Yes okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    Thank you.   Thank  you Cha i r.   Cha i r  we l l  I  

w i l l  be  very  br ie f  I  wanted to  jus t  to  pu t  on  record  a  few 

th ings.  

 Mr  Chaska lson and I  have had some d i scuss ions 

and I  am happy to  say tha t  we have a t  leas t  we unders tand  

each o ther  o r  found each o the r  on  cer ta in  b road areas.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  m igh t  be  the  [00 :08 :07]  genera l l y  

tha t  cer ta in l y  I  am not  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  same in  o ther  fo re  

in  wh ich  I  have been invo lved but  cer ta in ly  when you have 20 

been appear ing  here  the re  has been lo ts  o f  coopera t ion .  

ADV MPOFU:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   From your  s ide  and so  I  am not  su rpr ised  

i f  you  found each  o ther  b road ly  speak ing .  

ADV MPOFU:    Thank you;  thank you ve ry  much  Cha i r  I  
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app rec ia te  tha t .   So in  a  nu tshe l l  Cha i r  as  in  the  sp i r i t  tha t  

the  Cha i r  i s  a l lud ing  to  one has a lways t r ied  to  f ind  th is  

ba lance between pro tec t ing  the  const i tu t iona l  r igh t s  o f  the 

w i tness bu t  ass is t ing  the  commiss ion  and no t  be ing  

obst ruc t i ve .   

 So what  we have done is  to  ind ica te  to  Mr  

Chaska lson the re  are  th ree  broad top i cs  in  respect  o f  

wh ich  we w i l l  asse r t  the  pr iv i lege o r  aga ins t  se l f -

incr im inat ion .  

 Now Cha i r  you and I  have had th is  debate  be fore .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:   We know –  we a re  fu l l y  aware  tha t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.     

ADV MPOFU:    The pr i v i lege cannot  be  a f fec ted  broad ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    Then i t  amounts  to  the  r igh t  to  s i lence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja .  

ADV MPOFU:    We a l so  are  aware  tha t  i t  a lso  cannot  be  

asser ted  you know by broad top ics  bu t  when I  say  broad 

top ics  I  know tha t  i t  must  be  asser ted  quest ion  by  20 

quest ion .  But  Mr  Chaska lson and  I  w i l l  know wh ich  those 

areas a re .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV MPOFU:    Then Cha i r  we w i l l  o f  course  we w i l l  a lso  

employ  what  I  w i l l  ca l l  the  Mogets i  Method wh ich  we 
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employed before  o f  jus t  be ing  here  to  po l i ce  Mr  Chaska lson  

to  make sure  tha t  he  does not  s t ray.   We know i t  i s  very  

tempt ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink  tha t  the  exper ience tha t  

happened in  the  –  du r ing  Mr  Moge ts i ’s  ev idence was rea l l y  

pos i t i ve .  

ADV MPOFU:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Exper ience i t  was coopera t ion ,  i t  was a  

commi tment  to  ass is t  the  commiss ion  as  much as  poss ib le .   

My reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  i t  was on ly  o r  two… 10 

ADV MPOFU:   Or  two ser ious.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Max imum three quest ions tha t  he  –  he  in  

respect  o f  wh ich  he  asser ted  h is  p r iv i lege but  o therw ise  

w i th  your  adv ice  he  was ab le  to  jus t  g ive  answers  and g i ve  

ev idence ja .  

ADV MPOFU:   Yes.   Thank you Cha i r  par t i cu la r ly  in  th is  

case in  fac t  the  same as Mr  Mogets i  i f  you  remember  Cha i r  

tha t  there  were  areas where  e f fec t i ve l y  he  was educat ing  

a l l  o f  us  about  how th ings work .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja .  20 

ADV MPOFU:  So  Mr  Ramosebud i  w i l l  do  the  same.   I  know 

tha t  Mr  Chaska lson wants  to  ask  h im cer ta in  techn ica l  

quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MPOFU:    Because the  area where  he  works  is  very  
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techn ica l  jus t  so  tha t  we a re  a l l  on  the  same page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    And we w i l l  be  happy to  do  dea l  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    There  may o f  course  be areas where  there  

is  a  d i f fe rence o f  op in ion ,  whether  the  l ine  has been  

crossed and then  the  Cha i r  w i l l  jus t  g ive  a  ru l ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    I f  tha t  happens.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV MPOFU:    Yes.   Now Cha i r  I  a lso  wanted to  ind ica te  

up  f ron t  bu t  I  –  a t  some s tage I  w i l l  sneak out .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    I  w i l l  l eave Mr  Na idoo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    To  take  ove r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    So  I  do  no t  wan t  the  Cha i r  to  send the  

po l i ce  on  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  you have got  to  make su re .  20 

ADV MPOFU:    You never  know a t  th is  s tage.   So apar t  

f rom tha t  Cha i r  t o  address the  concerns tha t  the  Cha i r  has 

ra ised le t  me jus t  ind ica te  tha t  the  10 .6  response  

happened befo re  Mr  Na idoo and  I  were  invo l ved  in  th is  

mat te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    We –  we do not  want  to  make any excuses.   

We accept  Cha i r  tha t  s t r i c t l y  speak ing  i t  does not  comply  

w i th  the  obv ious requ i rement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    To  have i t  done under  oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV MPOFU:    So  there  are  two issues tha t  the  Cha i r  has  

ra ised.   The f i rs t  one about  i t  be ing  done under  oa th  we –  I  

was go ing  to  p ropose what  Mr  Chaska lson has proposed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MPOFU:    Jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  p rogress.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    That  can be cu red by  s imp ly  Mr  

Ramosebud i  conf i rm ing h i s  s ta tement  under  oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MPOFU:    Now here .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    As  fa r  as  the  second issue Cha i r  i s  

concerned wh ich  is  the  –  the  fa i lu re  to  answer  cer ta in  20 

quest ions.   Indeed the  Cha i r  i s  qu i te  cor rec t .   Wha t  rea l l y  

shou ld  have been ind i ca ted  there  even a t  tha t  s tage was 

tha t  he  w i l l  be  asser t ing  h is  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MPOFU:    Bu t  we wou ld  rea l l y  humbly  ask  the  Cha i r  to  
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condone such and compl iance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    On the  unders tand ing  tha t  the  s ta tement  

w i l l  be  conf i rmed under  oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU:    And number  2  wherever  i t  i s  vague i t  rea l l y  

shou ld  have sa id  tha t  he  w i l l  be  asser t ing  h i s  Sect ion  35  

r igh ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MPOFU:    Thank you Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   No thank  you Mr  

Mpofu .  

ADV MPOFU:    Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much ja .   Mr  Mpofu  I  

a lways say tha t  i t  i s  –  i t  i s  a lways good to  be  w i th  

exper ienced lawyers  who know what  the i r  case is .   They  

focus on  the  rea l  case and not  on  o ther  th ings.   Thank you.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   We –  I  need to  

ask  you fo r  gu idance Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Because there  is  jus t  the  Ru le  

10 .6  Not ice  and a  response fo r  the  pu rposes o f  number ing  

annexures there  i s  no t  a  s ta tement  w i th  a f f idav i t s  a t tached.   

But  there  is  a  la rge  bund le  o f  documents  tha t  the  

commiss ion  has  prepared fo r  the  quest ion ing  o f  Mr  
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Ramosebud i .   We wi l l  be  re fer r ing  to  very,  very  many o f  

those documents  and might  I  suggest  tha t  we g i ve  the  

bund le  an  annexure  number  w i th  pag ina t ion  re fe rences i n  

the  bund le  ra ther  than mak ing  each new document  an  

annexure  number  because there  w i l l  l i t e ra l l y  be  hundreds  

tha t  we may t rave rse  in  the  course  o f  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  what  we shou ld  do  is   

1 .  Yes the  f i le  shou ld  be  g i ven a  bund le  number.    

That  i s  one wh ich  you say and I  th ink  a t  some s tage  i t  

need not  be  now I  th ink  a t  some s tage there  must  be  a  10 

process o f  fo rma l ly  admi t t ing  those documents .   Now you  

say there  are  l o ts  o f  them but  once they have been 

ident i f ied  and they can be marked.   They can be g iven the  

exh ib i t  number  tha t  wou ld  be  used  outs ide  o f  th is  p rocess.   

But  a t  a  cer ta in  s tage you can come back and say the  

documents  as  they appear  f rom page whatever  –  whatever  

you ask  tha t  they  be  admi t ted  –  each o f  them be admi t ted  

and g i ven the  exh ib i t  number  tha t  you wou ld  a l loca ted  and  

I  can jus t  take  f i ve  m inutes  to  do  tha t .   How is  tha t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cha i r  the  one –  my one concern  20 

w i th  tha t  i s  tha t  when we come – when you come back to  

read the  record  i t  may be d i f f i cu l t  to  cor re la te  re fe rences in  

today ’s  tes t imony w i th  what  the  exh ib i t  numbers  w i l l  

subsequent ly  tu rn  ou t  to  be .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  be fore  we g ive  the  exh ib i t  numbers  
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we wou ld  have used page numbers .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And even i f  the  exh ib i t  numbers  are  there  

as  long as  everyone remembers  what  page they  appear  

tha t  shou ld  be  f ine  is  i t  no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.   I f  tha t  f i l e  VVF –  so r ry  

FOF 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Remains  in  your  possess ion  i n  

the  fo rm tha t  i t  cur ren t ly  s i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then you w i l l  be  ab le  to  ident i f y  

wh ich  documents  [speak ing  ove r  one another ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   The pag ina t ion  wou ld  remain .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As  i t  i s  bu t  I  th ink  as  a  fo rmal i t y  i t  i s  

impor tan t  to  adm i t  them a t  a  cer ta in  s tage and then g i ve  

them exh ib i t  numbers .   But  anyone  w ish ing  to  re fer  t o  them 20 

does not  have to  say exh ib i t  number  so  and so .   I f  they  say  

such a  document  appears  on  page so  and so  tha t  i s  s t i l l  

good enough.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bu t  then I  th ink  what  we  can do 

immedia te ly  in  re la t ion  to  exh ib i t  numbers  i s  in t roduce the  

2  Ru le  10 .6  no t i ces  and the  response as  exh ib i t s  VV4.1 ,  

VV4.2  and VV4.3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes be fore  we do tha t  le t  us  jus t  conf i rm 

the  f i le  tha t  you w i l l  be  us ing  is  F low o f  Funds Bund le  4?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed and on ly  tha t  f i l e  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   And are  there  1  10 .6 

D i rec t i ves?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The f i rs t… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  a re  they the  same one?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No there  are  two Cha i r.   The f i rs t  

i s  requ i r ing  Mr  Ramosebud i ’s  p resence today to  tes t i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  the  document  a t  page 3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Which  I  wou ld  ask  to  be  VV4.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The f i rs t  Cha i rpe rson ’s  D i rec t i ve  in  te rms 

o f  Regu la t ion  10 .6  s ta r t ing  a t  page  3  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  

4  –  VV4.1  is  tha t  r igh t?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   VV4 –  VV4.1   We are  on  our  VV – 

VV.  

CHAIRPERSON:   VV.   Ja  okay.   VV4.1 .   I f  you  put  VV 

together  i t  cou ld  be  W.   Okay so  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  one and  

the  second one w i l l  be… 
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A t  page 8 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Exh ib i t  VV4.2 .   Is  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so  the  second d i rec t i ve  in  te rms o f  

Regu la t ion  10 .6  s ta r t ing  a t  page  8  w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  

Exh ib i t  VV4.2 .   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And  then Mr  Ramosebud i ’s  

response to  the  second 10.6  wh ich  appears  a t  page  – f rom 

page 14 can be VV4.3  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Ramosebud i ’s  response to  the  10 .6  10 

D i rec t i ve  s ta r t ing  a t  page 14 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  VV4.3 .   

Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   A t  th is  po in t  I  

th ink  we are  good  to  beg in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Thank you.   You may  

proceed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  th ink  Mr  Ramosebud i  needs to  

be  sworn  in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.   Wi l l  you  p lease admin i s te r  the  

oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  20 

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Pheto lo  Ramosebud i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  you must  jus t  ra ise  the  

m icrophone and then t r y  and speak up a  b i t .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Pheto lo  Ramosebud i .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   Ja .  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the 

t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  10 

me God.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Yes you may p roceed Mr  

Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Good morn ing  

Mr  Ramosebud i .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Good morn ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr  Ramosebud i  I  f i rs t  jus t  want  

to  cure  the  p rob lem wi th  the  s ta tement  tha t  we have  

d iscussed ea r l ie r  and can I  ask  you to  tu rn  f i rs t  o f  a l l  to  20 

page 8  o f  tha t  f i l e  in  f ron t  o f  you.   The pages I  w i l l  be  

us ing  a re  the  page numbers  are  the  b lack  ones on  the  le f t  

hand s ide  and on the  top  le f t  and you w i l l  see  they say  

FOF-04-  and then  there  i s  a  number.   I t  i s  the  number  a f te r  

FOF-04 tha t  I  w i l l  be  re fer r i ng  to  today.   Do you recogn ise  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 18 of 397 
 

the  document  on  page 8?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  do .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And tha t  was a  Not ice  in  te rms o f  

Regu la t ion  10 .6  o f  th is  commiss ion  tha t  was se rved on you  

and i f  you go down to  page 13 you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  da ted  

5  October  2020.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  do .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And w i l l  you  conf i rm tha t  i t  was 

served on you?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Come aga in .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You had –  you d id  rece ive  th is  

no t ice  in  –  on  5  October  o r  shor t l y  thereaf te r?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes.   Yes I  d id .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And you  fu rn ished a  response to  

i t  wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 14.  Wi l l  you  conf i rm tha t  i s  the 

case?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  d id .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the  document  tha t  runs f rom 

pages 14 to  19  is  your  response wh ich  is  da ted  7  

November  2020.   Wi l l  you  conf i rm  tha t  the  contents  o f  tha t  20 

document  a re  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  can conf i rm they a re  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you.   Mr  Ramosebud i  in  

tha t  s ta tement  you touch very  br i e f l y  on  your  h i s to ry  in  the  

pub l i c  sec to r.   Can you jus t  desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i rperson  
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your  career  in  –  we l l  f rom the  beg inn ing  unt i l  the  po in t  a t  

wh ich  you le f t  Transnet?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   Thank you Cha i rperson.   My ca reer  

s ta r ted  in  1992 when I  was an academia  w i th  the  Med ica l  

Investments  Southern  A f r i ca  wh ich  then –  when I  was then  

academia  I  d id  my MBA wi th  Un ivers i t y  o f  P re tor ia  a f te r  

wh ich  then I  wen t  to  work  fo r  the  Nedcor  Group in  Syf re ts  

Asset  Management .   Thereaf te r  then I  went  in to  s tock  

brok ing .   From s tock  b rok ing  I  went  to  Nat iona l  Treasury.   

That  i s  when I  s ta r ted  work ing  in  the  pub l i c  sec tor.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you g ive  a  da te  to  the  

Cha i r?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   The –  I  s ta r ted  work ing  in  Nat iona l  

Treasury  in  1990 –  1998 I  th ink  i t  i s  a round 

August /September  1998 wh ich  then  I  le f t  in  1999  Apr i l .  

 Subsequent  to  tha t  I  went  back  in to  the  pr iva te  

sector  bu t  then I  th ink  in  la te  1999 I  went  to  work  fo r  

Deve lopment  Bank o f  Southern  A f r i ca  in  the  Treasury  

funct ion .  

 From then then  I  s ta r ted  work ing  in  the  pub l i c  20 

sector  f rom DVSA,  NHFC,  Transnet ,  ACSA,  South  A f r i can  

A i rways and back  then aga in  to  Transnet .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And jus t  to  ge t  the  chrono logy Mr  

Ramosebud i  you  dea l  w i th  th i s  a t  paragraph 226 o f  you r  

s ta tement .   You were  a t  the  Deve lopment  Bank f rom 1999  
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to  2002.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The Nat iona l  Hous ing  F inance 

Corpora t ion  tha t  was NHFC 2002 to  a round 2006.   ACSA 

2007 to  2011.   SAA 2012 to  February  2015 and Transnet  

2015 to  2018 and  what  I  have sk ipped out  the re  i s  tha t  you  

were  Deputy  Treasure r  o f  Transnet  back f rom 2006 to  May  

2007.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A t  ACSA,  SAA and Transnet  you 10 

were  t reasure r,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   A t  ACSA yes I  was the  t reasure r  and 

SAA I  was a  t reasure r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Transnet  f rom 2015 to  2018? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  was a  t reasure r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Then a t  page 16 o f  your  

s ta tement  you dea l  w i th  a  range o f  en t i t ies  w i th  wh ich  you 

have a  re la t ionsh ip  or  in  wh ich  you have an in te res t  o r  

your  fami ly  members  have an in te res t .   Can I  s ta r t  w i th  the 

f i rs t  en t i t y  wh ich  is  a t  [ v i i ]  on  page 16 R isk  S ta ts  20 

Consu l t ing .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  R isk  S ta ts 

Consu l t ing  is  and  what  in te res t  i f  any  you had in  i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   You are  re fer r ing  to  page 16 on my  

s ide  –  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Top le f t  hand s ide .  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Okay.   R isk  S ta ts  was a  t rad ing  

company o f  one o f  my compan ies  ca l led  R isk  Maths.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So  i t  was a  subs id ia ry  –  is  i t  a  –  

i t  i s  a  separa te  en t i t y  tha t  was a  subs id ia ry  o f  R isk  Maths.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   No.  I t  was a  t rad ing  name fo r  R isk  

Maths.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A t rad ing  name.   So i t  i s  no t  a  

company in  i t s  own r igh t?   Mr  Ramosebud i?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s… 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja  we can R isk  Maths  there  was  a  10 

number  t rad ing  names fo r  –  wh ich  we can ca l l  i t  subs id ia ry  

f rom tha t  aspect .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So  R isk  S ta ts  i s  no t  ac tua l l y  an  

en t i t y  in  i t s  own r igh t  bu t  i t  mere ly  a  t rade name tha t  was… 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   In  R isk  Maths.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay.   And your  in te res t  R isk  

Maths?  What  was –  what  was o r  i s  you r  in te res t  in  R isk  

Maths?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   I  was the  –  a  shareho lder  –  100% 

shareho lder  o f  tha t  company.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you.   And Ka D i t lou  Hea l th  

Serv i ces  what  i s  you r  re la t ionsh ip  to  Ka D i t lou  Hea l th  

Serv i ces  P ty  L im i ted?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Th is  i s  my younger  b ro ther ’s  company.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And wh ich  young –  do  you have  
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jus t  one younger  b ro ther?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  have got  a  number  o f  s ib l ings .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay wh ich  bro the r  i s  the  bro the r  

w i th  the  in te res t  in  Ka D i t lou  Hea l th  Serv ices?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   The Psycho logy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Psycho logy Ramosebud i?   Rams 

Cap i ta l  CC.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  i s  my company.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And is  i t  aga in  100% in te res t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja  100% in te res t  fo r  myse l f .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Azana -   i t  i s  Azana not  

Azan ia?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Azana.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Azana  Cap i ta l  Marke ts  wh ich  

t rades as  Venus L iquor  S tore .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja  i t  was one o f  my company.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And when you sa id  was  one o f  

your  compan ies  are  you say ing  a t  one s tage you had a  

100% in te res t  in  i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And when d id  you … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  was tha t  answer  yes?  Was your  

answer  yes I  d id  no t  hear?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes –  I  sa id  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And when d id  you cease  to  have  

100% in te res t  in  Azana?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No i t  go t  reg is te red I  cannot  

remember.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Unt i l  de - reg is t ra t ion  i t  was your  

company?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  I  d id  no t  hear  the  answer.   So you 

have to  t ry  and  speak up Mr  Ramosebud i .   I  th ink  Mr  

Chaska lson asked you whether  un t i l  i t  was de-reg is te red i t  10 

was your  company.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  sa id  yes.   I  sa id  yes I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay I  d id  no t  hear  tha t  answer.   

Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Mr  Ramosebud i  be fore  we  

get  in to  any de ta i l s  re la t ing  to  past  events  because we a re  

go ing  to  be  ta lk ing  about  in te res t  swaps and cur rency  

hedges I  thought  we might  take  advantage o f  your  

exper t i se  jus t  to  exp la in  what  we  are  ta lk ing  about  here .   

So cou ld  you br ie f l y  descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  an  in te res t  20 

swap is?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Thank you,  Chairperson.   An interest  

swap, is exact ly as the name means.   I t  means two things.   

One, i t  is an interest  rate.   The other  two is  – the second one 

is  a swap.   A swop has di fferent  meaning.   You are 
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exchanging th ings.    

 So in an interest  rate swap, one party could be having a 

f ixed interest  rate.   The other  party  could be having a 

var iable interest  rate.    

 In the indust ry,  they cal l  i t  a f loat ing rate interest  rate.   

So one part icu lar  –  i f  you want to wish to  exchange the 

swap, the f ixed one for a f loat ing one.   And that  is  who i t  

happens in the market .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So I  have an overdraf t  at  my bank 

which has a var iable rate at  pr ime and I  want to plan for the 10 

future and I  want to know exact ly  what I  am going to be 

owing my bank on my overdraf t  on a f ixed amount.    

 So I  want someone who is wi l l ing to  lend the money that  

I  am going to owe the bank at  a f ixed rate to me, so they wi l l  

g ive me thei r  f ixed interest  rate and in return,  that  assume, 

the var iable interest  rate that  I  owe the bank.  

 And now my l iab i l i ty is to pay a f ixed interest ,  not  a 

var iable interest  rate.   That  is,  obviously,  for individuals,  

household expenses.   I t  is a company issue.   But  is that  

broadly what we are talk ing about? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is exact ly  what i t  is Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Basical ly,  you could be talk ing of  two,  

shal l  I  cal l  them regimes,  interest  regime.  The one interest  

regime is a f ixed rate interest .   The other one is a var iable 

one.   And you could be having a part icular regime, interest  
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regime for a certa in per iod and you want to change that  and 

move to the other  interest  of  regime.  Basica l ly,  that  is  what 

i t  is.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is what i t  is Chairperson 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And somet imes you refer or 

somet imes one sees reference being made to hedging 

interest  exposure.   Would that  be a si tuat ion where you have 

a certain rate interest  exposure where you would want to  

swap up and down or you have var iable interest  rate 10 

exposure that  you want to turn into a f ix one and you enter 

into a swap.  Would that  be a hedge of  your  var iab le 

exposure? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is t rue Mr Chaskalson.   

Chairperson,  the hedging in the process,  i t  means protect ing 

ourselves.   I t  is a  word that  is used in the market  or in the 

f inancial  market  in the sector.   Hedging,  you are protect ing 

yoursel f .  

 You can be protect ing yoursel f  f rom a volat i le interest  

rate environment  or you can be protect ing yoursel f  f rom a 20 

volat i le inf lat ion,  you know, market .  

 So,  you ei ther use any of  those two inst ruments,  the 

f ixed one or the other one.   And i t  depends in which posi t ion 

you are si t t ing which you want to protect .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And we wi l l  a lso be encounter ing 
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currency hedging.   Can you explain to the Chai r  what a 

currency hedge is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  the – a currency hedge or 

a protect ion f rom the currency exposure or a volat i l i ty of  the 

exchange rate is precisely using the cost  currency interest  

rate swaps or forward interest  rate swaps that  you can use 

to protect  the posi t ion that  you are s i t t ing in.  

 I f  you happen to be going to buy and equipment outside 

the country which is pr iced in a currency that  is not  South 

Afr ican Rand.  So you need to make sure that  you protect  10 

yoursel f  over the volat i l i t ies of  that . . .   You are exempted(?)  

against  those . . . [ indist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And could you explain to the Chai r  

what sort  of  devices you would use?  Let  us talk about  

Transnet buying locomot ives.   Assume Transnet wants to buy 

locomot ives that  are going to be Dol lar denominated and 

some of  them are going to be del ivered in f ive years’ t ime at  

a Dol lar pr ice.    

 What sort  of  hedging mechanisms would Transnet  be 20 

able to adopt to  make sure that  i t  knows how much i t  is 

going to pay in Rands? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    In that  case and in most  of  the 

inst i tut ions that  I  have come across in my working l i fe.   The 

inst i tut ions wi l l  use for a cost  currency swaps to hedge the 
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expected purchase or  del ivery of  an equipment that  is  

coming f rom a foreign country.   And that  is how most of  

these inst i tut ions are using i t  and then. . .   I  th ink Transnet 

have been using i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So cross-currency swap would be,  

you go to a bank and you say:   Here is  a  schedule of  Dol lar 

payments that  I  want to receive f rom you and what is the 

corresponding schedule of  Rand payments that  I  have to 

make to you?  Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    S impl ist ical ly,  yes Chairperson.   That  is 10 

what i t  is.   But  you need to work out  what is an average rate 

appl icable to those,  you know, cash f lows so that  a t  Day 1 

today,  you are not  in a lost  posi t ion or in a gaining posi t ion 

when you t ransact  that  posi t ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  you wi l l  be doing is,  you wi l l  

be agreeing over  the next  f ive years on such and such a 

date,  you wi l l  t ransfer a mi l l ion Dol lars to me and I  wi l l  pay 

back to you so many Rands.   Or i t  may not  be on the same 

date.    

 This is the schedule of  the Rand payments I  wi l l  be 20 

making on these dates.   This is a schedule of  Dol lar  

payments,  you wi l l  be making to me on those dates.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson that  is  t rue.   So the 

intermediate cash f lows wi l l  be exchange during the course 

of  the contract  i tsel f .   At  the end of  the cont ract  you are 
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changing i t  back into your currency.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Mr Ramosebudi .   Can 

we now start  looking at  some of  the deta i ls of  your career as 

Treasurer and can we start  wi th ACSA?  And the f i rst  

document I  want  to take you to,  i t  is a document that  

appears at  page 20.   So quick ly go to page 20 again,  on the 

top lef t -hand the black number.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And,  do you recognise that 

document? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  do not  recognise i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.   Wel l ,  i t  looks l ike an 

invoice issued by Regiments Capi tal  to ACSA on 

25 September 2009.   I  th ink you might  be on the wrong page 

Mr Ramosebudi.   Top lef t ,  page 20.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  whenever Mr Chaskalson refers you 

to page numbers,  i t  wi l l  be the black numbers on the top lef t  

corner of  each page.  So you can ignore the red numbers.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Page 20.   Yes,  i t  is an invoice.   I  

cannot remember this invoice.   Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   But  what i t  ref lects is  that  

Regiments is invoicing ACSA.  Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And in the bot tom lef t ,  just  above 

payment detai ls,  there is a note:    
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“Total  agreed outstanding fee per Phase 4 as per  

mandate.   And that  is R 2.734 mi l l ion.   50% of  

outstanding funding invoice f inal  b i l l ing 603610.”  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now i t  ta lks about  a mandate.   

Was Regiments Capi ta l  engaged by ACSA at  that  stage? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    As the document  says.   So i t  means 

there was a mandate,  you know,  between ACSA and 

Regiments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  I  am asking you.   Do you 10 

recal l  that  ACSA had engaged Regiments?  And i f  we go up 

to the heading in  relat ion to a funding plan.   I t  is what the 

invoice is heading.   Had ACSA engaged Regiments in 

re lat ion to a funding plan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    ACSA did work on the ACSA Funding 

Plan but  I  have never seen the mandate but  I  heard that  

there is a mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  I  d id not  hear your answer.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    ACSA worked on the Funding Mandate 

– on the Funding Mandate . . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    ACSA or  Regiments? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Regiments worked on the ACSA 

Funding Mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    But  I  never had a copy mysel f .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So you have never seen th is 

invoice? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.   Not  –  no,  I  am not  saying.   I  

cannot remember the invoice but  I  have never seen the 

mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Oh,  okay.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    You are reading the total  agreed 

outstanding fees as per Phase 4 as per mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  together wi th the heading of 

the invoice just  below the address of  ACSA where i t  says 10 

ACSA Funding Plan Phase 4.   Are you aware of  what th is  

Funding Plan was and what role Regiments played in i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  am aware.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can you tel l  the Chair? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    In 2008 somet ime, Regiments were 

brought in to work on the Funding Mandate for Airports  

Company South Afr ica.   And through that  mandate,  the 

advice on a number of  funding st ructure,  you know,  wi th in  

the mandate that  we are referr ing to here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And did they get  that  appointment 20 

pursuant  to a tender? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  as I  said.   That  is why I  

said that  I  have never seen the mandate.   So the – they 

came in and as I  know, they are work ing through a mandate 

but  I  have never seen the mandate.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    My quest ion was sl ight ly d i fferent .   

Not  whether you have seen the mandate but  whether you are 

aware whether i t  was preceded by a tender process? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With my recol lect ions,  you know, wi th  

th is part icular company,  Regiments.   When I  came in 2008 

Chairperson,  I  th ink they were there in 2007 on a simi lar  

mandates of  a funding plan.  

 So whether dur ing that  t ime they went through a 

process,  I  do not  know.  I  was not  working for ACSA at  the 

t ime.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So you do not  know whether  there 

was any procurement process involving compet i t ive bids or  

anything in relat ion to the Regiments mandate? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know.  I  do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  take you to th is  invoice 

again?  And i t  says:  

“Total  agreed outstanding fee per Phase 4 as per  

mandate and R 2.734 mi l l ion.   That  suggests i t  was 

a f ixed fee for the mandate that  Regiments was 

performing at  ACSA.”  20 

 Would you agree wi th that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot answer that .   I  do not  know.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  is a . . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  real ly do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  says agreed outstanding fee per  
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Phase 4 as per mandate.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  have not  seen the cont ract  wi th 

Regiments.   So I  cannot say i f  there was a f ixed fee or not .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.   Do – could you descr ibe to 

the Chair  what sort  of  work Regiments performed pursuant  to  

th is mandate when you f ind them at  ACSA when you arr ived? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    When I  was. . .   Chai rperson,  when I  was 

at  ACSA, they developed the Funding Plan,  you know.  The 

Funding Plan,  i t  is a piece of  informat ion wi thin the PFMA 

that  is a requi red,  you know, that  the board needs to  10 

approve,  send to the shareholder or the Minister of  Finance 

of  Nat ional  Treasury.  

 And f rom that  perspect ive,  the inst i tut ion at  the t ime,  

ACSA then could go out  to raise any funding that  i t  requires 

as per the funding in our plan that  is  to develop.  

 So that  is  when the Funding Plan came through and the 

how Regiments have been implement ing the Funding Plan.  

 Where they have ra ised the money,  I  cannot remember a 

lot  of  – a number of  those inst i tut ions but  they have raised 

some money for ACSA.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So was Regiments’ mandate just  

to design the Funding Plan or actual ly then to go out  and 

ra ise money in terms of  the Funding Plan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  through yoursel f ,  I  am do 

not  want to respond in terms of  whether the mandate 
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because I  have not  seen that .   But  what I  have seen 

Regiments doing is,  they have developed a Funding Plan.   

They have actual ly  put  the Funding Plan in act ion to raise 

the money that  has been determined for the Funding Plan’s 

perspect ive.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So they did both.   You just  do not  

know which – whether both or  one or the other form part  of  

th is part icular mandate? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  they execut ive the Funding P lan.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  they were execut ing the Funding 10 

Plan and i t  was not  part  of  that  mandate,  would there have 

be any procurement process necessary for them to go 

through to execut ive the Funding Plan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  I  am sorry to respond to 

that .   L ike,  I  do not  know because I  do not  know the detai ls  

of  the mandate,  whether i t  was to  develop the Funding Plan 

and execute i t  or whether i t  was to develop the Funding Plan 

and then go out  to the market  to raise funding.   That  I  have 

got  no informat ion Chai r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So you do not  know what the 20 

mandate was? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  then take you to  the next 

document which is,  on i ts  face,  an emai l  f rom someone 

cal led Mario Viznenza(?).   mariov@nedbank.co.za.   I t  is  
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dated 1 October 2009 and i t  is addressed to Er ic Wood, cc 

Moss Brinkman and El ize Bri ts.   Can I  f i rst  ask you?  Do you 

know who Mario Viznenza is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Mar io Viznenza is – I  am not  sure i f  he 

is st i l l  but  was one of  the t raders in  Nedbank.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.   Er ic Wood? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Er ic Wood is one of  -  was or is – was 

one of  the di rectors of  Regiments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Moss Brinkman?  Br ickman, not  

Br inkman.   10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    He is also one of  the t raders at  

Nedbank.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And El ize Bri ts.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know that  one.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Right .   The heading is ACSA 

Interest  Rates Swaps.   And the emai l  reads:  

“Hi ,  Er ic.   Here are the current  indicat ive rates on 

these t ransact ions,  bear ing in mind the st rategy are 

staggering the t rades over a few days. ”  

 And then some rates are set  out .   Am I  correct  that  what  20 

this would be is an emai l  sent  f rom Nedbank to Er ic Wood on 

– who is act ing for  –  they are act ing in his capaci ty as 

Regiments Implement ing ACSA Funding Plan and looking for  

funding for ACSA.  Is that  the context  in which this emai l  

would have been sent? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    This is what I  am seeing,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So there is then a descr ipt ion of  

what the indicat ive rates are,  R 1.7 bi l l ion swaps and the 

detai ls are set  out .   R 250 mi l l ion and the swap and the 

detai ls are set  out .  

 And then there is  a l ine that  I  want you to comment  on.   

Mr Viznenza says:  

“We leave i t  up to  you to include a margin for us to  

share on the usual  50/50 agreement . ”  

 Is th is Mr Viznenza saying to Mr Wood:  Here are our 10 

terms for the swap.  You add in  a margin.   In other  words,  

increase the amount that  ACSA is going to  pay.   And we wi l l  

share that  on a 50/50 basis.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Is that  how you would understand 

i t  as a person in f inance? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  see – I  read i t  that  way,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You do read i t  that  way? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Were you aware that  Mr Wood and 20 

Nedbank were doing this 50/50 agreement at  the expense of  

ACSA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  Chai r  I  was not  aware of  that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  appear to have been doing 

i t .   We do not  know whether they did do i t .   So you were not  
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aware that  Mr Wood and Nedbank appeared to have been 

including margins for them to share on a 50/50 agreement at  

the expense of  ACSA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  was not  aware.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  take you to the next  

document which is at  page 22?  I t  is four days later.   Another 

emai l  f rom Mr Viznenza to Er ich Wood, then copies to  

Mr Br ickman.  I t  says:  

“Fee calcu lat ions on ACSA swaps.   Regiments fee.  

Hi ,  Er ic.   I  have at tached the spreadsheet wi th  the 10 

calculat ion of  the fee due to Regiments on the two 

ACSA swaps deal t  last  week. ”  

 You wi l l  recal l  the previous emai l  had two.  R 1.75 bi l l ion 

and a two hundred – I  th ink i t  was R 250 mi l l ion.  

“Yu wi l l  see that  the calculat ion has been done on 

the same basis as the previous ACSA transact ion. ”  

 Do you know what the previous ACSA t ransact ion was 

that  he is referr ing to here? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.   Actual ly,  I  do not  even know who is  

the t ransact ion that  are referr ing to  here.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  Mr Ramosebudi.   Can I  ask 

that  you speak a l i t t le bi t  c loser to your microphone  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  am saying . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .  because i t  is d i ff icul t  to hear 

your answers.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  am not  sure whose t ransact ion here 

they are referr ing to here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We.. .   Thank you.   That  is a l l  I  

wanted to ask you.   The 10 BP, that  is ten basis points.    

“Due to Regiments over  the l i fe of  the t ransact ions 

equates to a BP  That  that  is present  value amount  

of  R 11 548 551,00.  

On the invoice to Nedbank,  please inc lude a l ine 

conf i rming that  you agree to Nedbank clause back a 

port ion of  the fee should the t ransact ion to ACSA 10 

terminate ear ly,  as wel l  as conf i rming that  ACSA is  

aware that  a fee is be ing paid by Nedbank to  

Regiments on these t ransact ions.  

Let  me know i f  you any queries. ”  

 So can I  take i t  step-by-step? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The ten basis points due to  

Regiments over the l i fe of  the t ransact ions,  equals a present  

value amount of  R 11 548 551,00.   Is he saying there that :   I f  

we increase the interest  that  ACSA is going to  pay to  20 

Nedbank by ten basis points over the l i fe of  the t ransact ion?   

 And we looked at  al l  those values and take a present  

value.   That  wi l l  equate to R 11 548 551,00.   Is that  what he 

is saying? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is what I  see – I  read here.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And i f  we read this  wi th his  

previous 50/50 agreement emai l  f rom a few days previously,  

that  would suggest  that  in addi t ion to the R 11 mi l l ion that  

Regiments is going to receive at  the expense of  ACSA on 

this t ransact ion,  Nedbank wi l l  be receiving a simi lar  amount 

at  the expense of  ACSA.  Would you agree wi th that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I f  they are applying the same basis,  

then I  wi l l  say but  i f  – I  do not  know which basis they are 

applying.   [ Ind ist inct ]  is going to reapplying on . . . [ ind ist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   I  must  – I  am saying,  

assuming they are doing this 50/50 basis.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Assumpt ions is very di ff icul t  to  

. . . [ indist inct ]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  we wi l l  deal  wi th the 

di ff icul t ies.   You just  have to answer my quest ions on the 

basis of  an assumpt ion and you – then the di ff icu l t ies are 

mine,  not  yours.    

 So on the basis of  my assumpt ion,  would Nedbank also 

be get t ing the same fee at  the expense of  ACSA? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    On the basis of  assumpt ion 

Mr Chaskalson.   Yes,  Chai rperson.   But  maybe the 

arrangement could be on a di fferent  asset ,  you know 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   No,  no . . . [ intervenes]   
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is why I  do not  want to make an 

assumpt ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Ja,  but  I  wi l l  ask a lot  of  quest ions 

on the basis of  assumpt ions.   I  would ask you to take those 

assumpt ions as g iven.   Obviously,  you cannot be blamed i f  

the assumpt ions turn out  be false la ter.   I  w i l l  be blamed.  

 Then the next  l ine.  

“On the invoice to Nedbank,  please include a l ine 

conf i rming you agree to Nedbank clause back the  

port ion of  the fee should the t ransact ion to ACSA 10 

terminate ear ly,  as wel l  as conf i rming that  ACSA is  

aware that  a fee is be ing paid by Nedbank to  

Regiments on these t ransact ions. ”  

 Let  us take the f i rst  part  of  that  sentence.    

“Please include a l ine conf i rming you agree to  

Nedbank clause back the port ion of  the fee should 

the t ransact ion to ACSA terminate ear ly. . . ”  

 Is he saying there,  i f  th is – your fees have been 

calculated on a basis that  th is t ransact ion runs to term, that  

ten basis points,  BP, is ten basis points of  the whole l i fe of  20 

the t ransact ion? 

 But  i f  ACSA – and we are going to  pay back to you now 

– but  i f  ACSA terminate mid-way through this t ransact ion,  we 

are going to be out  of  pocket  because we would have paid 

you the R 11 mi l l ion but  we wi l l  not  be get t ing i t  back f rom 
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ACSA.  

 So we need a clause f rom you saying that  i f  that  

happens,  we get  back part  of  your  fee.   Is that  what he is 

saying? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  that  is t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   Then he says:  

“We want a l ine conf i rming that  ACSA is aware that  

a fee is being paid by Nedbank to Regiments on 

these t ransact ions.    

So we want a l ine on your invoice,  saying that  ACSA 10 

is aware that  th is fee is being paid. . . . ”  

 Can I  ask you to go to the next  page which is an invoice 

dated – sorry page 23.   And there we see an invoice f rom 

Regiments to Nedbank.  

 I t  is invoice Ned409 addressed to Ms Moss Brickman at  

Nedbank.   And you see underneath – the invoice is for  

R 11 548 000,00 p lus VAT, giv ing R 13 165 348,00.  

 And as I  understand i t ,  that  is the amount that  ACSA wi l l  

be paying back over the l i fe of  the swap t ransact ion wi th  

Nedbank.   Is that  correct? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  as the calculat ion is ment ioned 

here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And i t  says:  

“Originat ion and faci l i tat ion of  R 2 bi l l ion interest  

rates swap between Nedbank Capi tal  and ACSA.  
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The service amount was determined as per 

agreement wi th Nedbank Capi tal .  

This issue is issued under the int roduct ion of  

der ivat ive t ransact ions agreement between 

Regiments and Nedbank,  dated 30 June 2009.  

Regiments Capi ta l  (Pty) Ltd has in formed i ts c l ient  

that  i t  is earning a fee for the faci l i tat ion of  the 

above t ransact ion.”  

 Did Regiments in form ACSA that  i t  was earning a fee 

f rom – on this basis on the t ransact ion?  Were you aware 10 

that  Regiments was going to be paid R 13 mi l l ion by ACSA – 

by Nedbank and that  ACSA would have to pay that  back to 

Nedbank over the l i fe of  the swap? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  I  th ink I  know that  they wi l l  be 

earning a fee but  I  am not  sure i f  there was communicat ion 

around i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l . . .   Sorry,  let  us take that  

s lowly.   You think you know that  they were going to be 

earning a fee? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Did you know what the fee was? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  would not  have known because I  

cannot remember i f  there was a wr i t ten conf i rmat ion around 

i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So you might  not  have known that  
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the fee was R 13.165 mi l l ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  ACSA was going to have to 

pay that  amount  back to Nedbank.   Regiments would not 

have to pay that .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  would not  have known the quantum 

but  I  would have known that  ACSA would pay a fee for  

st ructur ing of  the swap.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  that  fee could have been one 

mi l l ion,  i t  would have been 13 mi l l ion,  i t  could have been 10 

50 mi l l ion.   Would you not  have taken steps to f ind out  how 

much you were commit t ing your organisat ion to pay back? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.   But  as I  say,  the f inancial  

instruments,  they were your pr ice(?) in.   You wi l l  look at  the 

fai r  value.    The fai r  va lue is a composted interest  rate that  

is given for a counterparty,  l ike in th is case,  ACSA to pay.  

 So you need to then go back and check,  you know, f rom 

a pr ic ing point  of  v iew,  whether  th is  rate that  you are get t ing 

re lat ively t rue(?).    

 The other instruments that  you have and the other  20 

instruments that  you have benchmarked,  have used yoursel f ,  

is i t  too high or not .  

 And then f rom that  perspect ive,  then you can make a 

determinat ion.   So you wi l l  look at  the composing,  you do not 

look at  the component.  
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[Speaker is not  c lear. ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  I  hear what you are saying but  

let  us go back to  procurement processes.   You said ear l ier 

that  you were not  aware what the mandate of  Regiments 

was.   Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i t  is possible that  that  or ig inal  

mandate . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on.   Mr Ramosebudi,  when 

you nod,  that  wi l l  not  be on the record.   So just  art iculate 10 

your answer and say yes,  i f  the answer is.   No,  i f  the answer 

is no.   Ja.   I  th ink you must repeat  that  quest ion 

Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi,  you sa id ear l ier  

that  you were not  aware of  what Regiments’ mandate under 

the Funding Plan was.   I t  might  have just  been to design the 

plan.   I t  might  also have been to ra ise money in terms of  the 

plan.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you.   Now, i f  i t  was just  to 20 

design the plan,  then there was no exist ing mandate that  

covered Regiments’ taking this fee at  ACSA’s expense via 

Nedbank for placing – for rais ing this money f rom Nedbank.   

You – would you accept  that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    There are one or two possibi l i t ies.   

Let  me take a step back.   There are one or two possibi l i t ies.   

Ei ther the mandate did cover rais ing funds or i t  just  covered 

designing the plan but  not  ra is ing funds.   You wi l l  agree to  

that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  I  th ink Mr Chaskalson is 

making very simple.   I  said,  I  have never seen that  mandate,  

what i t  entai ls.   And in th is case,  wi th respect ,  we are talk ing 

only invoice that  was deal ing wi th Funding Plan.    

 So f rom that  perspect ive,  I  said I  do not  know whether i t  10 

was the developing of  Funding Plan and the execut ion(?) of  

the Funding P lan.    

 But  the mandate could have covered a number of  o ther  

issues includ ing interest  rate swap.  So which we did not  

discuss at  that  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  I  th ink Mr Chaskalson’s quest ion 

is aimed at  establ ishing your understanding of  the effect  or 

impl icat ions of  a certain mandate,  such as,  or lawyers.  

 I f  you are a lawyer,  I  instruct  you to defend me in a 

cr iminal  case at  the magist rate’s  court .   That  does not  20 

necessari ly mean,  i f  you lose,  I  am convicted.  

 I  want  you to appeal ,  unless I  ask you to object .   

Give you that  mandate.   Because I  might  th ink you are the 

one who did not  do your job.   So I  must  get  – so what he is 

t ry ing to es tab l i sh  i s  what  wou ld  be  your  unders tand ing  o f  
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what  a  pa r t i cu la r  mandate  wou ld  mean.   I f  he  had th is  t ype  

o f  mandate  wou ld  i t  mean he cou ld  a lso  do  a ,  b ,  c ,  d  o r  

cou ld  i t  mean he cou ld  no t  do  tha t  un less  he  had tha t  o ther  

mandate?  That  i s  what  I  th ink  he  is  seek ing  to  es tab l i sh .   

Maybe,  Mr  Chaska lson,  you can then take  i t  f rom there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you.   Thank you ,  Cha i r.   

Le t  us  assume tha t  the  –  and aga in ,  i t  i s  an  assumpt ion  

tha t  I  am go ing  to  make,  okay?  Le t  us  assume tha t  the  

or ig ina l  mandate  inc luded ra i s ing  funds.   Make tha t  

assumpt ion .  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    And r i sk  management .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And. . .?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    R isk  management .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And r i sk  management .   And r i sk  

management  and des ign ing  the  p lan ,  i t  was an a l l -

embrac ing  one.   I f  i t  d id ,  we wou ld  expect  to  f ind  in  tha t  

o r ig ina l  mandate  payment  te rms fo r  Reg iments ,  wou ld  we  

not?   Th is  i s  what  you w i l l  ge t  pa id  fo r  do ing  the  r i sk  

management  and the  fund p lan ,  th is  i s  how we wi l l  

re imburse  you when you ra ise  funds.   Would  tha t  no t  20 

normal ly  be  what  we wou ld  expect  in  the  pub l i c  sec to r?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    P robab ly  so .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  then  i f  Reg iments  went  o f f  to  

Nedbank and sa id  to  Nedbank we are  ra i s ing  money in  

te rms o f  ou r  –  we are  ra i s ing  money fo r  ACSA,  what  can 
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you  g i ve  us  and Nedbank sa id  we l l ,  we can do th i s  swap  

fo r  1 .75  mi l l ion  and th is  one fo r  250 mi l l ion ,  the  te rms o f  

the  or ig ina l  mandate  wou ld  de te rm ine what  Reg iments  fee  

wou ld  be  v is -à-v i s  ACSA,  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I f  i t  i s  exc lus ive ly  s ta ted  so  in  the  

mandate  tha t  shou ld  be  –  tha t  i s  the  case.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  i f  i t  was covered  by  the  

mandate .   Now i f  the  mandate  d id  no t  cover  ra is ing  funds  

then Reg iments  wou ld  no t  have had the  au thor i t y  o f  ACSA 

to  go  to  Nedbank to  ra ise  funds  fo r  ACSA and Nedbank 10 

wou ld  no t  have been ab le  to  charge a  fee  to  ACSA fo r  

ra is ing  those funds.   I f  somebody  comes and says  to  Mr  

Mpofu  I  unders tand you want  to  go ,  cheers ,  you can leave 

now,  I  w i l l  l ook  a f te r  Mr  Ramosebud i  fo r  the  res t  o f  the  day 

and then p resents  you w i th  a  b i l l  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  a re  

you go ing  to  pay tha t  b i l l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i f  Reg iments  mandate  d id  no t  

inc lude the  ra i s ing  o f  funds and they took i t  upon  

themse lves jus t  to  ra ise  funds,  was ACSA ob l iged  to  pay 20 

them anyth ing?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  i s  no t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And so  e i the r  ACSA had no 

ob l iga t ion  to  pay them or  ACSA wou ld  have had an  

ob l iga t ion  to  pay them but  tha t  ob l iga t ion  wou ld  have been  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 47 of 397 
 

se t  ou t  in  a  mandate  o f  wh ich  you were  no t  aware ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  you make any enqu i r ies  in  

re la t ion  to  Reg iments ’ fee  when they came back to  you and 

sa id  we have done th is  dea l  w i th  Nedbank,  we  w i l l  be 

tak ing  a  fee  fo r  ourse lves?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  enqu i ry  I  wou ld  have made i f  I  

had made an appo in tment  o f  Reg iments  and then I  wou ld  

have to  check the  payments  aga ins t  the  mandate  i t se l f .   So 10 

in  th is  case the  appo in tments  wh ich  preceded my t ime 

cou ld  no t  be  ques t ioned.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  I  mean –  you say you  

were  aware  tha t  Nedbank was tak ing  a  fee  bu t ,  as  I  

unders tand your  tes t imony now,  you were  no t  rea l l y  aware  

whethe r  they were  en t i t led  to  take  a  fee .   They may have 

been,  they may not  have been,  you d id  no t  know.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   D id  anybody e lse  a t  ACSA know 

tha t  Reg iments  were  tak ing  a  fee?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The s ignatures  fo r  the  se t t lement  o f  

money shou ld  have known tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Mpofu  has sa id  

someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Someth ing  he  sa id ,  oh .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  I  –  my quest ion  was d id  

anybody e lse  a t  ACSA know whether  Reg iments  was tak ing  

a  fee?  I f  I  sa id  Nedbank ins tead o f  ACSA tha t  was an  

er ror.   So my quest ion  i s  d id  anybody e l se  a t  ACSA know 

whethe r  Reg imen ts  was tak ing  a  fee  on  th is  t ransact ion  

be tween ACSA and Nedbank?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja ,  I  wou ld  guess tha t  those tha t  

au thor ised the  appo in tment  o f  Reg iments  to  come and  

ass is t  on  th is  fund ing  p lan ,  th rough tha t  mandate  they  

know tha t  they d id  no t  come to  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  10 

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am not  ask ing  what  you  

assumed,  I  am ask ing  what  you knew.   D id  you know tha t  

anybody e lse  a t  ACSA knew tha t  Reg iments  was  tak ing  

a…? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Who e lse  a t  ACSA knew tha t  

Reg iments  was tak ing . . .?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  am sure  the  FD knew tha t  Reg iments  

was tak ing  a  fee .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And who was tha t  FD? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    A t  the  t ime i t  was Pr isc i l la  Mabe lane.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P r isc i l la  Mabe lane.   And you  

knew tha t  she knew tha t  Reg iments  was go ing  to  take  a  fee  

on  th is  t ransact ions.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words,  you knew as opposed to  

you assuming tha t  she knew.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  am assuming tha t  she knew because  

she had made an  appo in tment  on  Reg iments  to  come and 

execute  the  fund ing  p lan .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  th ink  Mr  Chaska lson is  –  we l l ,  h is  

quest ion  m ight  be  a  more  nuanced one,  maybe d i rec ted  

towards the  end ra the r  than the  beg inn ing  when they were  

appo in ted ,  tha t  whether  she knew in  the  end tha t  they were  10 

tak ing  th i s  fee  bu t  he  wants  to  know whether  you knew tha t  

person tha t  you have ment ioned knew tha t  o r  whether  –  he  

is  no t  ask ing  whe ther  you assumed,  he  jus t  wants  to  know 

what  you knew.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Mr  Chaska lson,  thorough yourse l f ,  

Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  common cause tha t  when you 

appo in t  somebody to  do  someth ing  tha t  they wou ld  be  

remunera ted .    So tha t  i s  my assumpt ion .   Whether  she 

knows tha t  tha t  was the  case,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you do not  –  i t  i s  no t  as 20 

though you and Pr isc i l la  Mabe lane were  eve r  in  a  room 

wi th  Reg iments  who sa id  oh ,  we are  tak ing  13  mi l l ion  fee  

on  th is  dea l .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you never  had any d i scuss ion  w i th  
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her  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  bas i s  o f  wh ich  you can say she 

knew.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l l  you  are  say ing  is  because she may  

have been invo lved in  appo in t ing  them you take i t  tha t  she 

wou ld  know whether  they wou ld  be  ent i t led  or  no t  en t i t led  

to  tha t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    On the  bas is  t ha t  she appo in ted  them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  no t  tha t  you …[ in tervenes ]  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Bu t  we never  had …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    A d iscuss ion .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  we s t i l l  s tay  w i th in  your  

assumpt ion  then i f  the  assumpt ion  f lows f rom the  fac t  tha t  

she appo in ted  them,  you wou ld  assume tha t  she wou ld  

appo in t  them on  par t i cu la r  te rms  tha t  wou ld  govern  the i r  

fees,  wou ld  you not?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No because I  cou ld  no t  ge t  in to  the  

d iscuss ion  w i th  her  on  the  appo in tment  o f  Reg iments .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wou ld  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  I  am sor ry,  what  d id  you say?  

Jus t  repeat  your  answer?  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  am say ing  I  d id  no t  know because  

we have never  had a  d iscuss ion  about  the  appo in tment  o f  

Reg iments  w i th  P r isc i l la .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  I  th ink  Mr  Chaska lson was  

say ing  when you sa id  because  she was invo lved in  

appo in t ing  them she wou ld  know,  was tha t  because you are  

say ing  in  appo in t ing  them the  i ssue o f  what  they wou ld  

have been pa id  o r  what  they wou ld  be  ent i t led  to  wou ld  be  

dea l t  w i th  in  the  appo in tment  documents .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    P rec ise ly,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you wou ld  have assumed tha t  

an  appo in tment  o f  Reg iments  wou ld  have been made tha t  

wou ld  have governed the i r  appo in tment  and the  fees  

payab le  fo r  tha t  appo in tment .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t  us  go  to  the  next  document  

wh ich  is  page 32,  dea ls  w i th  the  new swap.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Migh t  th is  be  the  conven ien t  t ime,  Mr  

Chaska lson?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  us  take  the  tea  ad journment ,  we 

w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  e leven.   Yes –  oh ,  Mr  Mpofu ,  you 

are  excused.   Okay,  thank you,  we  ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  

Ramosebud i ,  can  I  take  you to  a  new document ,  i t  i s  on  

page 32.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  am here ,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Aga in  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mar io  

Vis inenzo(?)  to  Er ic  Wood,  copy  to  Moss Br ickman.   The 

sub jec t  i s  ACSA in te res t  ra te  swap  as  an  a t tachment  o f  the  

spreadsheet .  10 

“H i  E r ic ,  cur ren t  ind ica t ive  ra te  on  the  in te res t  ra te  

swap is  as  fo l lows. ”  

And then the  te rms a re  se t  ou t .   I t  i s  go ing  to  be  1 .5  b i l l i on  

swap and then the  same sentence:  

“We leave i t  up  to  you to  inc lude a  marg in  fo r  us  to  

share  on  the  usua l  50 /50  agreement . ”  

I  have to  ask  the  same quest ion  to  you aga in ,  were  you  

aware  tha t  Reg iments  and Nedbank were  go ing  to  share  a  

marg in  on  a  50 /50 bas is  a t  ACSA’s  expense? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  then go down to  page 34 

wh ich  i s  the  sp readsheet  tha t  was  a t tached to  tha t  emai l .   

Can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  th is  spreadsheet  on  

page 34 is  desc r ib ing?  I t  i s  ca l led  Swap Pro f i le .x ls .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson,  the  sheet  on  page 4  jus t  
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show the  cash f low pro f i le  fo r  a  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  tha t  

matures  on  the  29  December  2023 .   Sor ry,  on  the  18  March  

2024.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  then go ove r  the  page to  

page 36 and s ta r t  w i th  the  emai l  a t  the  foo t  o f  page 36.   

Sor ry,  s ta r t  w i th  the  emai l  a t  the  foo t  o f  page 34.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Page 34 is  the  cash f low pro f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    34?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am look ing  a t  the  wrong 

numbers ,  I  beg your  pardon,  I  am look ing  a t  red  numbers .   10 

Go to  the  bo t tom o f  page 36,  I  am sor ry.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mar io  V is inenzo(?)  to  Er ic  Wood  

10 March 2010.  

“H i  E r ic ,  the  a t tached spreadsheet  i l l us t ra tes  the  

es t imated fu tu re  cash f lows on the  proposed swaps  

based on today ’s  swap and CPI  cu rves.   On the  

J iba r  legs  o f  the  swaps Nedbank  w i l l  pay  ACSA a  

quar te r l y  in te res t  ra te  payment  ca lcu la ted  as  th ree  

month  J iba r  p lus  2 .6% of  the  amor t i s ing  no t iona l  20 

pro f i le .   Nedbank w i l l  no t  pay any cap i ta l  amount .   

On the  CPI  leg  o f  the  swaps ACSA wi l l  pay  Nedbank  

a  quar te r ly  in te res t  payment  ca lcu la ted  as  the  

quoted rea l  ra tes  on  the  ad jus ted  CPI  no t iona l  

amounts .   The not iona l  amounts  on  th is  leg  o f  the  
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swap are  there fo re  ad jus ted  by  the  change in  the  

CPI  leve l  ove r  the  t ransact ion  per iod .   P lease note  

tha t  ACSA wi l l  a lso  have to  pay Nedbank a  cap i t a l  

amount  on  the  matur i t y  o f  the  swaps,  th is  amount  

be ing  ca l cu la ted  as  the  d i f fe rence between the  

ad jus ted  not iona l  amount  on  the  matur i t y  da te  and 

the  in i t ia l  no t iona l  amount  on  incept ion .   Th is  

cap i ta l  se t t lement  i s  as  per  s tandard  CPI  swap 

convent ion .   I  hope tha t  the  mechan ics  o f  the  CPI  

swaps are  now c lea rer  bu t  ca l l  me i f  you have 10 

fu r ther  quer ies . ”  

Can you exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  was  he is  descr ib ing  there?  

And i f  i t  may ass is t  you the  spreadsheet  tha t  he  is  

re fe r r i ng  to  s ta r t s  a t  page 38.   Maybe I  can ass is t  you.   I f  

you  go to  page 38 you w i l l  see  swap 1 .   I s  th is  the  swap 1  

on  page 38 re la t ing  to  the  J ibar  leg  o f  the  swaps wh ich  Mr  

Vis inenzo descr ibes in  h is  emai l  where  ACSA pays a  

quar te r l y  in te res t  payment  ca lcu la ted  as  th ree  mon th  J ibar  

p lus  2 .6% on the  amor t i s ing  no t iona l  p ro f i le .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson,  th is  i s  –  on  page 38,  le t  20 

me exp la in  jus t  what  Mr  Cha i rperson requested me to  

exp la in  to  you,  Cha i rperson,  on  page 36,  an  emai l  f rom 

Mar io  to  Er ic .   In  here  Mar io  says to  Er ic  tha t  the  swap has 

two reg ime –  I  am jus t  bor rowing your  te rm ino logy,  

Cha i rperson.  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 55 of 397 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The swaps has two reg ime,  one  

reg ime is  a  f loa t ing  ra te  o f  J iba  p lus  260 bas is  po in ts ,  

2 .6% and then the  o ther  reg ime i t  i s  an  in f la t ion  index or  a  

cap i ta l  ad jus ted  w i th  and in f la t ion  index,  so  –  and what  he  

says here ,  ACSA wi l l  pay  on  a  quar te r ly  bas is ,  every  th ree  

months ,  and a  CPI  ra te  or  an  in f la t ion  ra te  tha t  i s  ad jus ted  

on the  cap i ta l  de termined by  a  rea l  ra te  on  a  quar te r ly  

bas is  un t i l  matur i t y  whereas Nedbank w i l l  be  pay ing  J iba  

p lus  260 bas i s  po in ts ,  J iba  p lus  2 .6% on the  same 10 

quar te r l y  bas i s  on  an  amor t i s i ng  p ro f i le  o f  the  loan.   So the  

loan amor t i ses  up  unt i l  the  end o f  the  per iod ,  Nedbank w i l l  

no t  pay any cap i ta l  amount .   But  somewhere  here  i t  says  

Ned -  ACSA wi l l  pay  a  se t t lement  ad jus ted  fo r  CPI  a t  the  

end o f  the  convent ion  per iod  mean ing  tha t  the  ba lance o f  

the  cap i ta l  i s  ad jus ted  by  the  in f la t ion  and over  a  per iod  o f  

t ime then ACSA wi l l  se t t le  tha t  ad jus ted  cap i ta l  over  a  

per iod  o f  t ime even though i t  is  pay ing  on  amor t i s ing  

pro f i le  bu t  the  ba lance accrue w i th  in f la t ion  because i t  i s  

pay ing  on  a  rea l  ra te .   That  i s  what  he  says on  th is  20 

par t i cu la r  emai l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  i s  the  J ibar  leg  o f  the 

swap because there  a re  a l so  the  CPI  legs .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No,  no ,  the  J ibar  ra te  i s  what  

Nedbank pays ACSA and then the  CPI  ra te  i s  what  ACSA is  
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pay ing  Nedbank.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  take  you down to  page 38 

because I  th ink  t he  s i tua t ion  i s  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  because  

there  a re  two separa te  reg imes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    He has  one reg ime on wh ich  he  

ca l l s  swap 1  on  page 38 and  there  you w i l l  see  the  

Nedbank pay ing  ACSA J iba r  p lus  260% over  the  amor t i s ing  

pro f i le .   So the  amor t i s ing  pro f i le  i s  re f lec ted  in  the  

decreas ing  no t iona l  in  the  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 t h  co lumn,  i s  that  10 

cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  Nedbank pays to  ACSA is  

J iba r  p lus  2 .6% on those decreas ing  amounts ,  tha t  is  in  the 

next  co lumn.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then there  is  a  CPI  no t iona l  

co lumn wh ich  is  go ing  to  de termine what  ACSA pays  

Nedbank and ACSA’s  payments  to  Nedbank are  in  the  fa r  

r igh t  co lumn and as  you po in ted  out  there  w i l l  be  a  20 

se t t lement ,  a  la rge  se t t lement  payment  a t  the  end,  tha t  903  

mi l l ion .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  then i f  you  down a  page you 

w i l l  see  tha t  there  are  separa te  swaps wh ich  he  ca l l s  swap  
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2A ,  swap 2B and swap 2C and there  is  a  separa te  schedu le  

o f  payments  in  re la t ion  to  these th ree  re la ted  swaps.   So 

swap 2C se ts  ou t  –  2A se ts  ou t  the  payments  tha t  everyone  

w i l l  pay  a t  page 39.   I f  you  go down a  page you see swap 

2B and swap 2C on the  las t  page wh ich  is  41  and i f  we go  

back up  to  h is  emai l  on  page 36 –  i t  i s  poss ib ly  c learer  on  

the  emai l  a t  the  top  o f  the  page 36 wh ich  is  a  fo l low-up  

emai l  f rom Mar io  to  Er ic  and Moss where  he  says:  

“F ina l l y  the  rev i sed schedu le  and ra tes  fo r  the  

proposed in f la t ion  l inked swaps  w i th  ACSA,  see  10 

a t tached spreadsheet…”  

Which  we have jus t  been look ing  a t .  

“ . . . swap 1  is  based on a  no t iona l  amount  o f  1 .5  

b i l l i on  amor t i s ing  on  the  J ibar  leg  to  match  the  

under l y ing  loan. . . ”  

That  i s  what  you desc r ibed.  

“ . . .wh i l s t  the  no t iona l  and the  CPI  leg  is  a  constan t  

amount  o f  1 .5  b i l l i on  ad jus ted  by  CPI . ”  

He then desc r ibes –  and then he ta lks  about  swap 2A,  

swap 2B and swap 2C.  20 

“ . . .have been s t ruc tu red in  o rder  to  rep l i ca te  the  

amor t i s ing  na ture  o f  the  under ly ing  loan.   We have  

now ca lcu la ted  the  no t iona l  amount  such tha t  the  

rea l  ra te  i s  the  same on a l l  th ree  swaps,  in te res t  

payments  to  ACSA on the  J ibar  leg  so  the  swaps  
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w i l l  add up to  the  in te res t  payments  on  the  

under l y ing  amor t i s ing  loan. ”  

So can you exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  what  swaps 2A,  2B  and 2C 

are?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The swaps  2A to  C,  Cha i rperson i s  

the  is  a  th ree  swap tha t  b reaks the  1 .5  b i l l i on  in  to  th ree  

swaps and they a re  pr ic ing  to  a  CPI  ra te  aga ins t  the  2 .6% 

over  J ibar  ra te .   So the  1 .5  b i l l i on  was,  you know,  broken 

down in  th ree  swap.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  a  la te r  s tage when they  10 

re fer  to  the  CPI  swaps,  so  they are  go ing  to  be  re fe r r ing  to  

2A,  2B and 2C?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  was a  yes?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  take  you next  to  page 46?   

I t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Thabo Let laka  to  yourse l f .   Do you 

reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  emai l  da ted  19 March 2010? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  s i r,  I  am on the  page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    My quest ion  was do you reca l l  20 

rece iv ing  th is  emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    You know,  Cha i rperson,  I  see the  

emai l ,  p robab ly  i t  came to  my inbox.   I  cannot  reca l l  bu t  I  

th ink  i t  came to  me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  maybe i f  you look a t  the  
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a t tachments  there  are  two.   The  one i s  a  spreadsheet ,  

s im i la r  to  the  one  tha t  we have jus t  seen and then there  is  

one tha t  i s  ca l led  –  a  document  ca l led  the  A i rpor t s  

Company o f  Sou th  A f r i ca .docex.   Maybe tha t  w i l l  re f resh 

your  memory.   So i f  you  go to  page 42 you w i l l  see  the  

document .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  reca l l  th is  document .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you reca l l  th is  document .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And wou ld  i t  be  cor rec t  to  say 10 

tha t  th is  document  i s  mot iva t ing  the  w isdom of  en ter ing  

in to  the  swaps tha t  we have jus t  been look ing  a t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  th ink  th i s  document  exp la ins  the  

swap t ransact ions tha t  have been entered in to .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  i t  is  no t  jus t  exp la in ing  the  

swap t ransact ions tha t  have been entered in to ,  i t  i s  

mot iva t ing  them.   I f  I  can  take  you down to  –  you go to  

page 43,  you w i l l  see :  

“ I  fee l  tha t  ACSA can get  be t te r  va lue  by  chang ing  

the  pro f i le  o f  the  loan,  p ropos ing  tha t  ACSA ente rs  20 

in to  a  swap agreement  w i th  an  in te rmed iary  bank. ”  

So what  the  memo is  do ing  is  i t  i s  re fe r r ing  to  an  ex is t ing  

DBSA loan and i t  i s  say ing  you w i l l  ge t  va lue  by  swapp ing  

your  exposure  on  tha t  loan by  en te r ing  in to  an  in te res t  ra te  

swap.   Would  tha t  be  a  cor rec t  summary  o f  th is  
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memorandum? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you reca l l  who adv ised ACSA 

in  the  f i rs t  p lace  to  take  out  the  Deve lopment  Bank loan fo r  

1 .5  b i l l i on?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  was Reg iments .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Reg iments  Cap i ta l ,  yes .   Who is  

wr i t ing  th is  memorandum?  Mr  Le t laka ,  where  does he 

work?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I t  comes f rom Reg iments ,  I  do  no t  10 

know who wro te  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   Wel l ,  so  i t  comes f rom 

Reg iments .   So Reg iments  adv i sed ACSA to  en te r  in to  a  

Deve lopment  Bank loan fo r  1 .5  b i l l i on .   Were  they pa id  a  

fee  fo r  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink  so .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And now they are  say ing  you w i l l  

ge t  be t te r  va lue  i f  you  get  ou t  o f  the  loan tha t  we adv ised  

you to  ge t  in to and swap and enter  in to  an  in te res t  ra te  

swap,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  remember  to  a r t i cu la te  your  

responses aud ib l y,  Mr  Ramosebud i .   Sor ry,  I  jus t  make 

sure  I  p ronounce your  surname co r rec t ly.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then –  and d id  ACSA enter  

in to  th is  in te res t  ra te  swap w i th  those th ree  CPI  swaps?  

D id  i t  fo l low Reg iments ’ adv ice  in  th is  regard?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  cannot  reca l l  bu t  ACSA d id  t rade the  

in te res t  ra te  swaps.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  le t  us  maybe go a  l i t t le  b i t  

lower  down wh ich  m ight  re f resh your  memory.   I f  you  go  

down to  page 57 you w i l l  see  an emai l  f rom Moss Br ickman 10 

to  Er ic  Wood dated 23 March 2010.   So we are  s t i l l  ta lk ing  

about  the  same p rocess.   I t  says :  

“H i  E r ic ,  be low is  the  schedu le  o f  fee  payments  tha t  

we shou ld  be  ab le  to  capture  on  the  p roposed ACSA 

t ransact ion .   The  va lues in  the  tab le  are  per  bas is  

po in t  ac tua l  on  the  prescr ibed dates . ”  

And then i t  says :  

“Payment  o f  fees to  Reg iments”  

I t  has  go t  ACSA on the  le f t  hand s ide  and i t  has  go t  a  

schedu le  o f  da tes  and i t  says .  20 

“Tota l  per  bas is  po in t  pe r  rand R1 178 673 pe r  bas i s  

po in t . ”  

Am I  cor rec t  in  in te rpre t ing  th i s  emai l  tha t  Nedbank is  

wr i t ing  to  Reg iments  say ing  we can captu re  these fees fo r  

you wh ich  w i l l  be  pa id  by  ACSA on  the  fo l low ing dates  and  
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the  to ta l  tha t  you w i l l  ge t  per  bas i s  po in t  i s  1 .178 mi l l ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  as  per  th is  sheet ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  fee  –  do  you reca l l  

what  fee  Reg iments  took on  the  las t  swap where  we saw 

the i r  fee?  Do you reca l l  how many bas is  po in ts  they took?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The las t  invo i ce  wh ich  we saw was  

about  R11 mi l l ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  do  you reca l l  how many  

bas is  po in ts  tha t  t rans la ted  to?   We d id  ac tua l l y. . .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  th ink  they were  quot ing  in  the  10 

document ,  the  emai l ,  10  bas i s  po in ts .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    10  bas i s  po in t s?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i f  we app l ied  to  same 10  

bas is  po in t  ra te  here ,  what  wou ld  the  fee  to  Reg iments  be? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja ,  w i thout  do ing  the  ca lcu la t ions,  I  

cannot  vouch fo r  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  bu t  i t  says  –  look ,  th is  i s  

easy menta l  a r i thmet ic .   To ta l  per  bas is  po in t  1  178  673,  10  

bas is  po in t s  wou ld  you g ive  you 11.786 mi l l ion ,  i s  tha t  no t  20 

cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me put  the  quest ion  a  

d i f fe ren t  way,  i f  the  to ta l  per  bas is  po in t  i s  th i s  amount  and 

they ge t  10  bas is  po in ts ,  they w i l l  ge t  ten  t imes tha t  
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amount ,  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja ,  ja ,  s imp le  ar i thmet ic  ca lcu la t ion ,  

yes ,  i t  does exact ly  bu t  i f  you  compare  the  numbers  

because there  is  t ime va lue  o f  money he re  the  numbers  are  

d i f fe ren t .   Here  is  11  786 000,  the  o ther  one is  11  540 000.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  we are  ta lk ing  about  

d i f fe ren t  t ransact ions tha t  i s  why they do  not  cor re la te ,  th is  

i s  a  new t ransact ion .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   They have a l ready got  the i r  13  10 

mi l l ion  fee  f rom the  las t  one.   So you w i l l  agree tha t  i f  on 

the  new t ransact i on  a t  10  bas i s  po in ts  they w i l l  be  look ing  

a t  11 .78  mi l l ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The answer  i s  yes?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Were  you aware  tha t  they were  

go ing  to  be  pa id  th is  amount  o f  11 .78? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You were  no t?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  was not  aware .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You were  no t .   Can I  take  you a  

l i t t le  b i t  lower  down to  page 61,  wh ich  is  now 26 March  

2010 and we see  now an invo ice  f rom Reg iments  to  Moss 
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B r ickman,  i t  i s  invo i ce  Ned 5  o f  2010,  i t  goes to  Nedbank  

and the  nar ra t i ve  on  i t  i s  o r ig ina t ion  and fac i l i ta t ion  o f  the  

1 .5  b i l l i on  in te res t  ra te  swap  t ransact ions be tween  

Nedbank Cap i ta l  and ACSA and  wou ld  those be those 

t ransact ions tha t  we were  jus t  look ing  a t?   Do you reca l l  

they  were  1 .5  b i l l i on?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  now a t  page 62,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am page 62.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you in i t ia l l y  sa id  61  but  I  th ink  you 

are  now on 62.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  apo log ise ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    62 ,  yes .   So or ig ina t ion  and  

fac i l i ta t ion  o f  the  1 .5  b i l l i on  in te res t  ra te  swap t ransact ions 

be tween Nedbank and ACSA.   Underneath  the  las t  

sentence:  

“Reg iments  Cap i ta l  (P ty)  L td  has in fo rmed i t s  c l ien t  

tha t  i t  i s  earn ing  a  fee  fo r  the  fac i l i ta t ion  o f  the  

above t ransact ion . ”  

Now you have ear l ie r  sa id  tha t  you had assumed tha t  20 

Reg iments  wou ld  ge t  a  fee  bu t  you have a lso  sa id  tha t  you 

were  no t  aware  tha t  the  fee  wou ld  be  –  I  th ink  sa id  11 .78,  

we see th is  one says 10 .78.   Were  you aware  tha t  the  fee  

wou ld  be  10.78?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Were  you aware  tha t  Reg iments  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  jus t  remember  to  make sure  your  

answer  i s  aud ib le .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Were  you aware  tha t  Reg iments  

and Nedbank apparent ly  had an ar rangement  where  they  

sp l i t  a  marg in  on  a  50 /50 …[ in tervenes]  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    . . .bas is .   You were  no t  aware  o f  10 

tha t  e i ther.   Can  I  then go down to  a  t ransact ion  be tween 

S tandard  and ACSA and tha t  i s  a t  page 80 and there  you 

w i l l  see  an emai l  f rom Mr  Za id  Moo la  o f  S tandard ,  

Wednesday 19 May 2010 to  Er ic  Wood,  c .c .  Johan Roos  

and i t  says :  

“H i  E r ic ,  thank you fo r  you r  ass is tance in  secur ing  

th is  dea l ,  we rea l l y  apprec ia te  i t .   The fo l low ing are  

ou ts tand ing  f rom ACSA,  p lease can you chase i t  up  

fo r  us?   Can you a lso  p lease  send us  some 

documenta t ion  d i sc los ing  the  ag reement  be tween 20 

yourse l f  and ACSA and the  fee  d isc losure ,  our  lega l  

head wou ld  l i ke  i t  on  f i le . ”  

So Nedbank jus t  want  Reg iments  to  pu t  a  s ta tement  on  

the i r  invo ice ,  S tandard  are  say ing  we ac tua l l y  want  the  

documenta t ion  tha t  chose your  agreement  tha t  you can  
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take  a  fee  f rom ACSA.   Then i f  you go down to  page 82,  

you see the  document  and the re  you w i l l  see  an emai l  f rom 

Er ic  Wood to  yourse l f ,  20  May 2010,  copy to  Za id  Moo la  

and severa l  o the r  peop le  a t  S tandard  and the  sub jec t  i s  

in te res t  ra te  swap.   Do you reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rpe rson,  somet ime tha t  I  see i t  

came to  me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  -   a re  you accept ing  tha t  

you wou ld  have seen th i s  emai l  a t  th is  t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes,  I  am accept ing  tha t  I  have seen,  10 

ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   

 “H i  Pheto lo ,  the  fo l low ing in te res t   

ra te  swap was  t ransacted between ACSA and  

S tandard  Bank on 19 May 2010.   1 .5  b i l l i on  swap  

t ransacted on 19  May,  na ture  o f  under l y ing  ab i l i t y,  

the  c l ien t ,  the  na ture  o f  the  swap,  Reg iments ’ fee  

11  bas is  po in ts .   Person a t  c l ien t  in fo rmed the  

Reg iments  fee ,  Pheto lo  Ramosebud i ,  Treasurer,  

da te  in fo rmed Wednesday 19 May 2010,  te lephon ic ,  20 

verba l .   Shou ld  you requ i re  any fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  

or  ass i s tance p lease contac t  myse l f . ”  

Do you reca l l  have a  te lephon ic  conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Wood  

where  he  sa id  we are  about  to  conc lude a  1 .75  b i l l i on  

t ransact ion  fo r  ACSA wi th  S tandard  and we are  go ing  to  
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take  an  11 bas is  po in t  fee  fo r  ou rse l ves wh ich  ACSA wi l l  

pay  back over  the  l i fe  o f  the  swap.   Do you reca l l  a  

conversa t ion  o f  tha t  na ture?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  cannot  reca l l  the  ca l l ,  i t  has  been  

some t ime,  bu t  yes ,  I  saw i t  happened.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me ask a  d i f fe ren t  

quest ion ,  i f  i t  had not  happened,  what  wou ld  you have 

done when you rece ived th is  emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    So  he is  in fo rming me on the  

t ransact ion  tha t  i s  be ing  conc luded and the  fees tha t  they  10 

have charged us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  he  is  say ing  there  was a  te lephone  

conversa t ion  w i th  you dur ing  wh ich  he  to ld  you about  th is .   

So the  quest ion  is ,  when you rece ived th is  emai l  and you  

wou ld  have seen  what  he  says,  namely  tha t  he  had had a  

te lephone conversa t ion  w i th  you in  wh ich  he  had to ld  you 

th is ,  i f  there  had been no such  te lephone conversa t ion  

what  wou ld  you have done i f  wha t  he  was say ing  was not  

t rue?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Le t  us  look a t  the  t ransact ion  because  20 

what  he  is  say ing  he re ,  he  has t ransacted on the  19  May.   

And a f te r  the  t ransact ion  on  the  19  May he in fo rmed me o f  

what  the  t ransact ion  en ta i l s ,  inc lud ing  the  fees tha t  he  has  

charged,  wh ich  what  he  has captu red on he re .   So he has  

in fo rmed h im what  he  has charged us  on  the  t ransact ion  
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tha t  he  executed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  apar t  f rom tha t   -  and Mr  Chaska lson 

you must  te l l  me i f  I  m isunders tand someth ing .   Apar t  f rom 

tha t  he  is  say ing  tha t  he  had a  te lephone conversa t ion  

where  he  to ld  you about  these th ings,  he  to ld  you tha t  here  

is  what  he  had done and tha t  he  is  go ing  to  be  – he  is  

charg ing  a  fee  fo r  i t .   I f ,  when you read th is  emai l ,  you 

thought  bu t  he  never  spoke to  me,  why is  he  say ing  he  

spoke to  me,  wha t  wou ld  you have done? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  i s  why  I  sa id  i t  has  been some 10 

t ime,  so  I  cannot  reca l l  whethe r  he  ca l led  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  normal l y  i f  somebody sends you  

an emai l  and says you have spoken,  maybe you have 

agreed on someth ing  and you never  had tha t  conversa t ion ,  

what  wou ld  you do,  how wou ld  you  hand le  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Normal ly  i f  he  has –  because he 

might  have ca l led  me the  t ime he was wr i t ing  the  emai l  and 

then when he spoke to  me a t  the  t ime then I  sa id  p lease,  

can you reduce tha t  in  wr i t ing  because I  m ight  have asked  

tha t  quest ion ,  can you reduce what  you are  te l l ing  me in  20 

wr i t ing  so  tha t  a t  leas t  I  have someth ing?  I  cou ld  have 

done tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  you might  be  ab le  

to  -  maybe tha t  sa t is f ies  you o r  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  is  good enough  fo r  my 



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 69 of 397 
 

purposes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    But ,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  there  is  

another  i ssue around th is  emai l  tha t  I  want  to  ra i se  w i th  

you,  i t  says :  

“Person a t  c l ien t  in fo rmed o f  Reg iments ’ fee . . . ”  

And bear  in  m ind th is  i s  cop ied  to  S tandard  Bank as  you  

see in  the  c .c .  l i nes .  

“Person a t  c l ien t  in fo rmed the  Reg iments  fee ,  

Pheto lo  Ramosebud i . ”  10 

So on an emai l  cop ied  to  S tandard  Mr  Wood is  say ing  I  

have in fo rmed Ramosebud i  o f  ACSA o f  our  fee .   D id  i t  no t  

s t r i ke  you as  s t range tha t  he  was ident i f y ing  you  as  the  

person a t  ACSA to  c i te  th is  au thor i t y  fo r  h i s  fees as  

opposed to  Ms Mabe lane?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No.   No,  Cha i rperson,  because here  

he  is  s ta t ing  the  person he has in fo rmed o f  the  t ransact ion ,  

no t  the  person who is  au tho r is ing  the  t ransact ion .   So he 

has in fo rmed h is  co l league who requ i red  f rom Standard  

Bank a  conf i rmat ion  tha t  the  c l ien t  knows about  the  fee ,  20 

wh ich  he  spoke to  me,  tha t  I  have  charged 11 bas is  po in ts .   

That  i s  what  he  s ta ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  –  bu t  you d id  no t  know 

whethe r  he  was author ised to  take  th is  11  bas is  po in t  fee  

or  no t ,  d id  you?  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  wou ld  no t  have known because I  do  

no t  know the  de ta i l s  o f  the  mandate  tha t  they have,  

whethe r  i t  was on a  fee  base,  on  a  f i xed  te rm or  on  a  

sav ing  base,  tha t  I  have not  known tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  so  you do not  know whethe r  

he  is  au tho r ised to  take  th is  fee  and ye t  he  i s  c i t ing  you as  

the  on ly  person a t  ACSA who he  has to ld  about  the  fee .   

D id  tha t  no t  concern  you in  any way?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No,  I  was the  –  a t  the  t ime I  th ink  I  

was the  so le  person a t  the  Treasury  a t  ACSA,  I  had one or  10 

two peop le  tha t  were  work ing  w i th  me  and most ly  the  

t ransact ions they  were  executed by  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  you d idn ’ t  know whethe r  

he  was a l lowed to  take  th is  fee  on  your  ve rs ion .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Excuse Mr  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    On your  ve rs ion  you d idn ’ t  know 

whethe r  he  was a l lowed to  take  th i s  11  bas is  po in t  fee .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Because I  don ’ t  know the  de ta i l  o f  the  

mandate  he  has.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  you not  th ink  tha t  maybe i t  20 

be  prudent  to  f ind  ou t  whether  he  was ent i t led  to  take  over  

R10 mi l l ion  rands  a t  ACSA wou ld  have to  pay back?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The t ransact ion  o f  th is  na ture  and the  

a t t rac ted  fee ,  bu t  the  re la t i ve  amount  o f  tha t  I  don ’ t  know 

because the  mandate  I  don ’ t  have i t .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  d id  you say ear l ie r  tha t  you 

were  the  one who  executed th is  t ransact ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  am say ing  yes,  because I  had the  

loan fo r  f i ve ,  so  I  gave h im the  loan fo r  f i ve  and a lso  they  

were  work ing  w i th  h im there  a t  the  loan pro f i le  to  do  th is  

t ransact ion .   That  i s  why f rom ACSA po in t  o f  v iew I  was the  

coord ina t ing  po in t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you a re  the  coord ina t ing  

po in t ,  you commi t  ACSA to  a  t ransact ion  wh ich  w i l l  invo l ve  

pay ing  over  R10 mi l l ion  rands to  Reg iments  and you don ’ t  10 

know whether  ACSA actua l l y  i s  ob l iged to  pay R10  mi l l ion 

to  Reg iments  or  no t .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  don ’ t  th ink  Cha i rperson tha t  i s  the 

cor rec t  vers ion  o f  what  th i s  person says here .   Here  he  

in fo rmed me o f  the  charge o f  the  in te res t  ra te .   He has 

been appo in ted  by  somebody h igher  than me in  ACSA,  so  

who gave them the  commi tment  to  commi t  ACSA?  I  d id  no t  

commi t  ACSA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  th ink  the  po in t  i s  th is  Mr  

Ramosebud i ,  they  have been appo in ted .  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And on your  unders tand ing  o f  the 

pos i t ion ,  i f  they  were  appo in ted ,  they were  no t  appo in ted  

to  do  th is  work  fo r  f ree .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    P rec ise ly  t rue .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   They were ,  they were  go ing  to  charge.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Fo r  th is  work .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  when he phones you and says,  I  am 

charg ing  fo r  th is ,  shou ld  you not  have sa id ,  why are  you 

te l l ing  me about  th is  spec i f i c  charge?  You are  charg ing  o f  

course ,  why a re  you te l l ing  me about  th is  spec i f i c  charge?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    You are  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the  purpose?  Why,  why  –  you 10 

haven ’ t  to ld  me about  o ther  charges,  why are  you te l l ing  

me about  th is  one?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    For  the  purpose o f  respond ing  to  

because S tandard  Bank needed a  conf i rmat ion ,  because  

S tandard  Bank  needed a  conf i rmat ion  whether  th is  

Reg iments  i s  do ing  th is  t ransact ion  on  beha l f  o f  ACSA.   

Because they m ight  have not  done i t  on  beha l f  o f  ACSA.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i f  I  take  in to  account  what  I  have  

heard ,  i t  appears  tha t  Standard  Bank was conf i rmed,  was 

conf i rmed tha t  no th ing  shou ld  be  done and no fee  shou ld  20 

be earned o r  taken un less  ACSA knew about  i t  and had  

author ised i t .   That ’s ,  tha t ’s  why  they wanted tha t  they  

even wanted to  know who knew about  i t .    

And then they are  th is  person says,  we l l  I  phoned 

Mr  Ramosebud i ,  he  is  the  person who knows about  i t .   And 
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the  quest ion  is ,  when he phoned you,  i f  he  d id  phone you,  

we assume he d id ,  when he phoned you and sa id ,  you  

know the re  is  th is  t ransact ion  and I  am charg ing  fo r  th is ,  

shou ldn ’ t  your  na tura l  react ion  have been why a re  you 

te l l ing  me tha t  you are  charg ing  fo r  th is?    

Because o f  cou rse  you,  you are  charg ing  fo r  the  

work  i n  accordance w i th  whatever  agreement ,  so  what  i s  

the  purpose o f  te l l ing  me?  So the  quest ion  is ,  shou ldn ’ t  

your  react ion  have been prec i se l y  tha t?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rperson,  I  don ’ t ,  I  don ’ t  see i t  in  10 

tha t  fash ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  te l l  me how you see i t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    And how I  see i t ,  i t  i s  p rec ise l y  f rom 

the  emai l  f rom Za id  Mul le r  he re .   Za id  Mul le r  wanted a  

d isc losure  agreement  be tween ACSA and Reg iments .   And 

he wanted tha t  d isc losure  to  ac tua l l y  even spec i fy  the  fee  

tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  charged.    

I t  was not  about  yes  Reg iments  were  t ransact ing  

w i th  S tandard  Bank on beha l f  o f  ACSA and there fore  there  

is  a  fee  to  add.   That  one is  a  normal ,  i s  in  a  no rmal  cause  20 

o f  bus iness.   You t ransact  on  beha l f  o f  anybody you  charge 

a  fee .   But  wha t  Za id  was look ing  fo r,  i s  a  d i sc losure  

agreement .    

Which  th i s  emai l  wh ich  Er i c  has sent  to  S tandard  

Bank i t  i s  no t  say ing  tha t .   Here  i t  says,  I  –  he  to ld  me o f  
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the  fee .   He in fo rmed me tha t  there  is  a  fee  o f  11  bas is  

po in ts  tha t  i s  w i th  these bank charges.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Why wou ld  he  have to  te l l  you  about  th is  

fee  i f  the  fee  fe l l  w i th in  the  agreement?   Why wou ld  he  

need to  te l l  you?  I f  he  was charg ing  a  fee  tha t  was in  

acco rdance w i th  h is  appo in tment ,  w i th  the i r  appo in tment?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    There  cou ld  be  two th ings.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    One cou ld  be  tha t  maybe in  te rms o f  

the  d isc losure  tha t  he  fo rwarded  to  S tandard  Bank th i s ,  10 

tha t  S tandard  Bank requ i red ,  the  fee  tha t  he  is  cha rg ing  is  

ou ts ide  the  boundar ies .   That  i s  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  ou ts ide?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Outs ide  the  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The agreement?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The te rms o f  the  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The te rms o f  the  agreement ,  ja .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Or  I  cou ld  have asked myse l f ,  fo r  th is  

t ransact ion  maybe I  was do ing  the  ca l cu la t ion  and then he  

is  no t  g iv ing  me the  numbers  tha t  I  am expect ing .   And i t  20 

says,  how much have you charged your  fees on  th i s?   What  

a re  the  t rad ing ,  the  t rad ing  cost  o f  th is  t ransact ion?   

Because then I  a lso  have to  sa t i s fy  myse l f  tha t  the  fa re ,  

the  pr ice  tha t  I  am tak ing  is  fa i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Chaska lson.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Can I  take  you 

to  Reg iments ’ invo i ces fo r  these two t ransact ions?  I f  we  

go to  –  we have seen the  10 .78 b i l l i on  invo i ce  a t  page 62 

tha t  Nedbank pa id  Reg iments .   And I  take  you  to  the  

S tandard  invo i ce ,  i f  you  go to  page 84.   You w i l l  see  there  

tha t  Nedbank invo iced S tandard  22  mi l l ion  fo r  th is  

t ransact ion ,  were ,  were  you aware  o f  tha t ,  tha t  11  bases 

po in ts  wou ld  t rans la te  to  22  mi l l ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  can ’ t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id  Nedbank,  you mean Reg iments .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Reg iments  invo iced S tandard  22  

mi l l ion .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  can ’ t  reca l l .   I  can ’ t ,  th is  i s  the  

normal  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  ca lcu la t ing .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  Mr  Ramosebud i  I  d id  no t  

hear  tha t  answer.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  d id  no t  see th is  because they  

normal ly  d idn ’ t  come th rough to  me .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you d idn ’ t  see the  invo i ce ,  

bu t  wou ld  you have known tha t  11  bas i s  po in ts  wou ld  20 

t rans la te  to  a round 22 mi l l ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    P robab ly  i f  I  d id  you know work  ou t  

numbers  a t  the  t ime I  cou ld  have maybe.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  on  a  t ransact ion  o f  tha t  

na ture  you wou ld  have been aware  broad ly  p resumab ly.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  11  bas is  po in ts  w i l l  mean 

around 22 mi l l ion  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja .   The cha l lenge w i th  th is  t ype o f  

t ransact ion  is  tha t  Cha i rperson they,  they are  o f  the  na ture  

where  we ca l l  them over  the  coun ter  t ransact ions.  So ove r  

the  counte r  t ransact ions in  the i r  na ture  they are  no t  l iqu id .    

So mean ing  tha t  there  are  no  w i l l i ng  buyers  and  

se l le rs  wa i t ing  on  the  w ings to  take  them.   And there fore  

shou ld  you want  to  t ransact  a t  the  t ime,  the  pr ice  you get  10 

m ight  no t  be  fu l l y  d isc losed to  you  because they charge so  

many th ings,  you know the  bankers  in  th is  t ype o f  

t ransact ion .   So a t  the  t ime I  cou ld  have seen a  number,  

bu t  how i t  was made o f  I  cou ldn ’ t  de termine tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No bu t  in  th is  par t i cu la r  case,  

S tandard  had to ld  you 11 bas i s  po in t  amount  on  th is  one 

0 ,7  b i l l i on  swop is  go ing  to  be  pa id  to  Reg iment .   They had 

to ld  you.   So you knew,  whatever  e l se  you d idn ’ t  know 

about  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  swop you knew tha t  … 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    ACSA wou ld  be  pay ing  11  bas i s 

po in ts .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.   I t  w i l l  be  pay ing  11  bas is  po in ts .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   So,  so  you cou ld  have –  

the  broad amoun t  tha t  ACSA was  go ing  to  pay Reg iments  
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you knew.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Not  exact ly.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  bu t  you are  t reasurer  o f  

ACSA,  you know what  11  bas is  po in ts  on  a  swop o f  1 ,  7  

b i l l i on  on  those te rms is  go ing  to  y ie ld  in  te rms  o f  the 

present  va lue .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Not  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  ex tend tha t  I  d id  do 

the  ca l cu la t ion  a t  the  t ime,  I  cou ld  have done the  

ca l cu la t ion .   Yes i t  wou ld  have to ld ,  in fo rmed me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  so  i f  you  were ,  i f  you  had 10 

been in te res ted  you wou ld  have been ab le  to  f ind  tha t  ou t  

yourse l f .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    And norma l ly  you never  ge t  to  the 

same number  because i t  depends on the  curve  tha t  we are  

us ing .   I  m igh t  have used d i f fe ren t  curves.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    And d i f fe ren t  curves.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    And the re fore  the  numbers  come 

d i f fe ren t ly.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   But  I  mean you wou ld  no t  

have reached a  number  o f  so r t  o f  one mi l l ion .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    There  cou ld  be  anyth ing .   The 

s tandard  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i s  w ide  as  10  percent  depend ing  on  

the  te rms.    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    10  Percent  sounds l i ke  qu i te  a  

b ig  s tandard  dev ia t ion  to  me,  bu t  even a t  10  pe rcent  you 

wou ld  have known tha t  Reg imen ts  were  ge t t ing  a t  leas t  

approx imate l y  20  m i l l ion  on  th is  t ransact ion .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I ,  can I  ask  you be fore  we 

go a  l i t t le  fu r the r,  how do you unders tand the  p rocurement  

a r rangements  in  re la t ion  to  pay ing  these sor t s  o f  amounts  

o f  money?  22  Mi l l ion  to  Reg iments  on  the  s tandard  swop?   

13  Mi l l ion  on  the  one Nedbank swop.   11  Mi l l ion  on  the  10 

o the r.    

I t  i s  over  40  m i l l ion  tha t  has  been pa id  to  

Reg iments .   How do you unders tand the  procurement  

a r rangements  tha t  re la te  to  pay ing  these amounts  o f  money  

to  Reg iments?   Where ,  where  does th is  happen  in  the  

procu rement  p rocess?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The procurement  a t  the  t ime was not  

w i th in  t reasury,  i t  i s ,  i t  was w i th in  a  d iv is ion  o f  the  t reasury  

o f  f inance.   So  I  don ’ t  know to  what  ex ten t  when the  

appo in tment  o f  Reg iments ’ were  e f fec ted ,  how was the  20 

procurement  p rocess a t  the  t ime.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  was  i t  no t  your  respons ib i l i t y  

to  es tab l i sh  what  the  procurement  p rocess was and 

whethe r  Reg imen ts  were  en t i t led  to  these vast  fees tha t  

you were  now see ing?  40  Mi l l ion  tha t  we have looked a t  
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and i t  ge ts  b igger.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    You are  qu i te  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i rperson.   

True yourse l f  Cha i rperson,  shou ld  I  have in i t ia ted  the  

process to  appo in t  Reg iments  to  execute  the  fund ing  p lan  

and r i sk  management?   I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  p rocess  I  wou ld  

have under taken.   F i rs t l y  to  know what  my de lega t ion  o f  

au thor i t y  i s .   So tha t  I  can make sure  tha t  I  do  i t  w i th in  my  

author i t y.    

So in  th is  case they were  a l ready  appo in ted ,  they  

brought  in ,  th is  i s  what  they a re  go ing  to  do .   And there fo re  10 

any payments  tha t  was tha t ,  was done was as  per  tha t  

appo in tment .   I  d id  no t  quest ion  my  boss or  whoever.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    But ,  sor ry.   Mr  Ramosebud i  

we ’ve  a l ready seen or  you d idn ’ t  know what  tha t  

appo in tment  sa id .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    P rec ise ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We have a l ready seen tha t  the 

two payments ,  the  two la rge  payments  tha t  Reg iments  took 

were  no t  on  the  same bas is .   They took 11  bas i s  po in ts  

f rom Standard ,  10  bas i s  po in ts  f rom Nedbank.   So they  20 

cou ldn ’ t  have been governed by  one se t  o f  ru les .    

And i f  there  had been a  procurement  p rocess wh ich  

appo in ted  Reg iments  on  par t i cu la r  te rms,  there  wou ld  have  

been a  s tandard  ra te  fo r,  fo r  a l l  o f  the  fund tha t  they  ra ised 

presumably.   I s  tha t  no t  r igh t?  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Qu i te  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  –  we l l  what  I  have to  pu t  to  

you is  tha t  you were  a t  best  b rave ly  neg l igent  in  a l low ing 

these so r ts  o f  t ransact ions to  pass th rough  w i thout  

es tab l i sh ing  whether  Reg iments  had the  au thor i t y  o f  ACSA 

to  take  these fees.   Do you have a  comment  on  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rpe rson I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  i s  qu i te  

t rue  tha t  I  was neg l igent  to  the  best  o f  Reg iments .   I  th ink  

Reg iments  were  appo in ted  and i t  was p re  my t ime to  be  a t  

ACSA and there fore  the  execut ion  on  the i r  mandate  and  10 

the  payments  tha t  have e f fec ted  in  the  past  cou ld  a lso  no t  

have been my neg l igence.    

And the re fo re  any payment  tha t  was e f fec ted  even 

in  my tenure ,  what  I  need to  know on my s ide  was tha t ,  

was the re  va lue  fo r  what  they d id .   Because tha t  was my 

respons ib i l i t y  and  what  I  was accountab le  fo r,  i s  the  va lue  

fo r  the  work  tha t  they d id .    

And tha t  i s  what  I  was mak ing  sure  tha t  there  is ,  

o therw ise  then I  was go ing  to  be  neg l igent  and s tu f f  

Cha i rperson.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No bu t  Mr  Ramasubud i  tha t  i s  

no t  how procurement  works  in  the  pub l i c  sec tor.   You don ’ t  

have ind iv idua ls  ca l led  upon to  make ind iv idua l i sed  

judgment  ca l l s  and whether  ind iv idua l  t ransact ions wh ich  

may or  may not  have been autho r ised grant  va lue .    
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You requ i re  some regu la r  p rocurement  p rocesses .   

Do you not  accept  tha t?   And where ,  on  what  bas is  cou ld  

you have assumed tha t  there  was a  regu lar  p rocurement  

p rocess govern ing  these fees tha t  Reg iments  was tak ing?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The process tha t  was under tak ing  to  

b road Reg iments  a t  ACSA in  2007 and t i l l  the  best  o f  the  

t ime tha t  they have been the re ,  I  d idn ’ t  know how tha t  was  

fo l lowed.   And I  was not  in  p rocurement  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you d idn ’ t  know whether  they 

d id  have autho r i t y  o r  d idn ’ t  have author i t y?   You sa id  tha t  10 

a l ready.   But  you were  happy to  s tand by  wh i le  on  your  

watch  fees o f  more  than 40 mi l l ion  rand were  pa id  to  them 

on ACSA’s  account .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The quest i on  Cha i rperson is  there  

va lue  fo r  money.   That  i s  what  my respons ib i l i t i es  were .   

They were  brought  in  by  th is ,  the  FD a t  the  t ime.   And says 

you w i l l  work  w i th  these peop le  and I  worked w i th  them.   

And what  I  needed to  make sure  was,  i s  there  va lue  fo r  

what  they go ing  to  be  pa id .   And tha t  i s  what  I  d id .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am not  sure  tha t  i t ’s  poss ib le  to  20 

say your  focus w i l l  jus t  be ,  was about  whethe r  the re  was 

va lue  fo r  money,  because tha t  suggests  to  me tha t  you  

wou ldn ’ t  m ind i f  they  d id  someth ing  tha t  they have no  

author i t y  to  do .   As  long as  in  the  end tha t  we l l  i t  i s  a  

good,  i t  i s  a  good  th ing .    
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Whereas there  is  a  p r io r  quest ion ,  be fore  they can 

do anyth ing ,  i t  must  be  someth ing  tha t  fe l l  w i th in  the i r  

mandate .   And i f  they  have a  good  idea,  an  idea tha t  they 

th ink  wou ld  add va lue  th rough the  t ransact ion  they wou ld  

need to  come back to  the  c l ien t  and say,  you know there  is  

th is  idea but  i t  fa l l s  ou ts ide  our  mandate .    

Th is  i s  how we th ink  i t  wou ld  be  good fo r  you,  i f  you  

jus t  want  your  au thor i t y  tha t  we can go ahead.   But  i f  we 

go ahead,  th is  i s  how we wi l l  cha rge you.   And i f  the  c l ien t  

says,  yes  you can go ahead and tha t  i s  the  ag reement  10 

about  what  you w i l l  charge,  then i t  i s  f ine .    

Or  the  c l ien t  m ight  say  yes,  i t  i s  a  good idea but  in  

te rms o f  our  f inanc ia l  s i tua t ion  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah  no  

don ’ t ,  don ’ t  do  i t .   And in  wh ich  case they wou ld  no t  be  

en t i t led  to  charge .   Or  the  c l ien t  m ight  say,  i t  wou ld  be  n ice 

to  have,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  essent ia l  so  don ’ t  do  i t .    

Go,  I  am say ing  to  you when you answer  on  the  

bas is  o f  say ing  your  focus or  you r  job  was to  see whethe r  

there  was va lue  fo r  money,  i t  g ives  me the  impress ion  tha t  

you are  say ing ,  i t  wou ldn ’ t  ma t te r  whether  they g ive  20 

someth ing  tha t  fe l l  ou ts ide  the i r  mandate  or  no t .   Do you 

want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink  cer ta in ly  s i r.   Ja ,  le t  me put  i t  

to  you in  th is  fash ion .   In  a  corpora te  env i ronment  the  way  

I  am nar ra t ing  th is  i s  as  i f  I  was the  on ly  person who was  
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do ing  the  t ransact ion  and communica t ing  w i th  Reg iments  

and S tandard  Bank and Nedbank.   That  was not  the  case.    

I  every  week or  every  day I  had in te rac t  w i th  my  

boss to  te l l  h im about  the  t ransact i ons tha t  a re  happen ing .   

Because i f  he  or  she was to  s ign  o f f  someth ing ,  they need 

to  unders tand who a re  they s ign ing  o f f ,  they  are  s ign ing  

o f f .   Second ly,  there  is  a  board ,  an  execut ive  commi t tee  o f  

–  execut ive  commi t tee  o f  management  o f  the  organ isa t ion  

a t  the  t ime.    

Those t ransact ions needed to  be  repor ted  there .   10 

And subsequent  to  tha t  they had to  go  to  f inance and r i sk  

management  commi t tee .   A board  sub-commi t tee  and a  

board  commi t tee  so  tha t  they unders tand the  t ransact ions  

tha t  were  happen ing .    

Shou ld  there  have been a t  the  po in t  when I  was  

nar ra t ing  a l l  the  s teps th roughout  the  management ,  my 

boss,  my management  commi t tee ,  execut ive  commi t tee  and 

board  a t  the  t ime,  someth ing  tha t  ind ica ted  to  me tha t  

when th is  guys were  do ing  th i s  t ransact ion ,  how d id  you  

appo in t  them.   I  wou ld  have taken a  d i f fe ren t  s tep .   But  20 

none so  eve r  a t  the  po in t  when we were  do ing  th is  

t ransact ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now Mr  Ramosebud i  d id  you te l l  

any  o f  you r  superv isors  tha t  Reg iments  were  tak ing  fees o f  
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10  bas i s  po in t s  o r  11  bas is  po in ts  on  these t ransact ions?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  can ’ t  reca l l  Mr  Cha i rperson.   I  can ’ t  

reca l l  Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I ,  can I  jus t  go  back a  l i t t le  b i t  

because maybe I  may have misunders tood th is .   And i t  

goes back to  the  quest ion  o f  you r  ro le  in  regard  to  th is .   

You sa id  tha t  they,  the  Reg iments  were  appo in ted  before  

your  t ime.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You came in  when they were  10 

a l ready appo in ted .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then you sa id  those who appo in ted  

them wou ld  have  known what  fee  ar rangements  had been 

made.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now wasn ’ t  you r  ro le  a f te r  you  

came in  to  see to  i t  tha t  they ac ted  in  accordance w i th  

ACSA’s  expecta t ions o f  what  they were  supposed to  do  and  

were  pa id  fo r  what  they were  asked to  do?  Wasn ’ t  tha t  20 

par t  o f  your  ro le?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  par t  was not ,  was not ,  was not  

d iscussed between myse l f  and my boss.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who,  who … 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    For  the  management  o f  the  cont rac t  
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i t se l f .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whose respons ib i l i t y  as  fa r  

as  you are  concerned tha t  wou ld  have been,  because there  

must  be  somebody who was supposed to  do  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    O f  the  number  o f  ins t i tu t ions  tha t  I  

have worked fo r  i f  there  i s  tha t  par t  o f  p rocurement  

p rocess tha t  the  payments  have been done and made on  

beha l f  o f  an  organ isa t ion ,  the  guys in  p rocu rement  have to  

t rack ,  to  t rack  the  cont rac t  amount ,  the  cont rac t  pe r iod ,  the  

cont rac t  payments  and then how much is  ou ts tand ing ,  10 

whethe r  i t  i s  s t i l l  w i th in  so  tha t  i t  does not  become par t  o f  

the  i r regu lar  expend i tu re  a t  some po in t  in  t ime.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  can I  jus t  ask  a  quest ion  

Mr  Ramosebud i?   Because I  th ink  you are  r igh t  about  how 

the  sys tem shou ld  work .   But  the  par t i cu la r  mag ic  o f  these  

t ransact ions f rom the  perspect ive  o f  Reg iments  i s  tha t  they 

w i l l  no t  show up anywhere  in  ACSA’s  books as  payments  to  

Reg iments .    

They w i l l  jus t  show up in  Nedbank ’s  books as  an  

amount  tha t  ge ts  pa id  to  Reg iments .   A l l  tha t  the  ACSA 20 

books w i l l  show is  repayment  o f  amounts  to  Nedbank on 

te rms o f ,  in  te rms  o f  a  swop t ransact ion .   No one look ing  a t  

the  t ransact ion  f rom the  outs ide  wou ld  know tha t  

Reg iments  have taken 10 mi l l ion  ou t  o f  i t .    

So  your  who le  propos i t ion ,  tha t  i f  there  i s  
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someth ing  i r regu lar  about  th is  i t  w i l l  be  p icked  up by  

peop le  see ing  i r regu lar  expend i tu re .   I  must  pu t  to  you  

breaks down because the  t ransac t ion  is  des igned to  h ide  

the  fee  payments  to  Reg iments .   What  i s  your  response to 

tha t?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  don ’ t  th ink  so  Cha i rperson.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t  me,  le t  me fo l low up.   Who is  

go ing  to  see tha t  Nedbank has pa id  Reg iments  13  mi l l ion  

on  the  one,  11  m i l l ion  on  the  o ther?   Who ins ide  ACSA is  

go ing  to  see tha t?    10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    So  the  na ture  o f  the  t ransact ion  i t se l f ,  

as  I  sa id  on  the  day one,  on  the  day one the  accountants  

do  the  en t r ies  such tha t  they can then sp l i t  the  number  and  

the  amounts  tha t  have been pa id  or  tha t  a re  go ing  to  be  

pa id  to  d i f fe ren t  par t ies .   And on the  day one,  the  f i rs t  

va lue  o f  the  swop  is  zero .   The swop inc lud ing  i t s  cos ts  on  

day one is  go ing  to  be  ze ro .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i  you are  no t  

answer ing  my quest ion .   Sor ry  Mr  Ramosebud i  I  must  ask  

you to  answer  my quest ion .   Who  ins ide  ACSA by look ing  20 

a t  these t ransact ions is  go ing  to  know tha t  Nedbank has  

pa id  Reg iments  13  mi l l ion  on  one t ransact ion ,  11  m i l l ion  on  

another  and tha t  ACSA is  pay ing  back to  Nedbank those 

amounts?   Who  is  go ing  to  see tha t  on  any o f  th is  

documenta t ion?  Where  is  i t  go ing  to  be  v is ib le?    
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The accountants  knows in  te rms o f  

the ,  the  –  how they do  the  account ing  on  the  swop 

t ransact ion .   So those tha t  a re  in  the  account ing  they 

wou ld  know how they do  the  account ing  f rom tha t  

perspect ive  when  they compare  the  e f fec t i ve  ra tes  and the  

executed ra te  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  they won ’ t  know tha t  

bu i l t  in to  the  ra te  tha t  i s  be ing  pa id  by  ACSA to  Nedbank is  

10  bas is  po in ts  tha t  a re  go ing  to  be  present  va lue  by  

Nedbank to  pay  an  amount  o f  13  m i l l ion  to  Reg iments .   10 

Would  they know tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The  nature  o f  the  t ransact ion  doesn ’ t ,  

i t  doesn ’ t  a l low  to  book the  losses or  the  pro f i t s  

immedia te ly  on  day one.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   Is  no  one look ing  a t  these 

t ransact ions f rom ACSA’s  s ide  w i l l  see  anyth ing  tha t  te l l s  

peop le  a t  ACSA tha t  Reg iments  has been pa id  13  mi l l ion 

on  th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion .   11  Mi l l ion  on  tha t  

t ransact ion .   I s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Dur ing  the  l i fe  o f  the  t ransact ion  20 

i t se l f ,  th rough yourse l f  Cha i rperson,  the  movement  o f  the 

t ruck  i t se l f  w i l l  then determine the  fa i r  va lues wh ich  i t  fa l l s ,  

the  pro f i t  o r  the  losses o f  the  ins t ruments .   Because the  

ra te  i t se l f  i s  a  compos i te  o f  a  number  o f  e lement .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i  we are  no t  
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ta lk ing ,  we are  no t  ta lk ing  abou t  whethe r  peop le  ins ide  

ACSA know what  ACSA i s  pay ing  i n  te rms o f  the  swops in  a  

g lobu lar  sense.   Of  cou rse  they do .    

But  wou ld  anybody know tha t  one component  o f  tha t  

payment  i s  10  bas is  po in ts  tha t  a re  go ing  to  repay a  fee  o f  

13  m i l l ion  tha t  Reg iments  has taken?  Would  anyone know 

tha t?   That  i s  the  quest ion  I  want  you to  answer.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I f  so  ever  we  then request  the  de ta i l  

component  o f  the  swop i t se l f ,  then we can appor t ion  what  

the  fee  s t ruc ture  i s .    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And d id ,  d id  anyone a t  ACSA 

request  the  de ta i l ?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    In  th is  case yes,  d isc losed 11 bas is  

po in ts  to  me.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And d id  you d i sc lose  tha t  to  

anybody e lse?  Because I  have asked you ea r l ie r.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    From an account ing  perspec t ive  tha t  

was not  how we accounted the  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  does tha t  mean you d idn ’ t  

d isc lose  i t  to  anybody e l se?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you.   So nobody ins ide  

ACSA wou ld  know o ther  than you  wou ld  know tha t  on  th is  

t ransact ion ,  le t ’s  take  the  S tandard  t ransact ion  where  there 

was comple te  d isc losure  a t  S tandard  in  sys tems.   No one 
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wou ld  know tha t  on  tha t  t ransact ion  Reg iments  had been  

pa id  22  mi l l ion  rands a t  ACSA’s  expense.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    To  the  ex ten t ,  to  the  ex ten t  th rough 

yourse l f  Cha i rpe rson tha t  the ,  the  se t t lement  agreement  

does not  s t ipu la te ,  then nobody wou ld  know.   But  ha l f  the 

t ime the  se t t lement  agreement  must  s t ipu la te  what  a re  we 

se t t l ing  be tween the  two par t ies .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  can you po in t  me to  a  

s ing le  o ther  pe rson a t  ACSA who wou ld  know tha t  

Reg iments  were  pa id  22  mi l l ion  by  S tandard  and tha t  ACSA 10 

was pay ing  tha t  back on  the  swop to  S tandard?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Me myse l f  Cha i rperson,  I  don ’ t  

remember  who had indeed a t  ACSA a t  the  t ime so  I  can ’ t  

po in t  anybody.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you say w i th  cer ta in ty  tha t  

there  wou ld  be  anyone o ther  than you tha t  wou ld  have  

known tha t  Reg iments  had been pa id  22  mi l l ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  a lso  d id  no t  know tha t  they were  

pa id  22  mi l l ion  un t i l  today I  see th is .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  you d id  know they were  20 

be ing  pa id  11  bas is  po in ts  on  a  swop o f  1 ,7  b i l l i on  and we 

ta lked about?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    You are  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Marg ins  o f  e r ro rs .  So you knew 

they were  be ing  pa id  someth ing  be tween about  19 ,8  m i l l i on  
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and 24,2  m i l l ion  or  24 ,4 .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    You are  cor rec t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  so  you knew tha t ,  d id  

anybody e lse  know tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  was the  on ly  one who was tak ing  

th is  t ransact ion  to  swop and  those tha t  a re  in  the  

account ing .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And wou ld  peop le  in  account  had 

known tha t  Reg iments  were  ge t t ing  around 22 mi l l ion  ou t  o f  

th is?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    How d id  the  account ing ,  p robab ly  

cou ld  have.   But  on  the  day o f  t ransact ion ,  the  swop i t se l f  

i s  zero .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [ Ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We are  ta lk ing  o f  cos t  pu rposes.   

We are  no t  ta lk ing  about  the  va lue  o f  the  swop.   We a re  

ta lk ing  about  the  va lue  tha t  Reg iments  took ou t  o f  the  

swop.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Bu t  tha t  i s  how we determine th rough  20 

a  se l f - check and  the  e f fec t i ve  ra te  tha t  you are  go ing  to  

pay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A l r igh t ,  le t  me move on.   You 

have been ta lk ing  about  va lue  fo r  money a  great  dea l .   A re 

you ta lk ing  abou t  va lue  fo r  money fo r  ACSA or  va lue  fo r  
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money fo r  you?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Va lue  fo r  money fo r  ACSA.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  le t  me take you to  another  

emai l .   Can you go to  page 59?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Where?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    59 .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    59? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   And I  want  to  pu t  i t  in  the  

chrono logy.   We have been ta lk ing  about  events  in  March  

2010.   So we have been ta lk ing  about  events  in  March  10 

2010 jus t  to  pu t  i t  back in  chrono logy,  you reca l l  there  was 

tha t  emai l  exchange tha t  page 57 about  be tween  Moss 

Br ickman and Er i c  Wood about  the  fee  we shou ld  be  ab le  

to  captu re  on  the  ACSA swop.    

That  was 23 March.   And tha t  the  invo i ce  tha t  

Reg iments  i ssued to  Nedbank in  respect  o f  the  swop was  

issued on 31 March fo r  10 ,784 mi l l ion .   So between 23 

March and –  23  March Nedbank and Reg imen ts  were  

look ing  fo r  a  fee  to  capture  and on 31 March,  tha t  fee  has 

crys ta l l i sed  in to  an  invo i ce  a t  10 ,784 mi l l ion .    20 

Le t ’s  look  a t  a  da te  be tween tha t .   23  March.   Do  

you see th i s  ema i l?   I t ’s  addressed f rom you to  Er ic  Wood  

and N iven P i l lay.   Who is  N iven P i l lay?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    N iven P i l lay  i s  one o f  the  D i rec tors  o f  

Reg iments .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And do you reca l l  send ing  th i s  

emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  can ’ t  reca l l .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You can ’ t  reca l l .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you say pos i t i ve l y  tha t  you 

never  sent  th is  emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  m igh t  have sent ,  bu t  I  can ’ t  reca l l .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.   Le t  me read what  the  

emai l  says :  10 

“Dear  Er i c ,  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  bor row E18 s tock  f rom Reg iments ’ 

fund managers  and cou ld  repo the  s tock  w i th  Repo 

Trader.   I  am go ing  to  t rade the  cash in  the  Money  

Market  wh ich  w i l l  be  co l la te ra l i sed  w i th  Reg iments ,  

there  i s  no  r i sk  f rom Reg iments ’ po in t  o f  v iew.   I  can  

do th is  t rade under  Reg iments . ”  

Does tha t  re f resh your  m ind?   Do you reca l l  ask ing  

Reg iments  to  bor row s tock  f rom them? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  know fo r  a  fac t  tha t  I  am a lso  a  20 

market  pa r t i c ipan t  so  there ’s  a  number  o f  t ransact i ons tha t  

I  do  on  my own.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  I  am ask ing  a  separa te  

quest ion  wh ich  is  fo r  the  purposes o f  you r  market  

t ransact ions in  your  ind iv idua l  capac i ty,  th is  wou ld  have 



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 93 of 397 
 

been in  your  ind iv idua l  capac i ty,  wou ld  i t  no t  be?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  d id  you ever  bor row s tock  

f rom Reg iments  fo r  your  ind iv idua l  t ransact ions?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  th ink  I  wanted to  bor row but  I  do  no t  

th ink  I  go t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    R igh t  so  you asked them to  

bor row and they sa id  no  we are  no t  go ing  to  lend to  you.   I  

see  le t  us…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  what  i s  the  answer?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i  the  Cha i r  jus t  

want  you to  repeat  you r  answer.   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  sa id  I  wanted to  bor row but  I  was 

not  o f fe red .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  they  wou ld  no t  lend to  you,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t  they wou ld  no t  lend the  s tock?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    They d id  no t  lend me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  you asked.   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  asked yes.   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  le t  us  look a t  another  emai l .   

Can you go down to  –  le t  us  look a t  the  da tes  o f  the  

Reg iments  invo i ce  the  s tandard  aga in  tha t  i s  on  page 84,  

20  May 2010.   That  i s  on  page 84 i f  one goes to  page 712,  

can I  ask  you to  tu rn  page to  712 you w i l l  see  an emai l  tha t  
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i s  addressed f rom you to  Er ic  Wood the  da te  i s  28  Ju ly  

2010.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  I  am s t i l l  t ry ing  to  loca te  page 

712.   I  th ink  some o f  the  pages  do not  have the  b lack  

numbers  on ,  I  see some Nedbank documents  they have got  

the  red  numbers  on ly.     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  r igh t  a t  the  back o f  the  f i le  

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  have got  i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you have i t  Mr  Ramosebud i?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  do .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  an  emai l  f rom you to  Mr  Er ic  

Wood dated 28 Ju ly  i t  says :  

“Dear  Er i c ,  

P lease rece ive  a  copy o f  the  research  and w i l l  

app rec ia te  the  rev iew and comments  as  soon as  

poss ib le  fo r  f ina l i sa t ion ,  regards. ”  

Had you reca l l  send ing  tha t  emai l?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cannot  reca l l  maybe th is  w i l l  20 

re f resh your  memory  i f  you  go down a  page to  713 and i f  

you jus t  look  a t  tha t  emai l  on  714 there  is  an  a t tachment  

ca l led  workbook 2  and exce l  spreadsheet .   I f  you  go down 

to  713 we see what  tha t  spreadsheet  was and i t  i s  an  

invo i ce  f rom Risk  S ta ts  Consu l t ing ,  wou ld  you jus t  remind 
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the  Cha i r  what  R isk  S ta ts  Consu l t ing  i s?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson in  the  beg inn ing  I  spoke  

about  R isk  S ta ts  Consu l t ing  as  one o f  the  subs id ia ry  o f  

R isk  Mats  wh ich  one o f  my compan ies .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y  you had 

a  100% in teres t  in  tha t .   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  d id .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you w i l l  see  the  da te  i s  

de fau l ted  to  today ’s  da te  tha t  i t  was an a t tachment  to  an  

emai l  on  28  Ju ly  2010.   You w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  an  invo i ce  to  10 

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  fo r  an  amount  o f  400 000,00 p lus  56  

000,00 VAT fo r  ac tua r ia l  and r i sk  management  consu l t ing  

on  beha l f  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .   So do you reca l l  send ing  

th is  invo i ce  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l  Cha i rperson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cannot  reca l l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you reca l l  do ing  any ac tuar ia l  

and r i sk  management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  o f  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  have been adv ised by  

my lawyers  no t  to  respond on th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  

myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  move on then.   Can I  ask  
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you  to  go  to  page  –  I  must  check tha t  my note  i s  r igh t  here ,  

can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 665.   Now you cannot  speak to  

th is  because th is  i s  a  bank s ta tement  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

and the  da te  o f  the  bank s ta tement  i s  30  June 2010 and I  

p resume you have never  seen th is  bank s ta tement  be fore  

you came to  the  Commiss ion  or  be fore  the  Commiss ion  

gave you documents .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?     

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  i t  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime I  see i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  there  i s  an  en t ry  on  1  June  

2010 in  wh ich  an  amount  o f  456  000,00 is  pa id  to  R isk  10 

S ta ts  Consu l t ing .   That  what  you may we l l  have  

seen…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Chaska lson 665 you sa id?   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    665 Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me jus t ,  tha t  i s  the  red  ones not  the  

b lack  one?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No the  b lack  one 665 b lack .   

CHAIRPERSON:    The b lack  one.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The 665 the re  in  red  there  is  no  b lack  

there .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  what  i s  confus ing  is  tha t  there  

are  a  number  o f  pages wh ich  have on ly  the  red  numbers .   I  

can  see 597,  I  can see 604 then i t  looks  l i ke  i t  sk ip  a  lo t  o f  

pages tha t  do  no t  have the  b lack  numbers  on  my s ide .      

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  I  must  apo log ise  fo r  th is ,  
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th is  i s  go ing  to  be ,  i t  i s  go ing  to  make th is  par t  o f  the  cross 

examinat ion  par t i cu la r ly  d i f f i cu l t  because…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  the  next  number  I  have i s  a  b lack  712  

but  f rom 604 the  next  b lack  page number  i s  712 so  I  do  no t  

know what  happened w i th  the  pag ina t ion .   I t  maybe  tha t  i t  

shou ld  be  f i xed  dur ing  the  lunch break.      

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  I  th ink  we must  do  tha t  

because o therwise ,  because we go ing  to  ge t  in  some deta i l  

bank t ransact ions  wh ich  w i l l  make th is  compl i ca ted .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  604 appears  and i t  appears  the  10 

page next  to  i t ,  the  page a f te r  604,  b lack  604 i s  red  603  

but  there  is  no  b lack  pag ina t ion  fo r  the  red  603 and then  

you go on and on unt i l  the  red  710 and red  710 is  b lack  

712 and then between b lack  604 and b lack  712 i t  looks  l i ke  

there  a re  no  b lack  numbers .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  I  th ink  what  I  must  do  

because I  doubt  tha t  we are  go ing  to  be  ab le  to  pu t  b lack  

numbers  on  your  f i l e  and Mr  Ramosebud i ’s  f i l e  and a l l  the  

lega l  teams f i le .   I  must  work  ou t  how my b lack  numbers  

cor re la te  to  your  red  numbers…[ in tervene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  th ink  they cou ld  be  put  as  long as  

the  numbers  are  the  same because the  pages tha t  have 

been sk ipped maybe are  about  100 pages wh ich  cou ld  be  

done but  i f  you  have another  way tha t  can be used when  

we come back tha t  i s  f ine .   So we can do one o f  two th ings  
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now i t  i s  about  four teen minutes  to  one we can e i ther  take  

the  lunch b reak now and th i s  can be a t tended to  dur ing  the  

lunch b reak or  we can use the  las t  four teen minutes  o f  the  

t ime fo r  you to  ask  on  issues tha t  do  no t  requ i re  these  

pages.         

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  le t  us  use the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  we can then come 

back to  ty ing  up  any re ferences tha t  we want .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i  can I  take  you 

then to  a  document  tha t  i s  a t  b lack  714 and tha t  document  

i s  da ted  –  do  you  have the  document  Mr  Ramosebud i?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    714?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    714.   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    B lack?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    B lack  714.   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  i s  an  emai l  addressed 

f rom you to  Mr  Wood on 27 September  2010 aga in  w i th  an  20 

a t tachment  workbook 1 .x lsx :  

“Dear  Er i c ,  

I  w i l l  apprec ia te  your  rev iew and comments  on  th is  

doc. ”  

Do you reca l l  send ing  tha t  emai l?     
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l  Cha i rperson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  I  take  you to  the  a t tachment  i t  

i s  a t  715 and invo ice  f rom Risk  S ta ts  Consu l t ing  fo r  

consu l t ing  work  i t  i s  addressed to  Box 78,  Midrand ,  1685.   

Do you know what  Box 78,  Midrand 1685 whose address 

tha t  i s?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l ;  I  do  no t  know.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cannot  reca l l ,  and  i t  says  

ac tuar ia l  and r i sk  management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  o f  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  700 000,00.   Do you reca l l  send ing  an 10 

invo i ce  o f  th is  na ture  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l?   Sor ry  700 

000,00 p lus  VAT so  a  to ta l  o f  798 000,00.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson th rough yourse l f  may I  

reserve  my r igh ts  no t  to  respond to  th is  one in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you to  page 716 

tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom yourse l f  to  Er ic  Wood dated 4  October  

2010 w i th  a  sub jec t  research  repor t  and an a t tachment  

invo i ce  w i th  tax  ca lcu la t ion  1 .x l s  i t  i s  another  spreadsheet .   20 

Do you reca l l  send ing  th is  emai l  to  Mr  Wood?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l  i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can I  take  you to  the 

a t tachment  wh ich  is  a t  717 i t  i s  an  invo ice  addressed to  

N iven P i l lay  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .   Can you jus t  remind the  
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Cha i r  who Mr  P i l lay  i s?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    N iven P i l lay  i s  one o f  the  d i rec tors  o f  

Reg iments .   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    717.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  has  the  re ference f low 

funds fou r,  sor ry  i t  i s  in  the  name o f  Azana  Cap i ta l  

Marke ts .   Can you remind the  Cha i r  what  Azana is?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Azana is  one  o f  the  compan ies  tha t  I  10 

had and dereg is te red.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you had a  100% in teres t  in  

i t  be fore  i t  was dereg is te red?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  the  desc r ip t ion  on  the  

invo i ce  i s  consu l t ing  se rv i ce  fo r  the  deve lopment  o f  

por t fo l io  op t im isa t ion  and per fo rmance a t t r ibu t ion  a t  per  

agreed ra te  o f  1950 per  hour  fo r  19  days and the  amount  i s  

296 400,00 p lus  VAT g iv ing  a  to ta l  o f  397 896,00.   Do you  

reca l l  send ing  th is  invo i ce  to  Mr  P i l lay  a t  Reg iments  20 

Cap i ta l?      

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Your  answer  i s  no  you do not  

reca l l .   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do  no t  reca l l .   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see ,  a re  you say ing  you  d id  no t  

send th is  invo ice  to  oh  sor ry  do  you reca l l  send ing  th is  

invo i ce  to  Mr  Woods emai l  on  4  October  2010?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson th rough yourse l f  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 718 

tha t  i s  another  emai l  addressed f rom you to  Mr  Wood on 4  

October  2010.   I t  has  a  d i f fe ren t  sp readsheet  ca l led  

workbook 2  a t tached to  i t ,  do  you reca l l  send ing  tha t  emai l  10 

to  Mr  Wood?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we go down to  page 719 

and the re  we see an invo i ce  addressed to  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  in  the  name o f  R isk  S ta ts  fo r  ac tua r ia l  and r i sk  

management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  an  

amount  o f  403 595,99 wh ich  i f  you  add VAT comes  to  460 

099,43.   Do you reca l l  send ing  tha t  invo ice  to  Mr  Wood on 

4  October  2010?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson th rough yourse l f  may I  20 

no t  respond to  th i s  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  go to  page 720 there  is  

what  appears  to  be  an  emai l  f rom Er ic  Wood to  N iven P i l lay  

on  7  Apr i l  2010 fo rward ing  an  emai l  f rom you to  Er ic  Wood  

on 7  Apr i l  so r ry  2011 fo rward ing  an  emai l  f rom you to  Er ic  
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Wood on the  same day 7  Apr i l  2011 the  t ime tha t  you r  

emai l  apparent ly  was sent  i t  i s  11 :36  in  the  morn ing  and i t  

re fe rs  to  invo i ce  202.   Do you reca l l  send ing  tha t  emai l  to  

Er ic  Wood on 7  Apr i l  2011?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reca l l  i t  Cha i rperson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t  us  look a t  invo i ce  202 tha t  

was a t tached to  i t ,  i t  was a t  page 721 i t  i s  an  invo ice  f rom 

Ka D i t lou  Hea l th  Serv ices  t rad ing  as  Rams Pharmacy,  

wou ld  you remind  the  Cha i r  who Ka D i t lou  are?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ka  D i t lou  Hea l th  Serv i ces  is  a  10 

company o f  my younger  b ro the r.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  your  younger  b ro the rs  

company and tha t  invo i ce  is  addressed to  Er ic  Wood a t  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and the  serv ices  are  fo r  a  s i te  

inspect ion  o f  Reg iments  premises  re la t ing  to  s to rage and  

persona l  a  consu l ta t ion ,  I  l i s t  tha t  as  i tem 1 .   Supp ly  hea l th  

p roducts ,  herba l  hea l th  p roducts ,  mu l t i v i tamin  

supp lements ,  non-schedu led  med ica l  p roducts  and then  

t ra in ing  fac i l i ta t ion  o f fe red  by  a  d ie t i c ian ,  a  persona l  

t ra ine r,  a  pharmac is t ,  a  phys ic ian ,  anothe r  pe rsona l  t ra iner  20 

and some t rave l l ing  and log is t i cs .   The to ta l  i s  185 810,94  

when you add VAT i t  i s  212 964,00.   Do you know i f  your  

b ro ther  p rov ided these se rv i ces  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l?          

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson th rough yourse l f  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  tha t  oh  okay I  see tha t  Ka D i t lou  

Hea l th  Serv i ces  t raded depend ing  on whether  i t  i s  s t i l l  

t rad ing  as  Rams Pharmacy.   Am I  cor rec t  in  th ink ing  tha t  

Rams is  der i ved f rom par t  o f  you r  surname?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  i s  t rue  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  thank you.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  is  you r  younger  b ro ther ’s  

bus iness Ka D i t lou?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  am sor ry  I  th ink  we spoke a t  the  10 

same t ime and tha t  wou ld  a lso  be  your  younger  b ro ther ’s  

surname?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  go back up  to  page 85 I  

shou ld  have taken th is  a  l i t t le  ear l ie r  in  the  chrono logy.   Do 

you have page 85? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  an  emai l  sent  f rom 

yourse l f  to  Er ic  Wood and i t  says  fo rward ,  sub jec t  l ine  i s  20 

fo rward  invo ice  w i th  tax  ca lcu la t ion  to  do t  x ls  and you can 

see –  and then there  is  an  a t tachment  an  invo i ce  w i th  tax 

ca l cu la t ions to  do t  x l s .   You can see tha t  what  was  

fo rwarded i f  you  go a  l i t t le  b i t  lower  down was an emai l  

f rom you  a t  your  ACSA address 
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V i to loRamosebud i@ai rpor t . co .za  to  yourse l f  a t  your  r i sk  

mats  address w i th  the  same sub jec t  invo ice  w i th  tax  

ca l cu la t ion  to  do t  x ls .  Can I  ask  you f i rs t  do  you reca l l  

fo rward ing  an  emai l  o f  th is  na ture  f rom your  ACSA address  

to  your  r i sk  mats  address in  May 2010?      

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through  yourse l f  Cha i rperson I  

cannot  reco l lec t  th is .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  has  been some t ime.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  and can I  ask  aga in  do  you 10 

reca l l  send ing  th i s  emai l  to  Mr  Wood on the  same day 27 

May 2010?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reco l lec t  tha t  Cha i rperson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cannot  reco l lec t ,  we l l  

a t tached to  tha t  spreadsheet ,  a t tached to  tha t  emai l  was a  

spreadsheet  w i th  seven d i f fe ren t  tabs.   Can we look a t  the  

f i rs t  tab  i t  i s  a t  page 86 i t  i s  an  invo i ce  in  the  name o f  

Venus L iquor  S to re  and can you jus t  remind the  Cha i r  what  

Venus L iquor  S to re  i s?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Venus L iquor  S tore  was my bus iness  20 

t rad ing  under  Azana Markets .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  invo ices is  b i l led  to  

N iven P i l lay  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  we remember  Mr  P i l lay.   

The descr ip t ion  is  p rov is ion  o f  l iquor  beverages and 

ca te r ing  serv ices  fo r  the  funct ion  a t  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  an 
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amount  i s  257 362,37 and when you add VAT tha t  comes to  

293 393,10.   Do you reca l l  send ing  th is  invo i ce  to  Mr  Wood 

on 26 May 2010?     

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson th rough yourse l f  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you do reca l l  

ever  p rov id ing  l iquo r  to  Reg imen ts  Cap i ta l  fo r  a  funct ion  

tha t  was la rge  enough to  cost  257 000,00 in  l iquo r  in  

2010?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson w i th  your  pe rs immon may 10 

I  no t  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  then can go down to  page 

87 wh ich  was the  second o f  the  seven tabs on  the  

spreadsheet  tha t  i s  another  invo ice  f rom Venus  L iquor  

S tore  a lso  addressed to  N iven P i l lay  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .   

That  i s  descr ibed prov i s ion  o f  l iquor  beverages and  

ca te r ing  serv ices  fo r  the  funct ion  a t  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  tha t  

i s  51  021,00 and  then you ’ re  in  conference equ ipment  49  

150,00 a  to ta l  o f  100 171,00 and  when you add VAT tha t  20 

becomes a  114 194,94.   Do you reca l l  send ing  th is  invo i ce  

to  Mr  Wood on 26  May 2010?     

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson th rough your  pe rs immon 

may I  no t  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you then d id  your  
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bus iness Venus  L iquor  S tore  ever  p rov ide  venues and  

conference equ ipment  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in  Cha i rperson th rough your  

permiss ion  may  I  no t  respond  to  th is  one in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can  we go down to  page  

88…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  we go to  page 88 Mr  Chaska lson  

so  on  the  bas is  o f  the  two invo ices one a t  page 86 the  10 

o ther  one a t  page 87 i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  Venus L iquor  

S tore  sent  invo ices,  two invo ices a t  leas t  on  the  same day 

in  regard  to  the  prov i s ion  o f  l iquor  fo r  wh ich  i t  charged  

probab ly  about  more  than R400 000,00.      

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  wou ld  appears  i f  you  put  

the  two together  i ndeed Cha i r  i t  i s  over  400 000,00.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.   We a re  a t  1  

o ’c lock  wou ld  th is  be  a  conven ien t  t ime or  you  want  

to…[ in tervene]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r…[ in tervene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You can f in ish  someth ing  i f  you  want  to .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  we can jus t  f in ish  the  invo i ces  

a t tached to  tha t  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page 88 invo i ce  f rom Risk  S ta ts  
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Consu l t ing  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  fo r  deve lop ing  o f  the  r i sk  

mon i to r i ng  methodo logy fo r  and  on beha l f  o f  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  295 000,00 p lus  VAT wh ich  g ives  336 300,00.   Do  

you reca l l  send ing  th is  emai l  to  Mr  Wood on the  26 t h  May  

2010?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reco l lec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cannot  reco l lec t .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot ,  I  cannot  reco l lec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no  I  heard  your  answer  bu t  

in  fa i rness to  you ,  you have been asser t ing  a  r igh t  aga ins t  10 

se l f - incr im inat ion  up t i l l  th is  po in t .     

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  i s  exact l y  what  i t  i s .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  reco l lec t  send ing  the  emai l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cannot  reco l lec t ,  okay.   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  respond.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  I  th ink  Mr  Chaska lson wants  to  

say to  you Mr  Ramosebud i  i f  you  say you cannot  reca l l  you  

are  respond ing  to  the  quest ion .     

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you must  make up your  m ind whethe r  

you want  to  asser t  your  p r i v i lege  or  you want  to  g ive  an  

answer.   So he was seek ing  to  make su re  tha t  you 

unders tand tha t ,  okay.     

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Jus t  th rough yourse l f  Cha i rperson I  
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th ink  the  log i c  tha t  I  was us ing  was tha t  he  was re fer r ing  to  

an  emai l  then I  say  I  cannot  reca l l  and then he re fe r red  to  

an  invo ice  then I  say  I  cannot  respond.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine  as  l ong as  you a re  

aware  i t  i s  maybe tha t  you say i n  regard  to  a  pa r t i cu la r  

quest ion  you have an answer  bu t  in  regard  to  another  

quest ion  you w ish  no t  to  answer  bu t  he  wants  a lso  to  make 

sure  tha t  you unders tand.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe i f  I  can  ask  quest ions 

s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t ly  d id  R isk  S ta ts  invo ice  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

fo r  the  deve lop ing  o f  a  r i sk  mon i to r ing  methodo logy  fo r  and 

on beha l f  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  on  26  May 2010?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson th rough yourse l f  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then on page the  fo l low ing  

page 90 and invo ice  aga in  f rom Risk  S ta ts  aga in  26  May 

2010 ac tuar ia l  and r i sk  management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  

o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  fo r  946 017,00 p lus  VAT wh ich  is  R1  20 

078 456,30.   D id  R isk  S ta ts  Consu l t ing  invo ice  Reg iments  

fo r  ac tua r ia l  and  r i sk  management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  o f  

Reg iments  in  an  amount  w i th  VAT o f  1  078 456,30  on 26 

May 2010?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in  th rough yourse l f  Cha i rperson 
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may I  no t  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then over  the  page,  page 91 

another  invo i ce  f rom Risk  S ta ts  da ted  26 May 2010 a lso  fo r  

ac tuar ia l  and r i sk  management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  o f  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  th is  t ime the  amount  i s  546 014 ,30 w i th  

VAT tha t  goes to  622 456,  30 .   Did  R isk  Sta ts  i ssue th is  

invo i ce  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  on  26  May 2010?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through yourse l f  Cha i rpe rson may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then on page 92 another  10 

R isk  S ta ts  invo ice  to  Reg iments  fo r  ac tuar ia l  and r i sk  

management  consu l t ing  on  beha l f  o f  Reg iments  fo r  400 

000,00 p lus  56  000,00 VAT 456 000,00 in  a l l .   D id  R isk  

S ta ts  i ssue Reg iments  w i th  th is  invo i ce  in  May 2010?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through yourse l f  Cha i rperson aga in  

w i th  th is  one may I  no t  respond to  i t  in  case I  inc r im inate  

myse l f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  we have now reached the  

end o f  those seven invo ices tha t  were  a t tached  to  the 

emai l  o f  26  May  and wou ld  th is  be  a  conven ien t  t ime to  20 

break?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  jus t  be fore  we do tha t  Mr  

Ramosebud i  do  you have any qua l i f i ca t ions fo r  p rov id ing  

ac tuar ia l  serv ices ,  yourse l f?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson i f  you go  to  my 
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s ta tements  i t  c lear ly  a r t i cu la tes  my qua l i f i ca t ions ,  I  have 

got  a  ve ry  s t rong mathemat ica l  background.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mathemat ica l  background,  yes .     

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  wh ich  dea ls  w i th  a  who le  number  

o f  i ssues ac tuar ia l ,  r i sk  management  so  tha t  i f  my fo r te ,  

tha t  i s  my exper ience.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  no  then tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay le t  

us  take  the  lunch ad jou rnment  we w i l l  resume a t  ten  past  

two,  we ad journ .   

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   DCJ i f  we can cont inue then to 

page 723 – in fact  722 black 722.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Did you devise a plan how to 

handle? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   When we get  to the ones that  we 

need red numbers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  wi l l  refer only to the red numbers.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  have worked out  how to reconci le  

them Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes 722 you said? 



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 111 of 397 
 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   722 black.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   720 red.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So that  is an emai l  addressed f rom 

you to Mr Wood on the 20 Apri l  2012 i t  says:  

“Dear Er ic.   Please receive the at tached.  

Regards. ”  

 Do you recal l  sending i t  to Mr Woods – Mr Wood on 

the 20 Apri l  2012? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am sorry Chairperson I  th ink even this 

one Chai rperson may I  not  respond i t  in case I  incr iminate 

mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask you in relat ion 723 which 

is the at tachment i t  is a spread sheet  wi th two tabs.   Wel l  let  

us start  wi th the one on 722 which is an invoice addressed to 

Regiments Capi ta l  for the development of  an enterpr ise wide 

r isk management  f ramework for R212 000.00 no VAT from 

Rams Capi ta l .   Did Rams Capi tal  issue this  invoice to  20 

Regiments Capi ta l  in Apri l  2012?  That  was my quest ion did 

i t  – did Rams Capi tal  issue this invoice to Regiments Capi tal  

in Apri l  2012? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am sorry Chairperson I  may not  be 

able to respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  –  can I  ask – the st range 

thing about the spread sheet  and – is that  there are two 

invoices on i t .   There is  the one we have just  deal t  wi th but  

there is another one addressed to Mr Wi l l iam Matamele that  

is at  page 723.   Do you know a Mr Wi l l iam Matamele? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chai rperson simi lar to the previous one 

may I  not  respond to i t  in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And just  for  completeness sake did 

Rams Capi tal  issue an invoice to Wi l l iam Matamele in – for 

the amount of  R540 000.00 for  the development of  an 10 

enterpr ise wide r isk management f ramework in Apri l  2012? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Again wi th your permission Chai rperson 

may I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we go to – I  th ink we have 

reached the end of  these for now we wi l l  come back to one a 

bi t  later.   Can I  take you now to some bank statements and 

the f i rst  one that  I  would ask you go to is  on page 604 in the 

red numbers.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you going to use red numbers? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Red numbers for the bank 20 

statements Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Because they are the ones which 

do not  have black numbers on them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  just  have to for the record say that  
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in regard to th is bundle most  of  the t ime the numbers for the 

paginat ion that  I  used are the b lack numbers but  for – in 

regard to a smal l  port ion of  the bundle the red numbers wi l l  

be used.   The red numbers that  are used are on pages that  

do not  have black numbers.   Is that  correct  Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  is correct  Chai rman.  I t  might  

be simpler i f  whenever I  refer to  a red number I  say red 

number.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.   So when you do not  refer to the 

colour  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is black.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is black.   Or i f  you obviously i f  you say 

black number i t  wi l l  b lack number.   But  i f  i t  is red you wi l l  

a lways say red number.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  wi l l  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay al r ight .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So i f  we look at  red number 604 i t  

is a statement for Regiments Capi tal  f rom Nedbank for the 

month of  November 2009.   I f  you go down to – most  of  i t  is  

redacted but  there are two ent r ies which unfortunately not  20 

very legible because they have been highl ighted as wel l  as 

not  been redacted but  i t  is 11 November 2009 wi th the 

reference Ka Dit lou Heal th and an amount of  R336 300.00 

that  was paid out  of  the Regiments Capi tal  account.   Are you 

aware of  a payment f rom Regiments to Ka Di t lou of  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 114 of 397 
 

R336 300.00 on 11 November 2009? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Chaskalson I  do not  see that  

on page red 604.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  i f  you go down to the – the 

yel low – the only yel low ent ry there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Because i t  is highl ighted i t  is not  

very legible but  i t  is 11.11.2009 is the date.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Ka Di t lou Heal th  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Or Ka Di t tou I  do not  th ink there is 

a L that  Regiments put  into thei r  reference.   Ka Di t tou Heal th 

and the amount is  R336 300.00.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the number that  I  cannot see.   I  can 

see date 11.11.2009 and then I  see Venus Liquor and then I  

see 114,194,94.   That  is page 604 somewhere to on the last  

th i rd of  the darkened port ion.   Are we on the same page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No we are not  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  thought  I  had solved this problem 

but  I  evident ly have not .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Nedbank documents that  I  have got  – 

statement but… 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh Chai r  I  now understand the 



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 115 of 397 
 

problem.  Mr Ramosebudi  I  wi thdraw that  last  quest ion 

because the entry I  was speaking to has been redacted in  

everybody else’s document.   We are on the r ight  page.   So 

let  us look at  the one that  is v is ib le.   11.11.2009 Venus 

Liquor R114 194.94.   Do you recal l  a payment  f rom 

Regiments Capi ta l  to Venus Liquor on 11 November 2009 for 

R114 184.94? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Previous Chai rperson may I  ask that  I  

might  not  be able to respond to this  one in case I  incr iminate 

mysel f .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we then go to  red number 

626?   That  is a  bank statement for  Regiments Capi tal  for 

the month of  December 2009 and – sorry i f  we go back up to  

624.   I  beg your pardon 624.   625 – 625 – 625 red 625.   Are 

you at  red 625?  Sorry Mr Ramosebudi  are you at  red 625? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  am at  625 the red one.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And there on the 10 – that  is a  

statement for Regiments Capi ta l  of  the month of  November – 

sorry December 2009 and there we see an ent ry on 10 20 

December 2009 a payment to Risk Stats and the amount is  

R336 300.00 – R336 300.00.   Do you recal l  a  payment to  

Risk Stats by Regiments Capi tal  in December 2009 in the 

amount of  R336 300.00? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   With your permission Chairperson may I  
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not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  i f  I  might  ask just  to  make a 

note against  th is page that  i t  corresponds to the amount on 

the invoice that  one sees at  page 88.   I f  we can then go  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was that  page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   88.  

CHAIRPERSON:   88 okay.   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  we can then go to page 647?  

Red page 647.   Again a Regiments Capi tal  bank statement  

for the month of  March 2010 and there on the 2 March you 10 

wi l l  see an entry that  says Risk Stats Consul t ing 

R350 541.71.   Do you recal l  a payment f rom Regiments 

Capi tal  to Risk Stats Consul t ing on 2 March 2010? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   With your permission Chairperson may I  

not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  i f  I  might  just  refer you to  

the cross-reference to the invoice at  page 89 in the same 

amount.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   89 Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   89 Ja.   The amounts correspond? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The amounts correspond 

R350 541.71.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  we can then go down to page 
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667?   

CHAIRPERSON:   667?  Did you say 667? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   667 indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay r ight .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry Chair  before we get  to 66 – 

667 whi le we on that  invoice can we – sorry that  payment 

can we – can we go to 687 – 687 f i rst?  687.   And maybe go 

back up a page to 686 to see what we are looking at .   Mr 10 

Ramosebudi  do you recognise the document at  red 686?  I t  

appears to be an FNB bank statement for Risk Maths 

Solut ion for the month of  – month ending 10 March 2010? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   With your permission Chairperson may I  

not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  I  wi l l  then take you down to 

page 687 and there you wi l l  see the ent ry for 2 March 2010 

of  a credi t  of  R350 541.71 wi th the t rans – the t ransact ion 

reference Regiments Capi tal .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Mr Ramosebudi  I  have al ready 

asked whether  you recognise the document or recal l  th is 

t ransact ion.   I  am not  going to ask that  quest ion again.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no I  said through yoursel f  Chai rperson 

may I  not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Chair  can we go to page 

667?  Red 667.   And that  is a bank statement of  Regiments 

Capi tal  for the month ending 31 May 2010.  I f  one goes down 

to 4 May 2010 one sees a payment  wi th the reference Risk 

Stats Consul t ing in the amount  of  R622 456.30.   Mr 

Ramosebudi  do you recal l  a payment to Risk Stats f rom 

Regiments Consul t ing on 4 May 2010 in the amount of  R622 

– R622 456.30? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  humbly request  Chairperson wi th your  

permission that  I  might  not  be able to respond to this one in  10 

case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  i f  I  can ask you to make the 

annotat ion there at  page – that  th is corresponds to the 

invoice amount at  page 91.    

CHAIRPERSON:   At  page 891? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No,  no 91 – 91.   Just  91 the bank 

is at  91 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The black 91.   Okay.   Yes sure thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  I  can ask you Mr 

Ramosebudi  then to go to red page 798?   20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am on the page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  you can go up a page the 

document appears to be an FNB bank statement for Risk 

Maths Solut ions for the month ending 10 May 2010.  Do you 

recognise th is document? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Again Chai rperson may I  not  be able to 

respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Mr Ramosebudi  I  wi l l  – on 

the next  page which is 708 there is an entry 4 May in the 

amount – wi th a credi t  of  R622 456.30 wi th the reference 

Regiments Capi ta l .   I  have al ready asked you whether you 

recal l  such a payment f rom Regiments Capi tal  to Risk Maths 

in May 2010 and whether you recognise this document I  wi l l  

not  ask those quest ions again.   But  can I  ask you to go to  

page 661.  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Red or black? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry red thank you.   Red 661.   

That  document appears – appears to be a bank statement  of  

Regiments Capi ta l  – i t  is a bank statement of  Regiments 

Capi tal  that  we have got  – received f rom Nedbank for the 

month ending 31 July 2010.  And there is an entry on 30 July 

2010 for a payment to Risk Stats or payment reference Risk 

Stats in the amount of  R456 00.00.   Do you recal l  a payment  

to Risk Stats f rom Regiments Capi tal  in late July  or ear ly  

August  2010? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Again Chai rperson with your permission 

may I  not  be able to respond to this one in case I  incr iminate 

mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  for  your note can you make a 

record that  that  corresponds to an invoice at  page 92 – 92 
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and can we then move to red page 698.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Chaskalson I  hope that  somebody has 

done the sums so that  I  – at  the end of  looking at  al l  o f  these 

amounts I  would l ike to have an idea about what the tota l  is.   

Maybe i f  that  has not  been done somebody might  do i t  whi le  

we are going on wi th i t .   I  would l ike to have an idea how 

much appears to  have been paid by Regiments into the 

ent i t ies that  may be connected wi th  the wi tness.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Chai r.   I  w i l l  ask Mr Zama 

to do i t  I  am sure he has them on a spread sheet .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And what – I  th ink that  there wi l l  

be – we can do three columns Chai r.   We can do a column of  

invoice – invoices,  a co lumn of  payments that  re f lect  in 

statements l inked to  the Regiments Group and a statement 

and a column of  statements that  ref lect  in ent i t ies l inked to 

the wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And an aggregate column because 

there are some invoices wi thout  corresponding payments and 20 

some payments wi thout  corresponding invoices.   Chair  i f  we 

can then go to page 656?  Red 656 – red 656.   That  is the 

Nedbank bank statement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  was seeing Mr Chaskalson I  was 

seeing a certain  name on that  page.   I  am not  going to  
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ment ion i t  but  i t  is  of  pol i t ical  grouping.   But  obviously that  is 

not  what we are t raversing on.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No,  no not  now Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We – for  now in fact  our copies 

and the copies that  the publ ic wi l l  see are completely  

redacted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  for the ent ry at  25 June 2010.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja 656 is the page you said we must go 10 

to? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So that  is a bank statement of  30 – 

month ending 30 June 2010 for Regiments Capi ta l .   And 

there is an entry on the 25 June 2010 that  ref lects a payment 

in the amount of  R467 476.86 wi th  the reference Risk Stats 

Consul t ing Services.   Do you recal l  a payment f rom 

Regiments Capi ta l  to Risk Stats in  or  around 25 June 2010 

Mr Ramosebudi? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   With your permission Chairperson may I  

not  be able to respond to this in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  w i l l  then move on Mr Ramosebudi  

to page – red 701.   And sorry Chai r  just  for your informat ion 

this is – that  last  l ine i tem we have not  l inked to any 
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part icular invoice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Red 701 i f  we go up to  red 700 this 

appears to be a bank statement for Risk Maths for the month 

to 10 November 2010.  Mr Ramosebudi  can you conf i rm that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chai rperson I  am not  go ing to conf i rm 

anything in case I  incr iminate mysel f  on this matter.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Mr Ramosebudi .   Of-  

the very f i rst  ent ry on page 701 at  11 October is a credi t  for 

R460 099.43 wi th  the reference Cash Flow Cash Regiments 10 

Capi tal  and I  have al ready asked you whether you recal l  a 

payment in th is amount f rom Regiments Capi tal  in October 

2011 – sorry October 2010 have I?  Wel l  let  me ask now.   Do 

you recal l  a payment… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  is safer – i t  is safer that  you ask him 

and let  h im assert  h is pr iv i lege i f  he wants to asset  i t  and let  

i t  be on record.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can – do you recal l  a payment? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chai rperson I  have already indicated I  

th ink Mr Chaskalson has asked a number of  these invoices 20 

and amounts and I  said I  am not  able to respond to that  in 

case I  incr iminate mysel f  Chai rperson [00:24:06] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And you have conf i rmed already 

that  you cannot answer whether th is is the bank statement of  

Risk Maths for  the month ending 10 November 2010.   So can 
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I  then ask that  we go to page 463 – red 463.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see that  at  red … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   663 I  beg your pardon.   I  s l ipped 

200 pages.   663.  

CHAIRPERSON:   663 okay.   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  is a  – oh no Chai r  I  am sorry I  

have gone backwards we have al ready deal t  wi th th is  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask that  we go to page 701?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Red 701? 10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Red 701 sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  I  must  apologise I  am taking 

us backwards and forwards to the same documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Red 693 – 693.   I f  we go up to 692 

or 691 we have the cover page of  what appears to  be an 

FNB bank statement for Risk Maths Solut ions for the month 

ending June 2010 – 10 June 2010 and Mr Ramosebudi  can 

you conf i rm that  that  is a bank statement for Risk Maths 20 

Solut ions for the month ending June 2010 – 10 June 2010? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chai rperson may I  not  respond to this  

one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  we then go down to 693 we see 

an entry for 1 June with the t ransact ion reference Regiments 
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Capi tal  and a credi t  of  R456 00.00.   Mr Ramosebudi  do you 

recal l  a  payment f rom Regiments Capi tal  to Risk Maths in  

June 2010 in the amount of  R456 000.00? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   To yoursel f  Chai rperson may I  not  

respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  i f  I  might  give a cross-

reference in respect  of  th is  payment  i t  is a l ink to the invoice 

on page 713 the corresponding amount of  the invoice on 

page 713 and i f  we can then go to page 663?  And that  is the 

corresponding bank account of  – bank statement for  10 

Regiments Capi ta l  for the month of  June 2010 and on. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on.   I  am at  663.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Red 663.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Red 663.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Red 663.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  I  do not  have any underl in ing that  I  

made in – on this  page but  I  see that  we have been to the 

page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am looking at  – I  may have taken 

us here when I  –  I  th ink I  took us here ear l ier when I  was 20 

st ruggl ing wi th the red numbers and the black numbers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  i f  you – Chai r  i f  you go to 1 

June 2010 on that  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes I  can see Risk Stats Consul t ing 
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there.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There is the payment out  of  th is 

account wi th the reference Risk Stats Consul t ing wi th the 

amount of  R456 000.00.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Mr Ramosebudi  you have 

al ready conf i rmed that  you cannot answer the quest ion 

whether you recal l  such a payment to Risk Stats f rom 

Regiments on the 1 June 2010.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And does i t  correspond with an invoice 10 

somewhere or not  real ly? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  corresponds wi th the invoice at  

page 713 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  page 713.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we then go down to red 

number 6 – or go up to red number 643?  That  is a bank 

statement for Regiments Capi tal  for the month ending 30 

October 2010 and i f  we go down to 9 October 2010,  we see a 20 

payment of  – the amount of  R 337 896,00,  referenced as 

Azana Capi tal  Markets.   Mr Ramosebudi ,  do you recal l  a 

payment f rom Regiments Capi tal  to Azana Capi tal  Markets in 

October 2010? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Through mysel f  Chairperson,  may I  not  
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respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  i f  you can just  put  the 

reference that  th is payment corresponds to page 717,  the 

invoice f rom 717? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  you we can then go to page 

685?   

CHAIRPERSON :    685? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Correct .   685 Chai r,  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  we go.   So we wi l l  see the 

heading of  th is document.   This appears to be the FNB bank 

statement for Azana Capi tal  Markets for the month ending 

14 October 2010.  Mr Ramosebudi,  can you conf i rm that  th is  

is the Azana Capi tal  Markets’ bank statement for the month 

ending 14 October 2010? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Through mysel f  Chairperson,  may I  not  

respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then Mr Ramosebudi ,  i f  you 

can go down a page to 685?  The entry,  9 October  has a 

t ransact ion reference,  Regiments Capi ta l  and the amount is  

R 337 896 corresponding to the amount that  we saw on the 

Regiments Capi ta l ’s bank statement.    
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 You have already conf i rmed that  you cannot answer the 

quest ion,  whether  you record a payment in th is amount  to  

Azana Capi tal  Markets in October 2010.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You say the amount at  page 685 

corresponds wi th the invoice at  what page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  is  also 717 Chai r.   So i t  

corresponds wi th 717 and the Regiments ’ bank statement at  

643.   I t  is 643.   Red 643.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then Chai r,  i f  we can go to red 

610? 

CHAIRPERSON :    We have to remember Mr Chaskalson that ,  

a l l  those who wi l l  read the t ranscr ipt ,  we said whenever we 

mean the red numbers,  we wi l l  a lways say red.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  d id,  in fact ,  say red.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So when we do not  say red,  they wi l l  th ink 

i t  is the black numbers.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so . . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Th is is red 610.  

CHAIRPERSON :    601.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is an ext ract  f rom Regiments 

Capi tal ’s bank statement for the month ending 30 Apr i l  2011.   

I f  you go down to 15 Apri l  2011,  there is an amount  
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referenced Ka Dit lou Heal th Services wi th the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  can . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .an amount R 212 964.47.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi,  do you recal l  a  

payment to Ka Di t lou Heal th Services in Apri l  2011 in the 

amount of  R 212 964.47? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  wi th your permission,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  for your reference.   That  

corresponds to the invoice on page 721 and . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  now the amount at  page red 610? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  corresponds. . .   I t  corresponds wi th the 

amount at  the invoice at  what page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    721,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then Chai r,  i f  we can go to page 

614 red?   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And that  again,  is an extract  f rom 

Regiments Capi ta l ’s bank statement for the month ending 

30 June 2011.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    At  2  June 2011, there is a 

t ransact ion referenced Ka Ditou(sic) again.   Oh, no.   This is 

Ka Di t lou.   They have got  the folders done.   Heal th Serv ices.   

And the amount is R 224 934.47.   Mr Ramosebudi ,  do you 

recal l  a payment f rom Regiments Capi ta l  to Ka Di t lou Heal th  

Services in June 2011 in the amount of  R 224 934.47? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chair,  we do not  have a 10 

corresponding invoice for th is amount but  i f  I  can ask Chai r  

to go to page red 675? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there Chai r,  i f  one goes up to  

673,  one sees that  al though the reference was Ka Dit lou 

Heal th Services,  the bank statement we are looking at  is  

Risk Maths Solut ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    For the month ending 

10 June 2011.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi,  do you conf i rm 

that  th is is the bank statement for Risk Maths for the month 

ending 10 June 2011? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is 
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one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  we go down to page 675 against  

2 June,  we see a credi t  of  R 224 934.47 wi th reference 

Regiments Capi ta l .   Mr Ramosebudi,  I  ear l ier  asked you i f  

you can recal l  a payment f rom Regiments to Ka Dit lou Heal th  

Services in June in th is amount.  

 I  must  now ask you whether you can recal l  a payment 

f rom Regiments in  June 2010 to Risk Maths in th is amount of  

R 224 934.47? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  through your permission,  

may I  not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we then Chair  go to page 620 

red? 

CHAIRPERSON :    620? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    S ix,  two,  zero.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And this again is an ext ract  f rom 

Regiments Capi tal  bank statement for the month ending 20 

31 August  2011.   I f  one goes r ight  down to the bot tom of  the 

page, there is an entry on 19 August  2011 with  the reference 

Risk Stats Consul t ing and the amount is R 289 074.85.    

 Mr Ramosebudi,  do you recal l  a payment  f rom 

Regiments on or  around 19 August  2011 in the amount of  
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R 289 074.85? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  i f  you can then go to page 

red 678? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  we go up to red 677,  we 

see that  th is is the FNB statement for Risk Maths Solut ions 

for the month ending 10 September 2011.   10 

 Mr Ramosebudi,  can you conf i rm that  th is is the Risk 

Maths Solut ion statement f rom FNB for the month ending 

10 September 2011? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is 

one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  we go down to 678 Chai r,  we 

see the corresponding entry on 19 August  2011 with the 

corresponding credi t  of  R 289 074.85 in the account  of  Risk 

Math Solut ions wi th the reference Regiments Capi tal .    20 

 Mr Ramosebudi has also – has al ready claimed 

pr iv i leged in relat ion to whether he can recal l  a payment of  

th is nature at  that  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we then Chair  go to page 
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629?  Red 629.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chair  th is is the Nedbank 

statement for Regiments Capi tal ’s  account for the month 

ending 31 March 2012.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  one goes down to 9 March 2012, 

one sees an ent ry wi th a reference Ka Dit lou Heal th Services 

and the payment amount is R 299 874.96.  

 Mr Ramosebudi,  can you recal l  a payment of  th is  10 

amount,  R 299 874.96 to Ka Dit lou Heal th Services f rom 

Regiments Capi ta l  in March 2012? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chair,  i f  I  can ask you then to  

go to red page 629? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Oh,  sorry.   We are at  red 629.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We need to go to red 681.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  we go up to red 680.   

Mr Ramosebudi,  can you conf i rm that  th is is the FNB bank 

statement for the Risk Math Solut ions’ account for the month 
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ending 20 March 2012? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chai r,  i f  we go down at  to  

681,  we see on 9 March,  there is  a credi t  of  R 299 874.96 

corresponding to the credi t  that  we see on the Regiments 

account wi th the reference Ka Di t lou but  th is reference is 

Regiment Capi ta l  and i t  is in a Risk Math’s bank statement.  

 So Mr Ramosebudi ,  a pi ty I  must  ask you again.   Do you 10 

recal l  a payment f rom Regiments Capi ta l  to Risk Maths in or 

around 9 March 2012 in the amount of  R 299 874.96? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  then Mr Ramosebudi ,  can we 

go to page 130?  One, three,  zero.   Black one,  three zero.   

We have not  deal t  wi th th is invoice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Please just  repeat  the page 

number? 20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    130.  

CHAIRPERSON :    130.   And again,  st i l l  red? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  no.   This is a black number 

Chair  of  130.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Mr Ramosebudi,  what we see 

on 130 is an emai l  dated 29 October 2013.   I t  is sent  f rom 

your Rams cap(?) address,  phetolo@ramscap.co.za to Er ic  

Wood with the subject :  Book 2.XLSX and an at tachment of  a  

spreadsheet cal led Book 2.XLSX.   

 Do you recal l  sending this emai l  to Mr wood on the 

29t h of  October 2013? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    i f  we go over the page to 131,  we 

see an invoice f rom Rams Capi tal  to Regiments Capi tal  for  

Actuar ia l  and Risk Management Consul t ing on behal f  of  

Regiments Capi ta l  for Transnet.    

 The amount is R 375 606.00.   There is no VAT raised on 

that  amount.   So the total  amount of  the invoice is 

R 375 606.00.  

 Mr Ramosebudi,  d id Rams Capi ta l  issue an invoice to 

Regiments Capi ta l  for the amount of  R 375 606.00 towards 

to the end of . . .   Sorry.   On or around 29 October 2013? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Through yoursel f  Chai rperson,  may I  

not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  can I  ask that  you f lag this  

document because we are going to come back to i t  in due 
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course? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  for now, I  would ask that  you 

go to page 652? 

CHAIRPERSON :    And are we only into b lack numbers now 

or . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry.   Sorry,  Chai r.   I t  is red 652.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chair,  th is is a Standard Bank 

statement for  Regiments Capi ta l .   I t  is dated 10 

13 November 2013.  And i f  you go down to the last 

t ransact ion on this statement,  there is a t ransact ion 

descr ibed as Caps th i rd party payment Rams Capi tal .   I t  is at  

e leven,  16:00.    

 The amount is R 375 606.00 and the date is 11/07.   

Eleven referr ing to the month and the seven the day.  

 Mr Ramosebudi,  can you conf i rm that  Regiments Capi tal  

paid Rams Capi ta l  an amount of  R 375 606.00 on or around 

7 November 2013? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  through yoursel f ,  may I  20 

not  respond to th is one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  can I  ask you – and this is 

the amount corresponding to the invoice that  we see on 131 

Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  wi l l  appear in the Rams.. .   

Wel l ,  i t  wi l l  appear in another account at  red page 690.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  you go up to red 689 Chai r,  

there is the cover page.   Mr Ramosebudi,  can you conf i rm 

that  th is is the Risk Math Solut ion bank statement f rom FNB 

for the month ending 9 November 2013? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Again,  Chai rperson.   May I  not  respond 

to this quest ion in  case I  incr iminate mysel f?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  i f  you go down to red 690,  

you wi l l  see that  there is an ent ry,  a lso 7 November wi th the 

reference Regiments Capi tal  and the same amount of  

R 375 606.00 as a credi t .  

 Mr Ramosebudi,  I  must  ask you.   My last  quest ion was in 

re lat ion to Rams Capi tal .   So I  must  now ask you whether 

you recal l  a payment f rom Regiments Capi tal  to Risk Maths 

in the amount of  R 375 606.00 on or  around 

7 November 2013? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is 

quest ion in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then Chai r,  i f  I  can ask you to go 

to red 671? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then go up to the cover page 

on 670.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi,  can you conf i rm 

that  we see on 670 is the bank statement for Risk Math 

Solut ions for the month ending 10 January 2011? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to th is 

quest ion in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  we go down to page 671 red,  we 

see an entry on 18 December which wi l l  be 

18 December 2010 with the reference Regiments Capi tal  and 

a payment amount of  R 227 601.00 as a credi t .   A credi t  in 

the Risk Math’s account f rom Regiments Capi tal .  

 Mr Ramosebudi,  do you recal l  a payment  f rom 

Regiments Capi ta l  to Risk Math in December 2010 in the 

amount of  R 227 601.00? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    With your permission Chai rperson,  may 

I  not  respond to this one in case I  incr iminate mysel f?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then Chai r. . .   We can f ina l ly move 

on to a new topic Chai r.   We have deal t  wi th al l  of  the 

invoices and al l  of  the bank statements.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Do you know whether your team is  
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ready wi th the total  of  the amounts or not  yet? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We do have them Chai r.   I f  you 

can give me a minute.   I  wi l l  just . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes-no,  that  is f ine.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .ask them to give i t  to me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i f  needs be,  i t  can be done la ter i f  i t  

is more convenient .   I  just  want to,  in the end,  to have some 

idea.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  the tota l  invoices issued to 

Regiments Capi tal  are R 9 132 490,39.   And the total  10 

payments out  of  Regiments Capi ta l  accounts wi th references 

l inked to one or  more of  –  one or other  of  the ent i t ies that  we 

have been descr ib ing is R 5 173 013.66.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  we started this t r ip through 

the bank statements whi le we were st i l l  d iscussing ACSA.  

There are one or two further issues in relat ion to ACSA that  I  

would l ike to raise wi th Mr Ramosebudi .    

 Can I  start  by – when we get  back to ACSA by asking 

you,  Mr Ramosebudi  to go to black page 105  And henceforth 20 

Chai r,  I  wi l l  just  be referr ing to black page numbers.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   105? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    105.   And,  Mr Ramosebudi ,  are 

you at  black 105? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    B lack 105.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you go to the emai l  a t  the – i t  

is an emai l  t r ia l  but  can you go to the emai l ,  the last  emai l  

that  one sees at  the bot tom of  that  page.   I t  is  f rom Mario 

Viznenza to Aubrey Maklabe(?) copied to yoursel f ,  Wi l l iam 

Clue,  Solomon Gwaza(?) and Moss Brickman.  Do you see 

that ,  5 Apri l  2011 at  12:07? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you see that  emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  see the emai l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And he says:  10 

“Hi  Aubrey.   Unwind va luat ions of  the CPI swaps as 

at  31 March 2011 were as fol lows.”  

 And he l ists the three swaps by t rade number.   And for  

the one i t  is minus R 93 423 295,00.   For the other  i t  is  

minus R 73 295 235.   And for  the last ,  i t  is minus 

R 45 481 153,00.  

 Now can I  ask you,  f i rst  of  a l l ,  is – are these three CPI ’s  

boxes referr ing to the three CPI ’s box that  we discussed 

earl ier in your evidence? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  I  am not  sure which one 20 

that  th is was.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  am not  sure which . . . [ indist inct ]  are 

these ones.   That  is probably one of  those . . . [ indist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You wi l l  recal l  the spreadsheet 

that  had the R 1.5 b i l l ion bar plus 2.6% which was then 

broken up into 2A, 2B and 2C.  I  can take you back to that  i f  

you would l ike.   But  my quest ion is.   Are these 2A,  2B and 

2C? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  conf i rm Chai rperson.   I  do not  

know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.   Can you then tel l  the 

Chai r. . .   Wel l ,  I  mean, we have establ ished whether they are 

or not .   But  can you tel l  the Chai r  what unwind valuat ions 10 

are?  Let  us assume for present  purposes they are to. . .   

Wel l ,  there are three swaps.   What is unwind valuat ion 

means? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    In the simplest  terms Chai rperson,  

unwind means to cancel  the t ransact ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i f  ABSA wanted to cancel  these 

three swaps,  i t  would have to pay to Nedbank 

R 93 423 mi l l ion on the f i rst .   R 73.295 mi l l ion on the second 

and R 45.481 on the thi rd.   Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is the ind icat ion on the emai l ,  yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And i f  we go on a month or  

so.   Actual ly,  i t  is  more than a month.   I f  we go up to page 

104,  you wi l l  see another emai l  f rom Mar io to Wi l l iam Clue 

and you have copied yoursel f  on 19 July 2011.  

 And now the unwind valuat ions have actual ly got ten 
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worse by ACSA.  

“Hi ,  Wi l l iam.  Unwind valuat ions as at  

30 June 2011 were as fol lows.  

First  t rade,  R 126 360 000,00.   Second t rade,  

R 100 513 000,00.   Last  t rade,  

R 65 834 000,00.”  

 So those are the amounts that  ACSA would now have to 

pay Nedbank to get  out  of  these swaps.   Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Are you aware of  any other swaps 10 

that  ACSA had?  Any other CPI swaps that  ACSA had with 

Nedbank on or around – dur ing 2011, other than those three 

that  we have talked about,  2A, 2B and 2C? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot recal l  i t  now.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You cannot recol lect?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  am talk ing speci f ical ly about  CPI  

swaps.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  I  cannot recal l  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  know CPI bonds . . . [ indist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  you know? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    CPI bonds.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  am sorry.   Mr Ramosebudi ,  I  
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must  apologise.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    CPI  bonds.   There was a CPI bond.   I  

cannot recal l  any other swap.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   So,  but  I  am not  asking 

about a CPI bond.   I  am asking you about a CPI swap.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot recal l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You cannot recal l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  of  course,  we would be able to 

establ ish whether  we are talk ing about those three swaps i f  10 

we look for – i f  we look for them by t rade number,  would we 

not?  Wel l ,  i t  says Trade 9085799.   That  is a very speci f ic 

t ransact ion.   I t  wi l l  be recorded somewhere.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    For the set t lement of  the agreement.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    And the . . . [ indist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So we wi l l  fo l low that  up.   But  20 

whatever these t ransact ions were as at  30 June 2011 for  

ACSA to escape them, i t  would have cost  ACSA in the region 

of  R 290 mi l l ion.   Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Can you repeat that? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So as at  30 June 2011,  i f  ACSA 
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wanted to avoid these t ransact ions,  get  out  them,  i t  was 

going to cost  ACSA R 290 mi l l ion.   More than R 290 mi l l ion,  

these three t ransact ions.   Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I f  those numbers add up to two hundred 

plus.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  they go a l i t t le bi t  

beyond R 290 mi l l ion.   They are beyond R 292 mi l l ion.   Can 

we then go down to page 113? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say one,  one,  three? 10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    One, one,  three Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You do not  need to go back but  I  

do want to ask another quest ion,  just  f rom the top that  we 

have just  lef t .   Mr Ramosebudi,  I  said that  for ACSA to 

escape those t ransact ions,  i t  would have cost  ACSA 

R 292 mi l l ion.   Do you recal l?  Yes? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  t rust  your calculat ion,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   You ear l ier said that  on the 

date that  the t ransact ion is entered into,  i t  should have a nul l  20 

value.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i f  ACSA wanted day one i t  

shou ld  have cost  ACSA a lmost  no th ing ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I f  you  compare  the  schedu le ,  yes ,  i t  
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shou ld  be  zero .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  tha t  swap has gone  

aga ins t  ACSA to  the  tune o f  about  292 mi l l ion  by  June  

2011,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  then –  so  now we are  a t  

page 113.   Towards the  bo t tom o f  the  page there  is  an  

emai l  f rom Tebogo Laba lo  to  Mar io  Vis inenza(?)  and  cop ied  

to  Er ic  Wood.  

“Dear  Mar io ,  p lease send me the  ca sh  f l o w  10 

schedu le  fo r  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  de ta i led  the  

amounts  and the  expected t im ing  o f  the  ca sh  

f lo ws. ”  

And s igned by  Tebogo Laba lo .   Do you know who Tebogo  

Laba lo  i s  o r  was a t  the  t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  I  th ink  he  is  one o f  the  guys who 

used to  work  a t  Reg iments .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    One o f  the  guys? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    He used to  work  fo r  Reg iments .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh ,  o ka y.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  we go –  tha t  was 7  

December  and we go up to  8  December  2015.   I f  we go to  

1112,  page 1112.   Do you have 1112? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The b lack  numbers?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    B lack  page,  go ing  fo rward  i t  is  

jus t  b lack  pages.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay,  1112 I  see is  an  emai l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .   I t  i s  an  emai l  

f rom Er ic  Wood to  Bo i tumelo  Mapasa fo rward ing  a  ca sh  

f lo w  schedu le  wh ich  says Reg imen ts  summary o f  payments  

–  i t  i s  an  ca sh  f lo w schedu le  w i th  an  a t tachment  

Reg iments  summary o f  payments  bu t  the  fo rward ing  emai l  

i s  lower  down on the  cha in  and tha t  emai l  i s  f rom Mar io  

Vis inenza aga in  to  Tebogo Laba lo  on  8  December  2015,  i t  10 

is  the  response to  Tebogo ’s  request  g ive  us  the  ca sh  f lo w  

schedu les  and i t  says :  

“P lease see a t tached summary spreadsheet . ”  

I f  we go up to  page 411 we see the  a t tachment  tha t  was 

w i th  tha t  emai l  and you w i l l  see  tha t  what  tha t  spreadsheet  

has on  i t  i s  a  who le  ser ies  o f  amounts  in  respect  o f  ACSA 

in  the  f i rs t  ins tance and then the  C i ty  o f  Tswane th ree  

separa te  t ransact ions the re  bu t  I  am jus t  go ing  to  ask  you 

about  ACSA and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Chaska lson,  d id  you say  20 

we must  go  to  page 411?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  111.  

CHAIRPERSON:    111.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Vo lume –  bund le  4 ,  4 -111 ,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  want  to  ask  you about  these 

ACSA f lows.   Would  these be the  fees tha t  Nedbank is  

go ing  to  pay Reg iments  in  te rms o f  the  swaps tha t  Nedbank 

brokered between ACSA and Nedbank?  Does tha t  look  to  

you what  they a re  descr ib ing?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  do  no t  know what  they are  

desc r ib ing ,  these  numbers  are  [ ind ist inct  – dropping voice]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  we l l  I  want  to  pu t  i t  to  you 

tha t  these are  the  fees tha t  –  we l l ,  there  w i l l  be  ev idence 

to  show tha t  these are  the  fees on  tha t  swap tha t  Nedbank 10 

wou ld  be  pay ing  Reg iments  and recover ing  f rom ACSA on 

the  –  I  th ink  i t  was 10 bas is  po in t s .   So the  in i t ia l  payment  

o f  9 .460 mi l l ion ,  a  payment  a  year  la te r  o f  1  179  000,  a  

payment  in  2012,  1  253 000,  a  payment  in  2013,  

1  323 000,  a  payment  in  2014 o f  1  416 000,  payment  in  

2015,  1  515 000  and then payments  go ing  on  in to  the  

fu tu re  pro jec ted  because remember  th is  document  i s  on ly  

wr i t ten  in  December  2015,  p ro jec ted  payments  go ing  

th rough in  2016,2017,  2018 and 2019.   And maybe i f  I  can  

take  you back,  jus t  to  i l l us t ra te  some o f  these – i l l us t ra te  20 

my po in t .   I f  you  go to  page 108,  b lack  108.   A re  you on 

108?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And  you w i l l  see  108 i s  

Reg iments  invo i ce  to  Nedbank 28 March 2013,  the  amount  
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i s  the  1 .3  m i l l ion  tha t  we see on tha t  spreadsheet  and 

aga in  i t  re fe rs  to  o r ig ina t ion  and fac i l i ta t ion  o f  1 .5  b i l l i on  

in te res t  ra te  swap t ransact ions be tween Nedbank  Cap i ta l  

and ACSA and tha t  1 .5  b i l l i on  t ransact ion  was the  one w i th  

2A,  2B and 2C.   I f  you  go ove r  the  page you w i l l  see  31 

March 2014,  Nedbank ’s  invo ice ,  the  next  yea r.   Sor ry,  

Reg iments ’ invo i ce  to  Nedbank the  next  yea r,  goes to  Mr  

Br ickman in  the  amount  o f  1  416 424,  aga in  the  same 

descr ip t ion ,  o r i g ina t ion  and fac i l i ta t ion  o f  1 .5  b i l l i on 

in te res t  ra te  swap t ransact ions  be tween Nedbank and 10 

ACSA.   Over  the  page to  110,  31  March 2015.   Th is  t ime 

Nedbank pa id  –  or  Reg iments  invo iced Nedbank 1 .5  

m i l l ion ,  o r ig ina t i on  and fac i l i ta t ion  o f  1 .5  b i l l i on  in te res t  

ra te  swap t ransact ions be tween Nedbank and ACSA and i f  

you go back to  page 111 now,  w i l l  you  accept  when  I  pu t  i t  

to  you tha t  these  are  Nedbank ’s  record ings o f  wha t  i t  w i l l  

be  pay ing  Reg iments  in  re la t ion  to  the  ACSA swap? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You do ,  thank you.   And  jus t  to  

conf i rm to  the  Cha i r,  each one o f  these payments  Nedbank  20 

w i l l  in  due course  recover  f rom ACSA through tha t  10  bas is  

po in t  inc rease on  the  spread o f  the  swap,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  these amounts  are  rea l l y  

be ing  pa id  to  Reg iments  by  ACSA not  by  Nedbank.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   I  th ink  tha t  

conc ludes ACSA.   Can we move now to  SAA and can we 

s tar t  on  page 115?  And my f i rs t  quest ion  to  you is  can you 

jus t  re f resh our  memory,  when d id  you become Treasurer at  

SAA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through yourse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  i t  

cou ld  be  November  2011 or  December  2011,  I  canno t  reca l l  

tha t  p roper ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Towards  the  end o f  2011?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You were  cer ta in ly  Treasurer at  

SAA by 14 October 2013.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes I  was in  Treasury.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you,  i f  one goes to  

page 115,  there  is  an  emai l ,  i t  i s  addressed f rom your  

Rams Cap i ta l  address,  emai l  address to  Er ic  Wood,  sub jec t  

i s  Fo rward  Work ing  Cap i ta l  Scope o f  Work  and an  

a t tachment  i s  work ing  cap i ta l  scope o f  work .doc,  so  i t  i s  a  

MS word  f i le ,  work ing  cap i ta l  scope o f  work  and i f  one goes 20 

a  l i t t le  b i t  lower  down one sees tha t  tha t  message 

or ig ina ted  in  a  message tha t  you sent  f rom your  SAA 

address,  Pheto lo  Ramosebud i  a t  F l ySAA.com to  your  Rams 

Cap i ta l  address,  Pheto lo@ramscap i ta l . co .za .  So f i rs t  o f  a l l  

can  I  ask  you do you reca l l  send ing  th i s  message or  a  

mailto:Phetolo@ramscapital.co.za
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message w i th  tha t  a t tachment  f rom your  SAA address to  

your  Rams Cap address?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rperson,  I  am here  to  ass i s t ,  you 

know,  the  Cha i rperson and the  Commiss ion  to  invest iga te  

any mal feasance  in  the  pub l i c  sec tor  and any o ther  s ta te  

organs.   Unfor tunate ly,  there  a re  cer ta in  th ings I  cannot  

ass is t  you on and in  par t i cu la r  th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  I  

cannot  ass is t .   Unfor tunate ly,  I  cannot  answer  any 

quest ions re la ted  to  th is  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  apprec ia te  tha t ,  Mr  10 

Ramosebud i ,  bu t  I  am a f ra id  I  have to  pu t  the  ques t ions to  

you nonethe less ,  so  we can maybe move qu i te  qu ick ly  

th rough here  bu t  I  do  need to  pu t  the  quest ions to  you and  

some o f  them you may we l l  –  some o f  them you may f ind  

are  no t  –  you are  capab le  o f  answer ing .  

 The f i rs t  quest ion  was -   you cou ld  no t  answer  my  

quest ion  about  whethe r  you fo rwarded tha t  document  to  

your  –  f rom your  SAA address to  your  Rams Cap address.   

The second quest ion  is ,  do  you  reca l l  then send ing  tha t  

document  f rom your  Rams Cap address to  Er i c  Wood on  20 

and around 14 Oc tober  2013? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in  th rough yourse l f ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

may I  no t  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The  document ,  tha t  i s  the 

a t tachment ,  s ta r ts  a t  page 116.   Can you go to  page 116?  
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What  i t  looks  l i ke ,  cons is ten t  w i th  how i t  i s  descr ibed in  the  

emai l ,  i s  the  dra f t  scope o f  work  fo r  a  tender  a t  SAA.   Can 

I  ask  –  and i t  i s  ca l led  work ing  cap i ta l  management scope 

o f  work .   Can I  ask  whether  you reca l l  th is  document ,  

whethe r  you can ident i f y  i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson,  I  humbly  request  tha t  I  

do  no t  respond  to th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  

myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you to  page 119  

and the  –  aga in  t here  is  an  emai l  cha in  tha t  o r ig ina tes  w i th  10 

an  emai l  f rom your  SAA address  on  24 October  to  your  

Rams Cap address and is  then fo rwarded f rom your  Rams 

Cap address to  Er ic  Wood and the  document  a t t ached is  

ca l led  the  va lua t ion  cr i te r ia .   Can  I  ask  you f i rs t  whethe r  

you reca l l  send ing  tha t  emai l  f rom your  F l ySAA address to  

your  Rams Cap address?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  excuse me,  you  

know,  fo r  no t  respond ing  to  th is  quest ion ,  I  am unab le  to  

respond to  tha t  in  case they incr im inate  me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  there  20 

is  the  emai l  tha t  comes f rom your  Rams Cap to  Er ic  Wood  

tha t  says:  

“P lease rev iew and comment . ”  

Do you reca l l  send ing  tha t  to  Mr  Wood on 24  October  

2013?  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  w i l l  want  to  request  aga in ,  

Cha i rperson,  no t  to  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  the  document  tha t  the  

emai l  apparent ly  i s  ask ing  Mr  Wood to  rev iew and comment  

appears  a t  page  120 and i t  i s  ca l led  Rev ised Eva lua t ion  

Cr i te r ia  and i f  one reads th rough  i t ,  i t  appears  to  be  the  

eva lua t ion  cr i te r i a  fo r  tha t  work ing  cap i ta l  scope o f  work  

tender  tha t  appears  to  have been fo rwarded f rom your  

emai l  address to  Mr  Wood on  14 October.   Do you 10 

recogn ise  th is  document  ca l led  rev ised eva lua t ion ,  w i th  the  

add ing  Rev ised Eva lua t ion  Cr i te r ia?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through yourse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  I  

m igh t  no t  be  ab le  to  respond to  th is  in  case i t  incr im inate  

me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you to  page 

123?  Now we see an emai l  f rom Mr  Wood to  you  on 28  

October  2013 w i th  an  a t tachment  Eva lua t ion  Cr i te r ia  

SAA.docex and tha t  appears  to  be  –  sor ry,  i t  i s  fo rward  

Eva lua t ion  Cr i te r ia  SAA.docex and i f  one goes down the  20 

s t r ing ,  one sees what  i s  be ing  fo rwarded is  an  emai l  f rom 

someone ca l led  Inderan P i l lay  to  Er ic  Wood and cop ied  to  

Tewodros Gebrese las ie .   Can I  f i rs t  ask  you,  do  you know 

who Inderan P i l lay  i s?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink  he  is  one o f  those guys who 
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work  fo r  Reg imen ts .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  no t  N iven P i l lay,  i t  i s  a  

d i f fe ren t  pe rson  but  we are  led  to  be l ieve  i t  i s  N iven  

P i l lay ’s  b ro the r,  do  you know tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  wou ld  no t  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  i t  i s  cer ta in l y  no t  N iven  

P i l lay.   Do you know tha t  i t  i s  no t  N iven P i l lay?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  f rom the  names i t  i s  no t  N iven 

P i l lay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  d i f fe ren t  person.   Do you  10 

know Tewodros Gebrese las ie?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And who is  he  or  who was he a t  

the  t ime?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    He worked fo r  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And we have a l ready es tab l i shed 

who Mr  Wood is .   Do you reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  emai l  f rom 

Mr  Wood on 28 October  2013 wh ich  fo rwarded a  document  

ca l led  the  eva lua t ion  cr i te r i a  SAA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond to  20 

th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  then I  must  take  you to  the  

document  tha t  was a t tached to  tha t  emai l ,  i t  i s  a t  124 and  

i t  i s  a  document  wh ich  looks a  lo t  l i ke  the  document  tha t  

was a t tached to  your  emai l  to  Mr  Wood wi th  eva lua t ion  
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c r i te r ia  on  24  August  bu t  four  days la te r  there  had been 

some mater ia l  changes to  the  document  and to  see what  

those changes a re  I  wou ld  ask  you to  go  to  page 127 

where  the  Commiss ion  has genera ted  a  document  wh ich  

shows what  the  changes between the  two documents  were .   

So can you jus t  read –  qu ick ly  look  th rough pages 127 and  

128 and 129 and  then I  am go ing  to  ask  you a  coup le  o f  

quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You want  h im to  read s i len t ly  o r  a loud?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no ,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  10 

necessary  to  read in to  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  jus t  want  Mr  Ramosebud i  to  

see …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  to  fami l ia r ise  h imse l f  w i th  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  see  i t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ramosebud i .   So 

you wou ld  no t  obv ious ly  have seen tha t  document  a t  any  

t ime pr io r  to  coming to  the  Commiss ion  because the  20 

Commiss ion  genera ted  i t  bu t  I  have to  ask  you,  the  

document  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 124,  have you seen tha t  

document  be fore? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through yourse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  I  am 

go ing  to  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ramosebud i .   

Can we then go to  the  document  a t  page 127 where  the  

t rack  changes are  f lagged and can I  ask  you wou ld  you  

agree w i th  me tha t  these a re  no t  i ns ign i f i can t  changes tha t  

have been made  to  eva lua t ion  cr i te r ia  bu t  what  one sees  

here  is  some mater ia l  changes,  someone who has p res ided 

over  tenders  in  the  pub l i c  sec to r  be fore .   Do these changes  

look ins ign i f i can t  o r  do  they mater ia l l y  change the  

eva lua t ion  process?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Wi th  your  permiss ion ,  may I  no t  10 

respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  make  sure  a l l  the  t ime,  Mr  

Ramosebud i  tha t  you a r t i cu la te  your  reason aud ib ly  fo r  

w ish ing  no t  to  answer.   So I  am jus t  say ing  jus t  make sure  

you ar t i cu la te  your  reason aud ib ly.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  w ish ing  no t  to  answer  the  quest ion ,  

i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  the  record .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  –  I  maybe asked tha t  20 

quest ion  too  genera l l y.   I f  one goes to  the  bo t tom o f  the 

page 127,  one sees tha t  the  eva lua t ion  cr i te r ion  in  re la t ion  

to  funct iona l  requ i rements  and we igh t ings –  these are  

go ing  to  be  scores  on  the  tender.   Sor ry,  can I  ask  tha t  

quest ion?  Func t iona l  requ i rements  and we igh t ings,  a re  
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those go ing  to  be  the  scores  on  the  tender  tha t  w i l l  

de termine who w ins  the  tender?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wi th  your  permiss ion ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

may I  no t  respond to  th is  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  le t  us  …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe you can ask i t  genera l l y.   Maybe 

you cou ld  ask  i t  a t  a  genera l  leve l ,  wou ld  tha t  he lp?   I f  he  

does not  re la t ion  to  these but  jus t  in  genera l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  indeed,  thank you,  

Cha i r.   So,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  when  one –  fo rge t  about  th is  10 

tender  in  par t i cu la r,  bu t  as  a  genera l  p r inc ip le  when one  

eva lua tes  pub l i c  sec tor  tenders  and there  is  a  phase two o f  

the  tender,  phase  one i s  about  funct iona l  compat ib i l i t y  and  

anyone who does  not  qua l i f y  in  phase one is  au tomat ica l l y  

d isqua l i f ied  bu t  peop le  who get  th rough to  phase 2  and  

then have qua l i f ied  and are  be ing  assessed,  i f  there  i s  a  

ca tegory  ca l led  funct iona l  requ i rements  and we igh t ings fo r  

phase two,  wou ld  tha t  rea l l y  be  the  marks  tha t  a re  g iven to  

those peop le  who  have qua l i f ied  and the  person – and the  

en t i t y  w i th  the  h ighest  marks  w i l l  w in .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    In  genera l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  genera l ,  w i thout  re fe r r ing  to  

th is  spec i f i c  tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Accord ing  to  your  knowledge.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    O f  course  when I  read th rough  th is  on  
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page 127 i t  says :  

“B idders  t ha t  fa i l  to  meet  the  cr i t i ca l  c r i te r ia  w i l l  be  

e l im ina ted. ”  

So i t  means those are  e l im ina ted,  they w i l l  no t  go  fu r the r,  

i t  w i l l  be ,  you know,  eva lua ted on  a  funct iona l  bas is .   So 

then move to  the  second phase. ,  then they are  go ing  to  be 

eva lua ted on a  f unct iona l  bas i s .   So there fore  the  we igh t  

p robab ly  i s  what  i s  a t tached to  a  par t i cu la r  e lement  o r  

desc r ip t ion  o f  a  measure  tha t  i s  used.   I  guess tha t  i s  what  

i t  shou ld  be .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  wou ld  tha t  answer  –  wou ld  your  

answer  mean tha t  in  genera l  when  you come to  tha t  phase 

those var ious fea tures  are  how –  or  a re  the  fea tu res  tha t  

ge t  scored.   I  am ta lk ing  genera l l y  now.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja ,  genera l l y  when I  look  a t  the  f i rs t  

e lement  o r  the  f i rs t  phase,  i t  i s  a  yes o r  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    So  i f  i t  i s  yes  or  no ,  i f  you  a re  no ,  no ,  

no ,  tha t  means tha t  you w i l l  be  e l im ina ted.   And then the  

second phase,  now you have got  to  be  we igh ted in  te rms o f  20 

what  your  competenc ies  are .   That  i s  what  I  read f rom 

these documents  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And whoever  ge ts  the  h ighest  

we igh ted score  is  p resumably  the  pre fe r red  b idder.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson,  may I  no t  fu r ther  

respond to  th is  one,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  then maybe I  shou ld  jus t  

read in to  the  record  some o f  these changes.   One sees in  

re la t ion  to  the  we igh t ings tha t  the  measure  o f  demonst ra te  

work ing  cap i ta l  management methodo logy and approach  

adopted in  p rev ious pro jec ts  o r  as  p roposed f rom SAA – 

proposed fo r  SAA,  has inc reased f rom 20% to  30%.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The eva lua t ion  o f  the  scope  o f  work  10 

and benef i t s  rea l i sed in  re la t ion  to  the  re levance o f  what  i s  

requ i red  fo r  SAA has –  i t  used to  say th ree  group 

re ferences fo r  15  marks ,  two group leve l  re fe rences and  

one smal l  g roup  re ference wou ld  g ive  you 10 marks  and  

two smal l  g roup re ferences and one b ig  group re ference 

wou ld  g i ve  you f i ve  marks  and the  k inds o f  re fe rences tha t  

a re  now be ing  asked have a l l  been e l im ina ted,  so  i t  i s  jus t  

th ree  re ferences,  15  marks ,  two re ferences is  10  and one 

re ference is  5 .   There  used to  be  a  requ i rement  tha t  sa id :  

: ”Tenderer  demonst ra tes  the  ab i l i t y  to  conduct  20 

g loba l  research  and benchmark ing  based on the  

team s t ruc ture  and exper t i se  employed as  we l l  as  

d isp lay  o f  the  re levant  ne twork  tha t  the  tendere r  

can access to  suppor t  research . ”  

I t  was go ing  to  be  10% of  tha t  to ta l  mark  bu t  tha t  has now 
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been e l im ina ted.   Then there  is  a  l ine  i tem:  

“Demonst ra te  exper ience o f  work ing  a t  sen ior  

management leve l  and red i scover ing  work ing  cap i ta l  

capab i l i t ies  by  ou t l in ing  methodo logy and approach 

u t i l i sed  in  s im i la r  p ro jec ts  as  we l l  as  proposa l  fo r  

SAA,  tenderer  must  show good grasp o f  the  

sens i t i v i t ies  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  red i scover ing  o f  

work ing  cap i ta l  and competency requ i rements . ”  

That  used to  be  10%,  i t  i s  now 15%.   There  was a  l ine 

i tem:  10 

“Demonst ra te  unbund l ing  o f  work ing  cap i ta l  

capab i l i t y  by  ou t l in ing  methodo logy and approach  

adopted i n  p rev ious pro jec ts  o r  as  p roposed fo r  

SAA.   Th is  shou ld  ind ica ted  in  te rms o f  the  var ious  

e lements  tha t  w i l l  be  addressed in  work ing  cap i ta l  

unbund l ing  management as  we l l  as  how th is  w i l l  be  

deve loped fo r  SAA. ”  

That  used to  be  10%,  i t  has  now gone.   And the re  is :  

“Years  o f  exper ience in  work ing  cap i ta l  

management…” 20 

To wh ich  has been added  

“…and ba lance sheet  op t im iza t ion . ”  

A one year  used  to  be  3  po in t s ,  two years  used to  be  –  

sor ry,  one year  used to  be  2  po in ts ,  i t  i s  now 3  po in ts .   Two  

years  used to  be  4  po in ts ,  i t  i s  now 6  po in ts .   Th ree years  
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used to  be  6  po in ts ,  i t  i s  now 9 ,  four  years  used to  be  8  

po in ts ,  i t  i s  now 12 and 5  years  used to  be  10  po in ts  and i t  

now 15.   So the  to ta l  we igh ing  has  gone up f rom 10  to  15 .   

Then over  the  page there  is  a  new ent ry  wh ich  is  ca l led :  

“Knowledge t rans fer  f ramework  to  SAA dur ing  and  

a f te r  the  p ro jec t .   Tenderer  must  ou t l ine  the i r  

f ramework  to  be  u t i l i sed  in  ensur ing  knowledge  

t ransfer  happens w i th  key in te rna l  s takeho lders . ”  

That  new ent ry  ge ts  10% and –  I  beg your  pardon,  Cha i r,  

tha t  new ent ry  i s  no t  in  fac t  a  new ent ry,  i t  used to  be  there  10 

a t  the  bo t tom,  bu t  i t  has  now been de le ted  a t  the  bo t tom 

and pushed fu r ther  up  the  l i s t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then we get  to  a document  tha t  

we have a l ready  addressed,  i t  i s  a t  page 130 bu t  i t  now 

appears  in  i t s  p roper  chrono logy.   That  i s  the  emai l  

addressed f rom you to  Mr  Wood on 29 October  2013,  we 

have a l ready asked i f  you can ident i f y  tha t  and you have 

a l ready c la imed  pr iv i lege.   I  jus t  want  to  re f resh our  

memor ies  tha t  th is  i s  an  emai l  a t tach ing  an invo i ce  to  20 

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  f rom Rams Cap i ta l  in  the  amount  o f  

R375 606.   We then a t  page 132  have a  document  wh ich  

was an ex t rac t  f rom the  Commiss ion ’s  e lec t ron ic  

t ransact ion  records  showing tha t  payment  f rom Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  to  Rams Cap i ta l  on  7  November  2013 o f  375 606.   
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Cha i r,  i f  you  can jus t ,  on  th is  document ,  make an  

annota t ion  tha t  the  bank s ta tements ,  the  re levant  hard  

copy bank s ta tements  are  a t  page 652,  red ,  and 690 red ,  

bo th  s ides o f  tha t  t ransact ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  one second ,  red  page?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  652 red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    652,  thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And 690  red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    690,  the  las t  page number?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    690,  indeed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  tha t  i s  the  one,  the 

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  s ta tement  and the  Rams Cap i ta l  

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We then come to  a  document  on  

page 133 and tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Niven P i l lay  to  And i le  

Nyonya,  Er ic  Wood,  Inderan P i l lay  and Mohamed Bobat  and 

the  sub jec t  i s :  

“Forward ing  GSMO 85/13 RFP for  the  appo in tment  20 

o f  a  consu l tan t  to  ass i s t  the  SAA Group w i th  the  

un lock ing  o f  work ing  cap i ta l ”  

And there  i s  an  a t tachment  RFP work ing  cap i ta l  NN.doc.   

The emai l  tha t  i s  be ing  fo rwarded i s  f rom Reinet te  

S labber t .   Do you know who Re ine t te  S labber t  i s ,  Mr 
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Ramosebud i?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  I  reco l lec t  the  name.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  who she 

is?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    She has worked in  the  procu rement  a t  

SAA.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  da te  i s  19  November  

2013,  th is  document  i s  sent  –  o r  th is  emai l  i s  sent  to  

everyone and i t  –  o r  no t  to  everyone,  to  a  la rge  number  o f  

peop le  and i t  says :  10 

“Dear  B idders ,  good a f te rnoon,  everybody,  a t tached  

herewi th  p lease f ind  the  fo l low ing  documents ,  RFP 

085/13 NDA re la ted  to  the  RFP.   There  is  

conf ident ia l  f inanc ia l  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le  tha t  w i l l  

be  submi t ted  bu t  i t  w i l l  on ly  be  submi t ted  once the  

NDA agreement  has been s igned and emai led  back.   

P lease take  note  o f  the  fund ing  po in t  tha t  fo rms 

par t  o f  the  scope o f  work ,  pa r t  3  o f  the  RFP 

document .   A l l  cor respondence needs to  be  v ia  

emai l  and we w i l l  respond as  soon  as  poss ib le  to  a l l  20 

quest ions,  thanks . ”  

So wou ld  I  be  cor rec t  in  say ing  tha t  the  emai l  f rom 

Reinet te  S labber t  i s  an  emai l  tha t  goes out  to  peop le  who – 

to  b idders  who a re  inv i ted  to  b id  fo r  th is  b id ,  GSMO 85/13,  

the  RFP for  the  appo in tment  o f  a  consu l tan t  to  ass is t  SAA 
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w i th  the  un lock ing  o f  work ing  cap i ta l .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson,  may I  be  excused  not  to  

respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you  to  the  

document  tha t  i s  a t tached to  tha t  emai l .   I t  i s  a  document  

tha t  appears  on  page 136,  i t s  head ing  is :  

“Request  fo r  p roposa l  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  a  

consu l tan t  to  ass i s t  the  South  A f r i can A i rways 

Group w i th  the  un lock ing  o f  wo rk in g  cap i ta l ,  b id  

number  RFP 085/13. ”  10 

And then i t  goes on.   Maybe before  we ask a  quest ion  then  

maybe I  can f lag  a  coup le  o f  i ssues in  th is  document .   

Page 137 there  is  an  issue date  o f  19  November  2013,  

there  is  a  c los ing  da te  fo r  RFP,  4  December  2013 and can I  

ask  in  genera l  te rms,  when an inv i ta t ion  to  b id  has an 

issue date  wou ld  tha t  be  the  da te  on  wh ich  b idders  are  

g iven the  tender  document  wh ich  descr ibes the  scope o f  

work  and the  eva lua t ion  cr i te r ia  and the  l i ke ,  in  genera l  

te rms,  in  p rocurement?   Sor ry,  Mr  Ramosebud i?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  hear  you,  Mr  Chaska lson.   I t  m igh t  20 

mean a  lo t  o f  th ing ,  you know,  i ssued la te .   I t  m igh t  be  a  

da te  tha t  i s  i ssued but  in  a  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  go  ou t  no t  to  

the  b idders .   Or  i t  can  be an issue date  tha t  goes  to  the  

b idders .   So an  issue date  can  be,  can mean a  lo t  o f  

th ings.   So I ,  I  don ’ t  want  to  app ly  a  genera l  knowledge 
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here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.   Or  can I  ask  the  quest ion  

d i f fe ren t ly?   Have you come across tenders  where  b idders  

ge t  a  b id  inv i ta t ion  document  o f f i c ia l l y  be fo re  the  issue  

date?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i rperson I  may not  be  

ab le  to  respond to  th is  quest ion  s i r,  in  case I  imp l ica te  

myse l f .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The c los ing  da te ,  i f  we  can ask  

in  genera l  te rms  when a  b id  inv i ta t ion  document  has a  10 

c los ing  da te  wou ld  tha t  mean tha t  sub jec t  to  var ia t ions  

wh ich  are  made app l i cab le  to  everyone,  any b id  tha t  comes 

a f te r  tha t  c los ing  da te  i s  no t  cons idered?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    From genera l  perspect ive  I  don ’ t  have  

much knowledge  on . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i ssues.   I ’ ve  been in  

t reasury  most  o f  my l i fe  and … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  we l l  I  mean there  has  

been qu i te  a  lo t  o f  ev idence a t  a  genera l  leve l  a round  

procurement .   Can I  ask  i f  you  can ident i f y  th is  pa r t i cu la r  

document ,  i t  i s  the  b id  document  tha t  was ac tua l l y  i ssued  20 

in  respect  o f  the  SAA tender  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  a  

consu l tan t  to  ass is t  in  South  A f r i can A i rways Group w i th  

the  un lock ing  and work ing  cap i ta l?   Can you ident i f y  th is  

document as  the  b id  document  tha t  was o f f i c ia l l y  i ssued?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson can I  reserve  my r igh ts  
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to  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then maybe jus t  fo r  the  record  

Cha i r  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  no te  tha t  the  issue date  he re  is  19  

November  2013,  w i th  the  c los ing  da te  o f  4  December  2013,  

wh ich  is  rough ly  two weeks a f te r  i ssue.   But  i f  we go back  

to  page 113,  we  see a  dra f t  o f  the  scope o f  work  in  th is  

tender  wh ich  cor responds very  c lose ly  to  the  dra f t  in  the  

f ina l  document  be ing  emai led  to  Mr  Wood a t  Reg iments  on  

the  14 t h  o f  October.    

A month ,  more  than a  month  be fore  the  issue date  10 

o f  the  tender  tha t  has rough ly  a  two week per iod  be tween 

issue and c lose .   The second po in t  tha t  I  wou ld  make jus t  

fo r  the  record  is  i f  one compares  the  eva lua t ion  c r i te r ia ,  

tha t  one sees on page 153,  b lack  153.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can ’ t  hear  you,  130?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  beg your  pardon Cha i r.   Jus t  

fo r  the  record  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The da te  o f  14  October  and the  

emai l  o f  14  October  was b lack  115.   Not ,  no t  113.   113 L ike  20 

I  gave the  wrong re ference.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am indebted to  my learned 

f r iend fo r  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  one  goes to  the  eva lua t ion  

cr i te r ia  i n  the  b id  document wh ich  are  a t  page 153 and one 

compares those  eva lua t ion  c r i te r ia  to  the  eva lua t ion 

cr i te r ia  tha t  came back f rom Mr  Wood,  on  28  October,  tha t  

i s  page 124 –  sor ry  i t  i s  no t  page 124.    

Yes i t  i s  page 124.   Mr  Wood sen t  back eva lua t ion  

cr i te r ia  on  page –  on  28 Oc tober  2013 and  those  

eva lua t ion  cr i te r i a  one sees f rom page 124 and one sees a  

fa i r l y  c lose  cor re la t ion  be tween those eva lua t ion  cr i te r ia  

and the  eva lua t ion  cr i te r ia  tha t  u l t imate ly  ge t  re leased in  10 

the  b id ,  wh ich  one can see a t  page 153.    

And maybe the  best  p lace  to  do  the  compar i son is  

w i th  tha t  t rack  changes vers ion  o f  the  document  a t  page  

127.   But  maybe  le t ’s  move on in  the  chrono logy,  a f te r  I  

have made those  observa t ions and I  want  to  take  you to  

page 202.    

And on page 202  there  is  an  ema i l  under  cover  o f  

wh ich  a  b id  i s  a t tached.   And tha t  b id  s ta r t s  on  page 203.   

And the  s ignature  page on tha t  b id  i s  –  los t  my re ference.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you s t i l l  a t  202 Mr  Chaska lson? 20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am a t ,  I ’m  a t  202.   I  jus t  want  

to  indent i f y  the  par t ies  tha t  s igned o f f  on  th is  b id .   You ’ l l  

see  tha t  –  maybe  the  best  p lace  to  do  i t  f rom i s  202.   The 

emai l  on  202 i s  f rom someone  ca l led  

dav id f ine@McKinsey.com to  Er ic  Wood.    

mailto:davidfine@mackinsey.com
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And the  what  i s  a t tached is  a  comple ted  b id .   And i f  

one,  and there ’s  some emai l s  who  were  fo rwarded and the  

peop le  who were ,  whose emai ls  a re  fo rwarded are  a l l  

McK insey addresses.   But  th is  par t i cu la r  document  i s  

addressed to  Mr  Wood.   And i f  one goes down to  page 214,  

one w i l l  see  th ree  s ignatures ,  inc lud ing  Mr  F ine  o f  

McK insey,  Nomfane lo  Magwentshu a t  McK insey and  

Chr is t ina  P lanet  o f  McK insey.    

And in  the re  is  a  space fo r  Mr  Wood to  s ign .   Can I  

ask  i f  th is ,  i f  you  can ident i f y  th is  document  as  the  b id  10 

document  tha t  was submi t ted  jo in t l y  by  McK insey and  

Reg iments?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True  yourse l f  Cha i rpe rson,  I  am here  

ass is t  you know the  Cha i rperson and the  Commiss ion .   

However  on  th is  par t i cu la r  one I  m ight  no t  be  ab le  to  

respond to  i t  in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  maybe I  can jus t  read then  

in to  the  record  the  pa ragraph wh ich  i s  the  second las t  

parag raph before  the  s ignatures ,  on  page 214:  

 “We fu l l y  apprec ia te  the  …”  20 

 Th is  i s  the  b idder  speak ing :  

“We fu l l y  apprec ia te  the  impor tance to  as  have 

ach iev ing  be t te r  management  o f  i ts  work ing  cap i ta l  

and are  conf ident  tha t  McK insey and Reg iments  can  

o f fe r  d is t inc t i ve  and rap id  bought  rou ted  in  our  deep 
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unders tand ing  o f  SAA and our  ex tens i ve  exper ience  

o f  suppor t ing  many a i r l ines  across the  wor ld  fac ing  

comparab le  cha l lenges.   The suggested r i sk  and  

ups ide  shar ing  a r rangements  in  our  fee  proposa l  

re f lec t  ou r  be l ie f  and the  va lue  tha t  i s  a t  s take and  

in  our  ab i l i t y  to  de l i ver  s ign i f i can t  va lue  fo r  SAA. ”  

 Can we then go down or  be fore  we  go down to  page  

204,  can I  ask  you a  genera l  ques t ion?  Under  the  sys tem 

o f  de legat ions a t  SAA a t  the  t ime,  what  was the  l im i t  in  

mon i to ry  te rms o f  the  va lue  o f  a  tender  tha t  cou ld  be  10 

awarded by  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  w i thout  go ing  

to  the  Board  fo r  independent  dec i s ion?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    From a  genera l  pe rspect ive  i t  

depends on the  board  de legat ion  to  the  management .   So 

on th is  pa r t i cu la r  one,  I  can ’ t  g ive  you an answer  on  i t  as  I  

have a l ready s ta ted  tha t  I  don ’ t  want  to  imp l ica te  myse l f .   

And f rom a  genera l  pe rspect ive  the  max imum leve l  

depends on what  the  board  has de legated management  o f .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  does,  does the  sys tem o f  

de legat ions no t  work  accord ing  to  va lue?  So tha t  the  B id  20 

Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  –  or  le t  me  put  th is  quest ion  to  you 

very  spec i f i ca l l y.   D id  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  have  

author i t y  to  make awards in  amounts  greater  than 100 

mi l l ion  rands?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    May I  no t  respond to  th is  one 
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Cha i rperson,  in  case I  … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  can we then go to  page 

228.   And you w i l l  see  there  is  a  an  emai l  tha t  i s  sent  f rom 

you or  f rom your  -  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  ramscap.coza address to  –  

on  24 January   2014 to  Er ic  Wood  and to  what  was  Gebre  

Se lass ie (?) .    

We have remembered who they are .   And i t  says  

work ing  cap i ta l  BAC f ina l  recommendat ion .   Can I  ask  you 

on 24 January  2014,  had the  award  in  respect  o f  th is  

tender  been made ye t  o r  was the  tender  s t i l l  pend ing? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    May I  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion  

Cha i rperson,  in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  do  you reca l l  

fo rward ing  o r  send ing  th is  emai l  on  24  January  2014 to  

Er ic  Wood and toward  Gebra  Se lass ie ,  bo th  whom worked  

a t  Reg iments  a t  the  t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in  Cha i rperson,  may I  humbly  

request  to  no t  to  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  

imp l ica te  myse l f?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Or  le t  me then take  you to  the 20 

emai l  tha t  was fo rwarded.   Wel l  le t ’s  s ta r t  w i th  an  an ter io r  

quest ion .   Aga in  one sees what ’s  fo rwarded is  a  cha in  tha t  

you ’ve ,  tha t  i s  f i rs t  fo rwarded f rom the  –  your  f l ysaa.com 

address to  your  ramscap address  on  24 January  2014 a t  

10 :44 .   Do  you reca l l  fo rward ing  tha t  emai l  cha in  f rom your  
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SAA address to  your  ramscap address on  24 January?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  have been adv ised not  

to  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  le t ’s  go  then down to  the  

cha in  i t se l f .   I t  s ta r ts  w i th  an  emai l  f rom yourse l f ,  24 

January  2014 a t  10 :43AM.   I t ’s  addressed to  Re ine t te  

S labber t ,  you have to ld  us  she worked in  p rocurement  a t  

SAA.   Viwe Soga.   Who is  Viwe Soga? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  can ’ t  reca l l  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  fo r  the  t ransc r ibe rs ,  Soga w i l l  be  S-10 

O-G-A.   I s  tha t  cor rec t  s i r?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And Viwe,  V- I -W-E,  tha t  shou ld  be  easy.   

Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Nthab iseng and Ntsha l i?   Do  

you remember  who tha t  person was?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  reca l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And who is  she,  who was  she?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    She used to  work  fo r  SAA.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And in  what  depar tment?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink  i t ’s  r i sk .   R isk .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    R isk .   So she worked in  r i sk  a t  

SAA.   And L indsey O l i t zk i ,  do  you remember  who  L indsey  

O l i t zk i  –  sor ry  and Nthab iseng is  N-T-H-A-B- I -S -E-N-G.   

And Char l ie  Char l ie  i s  N-T-S -H-A -L- I  N-T-S-H-A-L- I .   
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L indsey O l i t zk i ,  O-L- I -T-Z-K - I .   Do you reca l l  who she was?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes I  reca l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And who was she?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    She used to  work  in  f inance.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   She used to  work?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    In  f inance.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A t  S  -  in  f inance and a t  SAA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  she  work  a t  SAA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    SAA f inance.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    SAA f inance.   And Sh i reen  

Subroyen.   SHIREEN and SUBROYEN.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  th ink  she  worked,  she worked fo r  

SAA.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    She worked fo r  SAA.   And wou ld  

i t  be  cor rec t  to  say tha t  Re ine t te  S labber t ,  Viwe Soga and 

Nthab iseng and  Ntsha l i  N tsha l i ,  L indsey O l i t zk i  and 

Sh i reen Subroyen were  a l l  invo l ved in  work  re la t ing  to  

SAA’s  process ing  o f  th is  tender?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  can ’ t  reca l l  whethe r  they were  20 

members  o f  the  CFST or  no t ,  I  can ’ t  reca l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  you sa id  whether  they  

were  members  o f  the?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Whether  they were  work ing  on  th is  

t ransact ion .    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You can ’ t  reca l l .   Wel l  your  emai l  

may re f resh you,  o r  the  emai l  may re f resh your  memory.   I t  

says :  

“Co l leagues submiss ion  has been re fer red  fo r  

rework . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is  i s  on  page 228 Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Foot  o f  228 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    “We need to  d iscuss the  pr ic ing   

w i th  respect  to  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y.   I f  McK insey 10 

is  approved as  is ,  I  w i l l  have to  go  to  board  and  

t im ing  w i l l  be  an  issue.   So tha t  i s  the  co r rec t  

approach?  To s t i l l  recommend to  McK insey w i thout  

b reach ing  the  procu rement  p rocess?  Would  

McK insey reduc ing  the  cap leve l  be  the  appropr ia te  

way to  do?  Or  shou ld  we go back to  o r  fo r  BAFO,  

tha t  wou ld  be  best  and f ina l  o f fe r  w i th  the  l im i ted  

be low board  approva l . ”  

 And can I  o r  le t ’s  read on.    

“Don ’ t  fo rge t  Boston was 14 mi l l ion  w i th  30  20 

var iab les ,  IQ is  5,5  m i l l ion  w i th  percentage sav ings  

bu t  no  cap.   And  McKinsey is  zero  f i xed ,  bu t  e igh t  

percent  on  sav ings w i th  a  120  mi l l ion  wh ich  is  

above CEO de legat ion .   Le t ’s  qu ick ly  re f lec t  on  th is ,  

we need to  go  fo r  round rob in  ea r ly  next  week. ”  
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 Can I  ask ,  I  f ramed my ea r l ie r  quest ion  wrong ly?   

When I  –  th is  emai l  says  120  mi l l ion  i s  above CEO 

de legat ion .   Does  tha t  mean tha t  the  CEO of  SAA does not  

have author i t y  to  conc lude a  cont rac t  a t  120 mi l l ion  and  

tha t  such a  cont rac t  has to  go  to  the  board?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson may I  no t  respond to  th is  

quest ion ,  in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can  I  a l r igh t .   Le t ’s  then 

proceed and we see a t  235,  sor ry  –  yes page 235,  there  is  

another  emai l .   I t ’s  a lso  sent  f rom your  ramscap address 10 

on 24 January  2014.   Th is  t ime a t  16 :22 .   I t  i s  a lso  sent ,  

addressed to  Er ic  Wood and the  sub jec t  i s  the  name o f  th is  

tender,  GSMOD80 085/13 RAP fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  a  

consu l tan t  to  ass is t  the  SAA Group w i th  the  un lock ing  o f  

work ing  cap i ta l .    

And aga in  i t  fo rwards an  emai l  tha t  was fo rwarded f rom 

your  f l ysaa address to  your  ramscap address.   And can I  

ask  you do you reca l l  send ing  th is  emai l  f rom your  ramscap 

address to  Er ic  Wood on the  24 t h  o f  January  2014?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through yourse l f  Cha i rpe rson may I  20 

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion  in  case I  imp l ica te  myse l f?    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Aga in  can I  ask  do  you reca l l  

send ing  the  emai l  f rom your  f l ysaa address to  your  

ramscap address on  24 January?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  humbly  request  no t  to  
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respond to  th is  quest ion  as  I  may imp l ica te  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then get  to  the  content  o f  

what  was ac tua l l y  fo rwarded on th is  s t r i ng  and  you w i l l  see  

a t  the  las t  par t  o f  the  s t r ing  on  page 235,  i t  says ,  f rom 

Reinet te  S labber t  sent  16  January  2014 to  Pheto lo  

Ramosebud i ,  N thab iseng,  Ntsha l i  N tsha l i ,  V iwe  Soga,  

Sh i reen Subroyen,  L indsey O l i t zk i .   The sub jec t  i s  the 

same name o f  the  tender  tha t  we  have quoted repeated ly.   

I t  says :  

“Dear  team,  good a f te rnoon a l l .   I  have done the  10 

c la r i f i ca t ion  o f  the  ra tes  w i th  each o f  the  shor t  

l i s ted  b idders ,  a t tached herewi th  p lease f ind  the  

response f rom Boston Group Banks,  Re ine t te  

S labber t . ”  

 Do you reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  emai l  f rom Reinet te  

S labber t  on  16  January  2014?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Th rough Mr  Cha i rperson may I  no t  

respond to  th i s  quest ion  i n  case I  imp l ica te ,  imp l ica te  

myse l f?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go down the  cha in  20 

fu r the r,  you w i l l  see  tha t  a t  be low Re inet te ,  what  Re ine t te  

S labber t  emai led  fo rward  is  an  emai l  f rom someone ca l led  

W-U-E-S-T,  wues tmar t in  sent  to  Re ine t te  S labber t  on  16  

January  2014,  cop ied  to  Sh i reen  Subroyen,  and someone 

ca l led  Urmias,  U-R-M- I -AS,  AS and Tenb i te .   T-E-N-B- I -T-E .   
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Can I  ask  i f  you  a re  ab le  to  ident i f y  Urmias?  U-R-M- I -A-S?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    On page 237?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  236.   236.   So i t  i s  the  

four th  l ine  on  page 236.   E-R-M- I -A-S .   E rmias .   Does tha t  

r ing  a  be l l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No i t  does not  r ing  a  be l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Tenb i te  o r  Tenb i te ,  does  

tha t  r ing  a  be l l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Which  one is  tha t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A f te r  E rmias .    10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  i s  p rec i se l y  why  I  sa id  

Cha i rperson may  I  request  your  permiss ion  no t  to  respond  

to  th is  quest ion ,  because I  m ight  imp l ica te  myse l f  by  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  so  tha t ’s  in  response to  a 

quest ion  do  you know,  can you ident i f y  Tenb i te?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  don ’ t  want  to  respond  to th is  

quest ion .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  m igh t  imp l ica te  myse l f .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  says :  

 “Dear  Re ine t te ,  I  t rus t  you have been we l l .    

Response to  your  quest ion  as  fo l lows:   Var iab le  

component  in  op t ion  1 ,  70  percent  re fe rs  to  the  

f i xed  P proposed  to  th is  op t ion ,  70  percent  o f  the  
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p roposed fees are  va r iab le  depend ing  on your  

sa t is fac t ion  w i th  the  pro jec t .   And  2  a t  your  ta rge ts  

ach ieved,  how your  ga ins  ach ieved,  eva lua t ion  i n  

te rms o f  bo th  1  and 2  above to  be  jo in t l y  agreed  

w i th  you a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  pro jec t .   Var iab le  

component  in  op t ion  2 ,  60  percent  re fe rs  to  the  

f i xed  P,  60  percent  to  the  proposed P ’s  var iab le  

depend ing  on your  sa t is fac t ion  a t  the  end o f  the 

pro jec t ,  eva lua t ion  in  te rms to  be  jo in t l y  ag reed w i th  

you a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  pro jec t .   Shou ld  you  10 

requ i re  any fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  do  not  hes i ta te  to  

ge t  in  touch w i th  me. ”  

 Would  i t  be  cor rec t  tha t  th is  document  i s  a  

document  sent  by  Mr  Vurs t (? )  on  beha l f  o f  the  Boston 

Consu l t ing  Group  to  Ms S labber t  who is  ass i s t ing  w i th  the  

admin is t ra t ion  o f  the  tender,  se t t ing  ou t  the  te rms o f  the  or  

se t t ing  ou t  mate r ia l  te rms o f  the  Boston b id?   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Aga in  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i rperson may I  

no t  respond to  these quest ions?   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  … 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  m igh t  imp l ica te  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  I  maybe shou ld  have sa id  much  

ear l ie r  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  bu t  your  lawyers  wou ld  have  

adv ised you,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  make sure  you know about  
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i t .   Namely  t ha t  when you don ’ t  answer  quest ions ,  when 

there  appears  to  be  ev idence  po in t ing  in  a  cer ta in  

d i rec t ion ,  wh ich  may inc lude tha t  the  ev idence may be 

po in t ing  tha t  there  was some wrong do ing  on your  par t  o r  

tha t  you may have been invo lved in  some cr im ina l  ac t i v i t y  

o r  o ther  wrong do ing ,  when you  don ’ t  answer  quest ions 

re la t ing  to  tha t ,  what  i t  does mean is  tha t  I  don ’ t  have  

ev idence f rom you say ing  tha t  ev idence is  no t  t rue .    

That  there  is  an  exp lanat ion  o f  what  may seem to  

be  wrong do ing  on my par t .   Th is  i s  the  exp lanat ion ,  what  i t  10 

means is  tha t  when I  wr i te  my repor t ,  I  w i l l  have ev idence 

tha t  may be one  s ided and i t  doesn ’ t  mean tha t  f ind ings  

can ’ t  be  made aga ins t  you because o f  the  ev idence tha t  

has no t  been cha l lenged.   So I  am sure  your  lawyers  

exp la ined i t ,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  make sure  tha t  you 

unders tand.   You unders tand tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I ,  I  do  unders tand tha t  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Thanks so  much.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i  can we go to  

page 248?   

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say 248? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    248 Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And maybe before  you p roceed Mr  

Chaska lson,  I  see we a re  a t  one or  two minutes  past  fou r.   

Le t ’s  ta lk  about  the  way fo rward .   I  d id  agree to  an  even ing  

sess ion  fo r  myse l f ,  so  a  day sess ion  and even sess ion  fo r  

today,  w i th  regard  to  I  th ink  i s  the  Dene l  work  s t ream,  bu t  I  

am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t .    

In  te rms o f  you r  own assessment ,  how much more  

t ime do we need w i th  h im and whether  we  wou ld ,  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  wou ld  f in ish  w i th  h im  tomorrow or  you  had in  10 

m ind tha t  we got ,  go  in to  the  even ing?  I t ’s  jus t  tha t  I  am 

not  sure  whether  the  in fo rmat ion  may have been checked  

w i th  you.   I  may have shared in fo rmat ion  about  my even ing  

sess ion  o r  no t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So r ry  Cha i r,  today ’s  taken 

cons iderab ly  longer  than I  thought .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  the  bo t tom l ine  is  we w i l l  need to  

dea l  w i th  the  ev idence wh ich  are  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How to  go  about  i t  in  te rms o f ,  o f  t ime.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  my sense is  tha t  we 

probab ly  need another  hour  on  SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And another  two to  th ree  hours  

on  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   On Transnet .   I f  we do an hour  on  SAA 

tha t  wou ld  take  us  to  about  f i ve  o ’ c lock .   And one accepts  

tha t  these th ings don ’ t  a lways go accord ing  to  one ’s  

assessment .   Tha t  wou ld  take  us  to  about  f i ve  o ’c lock .   And 

then you sa id  about  what?   Th ree hours  on  Transnet .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I f  we d id  SAA and f in ished  today,  

th is ,  th is  a f te rnoon tha t  we were  le f t  w i th  –  w i th  SAA,  th ree  10 

hours  o f  SAA,  i f  one combines tha t ,  those th ree  hours  o f  

SAA ev idence w i th  tomorrows w i tness wou ld  we be ab le  to  

f in ish  tomorrow w i th  h im and the  tomorrow’s  w i tness or  no t  

rea l l y?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  suspect  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ Ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Because I  th ink  tomorrows  

w i tness is  Mr  Makhubo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  my wor ry  –  Mr  Makhubo ’s  20 

lega l  team have,  have been concerned about  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  we –  i t  may be tha t  we can,  

tha t  i t  wou ld  su i t  them to  do  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  Mr  Makhubo  

tomorrow and on the  issues where  they need  greate r  
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p repara t ion  wh ich  may in  par t  re la te  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  

Powel l  yes terday.   I  th ink  f rom what  they were  say ing  to  

me,  i t  may su i t  them to  dea l  w i th  i ssues re la t ing  to  Mr  

Powel l  a t  a  la te r  da te  so  tha t  they have greater  t ime to 

prepare .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  we  cer ta in ly  won ’ t  f in ish  Mr  

Ramosebud i  and Mr  Powel l .   Oh and Mr  Makhubo 

tomorrow.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Tomorrow.   Okay.   No tha t ’s  f ine .   So i t  10 

seems to  me tha t  maybe we shou ld  go  on w i th  th is  w i tness,  

a t  leas t  f in ish  SAA.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  wou ld ,  I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Concep tua l l y  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wou ld  make sense Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And,  and,  and then he cou ld  come back 

tomorrow and we  f in ish  Transnet .   And then s ta r t  w i th  Mr  20 

Makhubo in  regard  to  those mat te rs  where  they have 

concerns o f  no t  be ing ,  o f  no t  hav ing  had enough t ime.   And 

then i f  he ,  Mr  Makhubo must  come back on  another  day to  

f in ish  then maybe  we cou ld  do  tha t .   What  do  you th ink?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sub jec t  to  Mr  Ramosebud i ’s  
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pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  tha t  tha t  f rom the  

Commiss ion ’s  pe rspect ive  I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  make much 

sense.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  wou ld  work .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  don ’ t  know i f  Mr  Ramosebud i  i s  

ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Ramosebud i  how,  how does tha t  

sound to  you?  How is  your  s i tua t ion  about  tomorrow i f  we,  10 

i f  we s topped your  ev idence a t  17 :00  today and then  

cont inue tomor row morn ing?  Mr  Chaska lson ’s  assessment  

i s  tha t  tomorrow we might  need about  th ree  hours  o f  your  

t ime.   And I  w i l l  check w i th  your  lawyer  what  the i r  s i tua t ion  

is ,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  hear  f rom your  s ide  f i rs t .   [ Ind is t inc t ] .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja ,  exce l len t  Cha i rpe rson,  bu t  I  am 

here  to  ass is t  the  Cha i r,  you know the  Cha i rperson,  the  

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    What  i s  the  t ime i t  su i t s  f in ish ing  i t  i s  20 

f ine .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   A l r igh t .   Counse l  fo r  Mis te r,  

how is  your  s i tua t ion  fo r  tomor row? 

ADV MPOFU :   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  I  am ava i lab le  

tomorrow,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  an  indu lgence?   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPOFU REPRESENTIT IVE :   I  have an appearance 

f rom 10:00.   I t  shou ldn ’ t  be  too  l ong,  so  i f  we can maybe 

s tar t  and then s tand the  mat te r  down to  a f te r  12 :00  and 

then I  wou ld  be  ab le  to  come,  because Mr  Mpofu  is  no t  

here .   So we can come tomorrow,  bu t  i f  you  can agree on a 

t ime.   I  unders tand the re  i s  another  w i tness,  so  I  am not  

sure  i f  you  want  to  s ta r t  w i th  tha t  w i tness and then … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  i t  wou ld  have been bet te r  to  

cont inue w i th  h im  f rom today.  10 

ADV MPOFU REPRESENTIT IVE :   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And up to  when he f in ishes be fore  we 

s tar t  the  o ther  w i tness,  bu t  i t ’s  tha t  i s  no t  to  say we can ’ t  

s ta r t  w i th  Mr  Makhubo tomorrow i f  we are  go ing  to  f in ish  

w i th  h im a t  a  cer ta in  t ime.   And then th is  w i tness comes in ,  

bu t  p re ferab ly  i t  wou ld  have been bet te r  the  o ther  way  

around.   Mr  Chaska lson what  do  you say?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  I  am in  your  hands  

ent i re ly.   I  mean we do have the  qu i te  un ique s i tua t ion  tha t  

Mr  Makhubo works  in  th is  bu i ld ing ,  so  i t  may be poss ib le  20 

fo r  h im to  come.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A t  10 :00  and then to  come back 

la te r  w i thout  much inconven ience.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   And,  and i f  need be,  what  i s  your  
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assessment  o f  the  t ime you might  need w i th  Mr  Makhubo i f  

there  i s  tha t  po r t ion  re la t ing  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t  m ight  

have to  be  done on another  day?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  I  th ink  I  wou ld  end up  

us ing  most  o f  tomorrow fo r  f in ish ing  Mr  Ramosebud i  and  

dea l ing  w i th  mate r ia l  w i th  Mr  Makhubo tha t  doesn ’ t  d i rec t l y  

t raverse  Mr  Powe l l ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes what  I  am t ry ing  to  look  a t  i s  

whethe r  i f  we s tar t  w i th  Mr  Makhubo and sub jec t  to  h is  

ava i lab i l i t y  i f  he  was to ld  ten  o ’ c lock  he  might  have o ther  10 

th ings to  do  by  n ine  o ’c lock ,  bu t  i f  we cou ld  even s tar t  a  

l i t t le  ear l ie r  whether  i t  i s  n ine  or  ha l f  past  n ine ,  tha t  wou ld  

g ive  us  some t ime.    What  I  was hav ing  in  m ind is  t ha t  we 

don ’ t  want  a  s i tua t ion  where  he  wa i ts ,  th is  w i tness wa i ts  

bu t  we end up tak ing  up  the  who le  day w i th  Mr  Makhubo 

anyway and then he has to  come back anothe r  t ime.    

 So I  am t ry ing  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Chai r  we wou ld  ce r ta in ly  f in ish  

w i th  Mr  Ramosebud i  i f  we s tar ted  a f te r  lunch w i th  Mr  

Ramosebud i  tomorrow and I  cou ld  f in ish  the  non-Powel l  20 

re la ted  issues w i th  Mr  Makhubo be fore  lunch tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i f  we s tar t  w i th  Mr  Makhubo  

tomorrow and we f in ish  by  lunch t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  and we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You w i l l  f in ish  by  lunch t ime? 
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  wou ld  f in ish  the  issues tha t  

don ’ t  dea l  w i th  the  mater ia l  tha t  Mr  Powel l  addressed by  

lunch t ime,  and then Mr  Ramesebud i  cou ld  poss ib l y  come 

back a t  two.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay then I  th ink  le t ’s  do  i t  tha t  way,  I  

th ink  there fore  tha t  wou ld  accommodate  Counse l  fo r  Mr  

Ramesebud i  so  I  th ink  we shou ld  take  a  break now o f  

ten / f i f teen minutes  and then we  w i l l  come back ,  we do 

about  an  hour,  a t  leas t  we f in ish  the  SAA ev idence w i th  

th is  w i tness and then we ad journ  h i s  ev idence unt i l  10 

tomorrow a f te r  lunch.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  you unders tand Mr  

Ramosebud i?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you fo r  you r  coopera t ion ;  

okay le t ’s  take  an ad journment  now.    I t  i s  twe lve  m inutes  

past  four,  le t ’s  resume a t  twenty  f i ve  past  fou r.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 
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CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you Cha i r.   I f  we cou ld  

cont inue f rom page 248 Cha i r,  Mr  Ramosebud i  can I  ask  

you to  go  to  248.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  am on page 248.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page you  

w i l l  see  an emai l  f rom Ramscap address sent  on  24 

January  2014 a t  16 :22  to  Er ic  Wood,  the  sub jec t  i s  the  

tender  descr ip t ion  –  the  tender  descr ip t ion  we know qu i te  

we l l  now and aga in  i t  i s  fo rward ing  an  emai l  tha t  has been  10 

fo rwarded f rom your  SAA address to  your  Ramscap address 

wh ich  in  tu rn  has  a  s t r ing  beh ind  can we take i t  one  s tep  a t  

a  t ime,  do  you reca l l…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you look ing  a t  the  top  or  the  m idd le  

emai l  a t  248,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  the  top  emai l  a t  248 is  

Pheto lo@ramscap to  Er ic  Wood a t  16 :22  on 24 January,  i t  

fo rwards an  emai l  be low i t ,  f rom 

Pheto loRamosebud i@f lysaa.com,  sent  on  the  same day a t  

12 :21  to  Pheto lo@ramscap.co .za  and tha t ,  in  tu rn ,  20 

fo rwards a  cha in  tha t  ends w i th  Re ine t te  S labber t  o r  

fo rwards and emai l  f rom Reinet te  S labber t  on  16  January  

2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We’ l l  take  them one a t  a  t ime.  

mailto:Phetoloramasebudi@flysaa.com
mailto:Phetolo@ramscap.co.za
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i ,  do  you reca l l  

send ing  tha t  emai l  on  24  January  2014 a t  16 :22 ,  to  Er ic  

Wood?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through myse l f  Cha i rperson,  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  do  you  

reca l l  fo rward ing ,  f rom your  SAA address tha t  emai l  a t  24  

January  2014 a t  12 :21  to  your  Ramscap address?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through myse l f  Cha i rperson,  may I  10 

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then go down to  tha t  

emai l  f rom Reinet te  S labber t ,  o f  16  January  2014,  i t ’s  

addressed to  yourse l f ,  to  …[ ind i s t inc t  2 .37 ] ,  to  Viywe [? ]  

Sogo [? ] ,  L indsay A l i t sk i  [? ] ,  Shereen Sobr ian ,  i t  has  the  

sub jec t  l ine  tha t  they a l l  have and i t  says :  

 “Dear  Team,  

A t tached herewi th  p lease f ind  the  response f rom the  

IQ Group re la t ing  to  the  quest ion  o f  IQ Group Rae l  

Consu l t ing  and the  Hackard  [? ]  Group” ,  20 

 Can I  ask  you  f i rs t ,  were  the  IQ Group Rae l  

Consu l t ing  and the  Hackard  [? ]  Group a  consor t ium tha t  

had b idded –  tha t  had put  in  a  b id  fo r  th is  tender?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  

respond to  th is  quest ion ,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  we can go over  the  page and  

to  page 249,  we see –  sor ry  can we go back,  I ’m  jus t  t ry ing  

to  see,  I  th ink  there  is  a  -   yes ,  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  248 

we see an emai l  f rom Jonas Schoe fer  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  

248,  Jonas Schoe fer  da ted  16 January  2014 and i t ’s  –  i f  we 

go over  to  249 we see tha t  i t  is  addressed to  Re ine t te  

S labber t ,  i t  says :  

 “Dear  Re ine t te ,  

Apo log ies  the  conf i rmed f i xed  fee  fo r  phase one is  

4 .9mi l l ion  ZAR p lus  VAT,  K ind  Regards Jonas  10 

Schoefer ” ,  

 And can I  ask  you,  i s  th is  an  ema i l  wh ich  se ts  ou t  

mater ia l  te rms o f  the  b id  tha t  was  put  in  by  the  IQ Group 

and Hackard ,  tha t  consor t ium? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Aga in ,  th rough myse l f ,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  

may not  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  

myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask ,  then,  tha t  we go to  

page 232 and there ,  aga in ,  i t ’s  a  s im i la r  sor t  o f  cha in  a t  

the  top  there  is  an  emai l  f rom your  Ramscap address a t  20 

18 :35 to  Er ic  Wood on 24 January  2014,  sub jec t  l ine  tha t  

they a l l  have.   I t  fo rwards be low,  an  emai l  tha t  has been 

fo rwarded f rom  your  f l ysaa.com address to  your  Ramscap 

address and be low tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Reinet te  S labber t  

on  16  January  2014,  can we take them one a t  a  t ime.   Do  
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you  reca l l  send ing  th is  emai l  to  Er ic  Wood on 24 January  

2014 a t  18 :35?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through myse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  one in  case in  i ncr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can we then go  a  l i t t le  

fu r ther  down to  tha t  Ramscap – the  second emai l  in  the  

s t r ing ,  do  you reca l l  send ing  tha t  f rom your  f l ysaa address 

to  your  Ramscap address on  24 January  a t  12 :21?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wi th  your  permiss ion ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

may I  no t  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  then,  i f  we go  to  the  

Re ine t te  S labber t  emai l  o f  16  January  2014,  i t ’s  addressed  

to  yourse l f  to  Ntab iseng [ ind is t inc t ] ,  to  L indsay A l i t sk i  [? ] ,  

to  Viywe [? ]  Sogo [? ]  and Shereen Sobr ien ,  i t ’s  go t  the  

head ing  tha t  a l l  o f  these emai ls  have,  i t  says :  

 “Dear  Team,  

A t tached herewi th  p lease f ind  the  response f rom 

Mck insey,  thanks”  

 And be low i t ,  i s  fo rwarded a  emai l  f rom Chr is t ina  

P laner t  o f  Mck insey to  Re ine t te  S labber t  on  16  January  20 

2014,  and tha t  emai l  says :  

 “He l lo  Re ine t te ,  

Thank you very  much fo r  you r  emai l ,  I  wanted to  

conf i rm your  unders tand ing   o f  ou r  p r ic ing  proposa l ,  

in  the  event  tha t  no  sav ings a re  ident i f ied  we w i l l  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 188 of 397 
 

charge no fees.   Th is  i s  in  sp i r i t  o f  100% a l igned  

incent ives  be tween SAA and ourse l ves,  thank you 

very  much,  p lease le t  me know shou ld  you have 

fu r ther  quest ions,  Chr i s t ina” .   

 Can I  ask  you,  f i rs t  do  you reca l l  rece i v ing  tha t  

emai l  f rom Reinet te  S labber t  on  16  January  2014 a t  

5 :04pm? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wi th  your  permiss ion ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

may I  no t  respond to  th is  one in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  I  can  go down to  the  10 

Chr is t ina  P laner t  tha t  i s  fo rwarded by  Re ine t te  S labber t  to ,  

what  appears  to  be  your  SAA address and tha t  o f  o thers ,  

wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say tha t  Chr i s t ina  P laner t  emai l  se ts  ou t  

the  mate r ia l  te rm  o f  the  Mck insey b id  in  a  consor t ium wi th  

Reg iments?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  humbly  request ,  

Cha i rperson,  no t  to  respond to  th is  one in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  can we 

go a  l i t t le  b i t  fu r ther  down to  page  255.   There  you w i l l  see  20 

an emai l  tha t  appears  to  have been sent  f rom Reinet te  

S labber t  to  you on 28 January  2014,  i t ’s  addressed to  you,  

to  L indsey A l i t sk i ,  Shereen Sobr ien ,  Viywe Sogo and 

Ntsab iseng Ncha lecha l i  [? ] ,  tha t  –  can I  f i rs t  ask  you,  tha t  

l i s t  o f  addressees,  i s  there  anyone on tha t  l i s t  who wasn ’ t  
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work ing  a t  SAA a t  the  t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    May I  no t  respond to  th is  one 

Cha i rperson,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  we l l  le t ’s  read the  emai l :  

 “Dear  Team,  

P lease re fer  to  the  c la r i f i ca t ion  f rom McKinsey  

regard ing  the  capped amount .  I  suggest  the  

fo l low ing to  b r i ng  the  b idders  in  l ine  w i th  t he  

McK insey pr i c ing .   Boston Group  and IQ Group to  

submi t  the i r  comple te  pr i c ing  based on the  10 

un lock ing  o f  R1 .2b i l l i on  sav ings ,  p lease conf i rm 

urgent ly  i f  you ’ re  a l l  in  agreement  w i th  my  

suggest ion” ,  

 And underneath  tha t ,  wh ich  –  tha t  emai l ,  there  i s  

the  fo rwarded emai l  wh ich  comes f rom Chr i s t ina  P laner t  o f  

McK insey addressed to  Re ine t te  S labber t  on  28  January 

2014 and  cop ied  to  a  ser ies  o f  o ther  peop le ,  a l l  o f  them 

who are ,  e i ther  a t  McK insey or  SAA peop le ,  Shereen  

Sobr ian  is  the  SAA person and i t  says ,  

“He l lo  Re ine t te ,  thanks as  pe r  the  be low the  capped 20 

amount  w i l l  reduce to  70  to  80 .5mi l l ion ,  assuming 

we un lock  sav ings o f  one to  1 .2b i l l i on ,  thanks  

Chr is t ina ” ,  

 You have dec l ined to  answer  whether  you rece ived 

the  emai l  f rom Chr is t ina  S labber t  bu t  can I  ask  you,  
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whethe r  you reca l l  tha t  in  the  course  o f  th is  tender  

p rocess,  McK insey conf i rmed tha t ,  i f  they  un locked sav ings 

o f  one to  1 .2b i l l i on  the i r  capped amount  wou ld  reduce to  

80 .5  –  be tween 70 and 80.5mi l l ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  your  

permiss ion ,  may  I  no t  respond  to  th is  one in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  a  fo l low-up quest ion ,  

i f  McK insey ’s  capped amount  had been reduced to  a  

max imum cap o f  80 .5mi l l ion ,  wou ld  the  CEO have had 10 

author i t y  to  award  th is  contac t  o r  to  s ign  th is  –  conc lude 

th is  cont rac t  o r  wou ld  i t  have had to  go  to  the  Board? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson,  w i th  your  permiss ion ,  

may I  no t  respond to  th is  one,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then,  go  back to  the  

Re ine t te  S labber t ,  same page,  s ta r t  o f  tha t  s t r ing  on  255,  

the  suggest ion  f rom Reinet te  S labber t  i s :  

“ I  suggest  the  fo l low ing to  b r ing  the  b idders  in  l ine 

w i th  the  McK insey pr i c ing .   Boston Group and IQ 

Group to  submi t  the i r  comple te  pr ic ing  based on the  20 

un lock ing  o f  R1.2b i l l i on  sav ings ” ,  

 Would  i t  be  fa i r  to  say tha t ,  what  Chr is t ina  S labber t  

was suggest ing  was,  McK insey had now to ld  us  what  our  

cap is ,  i f  they  rea l i se  sav ings o f  R1.2b i l l i on ,  le t  us  go  back  

to  Boston and IQ Group to  see what  the i r  p r ic ing  w i l l  be  i f  
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they  rea l i se  sav ings o f  R1.2b i l l i on ,  i s  tha t  what  she was  

suggest ing?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Thank you  Cha i rpe rson,  may I  be  

g iven the  oppor tun i ty  to  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  

case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you  to  the  

fo l low ing –  to  page 261,  so r ry  i t ’s  ac tua l l y  the  bo t tom o f  

260,  you ’ l l  see  the  las t  emai l  on  the  page,  Re ine t te  

S labber t ,  Wednesday 29 January  2014 7 :56am,  I  ask  tha t  

you make  a  no te  o f  tha t  t ime,  i t ’s  addressed to  yourse l f ,  10 

Ntab isent  Nta l i cha l i ,  L indsay A l i t sk i ,  Shereen Sobr ien  and 

Voy iwe Sogo,  i t ’s  go t  tha t  same sub jec t  l ine ,  i t  says ,  

 “Dear  Team,  

 A t tached herewi th ,  p lease f ind  the  response f rom 

BCG,  wh ich  wou ld  be  Boston Consu l t ing  Group,  shou ld  

there   be  an  amount  o f  R1.2b i l l i on  to  be  un locked,  thanks,  

Re ine t te  S labber t ” ,  

 And be low tha t ,  what  i s  fo rwarded is  an  emai l  f rom 

Mar t in  Wurs t  who  we ’ve  met  a l ready as  a  representa t i ve  o f  

Boston Consu l t ing ,  i t ’s  28  January  2014 to  Re ine t te  20 

S labber t  a t  11 :21pm to  Re ine t te  S labber t ,  cop ied  to  

Shereen Sobr ien…[ ind is t inc t  14 .15 ]  and Thembi te  [? ] ,  

same sub jec t  l ine ,  

 “Dear  Re ine t te ,  

Thank you fo r  your  enqu i ry  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  we propose 
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two opt ions in  the  proposa l  fo r  SAA to  cons ide r  so  

I ’ l l  p rov ide  feedback on your  quest ion  fo r  each o f  

the  op t ions.  Opt ion  one,  benchmark ing ,  oppor tun i ty  

ident i f i ca t ion ,  SAA enab lement ,  p r io r i t y  in i t ia t i ve  

imp lementa t ion ,  phases one benchmark ing  and top  

down ta rget  se t t ing ,  two,  ta rge t  va l ida t ion  se t t ing  

as ide  …[ ind is t inc t  14 .47 ] ,  th ree ,  ro l l  ou t  o f  

in i t ia t i ves  fo r  p r io r i t i sed  …[ ind is t inc t  14 .50 ]  

enab lement  up  sk i l l i ng  o f  SAA va r iab le  component .   

Seventy  percent  o f  the  fees are  var iab le ,  based on  10 

your  sa t is fac t ion  a t  the  end o f  the  pro jec t  and ta rge t  

be ing  rea l i sed in  p r io r i t y  in i t ia t i ve  imp lementa t ion ,  

the  va lua t ion  te rms to  be  jo in t l y  agreed w i th  you a t  

the  beg inn ing  o f  the  pro jec t .   I f  we assume tha t  

Boston Consu l t i ng  Group ident i f ies  and un locks 

cap i ta l  to  the  va lue  o f  R1.2b i l l i on  as  pa r t  o f  the  

pr io r i t i sed  p ro jec t  ro l l  ou t ,  then the  max imum cos t  

to  SAA wou ld  be  R14mi l l ion .  Note  i t  cou ld  be  less  

depend ing  on the  exact  eva lua t ion  te rms tha t  a re  

agreed w i th  you before  commencement .    20 

Opt ion  two,  benchmark ing  oppor tun i ty  ident i f i ca t ion  

SAA enab lement  mon i to r  in i t ia t i ve  imp lementa t ion ,  

phase one,  benchmark ing  and top  down ta rget  

se t t ing ,  two ta rge t  va l ida t ion  se t t ings  s ize  o f  the 

pr ize ,  th ree ,  mon i to r ing  ro l l  ou t  o f  in i t ia t i ves  by  SAA 
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fo r  enab lement  up  sk i l l i ng  o f  SAA var iab le  

component ,  60% of  these are  var iab le  based on 

your  sa t is fac t ion  a t  the  end o f  the  pro jec t ,  the 

eva lua t ion  te rms to  be  jo in t l y  agreed w i th  you a t  the 

beg inn ing  o f  the  pro jec t .   I f  we assume tha t  BCG 

ident i f ies  and moni to rs  the  ro l l  ou t  o f  the  in i t ia t i ve 

by  SAA to  un lock  cap i ta l  to  the  va lue  o f  R1.2b i l l i on  

then the  max imum cost  to  SAA wou ld  be  

R10.2mi l l ion ,  no te  i t  cou ld  be  less  depend ing  on the  

exact  eva lua t ion  te rms tha t  a re  agreed w i th  you 10 

before  commencement .   I  hope th is  p rov ides c la r i t y,  

p lease do not  hes i ta te  to  ge t  in  t ouch shou ld  you 

requ i re  more  in fo rmat ion ” ,  

 Would  i t  be  fa i r  to  say tha t  what  has happened now,  

i s  tha t ,  Re ine t te  S labber t ,  who had suggested ear l i e r  tha t  

she shou ld  go  to  Boston and IQ to  f ind  ou t  what  the i r  

p r ic ing  wou ld  be  on an un lock ing  o f  sav ings a t  R1.2b i l l i on  

has done tha t  w i thout  any ins t ruc t ion  to  do  tha t  f rom the  

Commi t tee  or  f rom anyone e lse ,  can I  ask  tha t  quest ion  

f i rs t?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Through myse l f  Cha i rperson,  may I  be  

permi t ted  no t  to  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  and the  second pa r t  o f  my 

propos i t ion  to  you is  tha t ,  in  response to  Re ine t te  S labber t ,  
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Boston  have come back w i th  two opt ions fo r  un lock ing  o f  

sav ings o f  R1.2b i l l i on  wh ich  wou ld  cost  a  max imum to  SAA 

o f  R14mi l l ion  on  one and R10mi l l ion  on  the  o the r,  i s  tha t  

what  the  Boston response means?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Aga in ,  Cha i rpe rson,  may I  permi t ted  

no t  to  respond to  th is  quest ion ,  in  case I  incr im inate  

myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  remind you tha t  we have  

looked ear l ie r,  a t  the  McK insey response and I  fo rge t  the  

exact  number  bu t  i t  was in  the  reg ion  o f  R80mi l l ion ,  le t  me 10 

jus t  f ind  tha t ,  i f  one goes to  232,  tha t ’s  where  tha t  cha in  

beg ins  and the  –  no  i t ’s  no t  232,  I  apo log ise ,  le t  me jus t  

take  you the re  aga in .   I t  i s  a t  the  bo t tom par t  o f  page 255  

where  Chr is t ina  P laner t  wro te  the  emai l  on  28  January,  

 “He l lo  Re ine t te ,  

Thanks,  as  per  be low the  capped amount  w i l l  

reduce to  70  to  80 .5mi l l ion ,  assuming we un lock  

sav ings o f  one to  1 .2b i l l i on” .   

 So,  the  McK insey  cap wou ld  be  a t  80 .5 ,  the  Boston  

cap wou ld  be ,  e i ther  10  or  14 .   Can I  then take  you to  – 20 

and when I  say  McK insey,  i t  i s ,  o f  cou rse  a  jo in t  b id  o f  

McK insey and Reg iments ,  can I  take  you to  page 260.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I ’m  here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  see in  the  m idd le  o f  the 

page there  is  an  emai l  tha t  you send on 29 January  2014  
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a t  8 :41am to  Re ine t te  S labber t  and to  Ntab iseng Nta l i cha l i ,  

L indsay A l i t sk i ,  Shereen Sobr ien ,  Viywe Sogo,  the  usua l  

sub jec t  l ine  and the  tex t  o f  the  emai l  reads,  

“Co l leagues,  I ’m  ser ious ly  ve ry  unhappy the  way  

th is  tender  i s  run .  Re ine t te  seems to  be  b iased and 

we cannot  …[ ind is t inc t  19 .42 ]  best  and f ina l  o f fe r  

a f te r  …[ ind is t inc t  19 .45 ]  because someone d idn ’ t  

p r i ce  the  way Re ine t te  expected” ,  

 Do you reca l l  send ing  tha t  emai l  to  Re ine t te  

S labber t ,  N tab iseng Nta l i cha l i ,  L indsay A l i t sk i ,  Shereen 10 

Sobr ien  and Viywe Sogo?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond to  

th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  Mr  Chaska lson,  I  d idn ’ t  hear  

the  page so?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  i t ’s  260.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  am on tha t  page,  I  th ink  I  jus t  

d idn ’ t  see…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR CHASKALSON SC:    I t ’s  the  m idd le  emai l ,  i t  says  f rom 

Pheto lo  Ramosebud i ,  29  January  2014,  8 :41am.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  now I  see i t  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  we go up the  page to  the  

top  o f  the  page we see a  response f rom Reinet te  S labber t  

on  page –  a t  the  top  o f  page 460 ,  Wednesday 29 January  

2014 a t  8 :50 ,  i t ’s  addressed  to  you,  to  Ntab iseng  
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N ta l i cha l i ,  L indsay A l i t sk i ,  Shereen Sobr ien  and Viywe  

Sogo,  

 “Dear  Team,  

Th is  i s  no t  the  case be ing  b rought  th is  was jus t  

t ry ing  to  ge t  an  unders tand ing  o f  what  the  cost ing  

wou ld  be ,  thanks,  Re ine t te ” .  

 Do you reca l l  ge t t ing  tha t  emai l  f rom Reinet te  

S labber t  on  29  January  2014 a t  8 :50?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Through myse l f  Cha i rperson,  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  a  separa te  quest ion ,  

was the re  any a t tempt ,  a f te r  th is  exchange o f  emai ls  to  

measure  the  pr i ce  o f  the  McK insey/Reg iments  jo in t  b id  

aga ins t  the  pr ice  o f  the  Boston b id  on  the  assumpt ion  o f  an  

un lock ing  o f  R1.2b i l l ion  cap i ta l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wi th  permiss ion ,  Cha i rperson,  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion ,  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you to  page 275,  

i t ’s  an  emai l  f rom Chr i s t ina  P laner t  to  Re ine t te  S labber t  

copy ing  yourse l f ,  Nomfu le lo  [? ]  Magwensu [? ]  a t  ex terna l  20 

McK insey.com and copy ing  somebody e lse  ca l led  Mar lene 

Voster  a t  McK insey.com,  the  usua l  sub jec t  l ine ,  an  

a t tachment  i s  a  document  20 /14 /02/05 appo in tment  le t te r,  

SAA s igned,  Mackay,  

 “Dear  Re ine t te ,  
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Thank you very  much aga in  fo r  the  appo in tment  and  

t rus t  in  our  par tnersh ip .   F ind  a t tached the  s igned  

appo in tment  le t te r.   I  know we ’ re  t ry ing  to  connect  

to  f ind  a  su i tab le  s lo t  fo r  the  meet ing  next  week .   

Ahead o f  th is  meet ing  wou ld  you be ab le  to  g i ve  us  

an  ind ica t ion  as  to  when SAA wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  the  

work  i .e .  fo r  when shou ld  we t ry  to  have a  fu l l  t ime 

team on the  ground,  thank you ve ry  much ,  

Chr is t ina ” .    

 Can I  ask  you f i rs t ,  d id  you get  th is  emai l  f rom 10 

Chr is t ina  P laner t  on  6  February  2014? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wi th  permiss ion ,  Cha i rperson,  may I  

no t  respond to  th i s  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can  I  ask  you then,  were  

McK insey appo in ted  –  wee McKinsey,  u l t imate ly  appo in ted  

to  th is  b id ,  do  you reca l l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wi th  your  pe rmiss ion ,  aga in ,  

Cha i rperson,  may  I  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion ,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  I  th ink  i t  –  20 

the  Commiss ion  w i l l  b r ing  ev idence to  show tha t  the  

McK insey/Reg iments  consor t ium was successfu l  in  re la t ion  

to  th is  b id  and,  in  fac t ,   per fo rmed the  cont rac t .   Can I  take  

you,  las t  to  a  document  wh ich  you may not  have seen 

prev ious ly,  i t ’s  –  i f  I  can  ask  you to  go  to  page 597  – sor ry  
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no t  597,  i f  you  can s tar t  a t  page 590.   Th is  document  i s  a  

spreadsheet  p roduced in te rna l l y  by  Reg iments ,  i t  had the  

sub jec t  l ine ,  adv i sory  invo i ces t rack ing .   I t  had a  number  o f  

tabs,  there  a re  –  and what  i t  re f lec ted  is  the  revenue  

genera ted  by  the  McK insey adv isory  un i t  and the  payments  

tha t ,  tha t  un i t  had to  make in  respect  o f  each con t rac t  o r  

each invo ice  to  what  i t  ca l led  bus iness deve lopment  

par tners  wh ich  were  usua l l y  she l f  compan ies  se t  up  by  

Sa l im Essa.   Can  I  take  you to  page 594? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Page what?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    594.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    594?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We see,  fo r  ins tance here ,  the  

page dea l ing  w i th  Transnet  and I ’ l l  show you how the  

sys tems works  be fore  we get  to  your  page.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  can  see i t…[ inaud ib le  m ic  o f f ] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You can ’ t  read what  appears  on  

594?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  i t ’s  very  d i f f icu l t…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  we ’ l l  have to  ge t  you a  20 

bet te r  copy o f  th is ,  the  –  what  one sees on 594,  i f  I  

m igh t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On mine,  Mr  Chaska lson i t ’s  no t  the  – 

i t ’s  no t  tha t  the  copy is  a  poor  one but  tha t  the  words a re  

very  smal l  on  m ine,  i t  seems tha t  i t ’s  jus t  the  s ize  o f  the 
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words…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    O f  the  fon t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe we shou ld  ge t  th is  

document  p roduced in  A3,  I  have one ve ry  s imp le  quest ion  

re la t ing  to  i t  a t  a  la te r  s tage.   The – what  we see on 594,  

an  i t ’s  the  fo rmat  o f  a  lo t  o f  these spreadsheets  i s ,  the  f i rs t  

co lumn is  the  c l ien t  who ’s  been invo iced by  Reg iments ,  the  

second co lumn is  the  da te ,  i s  the  month  o f  the  work ,  th i rd  

co lumn i s  the  da te  o f  the  invo ice ,  the  four th  co lumn is  the  10 

invo i ce  number  the  f i f th  co lumn is  the  pro jec t ,  the  s ix th  

co lumn is  the  amount  and then  what  one sees  in  the 

seventh  co lumn is  amounts  tha t  have had to  be  pa id  ou t  to  

these compan ies  l i ke  on  page 594 the  compan ies  tha t  ge t  

pa id  ou t  a re  Trav i to  and Homix .   Trav i to  and Homix ,  Homix ,  

Trav i to ,   Homix  and the  las t  company i s  ca l led  For  Sure  

and on the  r igh t  o f  For  Sure  is  another  one o f  these she l l  

compan ies  ca l led  House S tu f f .   Ev idence,  w i l l ,  in  due 

course  be led  tha t  these were  she l l  compan ies  tha t  were  

used to  channe l  a  substant ia l  p ropor t ion ,  usua l l y  50% of  20 

the  revenue f rom organs o f  S ta te  to  en t i t ies  nominated by  

Sa l im Essa and  Ashok Narayan  f rom which  they were  

laundered on.   I  am in te res ted  in  page 596,  wh ich  has –  i s  

hopefu l l y  a  l i t t le  b i t  b igger,  I ’m not  sure  i f  596 is  leg ib le  to  

you.  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 200 of 397 
 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can  you see tha t  the  las t  

head ing  on 596 is  SAA? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you see under  month ,  i t  

says  March ’15?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Date  invo i ce  31 /03/2015? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And invo ice  number  10 

MK/SAA1001?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P ro jec t ,  work ing  cap i ta l  

op t im isa t ion  pro jec t ,  March  to  October  2014? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Amount  6  241 500,  can I  s top  

there ,  can I  ask  –  th is  i s  inc lus i ve  o f  VAT,  can I  ask  i f  

you ’ re  aware  whe ther  the  fee  pa id  to  Reg iments  by  SAA on 

th is  cont rac t  was R6 241 500?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in ,  th rough myse l f  Cha i rperson,  20 

may I  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion ,  in  case I  inc r im inate  

myse l f .  

MR CHASKALSON SC:    And the  next  co lumn,  wh ich  is  the  

co lumn tha t  re la tes  to  the  en t i t y  tha t  i s  usua l l y  the  she l l  

en t i t y  des ignated  by  Sa l im Essa o r  Ashok Narayan to  take  
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a  cu t ,  you ’ l l  see  on the  top  i t  says  Homix ,  there ’s  an  

amount  o f  2  496 600 in  there ,  a re  you aware  whether  any 

o f  the  amounts  pa id  by  SAA to  Reg iments  on  th is  cont rac t  

were  pa id  on  to  a  she l l  company des ignated by  Sa l im Essa 

or  Ashok Narayan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  your  

permiss ion  may in  no t  respond to  th is  quest ion  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  what  we –  th is  i s  a  

document  tha t  the  –  tha t  ex is ts  in  very  many d i f fe ren t  10 

i te ra t ions because i t ’s  constant ly  updated and the  f low o f  

funds team wi l l  be  re fe r r ing  to  var ious cop ies  o f  i t  f rom 

t ime to  t ime but  we ’ l l  make sure  tha t  i t  comes back in  an  

A3 fo rmat ,  so  tha t  the  ind iv idua l  l ine  i tems can be 

ident i f ied .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Cha i r  tha t  conc ludes my 

quest ions in  re la t ion  to  SAA,  as  I  ment ioned ear l ie r  we w i l l  

have more  quest ions in  re la t ion  to  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  Mr  Ramosebud i  we are  –  I  20 

am go ing  to  excuse you but  ask  you to  come back 

tomorrow as a r ranged.    Mr  Chaska lson shou ld  we say two  

o ’c lock  shou ld  be  f ine? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Two o ’c lock  w i l l  be  f ine  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  your  counse l  obv ious ly  hears  the  
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t imes so  –  bu t  t hank you very  much fo r  coming to  g ive  

ev idence and ass is t  the  Commiss ion  as  much as  you can,  

you are  now excused.    Your  team is  excused too ,  you r  

lega l  team.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   I  w i l l  then excuse you Mr  

Chaska lson and your  team,  I  w i l l  take  a  shor t  b reak and  

then a f te r  about  f i f teen minutes  I  w i l l  s ta r t  my even ing  

sh i f t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you Cha i r,  m igh t  I  ask  10 

f rom my s ide  I  cer ta in l y  don ’ t  expect  tha t  I  w i l l  need more  

than the  th ree  hours  f rom ten  to  one to  dea l  w i th  mater ia l  

w i th  Mr  Makhubo  tha t  does not  embrace anyth ing  tha t  Mr  

Powel l  add ressed  yeste r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  we don ’ t  need to  s ta r t  ear ly  

tomorrow? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we s tar t  a t  ten  tomor row? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then we can s ta r t  a t  ten  tomorrow.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  w i l l  take  a  f i f teen minute  20 

break,  then a t  quar te r  past  f i ve  we w i l l  s ta r t  the  even ing  

sess ion  w i th  the  Dene l  Group.   We ad jou rn .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 203 of 397 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good af ternoon Mr Kennedy,  good 

af ternoon everybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Good af ternoon Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know that  we probably are al l  on the 

evening session having done our day sessions and di fferent  

places.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Are you ready? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We are thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chair  – so th is is a resumpt ion of  the 10 

hearing of  evidence in the Denel  st ream.  You wi l l  recal l  that  

a long t ime back Mr Riaz Saloojee the former Group Chief  

Execut ive Off icer of  Denel  gave evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   End of  2018 beginning of  2019.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And he has been asked to come and 

give further evidence ar is ing f rom certain al legat ions made 

that  relate to h im by other wi tnesses that  you have al ready 

heard.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  may I  ask before we deal  wi th 

where you can f ind the aff idavi ts and so forth that  he can be 

sworn in? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes p lease administer the oath or  
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aff i rmat ion.   Welcome back Mr Saloojee.   Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Riaz Saloojee.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath to be b inding on 

your conscience? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 10 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MR SALOOJEE:   So help me God.  

REGISTRAR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may be seated.   Yes Mr 

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Chair  the aff idavi t  

and annexures that  came before you previously when you 

heard the or ig inal  evidence of  Mr Saloojee are to be found in 20 

Exhibi t  W4.1.   So I  beg your pardon W4A and B.   What you 

should have had placed before you now is Bundle 10 Denel  

Bundle 10 which includes the supplementary aff idavi t  and 

you wi l l  f ind the supplementary aff idavi t  Chai r  f rom page 799 

in Bundle Denel  10.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Page 7? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   99.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  hopeful ly has been f lagged l ike ours 

as Exhibi t  W4.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i t  has.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i f  I  may ask the wi tness the usual  

quest ions just  to get  conf i rmat ion that  he has signed in fact  I  

see i t  is  –  Mr Saloojee i f  I  could ask you please to turn to  

page 799?  Is th is  the f i rst  page of  the aff idavi t  or statement 10 

that  you have prepared at  the request  of  the commission?  Is 

that  correct  Mr Saloojee? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i f  I  can ask you please to turn to  

page 806 in fact  sorry at  the foot  of  805? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   There is a s ignature near the foot  of  

the page, is that  your signature? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is i t  correct  that  you… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  have to speak up please Mr 

Saloojee.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Thank you Chai r.    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   And is i t  correct  that  you 
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s igned this aff idavi t  before a Commissioner of  Oaths? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now as your aff idavi t  indicates 

you were asked to provide addi t ional  informat ion in a form of  

responses to par t icular points raised by other wi tnesses.   

And we are going to take you through the part icular topics in 

that  regard.  

 I  am going to come back to the – la ter to the f i rst  few 

issues that  you deal  wi th in your aff idavi t  and those… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Are there two statements?  I  th ink there 10 

seems to be another one or is i t  a dupl icat ion at  page 807 Mr 

Kennedy? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes in fact  there is a second one on… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  one is a statement – the f i rst  one is  

an aff idavi t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is what was confusing me earl ier.   

Yes page 807 may I  just  ask Mr Saloojee is that  a further 

supplementary statement that  you have given?  Very recent ly  

on the 24 November.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is that  your  signature on the – on 

page 816? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is there any reason why that  has not  

been signed in f ront  of  a Commissioner of  Oaths?  I  am not  
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t ry ing to catch you out  I  am just  interested? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  am not  sure.   We can rect i fy that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  you would please.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  we can t rouble you to have that  

res igned in f ront  of  a Commissioner  of  Oaths and i f  you 

would please then forward that  to  the legal  team so that  i t  

can be placed before the Chai rperson of  th is commission.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now Mr Saloojee for both of  10 

these aff idavi ts/statements you conf i rm that  you have been 

through them and that  you conf i rm the correctness of  their  

contents? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Kennedy.   Maybe – maybe i t  

is going to cause confusion i f  he is going to sign the same 

document before a Commissioner of  Oaths on the date af ter  

today.   Maybe as long as he conf i rms under oath that  what – 

that  the contents are t rue and correct  to the best  of  h is  

knowledge and bel ief  then effect ively becomes an aff idavi t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So as to avoid any confusion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Saloojee so i t  seems i t  is not  
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necessary for  you to go through that  formal i ty but  can I  just  

conf i rm you – just  remind you that  you have just  taken an 

oath before the Judge the learned Judge’s Regist rar and 

before the Chai rperson of  the commission do you conf i rm 

under oath that  the contents of  th is statement that  has not  

previously been sworn to before a Commissioner  of  Oaths is 

in fact  in al l  respects t rue and correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   You can actual ly – 

yes.   Can I  just  pass on a message f rom the technical  10 

people?  Can you just  switch on your microphone and you 

can leave i t  on.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  leave i t  on.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes just  leave i t  on throughout your  

evidence.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Unt i l  you are excused f rom the wi tness 

box.   I t  is going to be easier for  you I  am sure and also for  

the technical  people.   Chai r  may we then ask that  the 

aff idavi t  that  appears f rom page 799 be formal ly admit ted as 20 

Denel  Exhibi t  4.  –  sorry W4.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  leave out  Denel .   Denel  wi l l  be f ine 

for the bundle.   We just  say Exhibi t  whatever – whatever.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry I  d id not  get  that  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  am saying for purposes of  what  
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exhibi t  we wi l l  ca l l  i t  we wi l l  leave out  the word Denel .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So i t  wi l l  be W4.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The aff idavi t  of  Mr Riaz Saloojee start ing 

at  page 799 is admit ted as Exhibi t  W4? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   .1  

CHAIRPERSON:   4.1 Okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   And may we ask that  

the statement/aff idavi t  f rom page 807 be admit ted as W4.2? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The statement by Mr Riaz Saloojee start ing 

at  page 807 is admit ted as Exhibi t  W4.2.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Chai r  I  propose to be 

as br ief  as I  can be wi th th is wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Part icular ly  because he has already 

given detai led evidence led by the previous Denel  team. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Admit ted ly  some t ime ago but  the 

evidence is t ranscr ibed and i t  is avai lable to you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What  I  am going to focus i f  I  may is  just  

on speci f ics aspects that  have ar isen f rom other wi tnesses 

test imony that  – that  cal l  for comment by Mr Saloojee or that  

he has taken the t rouble to deal  wi th by way of  comment in 
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h is aff idavi ts that  have now been admit ted.  

 Mr Saloojee may I  p lease take you in Bundle 10 to  

page 801?  Yes I  th ink you have i t  in  f ront  of  you.  

MR SALOOJEE:   This one? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  th ink i t  is that  one yes just  look for  

page 801.   And remember i t  is the top lef t  hand.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   B lack pr inted numbers.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   801.   At  the foot  of  the page do you see 10 

there is a heading Award of  the P lat form Hul ls Contract  to 

VR Laser Services? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Dur ing October 2014.  Now Mr Saloojee 

you have adamant ly denied an al legat ion that  was made by 

Mr Stephan Burger that  you instructed Mr Ntshepe to work 

wi th and t rust  Mr Essa.   Just  explain to the Chai r  p lease 

what in fact  you may have given by way of  inst ruct ions to Mr 

Ntshepe? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Thank you Chai r.   Fi rst ly I  have never 20 

instructed Mr Ntshepe to work wi th Mr Essa.    As I  have 

indicated in my previous test imony before yoursel f  that  I  had 

introduced Mr Ntshepe as head of  Business Development 

and Market ing to Mr Essa as we have done with many other 

cl ients and customers that  we should manage that  
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re lat ionship.   There was never an instruct ion for him to work 

wi th Mr Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  might  depend what meaning one 

at taches to the phrase work wi th Mr Essa.   Certainly what on 

your own evidence you had done as I  recal l  your evidence 

last  year was to say to Mr Essa I  th ink Mr Ntshepe was going 

to be the contact  person or the person who would deal  wi th  

him at  Denel  in regard to whatever Mr Essa was want ing to  

deal  wi th wi th Denel .   And I  th ink you said you had said the 

same thing to Mr Ntshepe to say f rom now on you at tend to 10 

him or  some – or some – or  words to that  effect ,  is  that  

r ight? 

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And obviously that  meant that  there would 

be interact ion between the two of  them. 

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Whether you cal l  that  working wi th Mr Essa 

or not  that  might  be so but  you had inst ructed him or asked 

him to be the person to at tend to Mr Essa whenever Mr Essa 

wanted to deal  wi th Denel  on whatever the matters were.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chair  just  to pause for a moment.   My 

at tent ion has just  been drawn to the fact  that  Mr Saloojee 

has a legal  representat ive present .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Who is  apparent ly a – who is 

apparent ly a candidate at torney Ms Gahle and I  apologise to  

her for not  having raised i t  before.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  I  do not  th ink a candidate at torney 

can – has a r ight  of  appearance here.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Perhaps not  but  just  so that  you that  he 

– he is accompanied by somebody f rom his at torneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  she can si t  as an observer but  I  do 

not  th ink she has a r ight  of  appearance here.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As you please Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us cont inue.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now Mr Burger has – has given 

evidence that  – that  you were pressur ing him to appoint  VR 

Laser for the hul ls contract  and your  ev idence has been the 

contrary that  you have been pressured by Mr Burger and 

perhaps others wi thin the organisat ion to appoint  VR Laser 

for the hul ls cont ract .   Now do you persist  wi th your vers ion? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r  absolutely.   I  never gave any 

instruct ion to Mr Burger to work wi th VR Laser.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you were – you told me ear l ier you 

were able to l isten to at  least  part  of  Mr Burger ’s evidence 

last  week,  is that  r ight? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Did you hear  his  evidence in 
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re lat ion to th is aspect? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Part  of  i t  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  beg your pardon.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Part  of  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Part  of  i t  I  see.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You can just  lower the microphone so that  

you do not  have to st retch yoursel f .   Ja okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now Mr Saloojee i t  just  seems rather  

odd that  where we have two senior experienced business 

people both wi th a weal th of  exper ience,  both in your case 10 

and in the case of  Mr Burger – of  course you were senior but 

both of  you had huge amounts of  experience.   I t  just  seems 

odd that  you are both so adamant on versions that  are 

completely cont rary and i t  does not  seem the sort  o f  th ing 

that  would sl ip ones’ mind and that  one cannot remember al l  

the detai l  th is sounds at  least  to me as an outsider to be 

qui te a fundamental  issue.   And so one has to wonder why is  

there a d i fference – this  fundamental  d i fference in  opinion or  

vers ion rather.   Do you have any comment on that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  i f  I  may?  The fact  of  the matter is  20 

that  Mr Burger al leged that  I  had given him an instruct ion.   I  

have never given him an instruct ion to work wi th VR Laser.    

 I f  events or how events have unfolded over t ime 

dictates that  we determine how d id this process be in i t iated.   

Of  course there is going to be some level  of  culpabi l i ty in  
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terms of  where did this idea emanate f rom and I  th ink that  is 

what I  am responding to.   That  there was never a discussion 

between mysel f  and Mr Burger where I  expl ic i t ly giv ing him 

an inst ruct ion to work wi th VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Could i t  have been impl ic i t?  Could i t  

have been a subt le hint?  Could you have done that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  would be very clear about  whether 

i t  was expl ic i t  or impl ic i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Par of  his version is that  you 

speci f ical ly raised th is by way of  a proposal  and then an 10 

instruct ion on the basis that  VR Laser should be given this  

contract  because of  thei r  po l i t ica l  c lout .  

MR SALOOJEE:   With respect  to Mr Burger that  would be 

pol i t ical  suicide i f  I  had made a comment l ike that .   I  mean 

how would I  make a comment to give people work because 

they have got  pol i t ical  c lout?  I t  is  just  not  in my nature in  

my own understanding of  who I  am to behave in that  manner.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We deal ing w i th a si tuat ion in 2014 is 

that  correct?  That  is when VR Laser was cont racted.  

MR SALOOJEE:   2014.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   By DLS to do the plat form hul ls.  

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   At  that  stage you must have 

been aware of  the t rue ownership of  VR Laser not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chair  that  was publ ic ised in the media 
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and elsewhere.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And was that  before or a f ter you 

gave approval  for th is cont ract? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Before Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And did i t  ra ise any alarm bel ls  

when i t  was being proposed to you by management that  you 

should approve the award of  a very major lucrat ive contract  

to a company that  had connect ions wi th business people who 

were the subject  of  enormous media cont roversy? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  at  that  point  there were no legal  10 

processes that  I  was aware of  that  were being taken against  

VR Laser i tsel f  or the owners of  VR Laser.   I t  would have 

been remiss of  me to not  al low anybody a due process in  

terms of  want ing to do business wi th Denel .   And that  is the 

view that  I  had taken at  that  point .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What seems to have happened though 

Mr Saloojee is not  that  they were just  given an equal  chance 

to compete wi th the rest  of  the market  in  a compet i t ive bid 

process ei ther  an open publ ic ly  advert ised tender or a closed 

rest r icted bid process,  is that  not  r ight? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Sorry Advocate can you just  repeat  that? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wel l  there was not  an open tender 

process here,  was there? 

MR SALOOJEE:   There was a closed tender in  my 

understanding.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   There was a closed tender.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Three b ids were so l ic i ted one f rom VR 

Laser,  one f rom LMT the in-house group – group ent i ty,  

correct?  Is that  r ight? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then a company i f  I  recal l  i ts 

acronym was DND? 

MR SALOOJEE:   DCD.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   DCD I  beg your pardon you qui te 10 

correct .   Yes.   And do you know how i t  came about that  VR 

Laser was selected as one of  the lucky three to put  in their  

b ids? 

MR SALOOJEE:   That  proposal  came f rom the div is ion in 

Denel  cal led Denel  Land Systems which Mr Stephan Burger 

was the CEO. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Of  course Mr Burger ’s version is 

not  only that  you instructed him to give a contract  to VR 

Laser because of  the ir  pol i t ical  c lout  i t  is that  he happened 

to be very happy wi th that  – receiving that  sort  of  instruct ion 20 

because he bel ieved that  VR Laser was real ly the best  ent i t y  

to be able to do th is sort  of  cont ract .   Were you aware of  that  

support  that  he had for thei r  technical  or product ion 

character ist ics? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  of  course I  was aware of  the fact  that  
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there was a company ca l led VR Laser that  was very capable 

in th is industry and he made no bones about that .   Why 

would I  then instruct  an individual  to work wi th them when he 

had al ready indicated that  that  is the company that  had 

preferred?  I t  does not  make sense.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now were you…. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before – before Mr Kennedy cont inues can 

I  just  ask this  quest ion?  You said i t  was a closed tender 

process that  was fol lowed here.   Was there a provision in the 

Procurement Pol icy of  Denel  for a closed – for what you cal l  10 

a closed tender process? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  h istor ical ly for cr i t ical  capabi l i t ies 

histor ical ly even before I  got  there there has always been a 

process where you could have a closed tender for cr i t ica l  

st rategic capabi l i t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  understand the – I  understand the 

histor ical  part  but  that  says there was a pract ice so I  am 

asking whether that  pract ice was something that  was based 

on some provisions of  the pol icy or was i t  a  pract ice that  was 

outside of  the pol icy of  the company? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  th is  – there was a pol icy pre-dates 

me but  that  was the norm in the organisat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – you – are you or are you not  

aware whether in  the company pol icy there was a provision 

for th is so cal led closed tender pol icy – process? 
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MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  am not  sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are not  sure? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay but  you say in terms of  pract ice that  

had been done over a long per iod of  t ime and I  th ink that  is 

what Mr Burger was also saying.   I  th ink he too i f  I  am not  

mistaken could not  po int  to anything in the pol icy that  may 

have deal t  wi th that .   I  may be mistaken.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  just  wanted to check that .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Kennedy what  is your 

recol lect ion Mr Kennedy on th is point? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  the issue of  whether i t  should 

have been an open tender or opposed to a closed b id tender 

was not  a matter of  concern ra ised by ei ther Ms Malahlela or 

by Mr Mlambo.  Their  concern though was the way in  which i t  

was – in  which i t  was carr ied out  and whether the other  

procedures had been fol lowed.   So i t  was not  that  that  there 

was not  an openly advert ised tender.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  you see Mr Saloojee says yes 

there was no open tender.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  there was a c losed tender process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And obviously the next  quest ion is was a 

closed tender process a lawful  process wi thin the company?  

So that  is why I  asked the quest ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So my – my quest ion is whether you are 

aware or whether there is something in the provisions of  the 

pol icy of  the company that  governed or ta lked about a closed 

tender process or  is that  something that  we have not  paid 

at tent ion to because the – nobody has raised i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We have not  f i rst ly because nobody has 10 

ra ised i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  secondly we have not  raised i t  as a 

legal  team. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Because i t  appears that  the Supply 

Chain Pol icy is rather vague in that  regard.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  does not  mean to say that  i t  

permits i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  I  have not  proposed to go into any 

detai led quest ioning of  any wi tnesses such as Mr Saloojee or  

the previous ones because that  was not  the most  glar ingly 

obvious breaches of  the pol icy which appears to be 
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incontrovert ib le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes I  would l ike you to have a look at  

i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And – and in due course you can share 

wi th me what you f ind.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We wi l l  do so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With your legal  team because I  – i f  the 

quest ion is i f  as a matter of  fact  a c losed – what Mr Saloojee 

cal ls a closed tender process was fol lowed. 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot say the process was unlawful  

unless I  know whether in terms of  the pol icy i t  is permit ted or  

not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed.  Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so i f  they did not  fo l low an open 

tender pol icy I  cannot  jump to say that  was unlawful  wi thout  

knowing whether the process that  he says was fol lowed was 

permit ted or not .   So – so I  th ink that  is the importance of  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As you please Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The si tuat ion is also compl icated by the 

fact  that  there was a change in the SCM pol icy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   There was one version which was very,  
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very vague about th is sort  of  th ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then the other that  was brought in 

as I  recal l  the tai l  end of  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Very late in 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As I  recal l  af ter th is cont ract  had been 

awarded.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  before the Single Source Supply 

contract  was awarded.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And things changed there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So i t  is fa i r ly  compl icated but  we wi l l  

address to you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In appropriate legal  submissions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Saloojee were you made aware of  

the fact  that  when the three bids were received there was a 

vast  d i fference in  pr ice between LMT and VR Laser?  Just  
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leave of  account DCD at  the moment they were fai r ly – they 

were fai r ly sort  o f  middle of  the road.   But  were you aware 

that  there was a huge di fference in pr ice between the 

amount tendered or bid by LMT as opposed to VR Laser? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  was aware of  the fact  that  there 

was a discrepancy in terms of  the amounts that  were 

compet i t ive.   I  was not  sure the amounts -  –he exact  

amounts and when I  read through the documents what I  do 

pick up is that  LMT was signi f icant ly cheaper.   The other two 

were more or less in the same bal l  park but  I  was aware and 10 

more so af ter the documentat ion came to me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now were you made aware at  that  t ime 

or at  any t ime whi le you were GCEO that  Mr Burger had 

spoken to VR Laser  and indicated according to his evidence 

a ser ious concern that  thei r  pr ice was so high and that  had 

resul ted in them br inging down thei r  pr ice substant ia l ly? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  th ink that  came to l ight  af ter  he had 

had the discussion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay just  before Mr Kennedy asks the 

quest ion let  me go back to the closed tender process just  to  20 

make sure that  I  understand what you – what the elements or  

features of  what you are cal l  a c losed tender process.   Can 

you tel l  me what  is supposed to happen i f  i t  is a  closed 

tender process? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  so what wi l l  happen is  that  i t  wi l l  f i rst  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 223 of 397 
 

of  a l l  be def ined as a strategic project .   That  is the f i rst  th ing 

there.   I  mean i t  has to be – i t  has to be cr i t ical  and i t  has to  

be wi th suppl iers that  are probably the only ones who are 

capable of  performing at  that  level .    

 So you would ident i fy who those are in the country 

and then you would approach them and ask them for  bids – 

for quotat ions.   That  is what Mr Kennedy is referr ing to.  

 That  there were three b ids that  were submit ted based 

on the cr i ter ia that  those were three companies ident i f ied 

who could perform the job accord ing to the speci f icat ions 10 

that  was requi red.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So f i rst  the job to be done or services to 

be provided must be strategic? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And who is supposed to make up the 

determinat ion whether anyth ing is st rategic? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I t  wi l l  – i t  wi l l  come f rom the divis ion that  

is responsible.   In  th is instance Denel  Land Systems.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   So once – once i t  is  a  

st rategic job or serv ice product  that  is required then i t  –  20 

once i t  sat isf ies that  requi rement then the process is you 

must  ident i fy the serv ice providers who can provide that  k ind 

of  job or those services.   And out  o f  them you must – out  of  

a l l  of  those there may be many I  assume you must  ident i fy 

three or is there no l imi t  as to how many you ident i fy? 
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MR SALOOJEE:   I t  depends how many companies are 

capable of  performing that  part icular aspect  of  the work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you – i f  they are ten are you supposed 

to invi te al l  ten or? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  let  me put  i t  th is way.   You could 

ei ther invi te a l l  ten or take the top three or the top f ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh as you see – as you see [ ta lk ing over  

one another] .  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes in terms of  the pr ior i ty wi th where you 

see the real  capabi l i ty l ies.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes – oh okay,  okay.   And al l  of  that  is 

dr iven by the divis ion concerned? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   Then  you ask them for 

quotes that  is what you do – for quotat ions? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and then you decide on that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Wel l  then they wi l l  go through an 

evaluat ion process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:   There wi l l  be certain cr i ter ia that  they have 

to through.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I t  wi l l  go through the Execut ive Commit tee,  

i t  wi l l  go through the technical  people.   To go through a 
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whole range of  commit tees before a decision is made.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is the posi t ion that  the process for a  

closed tender process,  the process is the same as an open 

tender system other  than – the only di fference is that ,  wi th 

an open tender,  you invi te the whole world,  as i t  were but  

wi th a closed process,  you invi te a few.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  i t  should be the same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The process should be the same? 

MR SALOOJEE :    The process should be . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Except  for who you inv i te.  10 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Thank you.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now going back to the quest ion that  I  

have asked you ear l ier about  Mr Burger  rais ing wi th VR 

Laser concerned that  thei r  pr ice was so much higher  than 

LMT.   

 Were you aware that  he was concerned,  f i rst ly,  that  the 

pr ice was so much h igher?  And secondly,  were you aware 

that  he raised his concern wi th VR Laser? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  th ink i t  was ei ther Mr Mhlont lo  or 20 

Mr Wessels.   They have ment ioned i t  in passing to me that  

there was an issue around the pr ic ing and that  the divis ions,  

in th is instance Mr Burger is at tending to i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were you aware that  only VR Laser 

was asked to revised i ts pr ice and the same opportuni ty was 
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not  afforded to LMT or DCD? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  have become aware of  that  now 

af ter having gone through the documents.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have any comments on what 

you have now discovered? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Wel l ,  Chai r  e i ther there was an informal 

decision that  had al ready been made or that  DLS was set  on 

that  part icular suppl ier and that  is  the reason they did not  

see f i t  to go to the other two suppl iers.   I  can only speculate 

that  that  was the reason.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you received a mot ivat ion to grant  

your approval  and that ,  in fact ,  re f lected the scor ing of  the 

three bidders.   And i t ,  in fact ,  ref lected the fact  that  there 

was an absolutely marginal  di fference in scor ing between 

LMT and VR Laser.   In  fact ,  approximately  0.6%.  Less than 

one percent  di fference in scor ing.   Do you recal l  that? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chair  I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And were you not  then concerned that  

they were so close?  There was no – there was real ly a 

negl ig ible di fference.   Would you not  agree?  Zero point  s ix  20 

percent  is negl ig ible,  not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  do agree i t  is negl ig ible.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Were you not  concern then when 

you were asked to approve the awards to VR Laser,  that  

where you have two r ival  b idders,  one of  whom is an outs ide 
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company,  VR Laser  whose ownership rests in people wi th  

controvers ial  connect ions,  and on the other,  an in-house 

Denel  Divis ional  Group cal led – a group ent i ty cal led LMT?   

 Were you not  concerned that  you are being asked by 

way of  a recommendat ion to  favour the outside company 

rather than the internal  div is ion where there was nothing,  

real ly,  mater ia l  between them in scor ing and where the one 

would – had f i rst  tendered a pr ice of  more than – 

approximately a hundred mi l l ion rand more than the internal  

div is ional  ent i ty,  LMT and where even when VR Laser  was 10 

persuaded or induced to reduce i ts pr ice,  i t  was st i l l  going to 

be approximately  R 30 mi l l ion more to place the business 

wi th VR Laser? 

 Did that  not  concern you? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  of  course i t  concerned me but  there 

are two issues here that  we need to be cognisant  of ,  is that ,  

when they went  through the evaluat ion process,  and 

according to my understanding,  they went through a proper  

process for s ingle – wi thin that  div is ion.  

 They came up wi th a score however minimal i t  was in  20 

terms of  the di fference but  that  i t  had gone through a 

process and that  that  process is what they had said should 

determine who should get  the cont ract .  

 But  in addi t ion to  that ,  and I  th ink when we go through 

the documents and that ,  you wi l l  look at  the volumes and the 
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amount of  reasons that  were given as to why that  should be 

the preferred b idder  f rom a technical  one,  to a r isk one,  to  a 

f inancial  r isk one,  to an operat ional ly cr i t ical  success one,  to 

meet the mi lestones.  

 They were convinced that ,  notwi thstanding that  i t  was 

such a smal l  margin between the two – between the 

companies that  that  was the r ight  th ing to do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  i t  was you who had to make the 

f inal  decision.   You were the person vested wi th approval  – 

the approval  power,  not  so? 10 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  notwi thstanding the fact  that  the 

f inal  decis ion had to come to me.  The fact  is that  you cannot 

overrule a process that  has gone on,  f rom my understanding,  

in the very in-depth way over months and having been 

signed off  by the senior  execut ives in  that  div is ion and by 

the COO and the CFO, Group CFO. 

 When i t  comes to me,  for me as an individual  to  overr ide 

a decis ion l ike that  would have been very problemat ic.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr Saloojee.   I f  you are the f ina l  

decision maker and other people recommended to you.   20 

Whatever decision you take,  whether you go along wi th thei r  

recommendat ion or you re ject  thei r  recommendat ion,  should,  

I  would imagine,  depend on whether you feel  that  you can 

defend your decis ion e i ther way.  

 And that  you cannot  take a decision that  you cannot  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 229 of 397 
 

defend just  because you think other people can defend their  

posi t ion,  is i t  not .    

 You have to . . . [ intervenes]   

MR SALOOJEE :    Chair  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .be able to defend the decision.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  you are correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Okay.   But  at  the point  at  which this was 

f inal ly brought to me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 10 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  was convinced by al l  the other people 

that  th is was the r ight  th ing to do.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  what  once you say that ,  then 

Mr Kennedy can then ask you quest ions based on the fact  

that  you are saying,  you bel ieve i t  was the r ight  decision.   So 

the fact  that  other people recommended i t  or not  is,  you 

came to the conclusion that  i t  was the r ight  decision.   Then 

he can ask you quest ion on that ,  is i t  not? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  i f  I  recal l  that  even in  that  

submission,  there was a very clear undertaking that  work 20 

share would be given to LMT.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Ja,  but  the point  I  am making is.   I f  

i t  is  your decision,  you must  be able to defend i t .   You – i f  

you – you should not  take i t  i f  you are – you do not  th ink you 

can defend i t .   I  th ink that  is the point .   And I  th ink you would 
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agree wi th that ,  is  i t  not? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  do agree wi th that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   In fact ,  your  

aff idavi t  – i f  I  can take you to page 802,  paragraph 19?  This 

is what you say:  

“Mr Burger was adamant that  VR Laser Services 

should be awarded the contract  as al l  DLS’ internal  

processes,  technical  reports and the view of  the 

or ig inal ly  equipment manufacturers supported this  10 

view.  

In addi t ion,  he c i ted performance and cont ractual  

cr i t ic isms of  LMT with regard to exist ing contracts 

and that  there were ser ious defects in the 

manufactur ing process on the qual i ty of  thei r  

output . ”  

 I  can just  stop at  that  stage.   Did he discuss that  wi th  

you or  was i t  apparent  f rom the Memorandum of  

Recommendat ions that  you referred to? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  am not  sure at  what po int  these 20 

comments were made but  th is was conveyed to me by the 

COO and the CFO. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is Mr Wessels.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And Mr Mhlont lo.  
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MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Respect ively.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Now we are going to get  in a 

moment to the work share that  you referred to in the rest  of  

th is paragraph and you have ment ioned in passing,  a  

moment ago.  

 But  you were persuaded at  the t ime that  the 

recommendat ion was a sound one and that ,  therefore,  i t  

should be approved.    10 

 As you s i t  now in the wi tness box some years later,  

having learnt  of  a whole lot  of  fur ther informat ion that  you 

may not  have been aware of  at  the t ime.  

 Do you feel  wi th the benef i t  of  h indsight  that  i t  was in 

fact  a wise decision made in the interest  of  Denel  and the 

state that  owns i t?  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  at  that  point ,  as I  have indicated,  

f rom al l  the arguments that  were put  before me and al l  the 

cr i t ical  issues that  were going to impact  on that  programme.  

 At  that  point ,  I  thought that  i t  was the r ight  th ing.   Not  20 

necessari ly the correct  th ing but  the r ight  th ing.   So in that  

instance,  yes.    

 With hindsight . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hmm. 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  just  cont inue.  

MR SALOOJEE :    With hindsight ,  i t  may have been viewed in  

a di fferent  way but  at  that  po int ,  that  was the real i ty.    

CHAIRPERSON :    You said i t  was the r ight  th ing,  not  the 

correct  th ing.   What is the di fference?  [ laughs]  

MR SALOOJEE :    . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do not  know what the di fference is.   I  

want  to make sure I  understand what i t  means.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  th ink that  the r ight  th ing was that ,  

having gone through al l  those processes and the technical  10 

reports and al l  the other arguments that  they have put  

forward in terms of  the delay in the programme in terms of  

the cont ractual  obl igat ions,  in terms of  the qual i ty  issues 

that  was a key thing for them.   

 I t  was,  f rom a process perspect ive,  and the 

invest igat ions that  they did,  the r ight  th ing to do.   As 

Mr Kennedy has indicated.   Because of  the sl im margin,  

maybe the correct  th ing would have been to go back to  

rev isi t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now what is the di fference between the 20 

correct  th ing and the r ight  th ing?  That  is what I  want .  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  i t  could be a moral  observat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And which one would be – would have a 

moral  – a more moral  support  between the r ight  th ing and 

the correct  th ing? 
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MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    In terms of  what  you intend conveying to  

me when you say i t  was the r ight  th ing to do but  not  maybe 

not  the correct  th ing.   I  just  want to  understand that .   That  is  

why I  am asking you these quest ions.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Wel l ,   Mr Kennedy has said wi th hindsight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    The r ight  th ing at  that  point  was the -  of  10 

the experts f rom the div is ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Now, i f  I  ref lect  back on i t  and al l  the 

history that  has gone on and water  that  has f lown under the 

br idge.   Maybe the correct  th ing would have been to have 

rev isi ted i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Mr Burger was 

adamant,  according to your evidence,  that  VR Laser  should 

get  i t  and that  LMT should not  get  i t .   LMT should not  get  i t ,  20 

he argued because of  i ts poor t rack record.  

 Of  course,  LMT had been assessed and scored in  the 

evaluat ion and the adjudicat ion process and had not  done 

part icular ly badly.  

 I t  had not  been,  for example,  disqual i f ied as not  having 
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the capaci ty or the technical  abi l i ty  or huge qual i ty problems 

that  disqual i f ied i t .   You are aware of  that? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Now, you would recal l .   We had a 

consul tat ion on a l i fe plat form, Zoom plat form a few weeks 

back.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you recal l  te l l ing me that  you know 

feel  that  there was an at tempt by Mr Burger to cast  LMT in a 

bad l ight  which was cont r ived.    10 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chair  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And just  explain to the Chair  p lease 

why you told us that? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  i f  I  recal l  and having read,  for 

example,  the test imony of  Mr Jan Wessels who was the 

COO.  When he was appointed by me as the COO, Chief  

Operat ing Off icer,  one of  the f i rst  responsibi l i t ies I  had given 

him was to go and see what the issue was between LMT and 

Denel  Land Systems, and more speci f ical ly,  between the two 

CEO’s.   That  is Dr  Nel  and Mr Burger.  20 

 Because there was obviously some issue between the 

two individuals wi th regard to the manner in which they saw 

how they approached the work and the professional ism with  

which they thought each company performed.   

 And that  was the real  issue that  we had to contend with.   
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When the issue of  VR Laser  and LMT came up,  my own view 

was that  there was a very clear view f rom Mr Burger that  his 

mind was made up that  th is was going to be – what was 

going to happen.  

 And that  he used every s ingle argument to negate the 

eff ic iency of  the capabi l i ty that  resided wi thin LMT.   Now, 

notwi thstanding what I  have just  said.  

 There were def in i te ly problems at  LMT.  I  was also made 

aware of  the fact  that  the local  c l ient ,  the Nat ional  Defence 

Force and speci f ical ly the South Afr ican Medical  Heal th  10 

Services,  were ext remely unhappy wi th the performance of  

LMT with regard to some of  the ambulances that  they had 

manufactured for them. 

 So that  was a cr i t ical  issue and i t  became qui te  an 

important  issue then.   I  am also aware of  the fact  that  for  

example they had a problem with the Uni ted Nat ions in terms 

of  the house cracking but  that  is  a technical  d iscussion 

that . . .  

 I  am not  a vehicle  expert .   I  am a general ist .   I  look af ter 

the organisat ion across the di fferent  domains.   And 20 

Mr Burger and h is team were adamant that  in terms of  

capaci ty const ra ints,  in terms of  performance, in terms of  

qual i ty,  the lack of  an engineer that  was there.  

 That  they were of  the f i rm opinion that  i t  would have 

been a huge cont ractual  r isk i f  they had approved i t  going to 
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LMT as opposed to VR Laser.   And that  is al l  wel l -

documented in the documents that  they had sent .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you feel ,  again wi th the benef i t  of  

h indsight ,  that  you were misled by Mr Burger? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  would not  say he misled me.  I  would say 

he was economical  wi th what he was tel l ing me.  So in his 

arguments,  I  th ink he was very persuasive in terms of  the 

inabi l i ty of  LMT to perform.   

 My own view was that  – and I  had then actual ly asked 

the COO at  that  point ,  i f  I  recal l  properly . . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Wessels.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Mr Wessels.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    To go and invest igate whether th is was 

actual ly t rue or not .   And again,  i f  I  recal l ,  because i t  is not  

documented anywhere.   I  th ink he was giving a verbal  

feedback.   Was that  yes,  there were issues that  needed to 

be sorted out  at  LMT.  There were capaci ty issues.  

 And i f  they had won another big contract ,  i t  would have 

meant huge capaci ty constraints.   So i f  they had won this 20 

part icular contract  and they had won – and they were bidding 

for some other big cont racts in,  for  example,  Saudi  Arabia,  i f  

I  am not  mistaken,  that  i t  would have just  been unat tainable 

for them to manage that  volume of  act iv i ty.  

 And that  is I  am aware of  the fact  but  I  am also aware of  
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the fact  that  Mr Burger himsel f  was very clear  in  his mind 

that  LMT did not  have the capaci ty or the qual i ty at  that  po int  

to execute the pro ject .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now i f  I  can take you back in your 

aff idavi t  to page 802?  The very same paragraph 19 that  I  

read out  ear l ier but  for the last  four l ines.   I  would l ike to 

read those four l ines that  I  omit ted last  t ime.  I  said I  would 

come back to them and I  do so now. 

 You say the fourth l ine f rom the bot tom:  

“However,  i t  was agreed. . . ”  10 

 Do you see that? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“However,  i t  was agreed that  LMT should st i l l  be 

part  of  the work share and as such,  I  tasked Ms(sic)  

Mhlonthlo. . ”  

 Presumable,  i t  is Mr Mhlonthlo,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“ . . .and Jan Wessels,  the COO, to  t ry to f ind the 20 

middle ground between DLS and LMT.  

The aforement ioned scenario did not  mater ia l ise as 

there was no meet ing of  the minds between the two 

part ies. ”  

 The scenario,  are you there referr ing to the intent ion to  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 238 of 397 
 

t ry and f ind the middle ground so that  LMT would at  least  get  

part  of  the work? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  have said to them that  they must  f ind a 

business model  that  would be a win-win si tuat ion for both 

organisat ions.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   But  that  was not ,  u l t imately,  

achieved.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Ul t imately,  i t  was not  achieved,  but  in  

terms of  the work share that  went to  LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry?  In terms of . . .?  10 

MR SALOOJEE :    The work share.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes? 

MR SALOOJEE :    That  should have gone to LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Should have,  but  i t  d id not .  

MR SALOOJEE :    No,  I  am saying.   I  had ind icated to them 

Chair  that  they must  a resolut ion that  is amicable to both 

part ies,  given the capabi l i t ies of  both organisat ions.   And 

that  Jan Wessels and Mr Mhlonth lo who were assign the 

responsibi l i ty to then f ind a compromised solut ion.  

 Obviously,  as things eventual ly turned out ,  they could 20 

not .   There was not  a meet ing of  minds and they could not  

come to a compromised solut ion.    

 One of  the issues was,  obviously,  the fact  that  there 

were certain components that  LMT could have produced,  for 

example,  the back doors and some of  the internal  
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components.   And I  had that  indicated to Mr Wessels and 

they were al l  in agreement that  i f  i t  was possible that  that  

work share should go to LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  ul t imately  i t  d id not .  

MR SALOOJEE :    Ul t imately,  i t  d id not  go.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    That  is my understanding of  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And presumable,  one of  the concerns 10 

that  you had was not  s imply for an amicable resolut ion to be 

made between the two r iva ls,  LMT and VR Laser,  but  one of  

your  concerns as Group Chief  Execut ive Off icer  was to  

ensure that  LMT’s interest  as one of  your subsidiary 

companies should be advanced, not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  i f  I  d id not  take into considerat ion 

that  I  had to  look af ter internal  organisat ions wi thin the 

Denel  stable,  I  would not  have said that .   I  would not  have 

asked them to go and f ind a solut ion that  would have 

benef i ted both part ies.   I  would have just  lef t  i t  at  the 20 

recommendat ion of  DLS.  

 And I  was genuinely commit ted to seeing whether  we 

could give a port ion or an element of  the work share to LMT 

in order to fu l f i l  our own responsibi l i t ies.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And presumable i f  LMT d id have,  as 
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many wi tnesses have indicated,  they had had some problems 

with qual i ty and capaci ty  output  abi l i ty to  produce what was 

requi red on t ime, presumable i f  i t  was not  a completely  

hopeless cause,  i f  i t  should be made to t ry and support  i t  as 

an in-house company,  not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  mean, we would have 

obviously,  natural ly would want them to succeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   But  why was i t  then lef t  to t ry to  

f ind a solut ion that  would be an amicable one where both VR 

Laser and LMT would both be happy?  Surely,  VR Laser is  10 

looking af ter i ts commercia l  interest?   

 I t  seems to me, perhaps to be a bi t  naïve to be saying:   

Wel l ,  would i t  not  have been nice i f  there can be some sort  

of  peace and harmony and happiness between the two r ival  

ent i t ies? 

 Surely,  you should have been saying:   Before I  approve 

this deal ,  I  need to be sat isf ied that  LMT cannot  do i t .   

Because otherwise,  they are going to have to pay a hundred 

mi l l ion or perhaps forty mi l l ion more f rom a company who 

has said to be technical ly superior.  20 

 But  LMT is in-house and is go ing to charge us far less.   

So should we not  be bui ld ing up the capaci ty and so lving i t  

that  way? 

MR SALOOJEE :    So Chai r,  there are a few issues here.   

The one issue is that ,  the recommendat ion f rom Denel  Land 
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Systems and Mr Burger,  speci f ical ly wi th h is team, was that  

the qual i ty and capaci ty for MT to bui ld the actual  – to  

fabr icate the hul ls themselves,  they did not  have the abi l i ty 

to do that .    

 And that  was the content ious issue,  the bui ld ing of  the 

hul ls,  the fabr icat ion of  the hul ls i tsel f .   Where Jan Wessels,  

the COO, advised was that  they had the capaci ty to bui ld the 

backdoor and some of  the internal  components.  

 And i f  I  read his test imony correct ly,  that  i t  was not  an 

insubstant ia l  amount,  the value of  that  part icular work share 10 

that  would have gone to LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Now, to go back to your point  

ear l ier that  Mr Burger was so adamant that  he may have 

contr ived the extent  to  which LMT was inadequate or 

unrel iable.    

 Other wi tnesses have expressed s imi lar concerns before 

this Commission.   Were you aware that  there was,  apart  f rom 

Mr Burger ’s  adamant view that  LMT was pret ty useless in i ts 

abi l i ty to perform under th is cont ract .  

 Were you aware that  others were a b i t  more caut ious 20 

and were saying:   Should we not  invest igate that?  For  

example,  Mr Mlambo.   

MR SALOOJEE :    I  would imagine that  that  would have been 

the case Chai r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    At  the t ime you gave your approval  had 

VR Laser reduced i ts pr ice f rom what i t  or ig inal ly was? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  i f  you look at  the memorandum that  

was submit ted,  he has,  according to his own evidence here,  

and the evidence that  I  have read of  other wi tnesses here,  

which I  was not  aware to what extent  he had negot ia ted that  

pr ice but  he had by then negot iated a new pr ice wi th them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  nevertheless,  VR Laser ’s pr ice 

was about  what?  R 30 mi l l ion or whatever.   More than LMT’s 

pr ice,  is that  r ight? 10 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chair  that  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Bearing in mind that  those who, in 

terms of  the company’s internal  processes,  were tasked with 

the task of  conduct ing the technical  evaluat ion of  the two, 

had u l t imately g iven a score that ,  for al l  intense and 

purposes,  real ly,  meant that  the two were more or less the 

same.  

 Because i f  you accept  that  a d i fference in score of  zero 

comma something real ly is negl ig ib le.   Bearing in that  mind 

and bearing in mind that  that  job had been done by people 20 

that  in terms of  the company’s processes,  are deemed to be 

the r ight  people to  make a judgment  cal l  on those things.  

 Why was this di fference of  about  R 30 mi l l ion or 

whatever the di fference was,  why was i t  not  enough for you 

to say:   No,  real ly.   I f  we are going to pay so much more,  i f  
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we give the job to  VR Laser than i f  we give i t  to LMT.   

 We should give i t  to LMT because this di fference in pr ice 

is enough to make up for the zero comma whatever  that  

exists as a di fference between the two in terms of  scores? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Having – i f  you look at  

the rat ionale behind the DLS mot ivat ion.   There was,  

obviously,  the technical  issue.   There was the qual i ty  issue.   

There was the issue of  i t  being missioned cr i t ica l  in terms of  

contractual  obl igat ions that  they thought,  i f  LMT ran into 

problems, there would be huge penal t ies cont ractual ly.  10 

 But  they also have another argument and that  was a 

f inancial  argument.   And i f  you look at  the documentat ion,  

they,  wi th the or ig inal  equipment manufacturer,  Pat r ia,  came 

to the v iew that  based on – and I  am not  t ry ing to  be sexist  

but  man-hours,  that  i t  would take to const ruct  a part icular  

one uni t  that  i t  costs X amount.  

 And that  the pr ice that  LMT had given in was completely 

unreal ist ic and way below what i t  should have cost  to 

produce that  uni t .   And that  was thei r  argument.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  were these arguments that  they were 20 

advancing,  arguments that  they were advancing outside of  

the process,  namely,  there was a forum where that  – those 

arguments had to be taken to account  by those who were 

scor ing? 

 Now were they advancing those arguments outside of  
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that  forum and outside of  those processes?  In other  words,  

somebody comes into your off ice and say:   You know, CEO.  

We cannot give th is job to LMT.  This is  the problem.  This is 

the problem.  This is the problem.  Which is outside the 

process.  

 Whereas opposed to going to the forum, i f  they have a 

r ight  to go to the forum and saying here are the problems 

with LMT.  

 And then al lowing LMT in  the r ight  forum to address 

those and then the people who are given the task of  giv ing 10 

scores,  evaluat ing al l  of  these and giving scores,  give those 

scores and everyone else accepts that  those are the scores 

given 

MR SALOOJEE :    So Chai r,  i f  I  have created the impression 

that  th is was coming to me.  None of  th is was coming to me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    This was being discussed internal ly 

through thei r  own Exco,  through their  own commit tees,  

through thei r  own technical  people,  thei r  own f inancia l 

people.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    I t  is only af ter they had gone through that  

process . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    . . . that  they have brought th is.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  you see,  you referred to thei r 

arguments when I  asked you the quest ion why this di f ference 

of  mi l l ions of  rands between LMT’s pr ice and VR Laser ’s  

pr ice.   VR Laser ’s pr ice being mi l l ions of  rands more than 

LMT’s pr ice.  

 I  asked the quest ion why that  was not  a good enough 

reason to award the job to LMT on the basis that  the  two  

were  compared by  the  peop le  who  were  supposed to  score  

the  two,  the  d i f fe rence was neg l ig ib le  be tween the  two o f  

them and then you sa id  these were  the  s t rong arguments  10 

advanced by  DLS and so  I  was ask ing  the  quest i on  were  

they advanc ing  these arguments  ou ts ide  o f  the  fo rum or  

the  processes because I  am look ing  a t  why you,  be ing  the  

f ina l  dec i s ion-maker,  d id  no t  th ink  th is  d i f fe rence,  in  te rms 

o f  m i l l i ons ,  was not  enough to  say –  to  jus t i f y  say ing  look,  

you peop le ,  I  do  no t  unders tand why you are  say ing  we 

shou ld  g i ve  th is  job  to  VR Laser  when i t  i s  go ing  to  cost  us  

so  much more  because the  d i f fe rence in  the  pr ice  as  no t  

neg l ig ib le  bu t  the  d i f fe rence in  the  sco re  was neg l ig ib le .   

That  was my quest ion .   How d id  those a rguments  come to  20 

you i f  those a rguments  were  pa r t  o f  what  conv inced you o r  

persuaded you to  go  w i th  VR Laser?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  tha t  d i scuss ion  went  th rough a l l  

the  normal  fo rums in te rna l l y  w i th in  the  d iv is ion .   I  wou ld  

imag ine  tha t  i t  was not  ou ts ide  o f  the i r  fo rmal  p rocesses.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  in  o ther  words,  in  whatever  

documenta t ion  was p laced befo re  you in  o rde r  to  he lp  you  

make a  dec i s ion ,  those arguments  were  there?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  and the  fo rum tha t  had 

g iven the  sco res ,  had had the  benef i t  o f  those arguments  

as  we l l .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  guess s t i l l  i t  remains  i f  the  

fo rum tha t  was mandated  to  g i ve  the  score  had cons ide red 10 

those arguments  because they had  been p resented to  them 

and  never the less  they had scored  – the  d i f fe rence  in  the  

score  as  so  neg l ig ib le ,  s t i l l  I  have the  quest ion ,  bu t  the  

d i f fe rence in  m i l l i ons  is  b ig ,  i t  i s  no t  neg l ig ib le .   

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  mean,  a l l  I  can  say is  tha t  tha t  

p rocess was led  by  DLS and i t s  CEO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay.   Thank you,  Mr  

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Sa loo jee  you  

took issue in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  we have jus t  been  look ing  20 

a t  w i th  an  a l l egat ion  made by  Mr  Burger  tha t  you approved  

the  t ransact ion  wh ich  was the  t ransact ion  fo r  the  

manufac ture  o f  the  hu l l s  e lements ,  the  p la t fo rm hu l l s  by  VR 

Laser  and your  a f f idav i t  say  you d id  no t  approve the  

t ransact ion ,  you ins tead gave Mr  Burger  and h is  d i v is iona l  
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co l leagues the  mandate  to  award  the  cont rac t .   Do you  

conf i rm tha t  ev idence and does  i t  par t i cu la r ly  mat te r  in  

your  v iew?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Wel l ,  in  my v iew,  f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  Cha i r,  and 

Advocate ,  in  tha t  memorandum tha t  was sent ,  there  was a  

very  c lear  i tem,  l ine  i tem in  there ,  wh ich  sa id  tha t  LMT 

shou ld  be  cont rac ted  in  th is  p rocess because fo r  the  hu l l s ,  

as  I  have exp la ined,  the  back  door  and the  in te rna l  

conference,  tha t  was an e lement  o f  i t  and i f  you  look a t  in  

–  I  had s igned because o f  the  fac t  tha t  I  had sa id  I  w i l l  10 

g ive  you the  mandate  to  do  tha t  bu t  i f  you  look  a t  the 

document  i t se l f  and i t  i s  very  c lea r  up  there  i t  says  

approve or  re jec t  and i t  i s  no t  there  because I  had sa id  

tha t  they must  go  and look a t  how they can imp lement  th is  

w i th  a  compromised so lu t ion  be tween the  two and I  have 

sa id  I  have g iven you a  mandate  to  go  and in i t ia te  th is  

p rocess.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now we know tha t  tha t  cond i t ion  tha t  

you a t tached to  the  mandate  was in  fac t  no t  fu l f i l l ed ,  tha t  

in  fac t  LMT got  no th ing  ou t  o f  th is ,  there  was no work  20 

share  u l t imate ly  ach ieved because,  as  you put  i t  ear l ie r,  

they  cou ld  no t  ag ree between themse lves,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    My unders tand ing  is  tha t  tha t  d id  no t  

happen,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes bu t  my  quest ion  remains ,  i f  you  
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gave a  mandate  sub jec t  to  a  cond i t ion ,  you sa id  yes,  I  w i l l  

g ive  you the  mandate  to  award  th is  cont rac t  to  VR Laser  

bu t  on  th is  spec i f i c  cond i t ion ,  you may do so  on ly  i f  you  

g ive  some o f  the  work  to  LMT for  the  back door,  e tce tera .   

I f  they  d id  no t  sa t is fy  tha t  cond i t ion ,  they d id  no t  comply  

w i th  the  manda te ,  no t  so?  They went  beyond the  

cond i t iona l  na ture  o f  the  mandate  tha t  you gave,  co r rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   In  fac t  was your  approva l  no t  

ra the r  than jus t  a  mandate  requ i red  under  the  de legat ion  o f  10 

au thor i t y?   Th is  was a  cont rac t  above 50 mi l l ion  and less  

than 200 mi l l ion  where  the  de lega t ion  o f  au tho r i t y  requ i res  

you to  take  the  dec i s ion  to  approve the  t ransact ion ,  no t  to  

de legate  i t  somebody lower.   Shou ld  you not  have 

approved the  t ransact ion?   

MR SALOOJEE:    I  shou ld  have approved the  t ransact ion  i f  

the  cond i t ion  was  fu l f i l l ed .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Yes,  bu t  you were  never  

approached fo r  tha t  approva l .  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  I  was never  approached fo r  tha t  20 

approva l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wou ld  i t  no t  have bet te r,  aga in  w i th  

the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  and obv ious l y  I  am speak ing  as  an  

outs ide r,  bu t  the  Commiss ion  has to  look  a t  whethe r  th ings  

were  done co r rec t l y  and proper l y  and prudent ly  bear ing  in  
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m ind  tha t  th is  i s  taxpayers ’ money tha t  i s  a t  s take he re?   

Would  i t  no t  have been appropr ia te  fo r  you to  say I  w i l l  

cons ider  g iv ing  my approva l ,  I  am not  go ing  to  g ive  you a  

mandate  to  go  and do anyth ing ,  I  am go ing  to  say  t ry  and  

ach ieve cer ta in  t h ings bu t  I  w i l l  cons ide r  g iv ing  approva l  i f  

you  ach ieve wha t  i s  concern ing  me wh ich  is  tha t  there  

shou ld  be  a  work  share ,  LMT shou ld  ge t  someth ing  ou t  o f  

i t .    

Now whether  tha t  wou ld  have been pe rmiss ib le  in  

te rms o f  the  supp ly  cha in  management  po l i cy  to  g i ve  a  b i t  10 

to  th is  and g ive  a  b i t  to  tha t  i s  another  debate  wh ich  I  am 

not  engag ing  w i th  you but  i f  you  were  so  concerned tha t  i t  

be  done the  r igh t  way wou ld  i t  no t  have been bet te r  fo r  you  

to  have sa id  we l l ,  I  am not  g iv ing  you a  mandate ,  I  am not  

g iv ing  you approva l ,  I  am say ing  see i f  you can ach ieve the  

work  share  agreement  because tha t  seems to  me to  be  

sens ib le  and to  be  favour ing  ou r  in te rna l  company LMT and  

come back to  me and i f  you ach ieve tha t  then I  w i l l  

cons ider  g iv ing  you approva l  bu t  un t i l  I  ge t  sa t is f ied  on  

tha t ,  I  am not  go ing  to  approve i t .   Ins tead you say go  20 

ahead,  p rov ide  tha t  you do th is ,  nobody comes back  to  you 

and says we l l ,  ac tua l l y  we have not  ach ieved i t  and then  

they car ry  on  w i th  the  cont rac t .   Was tha t  no t  a  b i t  reck less  

on  your  par t ,  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  was reck less  i n  
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the  sense tha t  once tha t  mandate  was g iven –  I  mean,  I  am 

runn ing  the  en t i re  company,  i t  i s  huge numbers  o f  peop le ,  

seven d i f fe ren t  d iv is ions,  I  then expected the  d iv i s ion  and  

o f  cou rse  the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  O ff i cer  who manages the  

opera t ions in  the  bus iness to  see  tha t  th ings have been 

done accord ing ly,  tha t  they wou ld  have done tha t .   But  I  do 

take  the  po in t  tha t  you are  mak ing ,  Advocate .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   D id  Mr  Wesse ls ,  as  COO,  or  

d id  Mr  –  a t  the  g roup leve l  –  o r  d id  Mr  Burger  as  CEO at  

the  DLS d i v is iona l  leve l ,  d id  e i ther  o r  bo th  o f  them come 10 

back to  you and say Mr  Sa loo jee ,  you gave us  a  

cond i t iona l  mandate ,  un for tunate l y  we have not  ach ieved 

the  cond i t ion ,  we have not  fu l f i l l ed  the  cond i t ion .  

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  you were  le f t  in  the  dark?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Shou ld  they have come back to  you 

and to ld  you tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  they shou ld  have.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Do you know why they d id  no t?  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    I  can  specu la te  about  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Now once th ing  puzz les  me 

and i f  you have an exp lanat ion  tha t  m ight  he lp  the  

Commiss ion  because perhaps the  Commiss ion ’s  

Cha i rperson is  wonder ing  about  th is  as  we l l  and tha t  i s  
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th is .   Mr  Burger  was adamant  tha t  LMT was not  up  to  the  

job  so  i t  shou ld  no t  ge t  the  cont rac t  even though i t  came 

wi th in  a  wh iske r,  0 .6% in  scor ing  and even though i t s  p r ice  

was mass ive l y  be t te r  f rom a  Dene l  po in t  o f  v iew and Mr  

Burger  gave ev idence tha t  he  thought  we l l ,  they  were  jus t  

t ry ing  the i r  luck .  

 On the  BEE s ide  DLS –  I  am so r ry,  LMT had been  

g iven I  th ink  a  zero  percentage in i t ia l l y  because i t s  

cer t i f i ca te  was out  o f  da te ,  th is  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  i t  was  

not  a  p r iva te  sector  company,  i t  was an in -house s ta te  10 

owned d iv i s ion ,  no t  so?  Cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  was not  a  who l l y -

owned subs id ia ry  o f  Dene l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  t rue ,  i t  was I  th ink  51% 

owned by  Dene l .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t .   So BEE s t i l l  had an e lement  

o f  s ign i f i cance.   I  accept  the  po in t .   But  what  puzz les  me,  

le t  me get  to  the  nub  o f  my quest ion .   What  puzz les  me is  

th is ,  DLS a t  d i v is iona l  leve l  dec ided who to  ask  in  t e rms o f  20 

the  c losed tender  RFO,  request  fo r  o rders  or  RFQ,  request  

fo r  quotes  process,  no t  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r. .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you le f t  them to  make tha t  sor t  

o f  dec i s ion  because tha t  was an opera t iona l  dec is ion .  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and in  answer  to  a  quest ion  f rom 

the  learned Cha i r  a  moment  ago you sa id  we l l ,  we wou ld  

no t  ask  10  peop le  necessar i l y,  we might  on ly  ask  th ree  

peop le  because they are  the  th ree  peop le  tha t  we wou ld  

rank the  best  tha t  we fee l  in  the  market .   What  puzz les  me 

is  th is ,  DLS goes  out  on  an  RFO p rocess and asks LMT as 

one o f  on ly  th ree  b idders  to  submi t  a  b id .   I f  LMT was  

genu ine ly  such a  use less  supp l ie r  and un re l iab le  supp l ie r  

as  Mr  Burger  seems to  have persuaded you u l t imate ly,  why 10 

on ear th  was the re  a  request  fo r  them to  make a  b id  in  the  

f i rs t  p lace?  I t  jus t  seems to  me to  be  susp ic ious tha t  i t  

looks  as  i f  i t  was cont r i ved,  the  who le  RFO process.    

Le t  us  ask  LMT,  we know tha t  they are  no t  go ing  to  

ge t  i t  because they a re  use less  bu t  le t  us  ask  them to  go  

th rough a  pre tence o f  some sor t  o f  compet i t i ve  process in  

wh ich  on ly  VR Laser  and LMT and DCD are  go ing  to  

compete .   We know tha t  LMT is  jus t  no t  go ing  to  ge t  i t  

u l t imate ly  –  no t  c lear  exact ly  how DCD may have fea tured  

in  a l l  o f  th is  bu t  i t  jus t  seems to  have been an inev i tab i l i t y  20 

in  the  m ind o f  Mr  Burger.   

In  fac t  tha t  seemed to  be  suggested in  h i s  ev idence 

prev ious l y  tha t  on ly  VR Laser  was  up to  th is  cont rac t ,  tha t  

i s  why we had  to  have them and he seems to  have 

persuaded you in  re la t ion  to  tha t .   D id  i t  ever  s t r i ke  you as  
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odd,  as  i t  s t r i kes  me as odd,  tha t  LMT was inv i ted  to  pu t  a  

b id  in  the  f i rs t  p lace  i f  u l t imate ly,  even though the i r  p r ice  

was go ing  to  be  fa r,  fa r  less ,  they then get  e l im ina ted 

because we l l ,  you  cannot  cons ide r  them because they are  

use less .    You unders tand the  anomaly?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  can you  imag ine  i f  DLS and Mr  

Burger  had exc luded  LMT,  wh ich  i s  a  subs id ia ry  o f  Dene l ,  

wh ich  had some capab i l i t y  a lbe i t  w i th  i ssues tha t  they had 

to  dea l  w i th .   I f  they  had not  inc luded LMT in  tha t  b idd ing  

process i t  wou ld  have spoken vo lumes fo r  the i r  lack  o f  10 

commi tment  to  ensur ing  tha t  Dene l  o rgan isa t ions,  whethe r  

they are  who l ly -owned or  par t ia l l y  owned wou ld  ge t  some 

o f  the  work  i t  wou ld  have been an embarrassment  fo r  Mr 

Burger  i f  he  had done tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  may be so  bu t  then s t i l l  

LMT u l t imate ly  was exc luded.   They were  tu rned down even 

fo r  pa r t  o f  the  work  os tens ib l y  because wh i le  the i r  p r ice  

was so  much bet te r,  the i r  qua l i t y  was so  much worse .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  Advoca te ,  I  mean,  I  th ink ,  you 

know,  i f  you  look  a t  Mr  Burger ’s  t es t imony r igh t  f rom the  20 

onset ,  he  knew tha t  th is  was the  r igh t  dec is ion .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    To  go  w i th  VR Laser.   He says,  you  

know… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then he was  jus t  go ing  th rough the 
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mot ions i f  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  was he not?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Wi th  h inds igh t  now i f  I  l i s ten  to  what  he  

was say ing ,  i f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean,  i f  you  know even befo re  you  

beg in  the  p rocess tha t  you a re  go ing  to  take  th i s  supp l ie r  

and not  anyone o f  the  o ther  two is  tha t  no t  go ing  th rough 

the  mot ions?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  you because,  I  mean,  

i f  I  l i s tened to  Mr  Burger  when he was he re  the  o ther  day,  

he  sa id  i t  was abso lu te ly  the  r igh t  dec is ion  then  and he 10 

s t i l l  th inks  today i t  was the  r igh t  dec is ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .    Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  m igh t  have in te r rup ted  your  quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  may have in te r rup ted  your  quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    No,  thank  you,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  your  

p re rogat ive ,  o f  course .   Cha i r,  may I  move away s l igh t ly  

f rom the  bus iness reason and whether  who was the  be t te r  

supp l ie r  and the  reason fo r  e l im ina t ing  LMT and now to  20 

look a t  a  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t  bu t  re la ted  aspect  o f  th is  

t ransact ion .   Now here  I  am go ing  to  ask  you p lease  to  jus t  

pu t  as ide  –  jus t  c lose  tha t  f i l e  fo r  a  moment .   You have got  

f i l e  10 ,  I  th ink ,  is  tha t  r igh t?   Jus t  pu t  tha t  as ide  and can 

you p lease f ind  –  and somebody can he lp  you i f  you  cannot  
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f ind  f i le  1 ,  bund le  1 .  Do you have tha t?    

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now th is  conta ins  a  number  o f  o ther  

w i tnesses ’ a f f idav i t s  and the i r  annexures and I  wou ld  l i ke  

you p lease to  tu rn  in  th is  bund le  to  page 785.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Sor ry,  i s  i t  w i th  the  red?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry?   No ,  no t  the  red  number,  the 

b lack  number  on  the  top  le f t ,  i t  says Dene l -01-785,  I  am 

go ing  to  use the  on ly  the  las t  th ree  d ig i t s  o f  the  number.  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  wh ich  i s  the  page you a re  re fer r ing  10 

to?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    785.   Now jus t  to  check tha t  we are  

look ing  a t  the  same page and the  same bund le .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  yes ,  we are .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  -   the  top  document  i s  an  emai l  

da ted  the  4  Sep tember  f rom Denn is  Mlambo to  S tephan 

Burger,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  i s  cop ied  to  Ce l ia  Mah la le la .   

Now she was the  head o f  supp ly  cha in  management  in  the 20 

d iv is ion  o f  DLS,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  M lambo was the  head o f  

supp ly  cha in  management   a t  group head o f f i ce  leve l ,  

cor rec t?  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he repor ted  to  Mr  Mhlont l o .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    CFO a t  the  t ime.  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  CFO repor ted  to  you.  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  Mr  Mlambo d id  no t  repor t  d i rec t l y  

to  you.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He was nonethe less  the  head o f  

supp ly  cha in  management  fo r  the  who le  group.  

MR SALOOJEE:    He was the  supp ly  cha in  manager,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Manager?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see  in  some o f  the  documents  even  

your  own –  even the  company ’s  own de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  

re fe r red  to  h im a  supp ly  cha in  execut ive .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Execut ive .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  no th ing  par t i cu la r l y  seems to  20 

tu rn  on  tha t ,  no t  so?  He was s t i l l  a  very  sen ior  o f f i c ia l  

whose word  presumably  shou ld  have been cons idered  

care fu l l y,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now to  go  back  to  Mr  
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Mh lon t lo ,  he  is  one o f  those re fer red  to  as  rece iv ing  a  copy 

o f  th is ,  as  i s  Jan  Wesse ls ,  as  i s  Reenen Teubes and then 

yourse l f  as  we l l .   Now jus t  to  pu t  th is  in  contex t ,  Mr  

Mlambo has g i ven ev idence  -  were  you  ab le  to  hear  h is  

ev idence?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Aga in ,  some o f  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Some o f  i t ,  I  see .   And he re fe r red  to  

th is  cor respondence as  re la t ing  to  the  d i f f i cu l t ies  tha t  he  

spec i f i ca l l y  ra ised in  h is  capac i ty  as  group supp ly  cha in  

manager  w i th  h i s  co l leagues,  inc lud ing  yourse l f ,  re la t ing  to  10 

the  p la t fo rm hu l l s  cont rac t .    

Now to  g ive  i t  i t s  contex t ,  perhaps we shou ld  s ta r t  

because th is  i s  an  emai l  o f  the  4  September,  the  emai l  

cor respondence seems to  have s tar ted  w i thout  you be ing  

inc luded in  the  l i s t  o f  peop le  who were  cop ied .   I f  you  look  

a t  page 788,  there  is  an  emai l  f rom Denn is  Mlambo to 

Ce l ia /Reenen,  do  you see tha t?   The 2  September  2014.  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  i t  i s  788?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    788,  yes ,  i t  i s  ha l fway down the  

page.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On 2  September  2014 a t  18 .38 .   Do 

you see tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  an  emai l  f rom Denn is  Mlambo 
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to  Ce l ia  and Reenen,  bo th  o f f i c ia l s  w i th in  t he  DLS d iv is ion ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then he is  ra is ing  an  issue about  

LMT in  fac t  hav ing  a  va l id  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  and  then he 

says:  

“ I  w i l l  request  de ta i l s  f rom Ste fan  Ne l  about  the  

pr ic ing  and proo f  o f  shareho ld ing  o f  VR Laser  as  

d iscussed. ”  

So c lea r ly  there  had been some d iscuss ion  be tween Mr  10 

Mlambo a t  g roup leve l  w i th  h is  d iv is iona l  co l leagues a t  

supp ly  cha in  and  execut ive  leve l  in  the  fo rm o f  Mr  Teubes  

and Ms Mahla le la  ,  cor rec t?   

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Advocate ,  th is  ind ica tes  tha t  there  

was a  d iscuss ion  go ing  on.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  was a  d iscuss ion ,  indeed.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you made aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  

t ime or  d id  you f ind  ou t  about  tha t  la te r  o r  no t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  found tha t  ou t  la te r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Now a t  the  foo t  o f  the  

prev ious page you w i l l  see  another  emai l  tha t  come th i s  

t ime,  the  second las t  l ine  on  page 787 f rom Reenen Teubes  

and tha t  goes back to  Mr  Mlambo and here  he  cop ies  no t  

on ly  Ce l ia  Mah la le la  bu t  a lso  Mr  Mhlont lo  and Mr  Wesse ls  
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and Mr  Burger,  no t  yourse l f ,  we see.   You were  no t  cop ied  

in  a t  tha t  s tage and he,  Mr  Teubes,  i s  respond ing  to  Mr  

Mlambo about  the  BBBEE aspect  as  we l l  as  the  

shareho ld ing .   Aga in  you were  no t  made aware  o f  th is  

immedia te ly  a t  tha t  s tage,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Now the  top  o f  page 787 is  a  

fa r  more  de ta i led  emai l  f rom Mr  M lambo,  tha t  i s  now dated  

the  3  September  2014,  do  you see  i t? 

MR SALOOJEE:    On page 787?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  the  top  emai l .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  i s  f rom Mr  Mlambo to  Mr  

Teubes cop ied  aga in  to  Ms Mah la le la ,  Mr  Mhlon t lo ,  Mr  

Wesse ls  and Mr  Burger,  aga in  no t  you rse l f ,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He ra ises  a  who le  lo t  o f  ser ious 

concerns,  a t  leas t  they appear  on  the  face  o f  i t  to  be  

ser ious.   He says ,  fo r  example ,  in  re la t ion  to  paragraph 1 :  

“The capab i l i t y  assessment  o f  the  th ree  tenderers , .   20 

LMT is  the  on ly  one o f  the  th ree  tenderers  tha t  has 

manufac tured the  same hu l l s  under  cont rac t  f rom 

Pat r ia  bu t  i t  ob ta ined the  lowest  score . ”  

So he seems to  be  query ing  how tha t  cou ld  come about  

and then he re fers  to  the  pr ice  d i f fe rence be ing  a lmost  100  
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m i l l i on ,  tha t  i s  the  pr ice  d i f fe ren t  be tween VR Laser  and 

LMT o f  100 –  a lmost  100 mi l l ion .   That  i s  what  we 

d iscussed ear l ie r,  no t  so ,  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th i s  i s  obv ious l y  a  mat te r  tha t  was o f  

concern  to  Mr  M lambo.   Would  you accept  tha t  he  was  

ent i t led ,  in  fac t  perhaps expected,  to  be  ra is ing  th is  sor t  o f  

quest ion?  There  m ight  have answers  to  the  quest ions bu t  

i t  was –  he  was do ing  h is  job  in  good fa i th  to  t ry  and ask  

these quest ions.   Would  you accep t  tha t?  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then he says:  

“ In  my invest iga t ion  I  was in fo rmed by  S te fan  tha t  

the  LMT quote  was based on fac tua l  f igures  s ince  

LMT has manufac tured the  hu l l  be fore . ”  

He gave ev idence tha t  the  S te fan  there  is  S te fan  Ne l  o f  

LMT ra ther  than S tephan Burger.   

“ I f  S te fan  is  r igh t…”  

He says.  

“…i t  wou ld  no t  make bus iness sense to  pay so  much  20 

more . ”  

In  o ther  words,  R100 mi l l ion  more  on  top  o f  a  156-odd tha t  

LMT was quot ing ,  in  o ther  words,  another  two th i rds  o f  we 

have to  pay what  VR Laser  i s  quot ing .   Then he says :  

“S ince LMT i s  a  s is te r  company I  be l ieve  someone 
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a t  DLS shou ld  have demanded the  suppor t ing  

ev idence before  assuming tha t  LMT under  quoted.   I  

be l ieve  th i s  anomaly  war ran ts  fu r ther  invest iga t ion  

and va l ida t ion . ”  

And in  fac t  Mr  Burger  la te r  gave ev idence befo re  th is  

Commiss ion  to  say in  fac t  the  d i s to r t ion  appears  to  have 

been on VR Laser ’s  s ide .   VR Laser  was way above the  

res t  o f  the  marke t  and tha t  i s  wha t  I  to ld  h im,  I  th ink  you 

are  be ing  cheeky,  how can you – and immedia te ly  they  

reduced the i r  p r ice  by  someth ing  l i ke  60  mi l l ion .   Now then  10 

Mr  Mlambo says in  paragraph 3 :  

“LMT was g iven a  zero  score  on  t ransformat ion  due 

to  i t s  exp i red  cer t i f i ca te .   The two e lements  o f  

t ransformat ion ,  namely  ownersh ip  and EE,  

employment  equ i ty,  cou ld  have  been assessed 

w i thout  a  va l id  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te .   Such date 

shou ld  be  read i l y  ava i lab le  f rom the  HR 

depar tment . ”  

Now tha t  i s  because presumably  the  HR depar tment  o f  

Dene l  knows these th ings because LMT is  major i t y  owned 20 

by  Dene l ,  cor rec t?   R igh t .   I  see  you a re  nodd ing ,  jus t  bear  

in  m ind …[ in tervenes]  

MR SALOOJEE:    Sor ry,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  know i t  i s  a  b i t  ted ious bu t  jus t  bear  

in  m ind i t  has  to  be  reco rded.  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 262 of 397 
 

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  yes ,  tha t… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And poss ib ly  t ranscr ibed.   And then 

paragraph 4 :  

“Accord ing  to  my records LMT par t i c ipa ted  in  the  

c la r i f i ca t ion  meet ing  on  the  26  June 2014.   I t  was  

g iven two weeks to  submi t  i t s  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  and 

the  cer t i f i ca te  was submi t ted  on  the  9  Ju l y  2014.   

Th is  pa in ts  a  p i c tu re  o f  be ing  undu ly  harsh  on  LMT. ”  

Aga in ,  wou ld  you  accept  tha t  Mr  Mlambo was do ing  h is  job  

in  good fa i th  to  ra ise  th is  sor t  o f  concern?  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And h is  concern  he re  was  –  apar t  

f rom th is  i s  go ing  to  cost  us  a  great  dea l  more  where  there 

does not  seem to  be  an exp lana t ion ,  on  top  o f  i t  he  is  

say ing  there  appears  to  be  an  unfa i rness be ing  perpet ra ted  

aga ins t  LMT because what  has been he ld  aga ins t  i t  i s  i t s  

lack  o f  BBBEE credent ia ls  bu t  low  and beho ld ,  LMT is  par t  

o f  our  g roup s t ruc ture  because i t  is  pa r t l y  owned by  Dene l .   

Sure l y  we shou ld  know,  we cou ld  eas i l y  f ind  ou t  what  i t s  

BBBEE credent ia ls .   He seems to  be  suggest ing  here ,  no t  20 

so ,  tha t  there  is  someth ing  funny go ing  on o r  even  i f  i t  i s  

no t  de l ibera te ly  s in is te r  mot ive  tha t  i s  beh ind  th is ,  th is  

th ing  is  no t  be ing  done accord ing  to  the  book,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  agree w i th  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Bu t  –  can I  make a  comment ,  Advocate  

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  p lease do.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Bu t  I  th ink  obv ious ly  f rom a  DLS 

perspect ive  they were  do ing  the  r i gh t  th ing .   I f  you  look a t  

the  arguments  and the  log ic  o f  Burger ’s  reason ing ,  tha t  

what  they d id  go ing  th rough the  processes and i t  countered 

every th ing  tha t  Mr  Mlambo was say ing  and we can come 

back to  tha t ,  Advocate .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  bu t  le t  us  look fo r  example  a t  10 

the  BBBEE ce r t i f ica te .   What  he  seems to  be  suggest ing  i s  

guys,  rea l l y  you  are  be ing  so  techn ica l ,  you d id  no t  

ac tua l l y  need a  cur ren t  BEE ce r t i f i ca te .   Now I  am not  

go ing  to  go  in  a  debate  as  to  whe ther  Mr  Mlambo was r igh t  

o r  wrong in  te rms o f  h is  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  the  SCM po l icy,  

bu t  h is  in ten t ion  is  c lea r.   He is  say ing  we must  no t  be  too  

fo rmal is t i c  about  th is  sor t  o f  th ing ,  the  in fo rmat ion  is  

ava i lab le ,  i t  i s  an  in -house company,  a l l  we have to  do  is  

go  down the  passage and ask HR i f  there  i s  any doubt  

about  the i r  BBBEE credent ia ls .   Why are  we be ing  so  tough  20 

on LMT in  re la t ion  to  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  and ye t  so  re laxed 

about  g iv ing  a  cont rac t  to  VR Laser  when i t  i s  go ing  to  cost  

us ,  a t  tha t  s tage,  a lmost  R100 mi l l ion  more?  

 Now aga in  he  seems to  be  suggest ing  you guys are  

rea l l y  be ing  so  fo rmal is t i c ,  in  o ther  words tha t  the  process  
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o f  p rocu rement  i s  no t  be ing  done t ru l y  in  a  fa i r  and 

t ransparent  and accountab le  way perhaps as  some sor t  o f  

sham go ing  th rough the  mot ions,  tha t  i s  what  seems to  be  

the  undercur ren t  o f  what  he  is  suggest ing  here ,  was tha t  

your  impress ion  too?  

MR SALOOJEE:    You mean my impress ion  a f te r  hav ing  

read…? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O f  the  concerns tha t  he  ra ised .  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  he  ra i sed about  i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  rea l l y  the  th rus t  o f  what  10 

he  was convey ing .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  they  were  va l id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   So not  on l y  was he  ra is ing  

these but  they were  va l id  concerns,  okay.   Then he  says in  

parag raph 5 :  

“The documents  submi t ted  by  VR Laser  on  the  

ownersh ip  ra i se  susp ic ions as  they do not  spec i fy  

the  ind iv idua l  shareho lders  in  pe rson.   The names 

E lgaso lve  and Craysure  Investments  are  s i len t  

about  the  ident i t ies  o f  the  rea l  shareho lders  o f  the  20 

company.   There  were  no  o ther  documents  to  

au thent ica te .   I  t rus t  the  above deta i l s  a lso  c la r i f y  

my reasons fo r  no t  suppor t ing  the  recommendat ion  

to  appo in t  VR Laser  to  manufac tu re  the  hu l l s .   

A l te rna t ive ly,  the  en t i re  p rocess must  be  rev is i ted  
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and conducted in  a  fa i r  and sub jec t i ve  fash ion . ”  

So he is  say ing  tha t  i s  why I  have  not  approved th i s .   Now 

do you accept  tha t  Mr  Mlambo shou ld  have a t  leas t  been  

consu l ted  to  cer t i f y  h is  be ing  sa t is f ied  tha t  the  

procu rement  po l i cy  had been proper ly  compl ied  w i th?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  he  shou ld  have been 

consu l ted  and there  shou ld  have been on ongo ing  

d iscuss ion  be tween DLS and h imse l f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    And I  am not  sure  i f  DLS actua l l y  10 

responded to  th is  because I  was not  p r ivy  to  th is .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We a re  go ing  to  l ook  a t  t ha t  in  a  

moment .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And I  w i l l  he lp  you w i th  the  

documents  on  tha t .   But  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  he  is  aga ins t  the  

award  o f  the  cont rac t ,  co r rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And h is  recommendat ion  is  tha t  the 

en t i re  p rocess has to  be  res ta r ted  and tha t  i t  must  then be  20 

conducted in  a  fa i r  and ob jec t i ve  fash ion .   In  o ther  words,  

he  was say ing  th is  has no t  compl ied  w i th  our  supp ly  cha in  

management  po l i cy,  i t  i s  no t  in  the  in te res ts  o f  Dene l ,  i t  is  

no t  fa i r  and ob jec t i ve .   That  i s  my unders tand ing  o f  the  

emai l .   Wou ld  you  accept  tha t  unders tand ing  on h i s  par t?  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And on the  bas i s  in  fac t  tha t  you 

be l ieve  tha t  h i s  concerns were  va l id .   R igh t ,  now he d id  

indeed engage  in  fu r the r  d iscuss ions w i th  DLS 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  th ink  you were  ask ing  a  

quest ion  bu t  I  d id  no t  hear  an  answer,  I  th ink  you  moved 

onto  the  next  one .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Do you want  to  go  back  to  your  10 

quest ion  because  I  d id  no t  hear  an  answer  bu t  I  saw you 

were  mov ing  to  another  quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Oh,  I  am sor ry,  I  thought  I  go t  the 

answer.   I  am not  sure  wh ich  quest ion  you… 

CHAIRPERSON:    The one immedia te ly  be fore  the  one  tha t  

you were  in  the  m idd le  o f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wel l ,  perhaps I  can jus t  rev i s i t  

every th ing  tha t  I  dea l  w i th  in  the  las t  m inute  o r  so .   So he 

was ra is ing  h i s  concerns,  those were  va l id  concerns,  

cor rec t?  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he was ra is ing  a  conc lus ion ,  in  

h is  v iew,  tha t  was to  th is  e f fec t .   The p rocu rement  p rocess 

was not  fa i r  and ob jec t i ve ,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  he  is  ind ica t ing .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and not  in  compl iance w i th  the  

supp ly  cha in  management  po l i cy ’s  requ i rements ,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  he  is  say ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he was say ing  you need my 

approva l  and I  am not  g iv ing  i t  fo r  these reasons .   You 

shou ld  res ta r t  the  process f rom sc ra tch .   Cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  he  is  say ing  he re ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now we then get  to  the  po in t  

tha t  you ra ised ear l ie r.   You assumed tha t  he  ra i sed these 

concerns w i th  DLS and addressed them fur the r  w i th  them.  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you proceed Mr  Kennedy,  you 

ear l ie r  on  Mr  Sa loo jee  sa id  tha t  Mr  Mlambo’s  concerns 

were  va l id ,  I  take  i t  you  are  re fe r r i ng  to  these concerns?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you say  they were  va l id  must  I  

take  i t  tha t  you agreed w i th  the  po in ts ,  the  concerns he  

was ra is ing  or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you are  say ing  you are  

no t  necessar i l y  say ing  you agreed  w i th  h im but  you th ink  

they were  leg i t imate  to  ra i se  w i thout  necessar i l y  tha t  you  20 

are  agree ing  w i th  them? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Chai r  a t  tha t  po in t  I  wasn ’ t  aware  o f  th is  

conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  tha t  po in t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  wasn ’ t  aware  o f  th is  conversa t ion  go ing  
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on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  r igh t  now you say you th ink  they are  

va l id?  

MR SALOOJEE:    So what  I  am say ing  is  tha t  he  was 

cor rec t  in  b r i ng ing  to  the i r  a t ten t i on  the  concerns tha t  he  

had.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    You are  no t  say ing  anyth ing ,  you 

are  no t  express ing  an  op in ion  on  the i r  mer i t s?  

MR SALOOJEE:    No Cha i r  I  am say ing  he  was co r rec t  to  

ra ise  these issues.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SALOOJEE:    I f  he  was concerned about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Now there  is  then  

a  response f rom Mr  Burger  to  Mr  Mlambo and we see tha t  

emai l ,  the  head ing  to  i t  appears  r igh t  a t  the  foo t  o f  page  

785 and the  next  o f  the  emai l  appears  on  page 786,  do  you 

see tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The  head ing  ind ica tes  i t  was sent  by  20 

Mr  Burger  on  the  4 t h  o f  September  a t  1 :57pm,  i t  i s  4 t h  

September  2014,  i t  i s  addressed  to  Denn is  Mlambo and  

cop ied  th is  t ime aga in  to  Ce l ia  Malah le la ,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  Mr  

Wesse ls  and aga in  to  Mr  Reenen Teubes,  bu t  s ign i f i can t ly  

a lso  yourse l f ,  your  name is  ind ica ted  as  the  ema i l  be ing  
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sen t  by  way o f  a  copy to  you.   Do you reca l l  i f  you  rece ived 

th is  emai l?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes Cha i r  I  am sure  I  have seen th i s  

emai l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  now Mr  Burger  in  an  en t i re  page  

on page 786 g ives a  very  de ta i led  response to  some o f  the 

issues ra i sed by  Mr  Mlambo and he says tha t  he  be l ieves 

tha t  the  process was abso lu te l y  cor rec t  and fa i r  and 

s t r ingent  in  eva lua t ion  e tce tera ,  and then a f te r  the  – sor ry  

a f te r  the  numbered paragraphs ,do  you see paragraphs 1 ,  10 

2 ,  3  and 4?  

MR SALOOJEE:     Yes.     

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Be low tha t  an  unnumbered pa ragraph 

fo l lows,  i t  says :  

“Never the less  I  am conv inced tha t  VR Laser  i s  

techn ica l l y  bes t  equ ipped to  execute  th is  

p rogramme.   I  a lso  be l ieve  g i ven the  recent  cont rac t  

per fo rmance o f  LNT i t  w i l l  be  i r respons ib le  to  p lace  

a  cont rac t  o f  such cr i t i ca l i t y  on  them a lso  tak ing  

in to  account  the  e f fec t  the  KSA o rde r  w i l l  have on  20 

them. ”  

Now so he was a t tempt ing  to  address a t  leas t  some o f  the  

concerns o f  Mr  Mlambo,  because Mr  Mlambo in  h is  

ev idence has c r i t i c i sed Mr  Burger  fo r  no t  ac tua l l y  dea l ing  

w i th  the  hear t  o f  the  concerns tha t  he  had ra ised and you  
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have a l ready acknowledged tha t  those were  ra ised va l id ly.    

 Now a t  the  top  o f  page 785 there  i s  then a  response 

f rom Mr  Mlambo to  Mr  Burger  and  he aga in  cop ies  in  the  

same peop le ,  inc lud ing  yourse l f ,  you reca l l  i f  you  rece ived 

th is?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  must  have seen  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Now may I  read i t ,  a t  leas t  the  

re levant  passages in to  the  record .    He says:  

“Dear  S tephan, .  

We a re  c lear l y  no t  a l igned in  te rms o f  the  ana lys i s  10 

o f  the  da ta  and in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  saw fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime on Tuesday a t  the  meet ing  I  had w i th  Reenen  

and Ce l ia .   I  cer ta in ly  th ink  we shou ld  no t  exchange 

any more  emai ls  on  the  issue in  quest ion  as  the  

reso lu t ion  may be eas ier  to  f ind  around the  tab le .   

However  the  fo l l ow ing issues have def in i te ly  no t  

been addressed by   you r  response:  

1 .  The huge p r ice  d i f fe ren t ia l  in  the  o f fe rs  made by  

LNT and VR Laser.   S tephan Ne l  o f  LNT is  

adamant  tha t  hav ing  produced the  hu l l  be fore  20 

makes h is  quote  a  lo t  more  rea l i s t i c .    On the  

o ther  hand VR Laser ’s  quote  i s  no t  based on past  

per fo rmance.    Need less  to  say  tha t  p ro to types  

are  typ i ca l l y  a  lo t  more  expens ive  than 

product ion  re la ted  products .   I  am a lso  in fo rmed 
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tha t  the  pr ice  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  concerns 

were  never  ra i sed du r ing  the  c la r i f i ca t ion  

meet ing .  

2 .  The mere  fac t  tha t  VR Laser  re fu ted  any conf l i c t  

o f  in te res t  th rough the  submiss ion  o f  sa id  

document  does not  conf i rm the  va l id i t y  o f  the  

ownersh ip ,  the  ad jud ica t ion  team eva lua ted.   

Where  is  the  document  wh ich  shou ld  have been  

asked fo r,  tha t  de ta i l s  the  ind iv idua l  shareho lders  

o f  A lger  So lve  and Craysure  Investments .   Even  10 

the  documents  t ha t  l i s t  the  d i rec tors  o f  the  two 

compan ies  are  no t  va l id  CIPC documents .   I  

cannot  unders tand why they were  accepted.  

3 .  You ’ve  a lso  no t  exp la ined why the  capab i l i t y  o r  

techn ica l  ra t ing  o f  LNT is  the  lowest  desp i te  the  

fac t  tha t  the  o ther  two compan ies  i f  they  were  

successfu l  wou ld  be  mak ing  th is  type o f  hu l l  fo r  

the  f i rs t  t ime.  

4 .  I  have rece ived ev idence tha t  the  two week g race  

per iod  fo r  the  submiss ion  o f  the  BBBEE 20 

cer t i f i ca te  by  LNT was met  and ye t  you c la im tha t  

cou ld  no t  be  cons ide red as  i t  was a f te r  the  

dead l ine .    I t  i s  s tandard  prac t ice  tha t  a  supp l ie r  

tha t  i s  be ing  ver i f ied  fo r  BBBEE leve l  cannot  be  

pena l ised fo r  tha t  espec ia l l y  i f  the  cr i t i ca l  da ta  
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used in  the  assessment  i s  read i l y  ava i lab le .   

What  makes th is  even more  unacceptab le  i s  the  

fac t  tha t  we have  unh indered access to  da ta  and  

in fo rmat ion  as  LNT. ”  

So aga in  Mr  Sa loo jee  do you accept  tha t  what  Mr  Burger  

had rep l ied  in  the  emai l  be low tha t  to  Mr  Mlambo,  in  Mr  

Mlambo’s  p ro fess iona l  and good fa i th  v iew d id  no t  p roper ly  

answer  h i s  quest i ons?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  i s  re f lec ted  here .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And then he says a f te r  the  10 

numbered paragraph 4 ,  the  f ina l  unnumbered pa ragraph,  

he  says my content ion ,  th is  i s  Mr  Mlambo s t i l l  speak ing   

“ i s  tha t  desp i te  be ing  conv inced o f  a  fa i r  and 

ob jec t i ve  process tha t  was fo l lowed by  the  

ad jud ica t ion  team . . . ”  

tha t  appears  to  be  a  re ference to  Mr  Burger  say ing  tha t  i t  

was indeed fa i r  and ob jec t i ve  –   

“ le t  us  appo in t  an  independent  assessor  to  

cor robora te  your  c la im.    I t  i s  a lso  wor th  ment ion ing  

tha t  you f lou ted  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  by  no t  20 

present ing  the  f i le  fo r  rev iew to  me befo re  engag ing  

F i k i le  . . . ”  

and F i k i le  o f  course  i s  Mr  Mah lant lo ,  CFO,  and Mr  

Wesse ls ,  COO,   

“any t ransact ion  above R20mi l l ion  must  go  th rough  
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my o f f i ce  f i rs t .   I  am beg inn ing  to  have doubts  tha t  

th is  was an overs igh t . ”  

What  seems to  emerge f rom th is  emai l  i s  the  f i rs t  po in t  tha t  

you have a l ready  acknowledged,  tha t  these were  bona f ide  

concerns tha t  Mr  Mlambo be l ieved had not  been proper ly  

addressed,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Second ly  he  makes i t  c lear  tha t  in  h is  

v iew there  had been a  ser ious f lou t ing  o f  the  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  because they haven ’ t  approached Mr  Mlambo’s  10 

o f f i ce  a t  an  ear ly  s tage,  cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  what  he  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  he  is  say ing  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  and th i rd ly  he  is  quest ion ing  the  

bona f ides  o f  Mr  Burger,  he  is  say ing  I  am hav ing  rea l  

doubts  about  why th is  happened.    How d id  i t  come about  

tha t  you d idn ’ t  come to  me Mr  Burger,  I  am hav ing  ser ious 

doubts  about  whe ther  th is  i s  a  genu ine  overs igh t .    In  o ther  

words I  am accus ing  you Mr  Burger  o f  ac tua l l y  ac t ing  in  an  

underhand and de l ibera te ly  dece i t fu l  manner.   That  i s  what  20 

he  is  say ing ,  no t  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  he  is  say ing  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now what  I  found in te res t ing  w i th  

your  ev idence ea r l ie r  was tha t  you fe l t  we l l  a  measure  o f  

de ference must  be  –  and I  am us ing  words tha t  you d idn ’ t  
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use  bu t  g i v ing  my unders tand ing ,  you seem to  be  say ing  

ear l ie r  tha t  i t  wou ldn ’ t  be  r igh t  s imp ly  to  r ide  roughshod 

over  a  d iv i s ion  such as  DLS tha t  has fo r  s t rong reason  

mot iva ted  the  appo in tment  o f  VR Laser  and you assumed 

tha t  i f  Mr  Mlambo wou ld  have prob lems he wou ld  go  back  

to  DLS.    Now am I  unders tand ing  your  ev idence cor rec t l y?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t ,  and we know now f rom these  

emai ls  tha t  tha t  in  fac t  happened,  Mr  Mlambo d id  cont inue  

the  debate  w i th  DLS,  cor rec t?  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As  you wou ld  have expected h im to  

do ,  as  he  shou ld  have done,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Bu t  we a lso  know tha t  he  doesn ’ t  ge t  

joy  f rom the  d iv is ion  in  the  sense tha t  he  asks a  who le  lo t  

o f  quest ions,  he  ge ts  some answers ,  bu t  he  says I  am not  

persuaded tha t  those answers  are  good answers  a t  a l l ,  I  

s t i l l  have ser ious  doubt  about  th ings l i ke  pr ice ,  why  we are  

pay ing  so  much fo r  th is ,  about  why we are  no t  g iv ing  i t  to  20 

LNT tha t  i s  go ing  to  g ive  i t  to  us  as  such a  pr ice ,  a  be t te r  

p r ice ,  where  the  techn ica l  capac i ty  has no t  been p roper ly  

mot iva ted  and exp la ined and th i rd ly  there  are  o ther  i ssues  

such as  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  hav ing  been dea l t  w i th  in  a  way 

wh ich  i s  ove r  fo rmal is t i c  and inappropr ia te ,  and f ina l l y  Mr  
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Mlambo actua l l y  ge ts  to  the  po in t  where  he  says now I  am 

beg inn ing  to  th ink  tha t  you a re  t ry ing  to  pu l l  the  woo l  ove r  

my eyes.  

 Now what  I  suggest  to  you Mr  Sa loo jee  is  tha t  the  

very  fac t  tha t  Mr  Burger  h imse l f  cop ied  you in ,  he  was the  

f i rs t  person to  copy you in  on  th is  cor respondence not  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  and then Mr  Mlambo cont inued 

tha t  cou rse  by  copy ing  you in ,  th is  p resumably  mus t  have,  

i f  you  had read i t  and you say you must  have read i t ,  i t  10 

must  have ra ised or  rung some ser ious a la rm be l l s .   He 

must  have rea l i sed now tha t  there  is  a  ser ious i ssue,  tha t  

Mr  Mlambo who  is  the  head whether  one ca l l s  h im the 

manager  o r  an  execut ive  he  is  the  head w i th in  the  g roup o f  

Supp ly  Cha in  Management ,  o f  course  accountab le  to  Mr  

Mhlont lo  who was accountab le  to  you but  there  is  now an 

impasse between  group leve l  supp ly  cha in  management  in  

the  fo rm o f  Mr  Mlambo and DLS  Div is iona l  Management ,  

no t  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now presumably  th i s  wou ld  have 

been a  ser ious  a la rm be l l ,  th is  i s  someth ing  ser ious  

because i t  i s  no t  we l l  you haven ’ t  a t tached an annexure  to  

your  mot iva t ion  p lease don ’ t  send me some –  i t  was 

noth ing  o f  tha t  sor t  o f  techn ica l  na ture  o r  a  po in t  o f  m inor  
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de ta i l .   Mr  Mlambo is  e f fec t i ve ly  say ing  rea l l y  the  process  

you have fo l lowed is  ex t remely  i r regu lar  and in  fac t  may be 

ta in ted  by  bad mot ive .     

 Now d id  you not  rea l i se  a t  the  t ime tha t  you mus t  

have read these  emai ls  tha t  there  was in  fac t  a  ser ious 

prob lem o f  th is  na ture?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  i f  I  may,  I  am fami l ia r  w i th  the 

contents  o f  these  documents ,  and i t  was d iscussed w i th  me  

by Mr  Mhlont lo  and by  Mr  Jan Wesse ls .  Aga in  I  must  admi t  

tha t  I  have been  –  I  am runn ing  an organ isa t ion  to  ge t  10 

invo l ved a t  tha t  l eve l  was j us t  no t  a t  tha t  moment  poss ib le ,  

and I  had g i ven Mr  Wesse ls  and Mr  Mhlont lo  a  d i rec t i ve  

tha t  they need to  go  and invest iga te  what  i s  go ing  on  here .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    D id  they eve r  repor t  back to  you tha t  

they have [a ]  invest iga ted  and  [b ]  come up w i th  a  

reso lu t ion?  

MR SALOOJEE:    The on ly  feedback tha t  I  go t  was tha t  

there  was issues between Denn is  and there  was a  

d i f fe rence o f  be tween Mr  Mlambo and DLS and bo th  o f  the  

v iew tha t  they have been do ing  the  r igh t  th ing ,  so  tha t  DLS 20 

had ind ica ted  Cha i r  tha t  they have  gone th rough the  proper  

p rocesses,  they do  not  agree w i th  what  Denn is  i s  say ing ,  

they have jus t i f ied  why the  pr ice  i s  what  i t  i s ,  they  have 

jus t i f ied  why the  BEE sco r ing  was  done the  way i t  was an 

tha t  i s  the  conc lus ion  tha t  they had come to ,  tha t  was my  
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unders tand ing  o f  how i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  unders tand  your  unders tand ing ,  bu t  

may I  quest ion  you about  whether  i t  i s  va l id  tha t  

unders tand ing .    You have here  as  the  Group CEO two 

d i f fe ren t  en t i t ies  w i th in  the  group,  the  one is  Head  Off i ce ,  

your  supp ly  cha in  manager  Mr  M lambo,  you have  on the 

o ther  DLS wh ich  is  a  d iv is ion ,  you  are  aware  tha t  they are  

now a t  loggerheads and in  te rms o f  tha t  s i tua t ion  Mr  

Mlambo is  say ing  you have ser ious l y  messed  up the  

procu rement  p rocess,  cor rec t ,  tha t ’s  what  he  was say ing .  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  what  he  is  say ing  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  i t  jus t  seems a  b i t  s t range to  me 

as an  outs ide r,  and pe rhaps I  am be ing  na ive  bu t  i t  seems 

to  me to  be  a  b i t  s t range tha t  you r  approach i s  we l l  guys  

chat  amongst  each o ther  and then you get  the  message  

back we l l  DLS are  sure  tha t  they have done i t  a l l  cor rec t l y  

and tha t  i s  where  the  mat te r  ends.    Of  course  DLS  wou ld  

th ink  tha t  they have done i t  cor rec t l y,  tha t  i s  why Mr  Burger  

keeps wr i t ing  le t te rs ,  emai l s  a t  g rea t  length  to  Mr  Mlambo 

but  Mr  Mlambo is  say ing  we l l  I  have heard  you out  bu t  you  20 

haven ’ t  ac tua l l y  even p roper l y  answered my quest ions,  so  

how cou ld  you remote l y  have been sa t is f ied  w i th  news  

coming back to  you,  busy as  you no doubt  were ,  sa t is f ied  

we l l  i f  DLS say  tha t  they have  compl ied  tha t  i s  good  

enough fo r  me,  i sn ’ t  the  who le  po in t  tha t  DLS say tha t  they  
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have compl ied  bu t  Mr  Mlambo says they haven ’ t  compl ied  

and he i s  even accus ing  them o f  go ing  th rough a  sham 

process o f  hav ing  bad mot ives  and he l i s ts  in  g rea t  de ta i l  

the  po in ts  tha t  they haven ’ t  addressed wh ich  a re  non-

compl iance w i th  the  procurement  po l i cy.    

 Why do you leave  i t  to  the  one par t y  in  th is  d ispute ,  

namely  DLS,  to  bas i ca l l y  say  we have done i t  a l l  f ine ,  t rus t  

us .   Do you see the  prob lem? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Mr  Kennedy I  unders tand what  you are  

say ing .   Cha i r  the  issue is  I  d id  no t  leave i t  to  DLS to  say 10 

tha t  every th ing  i s  f ine ,  the  fac t  i s  tha t  I  had then  g iven a  

d i rec t i ve  to  Mr  Mhlont lo  and Mr  Wesse ls  to  go  and  

invest iga te  whether  these issues tha t  Mr  Mlambo was  

ra is ing  were  va l i d  o r  no t  and tha t  i s  the  process tha t  they 

had gone th rough ,  and the  response when they came back 

to  me was tha t  there  is  a  fundamenta l  d i f fe rence o f  

op in ion .    

 There  are  two schoo ls  o f  thought ,  the  one schoo l  o f  

thought  i s  the  supp ly  cha in  process w i th in  DLS,  the  

techn ica l  eva lua t ions,  the  BEE eva lua t ions and every th ing ,  20 

they s tand by  what  the i r  v iew  is  and they d isag ree  

fundamenta l l y  w i th  what  Mr  Mlambo is  say ing  and f rom my 

unders tand ing  they were  say ing  tha t  Mr  Mlambo is  

de l ibe ra te l y  t ry ing  to  dera i l  th is  p rocess.   That  i s  the 

response tha t  I  go t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  the  fundamenta l  ques t ion  is  

once you got  those –  once you unders tood tha t  they cou ld  

no t  reach agreement  Mr  M lambo and  DLS,  somebody had  

to  take ,  to  reso lve  tha t  impasse.   When I  say  reso lve  i t  I  

don ’ t  necessar i l y  mean go and get  them to  agree but  

somebody had to  make a  dec is ion  and tha t  person was  

you,  was i t  no t ,  who had to  make  a  dec is ion  as  to  wh ich  

dec is ion  wou ld  be  cor rec t ,  bear ing  in  m ind these 

fundamenta l  d i f fe rences.     10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  you are  cor rec t  bu t  a t  the  end o f  

the  day as  we have gone th rough the  who le  process and 

the  submiss ion  was eventua l l y  made as  to  why they 

be l ieved tha t  th is  was a  c r i t i ca l  i ssue tha t  needed to  be  

reso lved w i th  appo in t ing  VRL as Mr  Burger  has g iven  

ev idence,  as  a l l  the  paper  t ra i l  has  ind i ca ted  as  to  why 

they jus t i f ied  hav ing  taken the  v iew tha t  they d id ,  tha t  was  

the  v iew tha t  p reva i led  w i th  Mr  Wesse ls ,  w i th  Mr  Mhlont lo  

wh ich  they brought  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm,  I  take  i t  tha t  what  you mean is  20 

tha t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  you say unders tood Mr  Mlambo’s  

concerns you a re  say ing  tha t  you  came to  the  conc lus ion  

tha t  h is  concerns when we ighed aga ins t  the  v iews 

expressed by  the  DLS s ide  were  no t  jus t i f ied ,  o r  were  no t  

cor rec t  on  a  ba lance on the  sca le .  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  to  te l l  you  the  t ru th  my own v iew is  

tha t  I  thought  tha t  they had come to  some reso lu t ion  about  

these issues.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :     And what  was the  bas is  fo r  tha t  v iew 

tha t  they had come to  some reso lu t ion?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Because a f te r  a l l  o f  th is  cor respondence  

was done nobody,  no t  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  no t  Mr  Wesse ls  came to  

me to  say tha t  there  was s t i l l  an  i ssue outs tand ing  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you had asked to  speak,  to  speak to  

each o ther  o r  someth ing ,  to  ta lk  and t r y  and  f ind  a 10 

reso lu t ion  isn ’ t  i t?     

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And there fo re  you were  supposed to  f ind  

ou t  what  the  ou tcome o f  tha t  p rocess was,  be fore  mak ing  

your  own dec is ion  isn ’ t  i t?    In  other  words i f  you  sa id  I  

want  you to  go  and ta lk  to  each o ther  to  t ry  and f ind  each 

o ther  be fo re  I  make a  dec is ion  you wou ld  –  one wou ld  

expect  tha t  you wou ld  say come back,  te l l  me,  what ’s  the  

ou tcome o f  tha t  p rocess because now I  must  make a  

dec is ion .   20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Wel l  Cha i r  tha t ’s  what  I  am say ing ,  I  

mean I  th ink  when Mr  Mhlont lo  and Mr  Wesse ls  came back 

to  me and they ind ica ted  tha t  they have addressed th is  

i ssue I  thought  tha t  there  was no o ther  in te rvent ion  tha t  

was requ i red  a t  tha t  po in t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  am not  sure  i f  I  fo l low,  I  thought  

tha t  what  you sa id  a  few minutes  ago was they d idn ’ t  come 

back to  you to  te l l  you  what  the  ou tcome o f  tha t  p rocess  

was and because  they d idn ’ t  come back to  you to  te l l  you  

what  the  ou tcome o f  the i r  ta lk ing  together  to  each o ther,  

because they d idn ’ t  come back you assumed tha t  the  issue  

had been reso lved,  I  thought  tha t ’s  what  you were  say ing ,  

as  I  unders tand you?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  th ink  i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y  Cha i r  they 

conf i rmed . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  sa id  to  me tha t  these issues were  10 

addressed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  was the  ou tcome o f  address ing  

them? 

MR SALOOJEE:    There  wasn ’ t  any fo rmal  paperwork  o r  

anyth ing  wh ich  addressed th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Even i f  there  was no paperwork  i f  he 

sa id  to  you th is  i ssue has been addressed obv ious l y  you 

wou ld  want  to  know what  was the  ou tcome,  what  do  you 

mean you have addressed,  have you now . . . [ in te rvenes – 

c ross- ta l k ing ]  common cause.  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    Now,  now,  now when I  look  a t  Mlambo’s  

tes t imony and I  look  a t  what  he  has sa id  and Mr  Burger ’s  

v iew on what  the  d i f fe rences a re  obv ious ly  the  issues were  

no t  reso lved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  what  I  am go ing  back  to  tha t  
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t ime,  i f  Mr  Mhlont lo  sa id  they had been addressed I  am 

say ing  you must  have asked what  do  you mean,  have you 

agreed,  have you  not  agreed,  d id  you ask  tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  take  your  po in t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you d idn ’ t  ask  tha t  quest ion? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   There  was a  

fu r ther  communica t ion  tha t  came f rom Mr  Mlambo to  

yourse l f ,  i f  I  can  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 791,  the  ear l ie r  10 

emai l  was dated the  4 t h  o f  September  2014 tha t  we  looked 

a t  where  he  was s imp ly  cop ied  in  a l though i t  was an emai l  

addressed to  Mr  Burger,  th is  t ime i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom 

Mlambo to  yourse l f ,  i t  i s  addressed to  Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  

Mhlont lo  and Mr  Wesse ls ,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he says:  

“Gent lemen,  I  have managed to  rev iew DLS’s  

submiss ion  per ta in ing  to  the  abovement ioned  

sub jec t .  The fo l low ing issues pa in t  an  unacceptab le  20 

p ic tu re  f rom a  p rocess,  fa i rness and ob jec t i ve  po in t  

o f  v iew .  

1 .  The tender  documents  were  no t  sent  to  a l l  the  

b idders  s imu l taneous ly  as  pe r  the  no rmal  tender  

p rocess;  
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2 .  P r io r  to  the  ad jud ica t ion  process there  were  s t i l l  

engagements  o r  c la r i f i ca t ion  sess ions w i th  

ind iv idua l  b idders .   The process tha t  such  

engagements  be  he ld  w i th  a l l  b idders  a t  the  same 

t ime.   In fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  requested  by  one o f  the  

b idders  must  be  sent  to  o thers  even i f  they  d id  

no t  ask  fo r  i t ;  

3 .  Desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  LMT BBBEE’s  s ta tus  was  

d is regarded on grounds tha t  i t  was s t i l l  be ing  

ver i f ied  and the  dead l ine  was the  25 t h  o f  June  10 

2014 the  VR Laser  cer t i f i ca te  was  accepted and  

ra ted  on the  27 t h  o f  June 2014,  two  days a f te r  the  

c los ing  da te ;  

4 .  In  the  submiss ion  i t  i s  c la imed tha t  LMT’s  quote  

i s  too  low and  unrea l i s t i c .    The d i f fe rence 

between LMT’s  quote  and the  VR Laser  quote  i s  

a lmost  R100mi l l ion .    A f te r  quest ion ing  S tephan  

Ne l  on  the  accuracy o f  h i s  quote  he  o f fe red  to  

come and presen t  the  fac ts  to  demonst ra te  tha t  i t  

i s  based on rea l i s t i c  quotes .    Fur the rmore  he  20 

c la imed LMT had made the  hu l l  be fore  under  

Pat r ios  cont rac t ;  

5 .  In  my meet ing  w i th  S tephan Burger  yeste rday he  

ind ica ted  tha t  VR Laser  had o f fe red  to  reduce the  

quote  f rom around R262.4mi l l ion  to  
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R195.0mi l l ion !    Doesn ’ t  tha t  te l l  a  d is tu rb ing  

s to ry  about  the  in i t ia l  o f fe r?    On the  bas is  o f  

these f ind ings and o ther  fac ts  i t  i s  my cons ide red 

op in ion  tha t  the  submiss ion  f rom DLS be re jec ted  

s ince LMT has the  capab i l i t y  to  make the  hu l l  th is  

i ssue shou ld  have been d iscussed before  go ing  

out  on  tender.  

Goodn igh t ,  

Denn is”  

C lear ly  he  is  a  b i t  upset ,  no t  so?  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And ser ious,  cor rec t?   Cor rec t ,  he  is  

ser ious?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he is  wr i t ing  th is  a t  about  quar te r  to  

e leven in  the  n igh t  i sn ’ t  i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And address ing  i t  p r imar i l y  to  yourse l f  

as  Group CEO,  th is  seems to  me to  be  f i rs t l y  an  a t tempt  by  20 

Mr  Mlambo to  esca la te  i t  to  the  Group CEO leve l ,  second ly  

to  make i t  c lear  tha t  he  be l ieves in  h is  p ro fess iona l  v iew  

tha t  there  are  ex t remely  se r ious i r regu la r i t ies  under  a  

lawfu l  and p roper  fa i r  p rocurement  p rocess and fu r the r  i t  

seems to  me to  be  a  c ry  fo r  he lp  f rom your  mos t  sen io r  
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supp ly  cha in  manager  to  you as  Group CEO to  in te rvene 

and  to  s top  a  process wh ich  he  i s  e f fec t i ve l y  warn ing  you  

is  un lawfu l  and  unfa i r  and shou ld  be  s topped,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   That  i s  what  he  is  ind ica t ing  yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Now you were  aware  as  CEO 

presumably  –  jus t  fo rg ive  me fo r  no t  knowing a l l  o f  you r  

background,  do  you have any pro fess iona l  background? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Not  lega l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Not  lega l ,  and have you ever  been a  10 

supp ly  cha in  management  execut ive  o r  anyth ing  o f  tha t  

na ture?  

MR SALOOJEE:   No I  haven ’ t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay so  the  law on the  supp ly  

management  p rocesses are  no t  your  a rea o f  pa r t i cu la r  

exper t i se .  

MR SALOOJEE:    No they are  no t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  be  fa i r  to  you,  r igh t ,  bu t  you were  

the  Group CEO at  the  t ime o f  a  major  S ta te  en t i t y,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Dependant  on  f i rs t l y  do ing  a  good job  

in  the  market  and t ry ing  to  be  pro f i tab le  and second ly  

accountab le  to  the  S ta te  and where  the re  were  f inanc ia l  

shor t fa l l s  you wou ld  be  look ing  to  the  S ta te  fo r  ba i lou ts  as  

i t  were ,  no t  so?  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  you  a lso  know o f  course  

presumably  as  a  respons ib le  Group CEO,  bu t  par t i cu la r ly  in  

the  cur ren t  e ra ,  a t  leas t  in  2014,  our  Pub l ic  Procurement  

Laws,  bo th  f rom the  Const i tu t ion  and laws such  as  the  

PFMA,  you had heard  about  the  PFMA presumably.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O f  course ,  and tha t  Nat iona l  

Treasury  lays  down regu la t ions and supp ly  cha in  

management  p rocesses and ru les  tha t  were  b ind ing ,  no t  10 

so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  Dene l  had to  have  i t s  own 

sys tem o f  supp ly  cha in  management  in  te rms o f  i t s  own  

po l i c ies  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you had exact ly  such po l i c ies ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you knew,  because you  20 

employed h im,  tha t  you had somebody ca l led  Mr  Mlambo a t  

Head Off i ce  leve l  who was deep ly  fami l ia r  w i th  th is  t ype o f  

i ssue,  no t  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He was employed based  on h is  
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exper t i se ,  co r rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  as  Ms  Malah le la  was employed  

fo r  her  exper t i se  in  the  same f ie ld  a t  DLS Div is iona l  leve l ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Now here  you have been to ld ,  

no t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  bu t  a t  leas t  here  in  an  abso lu te ly  

d i rec t  and very  spec i f i c  manner  tha t  there  a re  some 

ext remely  ser ious  i r regu lar i t ies  tha t  Mr  Mlambo has p icked 10 

up.   Now aga in  d id  you leave th is  on  the  bas is  tha t  you  

thought  i t  was a l l  go ing  to  be  sor ted  ou t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  I  mean th is  i s  what  I  was re fer r ing  

to  ear l ie r,  because I  had spec i f i ca l l y  asked Mr  Wesse ls  and 

Mr  Mhlont lo ,  spec i f i ca l l y  Mh lont lo  to  go  and address these 

issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  th is  was before  you took the  

dec is ion  was i t  no t ,  th is  was before  you gave the  approva l?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   I t  i s  –  I  am jus t  wonder ing  how you 20 

cou ld  no t  when to ld  by  Mr  Mhlont lo  tha t  the  issue has been  

addressed how you cou ld  no t  have sa id  I  want  to  know how 

they have been addressed when you were  aware  tha t  the  

issues tha t  Mr  Mlambo had ra ised were  so  ser ious,  in  o ther  

words tha t  you cou ld  go  ahead and make your  dec is ion  
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w i thout  knowing how they were  addressed i f  somebody sa id 

they were  addressed,  because you accept  these a re  qu i te  

ser ious issues he  is  ra is ing?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  maybe  I  shou ld  jus t  ske tch  a  

d i f fe ren t  v iew on th is  th ing ,  okay.   The issues  tha t  Mr  

Mlambo is  ra is ing  I  sa id  are  cor rec t ,  he  shou ld  have been 

concerned about  th is ,  okay.   The feedback tha t  I  go t  

eventua l l y  on  each one where  Mr  Mlambo is  ta lk ing  about  

p r ice  fo r  example  there  is  an  exp lanat ion  f rom . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

as  to  why the  p r ice  i s  what  i t  i s .   Where  Mr  Mlambo is  10 

ta lk ing  about  the  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  there  is  an  exp lanat ion  

f rom DLS Execut i ve  Commi t tee  why they took the  dec i s ion  

tha t  they took.    Where  Mr  Mlambo is  ta lk ing  about  the  

d i f fe rence,  so r ry  the  issue a round qua l i t y  and ab i l i t y  o f  

LMT to  per fo rm or  no t  the re  was  a  response by  –  and Mr  

Burger  was here  say ing  exact ly  tha t ,  he  counte red a l l  o f  

these th ings and  tha t  was the  exp lanat ions tha t  were  pu t  

fo rward ,  tha t  they  d id  no t  agree w i th  what  he  was say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a re  you say ing  to  me i t  i s  no t  as  i f  

when Mr  Mhlont lo  sa id  these issues tha t  Mr  Mlambo has  20 

ra ised have been addressed i t  is  no t  as  i f  you  le f t  tha t  

i ssue there ,  you d id  ask  h im  how have they been 

addressed and  he to ld  you exact ly  how they were  

addressed,  i s  tha t  what  you are  say ing?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  I  mean i t  i s  a  
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long t ime ago,  okay,  and you say there  i t  was I  w i l l  be  back 

in  my o f f i ce  Mr  M lambo is  say ing ,  I  do  reca l l  tha t  there  was  

a  d iscuss ion  tha t  took p lace in  the  o f f i ce  w i th  Mr  Burger  

and Mr  Wesse ls  and I  th ink  Mr  Mlambo was there  as  we l l ,  

where  these,  a l l  o f  these issues were  be ing  exp la ined by  

Mr  Burger  in  o rder  to  counte rac t  what  Mr  Mlambo was 

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  d id  you ca l l  Mr  Mlambo,  put  to 

him what Mr Burger and them were saying? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  th ink Chair  i f  I  recal l  at  that  meet ing he 10 

was not  at  work that  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  before you made the decision did 

you ca l l  h im to say Mr Mlambo you ra ised these issues which 

I  thought you were r ight  to raise them i f  they were concerns 

to you.  

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chair  we did not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  th is is what I  have been told.  I  want to 

hear what you have to say about th is.   You d id not  do that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No we d id not  do that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why not? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Because between Mr Mhlont lo,  Mr Wessels 

and Burger ’s explanat ions and t ime was going on rapidly  

okay that  I  thought that  they had adequately addressed 

those issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Do you accept  now 

that  they had not? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  cannot say that  they – I  mean in terms – 

sorry Mr Kennedy had not  addressed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  they had not  resolved these issues 

– there was a disagreement.   There st i l l  is today.  

MR SALOOJEE:   A disagreement? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Mr Mlambo is absolutely adamant 

that  his cr i t ic isms were absolutely correct  and in fact  to an 

extent  Mr Burger has conceded at  least  some of  those.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Far wi th – wi th hindsight  ret rospect  I  

now real ise he was r ight  and I  was wrong.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  heard that  what Mr Burger was saying you 

know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   But  may I  just  ask f rom a level  of  

– at  the level  of  accountabi l i ty of  a Group CEO of  a state 

owned ent i ty I  understand that  you were busy but  sure ly one 

of  your most  important  dut ies as the Group CEO is  to ensure 

that  your – that  you carry out  what is expected of  you by the 20 

const i tut ion and by the PFMA, correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And here you having loud r ings of  an 

alarm bel l  f rom your most  senior Supply Chain Management 

person saying this has not  been done properly i t  should be 
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rev isi ted.   At  one stage as we saw in one of  the emai ls he 

says why do we not  get  an independent assessor  to test  

whether your claims Mr Burger are correct  or not?  In other 

words I  cannot just  s imply accept  your say so that  you have 

done i t  a l l  correct ly because I  bel ieve you have not  done i t  

correct ly.    

Why did you not  for example not  br ing in somebody 

for example an at torney or a senior  counsel  or somebody to 

say,  I  g ive an opinion that  th is has been compl ied wi th or 

th is has not  been compl ied wi th and i f  i t  has not  been 10 

compl ied wi th  we do the fol lowing?  Why do you leave i t  on 

the basis wel l  I  thought that  they were chat t ing amongst  

themselves and I  – I  thought  that  they – had i t  been 

resolved.    

We know that  i t  was not  resolved and now years later 

you having to s i t  under the glare of  te levision l ights in publ ic 

to answer quest ions about a major t ransact ion that  bound 

Denel  to huge amounts of  publ ic money that  just  happens to  

have been given to a Gupta l inked company where as i t  

happens everybody now seems to accept  that  there were in  20 

fact  procurement problems.   

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  take the point  I  mean i t  is. .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Can you answer i t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   Why did I  not . . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Were you not  remiss Mr Saloojee? 
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MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  I  mean I  had my chief  Group 

Financial  Off icer,  the Group Chief  Operat ing Off icer.   I  had in 

Mr Burger as he had said a CEO who had been in th is 

business for th i r ty years and they were te l l ing me that  they 

had fol lowed the correct  process.   I  mean and that  is the 

advice I  had taken.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But   you knew f rom the emai l  

correspondence that  th is th ing had been bouncing back and 

forth between Mr Mlambo and Mr Burger.   Mr Mlambo saying 

XYZ are problems.  Mr Burger comes back and says no wel l  I  10 

have got  a reason VR Laser are just  great  and we know they 

are going to do the job.   And LMT are useless and the pr ice 

does not  real ly matter so much and so forth.    

Mr Mlambo comes back and says no XYZ have not 

been answered in fact  I  have got  a whole lot  of  other 

problems ABC.  Mr Burger comes back and he says in a long 

emai l  th is is my answer to Mr Mlambo then says huh-ha you 

st i l l  have not  answered in fact  I  am now thinking that  the fact  

that  you did not  come to me ini t ia l ly as you should have 

shows an ul ter ior mot ive.   And he copies you in.    20 

Now surely that  should have alerted you to the fact  

that  there is a ser ious disagreement between them where Mr 

Burger ’s say so is  not  sat isfy ing Mr Mlambo and you leave i t  

on the basis wel l  people have chat ted amongst  themselves 

and they al l  say that  they have done the correct  th ing.   I  
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mean just  at  the level  of  professional  courtesy apart  f rom 

anything else does i t  not  perhaps wi th the benef i t  of  

h indsight  st r ike you as obvious what is seems to me to be 

obvious which is a response to Mr Mlambo’s emai l .    

“Dear Denis thank you very much for rais ing 

these issues.   They wi l l  be deal t  wi th by Mr 

Mhlothlo and by Mr Wessels in consul tat ion 

wi th Mr Burger and you. ”  

And yet  he has g iven evidence Mr Mlambo I  am looking at  

his aff idavi t  here.   I  received absolutely no response f rom Mr 10 

Saloojee.  

 Now let  us assume that  you are r ight  for  a moment .  

That  you were ent i t led simply to leave i t  even though you 

had been approached as Group CEO intervene for you to say 

wel l  I  am not  going to intervene I  am just  too busy and I  

have got  other people who should be resolving i t  so I  am 

going to leave i t  to them to resolve and later I  th ink that  they 

have resolved i t  so i t  is a l l  f ine.    

Just  at  the level  o f  professional  courtesy would i t  not  

have appropriate for  you to  say to  Mr Mlambo I  am afraid I  20 

am too busy to deal  wi th th is but  I  am delegat ing i t  to Mr 

Wessels or I  am delegat ing i t  to Mr Mhlont lo you wi l l  hear  

f rom them  Would that  not  have been appropriate? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  agree wi th you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And would i t  not  have been 
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appropriate a lso for you to fo l low up so that  before you did 

give your approval  and we are going to take you to the 

memorandum in a moment where a few weeks later you did 

sign.   Would i t  not  have been appropriate just  to be sure 

because you CEO.  You are the Account ing Off icer for Denel  

in terms of  the PFMA not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You cannot say in terms of  the PFMA 

wel l  we sl ipped up as an organisat ion but  somebody further 

down the picking order in  the organisat ion d id not  do their  10 

job.   You were responsible ul t imately not  so for compl iance 

wi th procurement procedures,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And Mr Mlambo has said to you they 

have not  compl ied wi th ABCDEF.  Would i t  not  have been 

appropriate before you signed approval  not  to rely simply on 

what Mr Wessels or Mr Mhlont lo oh wel l  Mr Burger says that  

he has done i t  a l l .   At  least  again by way of  f i rst ly courtesy 

and a way of  protect ing yoursel f  to  wri te to Mr Mlambo and 

say,  th is memorandum has come back to me can I  just  20 

conf i rm al l  of  your queries have been answered and i f  they 

have not  been answered tel l  me what they are.    

And i f  there is a div is ion of  opinion between you at  

head off ice and DLS at  d iv is ional  level  we wi l l  refer  i t  to our 

– for somebody to give some sort  of  professional  v iew.  
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Would that  not  have been the obvious way of  deal ing wi th i t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  I  mean I  th ink you know wi thin the 

context  of  what happened during that  part icular per iod okay I  

thought I  had done the r ight  th ing by get t ing Mr Mhlont lo and 

Mr Wessels to get  into this issue and look at  the meri ts of  

th is th ing.   And Burger and then came back into my off ice 

and as I  have ind icated they had gone through each one of  

these issues and said that  they th ink that  they have 

addressed this adequately okay.   And the nature of  th is  

program was of  such cr i t ical i ty that  we could not  cont inue in 10 

the vein that  we were wi thout  coming to some resolut ion.   I f  I  

may I  do not  know i f  you have had a chance I  mean I  have 

got  i t  in f ront  of  me Mr Wessels in h is – in his aff idavi t  

indicates at  that  meet ing and in fact  Ntshepe was at  that  

meet ing as wel l  where he said… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you can read – refer  to  what  you want 

to refer to i f  i t  is relevant  to your answer i f  you want to.  

MR SALOOJEE:   But  i f  I  may Mr Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Visi t  h is aff idavi t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes carry on.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    

“So dur ing the meet ing ei ther Mr Mhlont lo or mysel f  referred 

to the emai l  f rom Mr Mlambo …” 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are now reading f rom Mr Burger ’s  

aff idavi t?  
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MR SALOOJEE:   No this is f rom Mr Jan Wessels.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Wessels aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh Mr Wessels’s aff idavi t .  

MR SALOOJEE:   So there was a meet ing that  was 

convened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SALOOJEE:   With Mr Burger,  wi th Mr Mhlont lo,  wi th Mr 

Wessels and Mr Ntshepe was present .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes 

MR SALOOJEE:   To address this speci f ic emai l  of  the 9 t h.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes but  not  Mr Mhlont lo.   I  am sorry not  

Mr Mlambo.  

MR SALOOJEE:   No he was not  there he was not  at  the 

off ice that  day.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Okay.   So they have convened this urgent  

meet ing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    

“So dur ing the meet ing e i ther Mr Mhlont lo or 20 

mysel f  referred to  the emai l  f rom Mr Mlambo 

on dated 9 September.   I  recol lect  that  ei ther 

Mr Ntshepe or Mr Burger  responded that  al l  

Mr Mlambo’s concerns were adequately  

addressed by DLS and the submission for  
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approval  on GCEO table ref lects that .   As I  

recol lect  Mr Burger stated that  almost  three 

months had been lost  s ince July 2014 and 

re i terated his  posi t ion that  as pr ime 

contractor for Hoefyster DLS use LMT as a 

program r isk to the safety of  th is f ight ing 

vehicle project  and that  he as CEO of  Denel  

Land Systems is  unwi l l ing to contract  LMT 

for hul l  manufacture unless the GCEO 

instructs him to do so.    And then GCEO wi l l  10 

have to take the safety responsib i l i ty away 

f rom DLS and carry i t  on i ts own shoulders.   

As I  recol lect  Mr Ntshepe supported Mr 

Burger st rongly and stated that  the pr inciple  

of  decentral ised operat ing model  of  Denel  is  

one where the div is ional  CEO’s are 

responsible for the business performance 

operat ions and contract  execut ion.   I f  the 

GCEO and i f  the GCEO overrules DLS in th is  

instance i t  creates a dangerous future 20 

precedent for the tota l  group s ince divis ional  

CEO’s wi l l  not  be held accountable for  

project  execut ion and business performance.   

I  a lso recol lect  that  ei ther Mr Burger or Mr 

Ntshepe stated to Mr Saloojee that  in the 
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s i tuat ion where DLS is inst ructed to use LMT 

for hu l l  manufacture General  Ntshepe 

eventual ly for the army and his senior staff  

wi l l  become aware wi th the monthly program 

report ing via Armscor that  there is  a safety 

r isk on the Hoefyster pro ject  which could 

resul t  in contract  cancel lat ion. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   May I  interrupt  you – may I  interrupt  you 

Mr Saloojee?  Is  the posi t ion not  that  nobody should have 

made bets or sought to say wel l  i f  you do not  agree wi th me 10 

then you wi l l  carry the responsibi l i ty?  Is the posi t ion not  

that  you as the f inal  decision maker had to sat isfy yoursel f  

whether the laws and the pol ic ies had been compl ied wi th.   

You could not  be threatened by somebody to go against  the 

laws and go against  the pol ic ies of  the company just  

because they thought you might  make a decision they did not  

l ike and they saying that  in the event  you wi l l  take 

responsibi l i ty.   You had to sat isfy yoursel f  whether the issues 

that  Mr Mlambo had raised which went to the quest ion 

complying wi th the laws and pol ic ies whether there had been 20 

compl iance.   Some – anyone else could say whatever they 

said was not  your duty to sat isfy yoursel f  that  there had 

been compl iance and Mr Mlambo saying that  there would no 

compl iance.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  take what you are saying and the 
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fact  of  the matter  is  that  when al l  of  these processes was 

f in ished al l  of  these interact ions were undertaken and yes 

there was a d iscussion around Mr Mlambo’s emai l .   That  

when they eventual ly brought th is submission to me okay as 

I  have ind icated that  I  had given the mandate for them to 

cont inue wi th the negot iat ions wi th  LMT and with VR Laser 

and I  thought that  was the correct  th ing to do and that  is  

what I  d id.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  do you – do – did you sat isfy yoursel f  

whether the laws and the pol ic ies were compl ied wi th before 10 

you made the decision? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Wel l  af ter the presentat ions that  were 

made to me I  Mr Mhlont lo by Mr Wessels by Mr Burger and 

responding to each of  these things I  – I  was of  the view that  

I  was sat isf ied that  they have addressed those issues. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  I  – I  am asking the quest ion.   Did 

you sat isfy yoursel f  that  there had been compl iance wi th the 

laws and the pol ic ies or is the posi t ion that  somebody said 

there had been compl iance and you said wel l  i f  so and so 

says there was compl iance I  wi l l  accept  that  there was 20 

compl iance even i f  I  d id not  sat isfy mysel f .  

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chai r  there was not  an external  v iew on 

– or advice on this matter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  when I  ta lk about  somebody else I  am 

talking about Mr Burger and so on.  
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MR SALOOJEE:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When I  say – when somebody else says 

there was compl iance maybe you would say okay i f  DLS says 

there was compl iance I  wi l l  take i t  that  there was 

compl iance.   I  am talk ing about internal  people.   So my 

quest ion is did you sat isfy yoursel f  that  there had been 

compl iance or  is the posi t ion that  you deferred as i t  were to 

other people such as Mr Burger and whoever else who were 

saying Mr Mlambo’s issues are not  val id or have been 

addressed and you took that  and said wel l  i f  they say so I  10 

wi l l  accept  that  that  is so even – I  wi l l  not  have to  sat isfy 

mysel f .  

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  af ter  having l istened to al l  the 

arguments I  had sat isf ied mysel f  that  th is was the r ight  th ing 

to do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja of  course that  does not  answer the 

quest ion whether you sat isf ied yoursel f  that  there had been 

compl iance – compl iance wi th the laws and pol ic ies.   I t  might  

the r ight  th ing to do and he talked moral i ty in terms of  what  

is moral ly r ight  ear l ier on but  I  am simply talk ing about  20 

compl iance wi th the laws and the pol ic ies.   Did you sat isfy 

yoursel f  at  approving that  before you approved there had 

been compl iance wi th the laws and pol ic ies? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  af ter having gone through al l  the 

arguments and debates and whatever else I  had come to the 
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conclusion that  there had been compl iance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Is that  st i l l  your  

view? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  mean I  have to study this in a 

bet ter way to understand that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Interest ingly Mr Burger who had been 

so adamant ly in support  of  VR Laser ’s appointment  and i t  

u l t imately prevai led thanks to the mandate that  you gave him 

al though he did not  comply wi th the condi t ion.   He has 10 

repeatedly conceded in the wi tness chair  that  you are now 

si t t ing in to  the Chairperson that  i t  was in fact  i r regular ly  

done.   And that  Mr Mlambo’s concerns about i l legal i ty and 

unfai rness in a process were not  only in good fai th but  

actual ly correct .   That  is was done unlawful ly and unfai r ly.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  am not  sure about the unlawful  

th ing of  what Mr Burger has conceded to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink Mr Kennedy is correct .   My 

recol lect ion is that  Mr Burger conceded that  – but  what he 

insisted on was that  he bel ieved at  the t ime that  his 20 

decisions were in the interest  of  Denel .   But  as to the 

compl iance wi th the pol ic ies or the legal i t ies my recol lect ion 

also is the same as Mr Kennedy’s namely that  he conceded 

that .   We are not  saying you must  concede i f  you do not  – i f  

you do not  see i t .   Mr Kennedy was just  te l l ing you what Mr 
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Burger ’s posi t ion was af ter for qui te  some t ime he seemed to 

have insisted that  there had been nothing wrong with the – 

wi th how i t  had been – this matter has been handled.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you at  any stage consider referr ing 

the matter ei ther to an external  lawyer or an internal  lawyer 

wi thin the company to give an opinion as to which view was 

correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No we d id not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Because you came to the view you say 10 

af ter consider ing al l  of  the arguments that  Mr Mlambo’s 

concerns were unjust i f ied.   But  you do not  seem to have that  

t ime to have engaged with i t  and secondly that  is not  your  

f ie ld of  expert ise.   So would not  – I  mean at  least  to  protect  

yoursel f  would i t  not  have made sense?  I  mean for example 

i f  the Audi tor General  came to do an audi t  and found that  

there were i rregular i t ies how would you explain that?  Would  

you say wel l  Mr Burger said he did i t  so i t  was al l  f ine in my 

view or that  I  thought that  i t  was a compl iance – compl iant  

process that  was fol lowed. 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  mean as I  have indicated before I  –  

I  was of  the view that  the process had been fo l lowed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  was of  the view that  th is th ing had been 

discussed at  the very highest  level  wi th in the organisat ions 
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and that  they had come to the conclusion that  these issues 

were adequately addressed and that  is what they came to 

br ief  me on.   And that  is what I  am saying here.   With 

hindsight  yes we should have been… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes carry on sorry.  

MR SALOOJEE:   We should not  have – we should have 

maybe had at  least  a th i rd party have a look at  th is.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I  f ind i t  interest ing what you read 

out  f rom Mr Wessels’ aff idavi t  where he explained in some 

detai l  the d iscussion he had wi th you together wi th Mr 10 

Mhlont lo and Mr Ntshepe without  Mr Mlambo present .   You 

ment ioned that  Mr Mlambo was away for a couple of  days.  

MR SALOOJEE:  Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   His emai l  indicates I  th ink he said I  am 

back on Monday. 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes,  ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was the matter so urgent  that  i t  had to 

be debated wi thout  Mr Mlambo present  i t  could not  have 

wai ted unt i l  he was back?  Would that  not  have made more 

sense whether or not  he got…? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  agree wi th that  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   At  the very least  to make him feel  

that  he is taken ser iously.  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  agree wi th that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Because I  must  admit  again as an 
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outsider and perhaps naively I  am going to suggest  th is to  

you but  again i t  just  seems to me a bi t  st range that  Denel  

goes to the t rouble of  appoint ing somebody who is got  a 

weal th of  experience.   We have seen his background in his 

own aff idavi t  Mr Mlambo and he raises al l  of  these things.   

Everybody accepts that  he does i t  in good fai th.   You 

happened to think that  he was wrong.   Mr Burger thought  

that  he was wrong al though ul t imately Mr Burger has now 

accepted that  Mr Mlambo was r ight .  I t  just  seems to me to be 

a bi t  of  a waste of  t ime and money and human resources to  10 

employ somebody l ike Mr Mlambo with his decades of  

experience.   He does his job in good fai th,  raises these 

concerns and nobody actual ly ever  gets back to him to say,  

wel l  we have actual ly had an answer f rom Mr Burger.   I t  

seems to me Mr Saloojee as GCEO that  that  is probably a 

good answer but  Mr Mlambo are you happy?  Can you 

conf i rm that  you agree or do not?  Is there something I  have 

overlooked?  Instead he is just  ignored that  was h is 

evidence.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  I  mean there were on-going 20 

discussions between Mr Mhlont lo and Mr Mlambo.  He was 

not  being ignored at  a l l  and that  is what t ranspired.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And yet  – and yet  Mr Mhlont lo has not  

given any evidence even when he was asked about th is to  

the effect  that  he was constant  discussion wi th Mr Mlambo.   
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He did not  deny that  there was no response to this.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  mean I  cannot  – I  cannot comment on 

whether he said that  or not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No.   Yes.   And you cannot comment on 

whether he actual ly did carry out  what you would expect  h im 

to which is to have constant  communicat ion wi th Mr Mlambo.  

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is what I  was under the impression.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  Were you moved when – I  do not  

know you say you saw part  of  Mr  Mlambo’s evidence and 

part  of  Mr Burger ’s evidence.   Did you see Ms Malahlela ’s 10 

evidence? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chair  I  d id.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Including the moment when she broke 

down in tears.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chair  I  d id.   I  d id not  see that  part  but  

I  heard you talk – reference i t  when Mr Burger was here.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And – and did you see Mr Mlambo 

si t t ing giving evidence here and explain ing how he came 20 

af ter a lengthy career at  Denel  that  he eventual ly fe l t  wel l  he 

was – he had to leave because there was no point  in him 

being there he was not  being taken ser iously.   That  is the 

effect  of  h is evidence.   Clear ly very sad and moving f rom a 

purely human point  of  v iew to see somebody l ike him a 
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ser ious profession having become so demoral ised t ry ing to  

do h is job and just  being effect ive ly ignored and the same 

from Ms Malahlela to the point  of  tears.   Does that  concern 

you as a human being as you si t  here now? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Mr Kennedy,  Chai r  I  mean I  sat  here before 

you last  year.   What they had gone through I  had gone 

through mysel f .   The process that  I  had – underwent in Denel  

by the t ime of  my suspension had an incredible effect  on me 

and my l i fe.   I  know Mr Mlambo f rom the days long days f rom 

st ruggle we comrades together.   I  have the greatest  respect  10 

for him.  I  have the greatest  respect  for Ms Malahle la.  The 

fact  that  they were t reated the way they were t reated by that  

organisat ion.   The fact  that  mysel f ,  the CFO, the company 

secretary were t reated in the way in which we were t reated 

is in many respects s imi lar to the experiences that  they have 

had.   I  mean the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The [00:23:11]  o f  course is or par t  of  the 

di fferences is that  in th is case you – on their  evidence you 

seemed to have been part  of  the people who were act ing in a 

manner that  was f rust rat ing them. 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  I  have indicated very clear ly what 

were the reasons,  the issues that  they comprise,  the issues 

they are t ry ing to resolve these issues so that  we come to a 

win-win si tuat ion.   I  was doing what I  thought was in  the best  

interest  of  the organisat ion.   I  d id not  give b lanket  approval  
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for  Mr Burger  or DLS.  They have to go through a process.   

This process went for  over f ive months that  is why when they 

came to my off ice they said that  th is is so cr i t ical  now a 

decision has to be made.  I t  was stal led for f ive months 

precisely because of  these discussions and debates that  

were going on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course one of  the strange features for 

me is that  there was that  per iod of  about  you say f ive 

months.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  I  recal l  correct ly there were two 

instances where Mr Mlambo – where certain discussions 

happened when Mr Mlambo was not  around in ci rcumstances 

where those discussing the matter should have included him.   

The one is the one that  we have just  ta lked about.    

You said he was not  there on that  day.   But  he was 

going to come back ei ther the fol lowing day or in a few days’ 

t ime and one asked the quest ion,  why could this not  wai t?   

But  apart  f rom that  I  th ink and I  cannot remember the detai ls 

also at  some stage I  th ink when the agreement – I  do not 20 

know which one was signed he had not  been consul ted at  al l .   

He heard much la ter that  the agreement  had been signed in  

ci rcumstances where on his version and he seems to be r ight  

in terms of  the pol ic ies of  the company before that  

agreement could be signed he should have been approached 
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so that  he could say whether there had been compl iance or  

not .    

So one is bound to ask the quest ion was i t  a lways – 

was i t  coincidental  on both occasions that  he was not  there 

when these ser ious developments happened or was there 

some sinister plan by somebody to exclude him because he 

was going to make i t  d i ff icul t  to achieve what they wanted to  

achieve.   Because he had these arguments and these 

arguments were standing in the way of  appoint ing VR Laser 

and Mr Burger at  least  on one occasion wrote a – wrote him 10 

a long emai l  but  did not  address the real  issues that  he was 

ra ising.    

And i f  I  recal l  correct ly when Mr Burger was here and 

I  hope I  am not  mixing things up now he could not  address 

those part icular issues which he should have addressed in  

that  emai l .   So – so you see that  – one looks at  these things 

and one wonders whether i t  was always coincidental  or at  

least  not  always on those two occasions when there were to  

be important  developments i t  was coinc idental  that  he was 

not  at  work.   Or that  he was not  invi ted to be involved.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  hear what you are saying Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You understand that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  see we are at  quarter to eight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   E ight  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   E ight  should we – let  us talk  about  how far  

we are f rom f in ish ing and then maybe we should take a short  

adjournment of  ten minutes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes I  th ink I  probably need about 

another hour Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About another hour.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The bulk of  i t  we have deal t  wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In relat ion to these plat form hul l  

contracts.   There are some further issues I  st i l l  need to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   Mr Saloojee are you st i l l  f ine to 

cont inue? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and okay al r ight .   Maybe let  us take a 

short  ad journment  ten minutes and then we come back and 

we cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay we adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Chai r,  we are st i l l  in  

Bundle 1.   And may I  ask you,  Mr Saloojee to turn to page 

793? 

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now that  is a recommendat ion that  i s  

dated – we see on page 795,  the 29t h of  September 2014.  

And i t  is s igned by Mr Mlambo, Mr Wessels and Mr Mhlont lo.   

Do you see that? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And I  am not  going to take you through 10 

al l  of  the detai ls of  th is.   The evidence has been that  th is 

was the product  – th is is what was cal led the physician(?) 

paper,  relat ing to the Plat form Hul ls  contract .  

 Before the f inal  award to  VR Laser,  what was indicated 

here was a consensus view by the three individuals that  a 

port ion of  the work be shared wi th LMT.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you fami l iar wi th th is document?  

Do you recal l  i f  that  was drawn to your at tent ion? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was? 

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And did you approve i t?  

MR SALOOJEE :    No.   I  mean, there was no approval  

process wi th th is.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And you were not  asked to 

approve i t .  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  did you th ink i t  was a good idea? 

MR SALOOJEE :    What?  The sharing of  the work? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  And th is ,  presumable,  would have 

achieved the condi t ion that  you had set  that  they need to 

share the work wi th LMT.  10 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Of  course,  what I  suggest  to you 

is that  sharing the work between two of  the bidders does not  

necessari ly remedy any def ic iencies or breaches in  relat ion 

to procurement pol ic ies and laws,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Okay.   Mr Mlambo has given 

evidence that  th is decis ion that  was taken jo int ly  in th is 

posi t ion paper that  LMT should be given part  of  the work,  

ul t imately,  was not  carr ied into effect .  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    That  is correct ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And we then come to the next  

document at  page 797 which is the submission,  Group Chief  

Execut ive Off icer Supply Chain submission.   I t  is addressed 

to Exco.   Do you see that  on page 797? 
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MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  comes f rom the DLS Exco.   That  

is the Divis ional  Exco.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Headed by Mr Burger,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  is dated the 

15t h of  October 20214.  Now i t  sets out  some of  the 

background and we see the signator ies to  th is document at  

pages 804 to 806.   The f i rst  is Ms Malahle la.    10 

 The second is Ms Af r ica,  who is the then Execut ive 

Manager,  Infantry Systems.  And then Mr Teubes.   We know 

he was another execut ive f rom DLS.   

 And then Mr Burger  h imsel f .   He was the CEO of  DLS.   

And then there is a recommendat ion by Mr Wessels.   Do you 

see his signature,  dated the 16t h of  October? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And l ikewise,  a signature for  the 

recommendat ion f rom Mr Mhlonth lo,  Group CFO, Denel ,  

16t h of  October 2014.  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you then signed i t  on the same 

date,  the 16t h of  October 2014 and we see that  on page 806.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now is th is the document you were 
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referr ing to ear l ier where you did not  delete or mark which 

was approved and which was rejected? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   But  everybody else seems to 

have interpreted this an approval  by you,  despi te the fact  

that  you did not  c i rc le the word approve or delete the word 

re ject .   Was this,  in fact ,  not  an approval  by you? 

MR SALOOJEE :    My understanding was that  i t  was a 

mandate given to them to engage in  an negot iat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Are you saying that  by signing 10 

here,  you thought  you were giving them a mandate to enter  

into negot iat ions? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Despi te the fact  that  except  the approve 

or reject?  Or you thought you were approving negot ia t ions? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  mean, i f  you look at  th is.   I t  is a  

recommendat ion.   I t  a lso has,  for  example,  as I  have 

indicated ear l ier on,  the issue of  contract ing LMT as a Single 

Source Suppl ier.   They had to go and negot iate this wi th the 

part ies that  were involved.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   I  am going back to page 804:  

“ In l ine wi th the discussion are contemplated here 

and we hereby recommend the approval  of  the 

Group CEO of  Denel  approves the deal  as 

recommended select ion of  the Hul l  Suppl ier. ”  
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 So,  certainly,  that  is not  – i t  is the select ion that  you are 

approving there.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   And then B,  you are approving a 

recommendat ion that  the mandate to – a mandate be given 

to then cont ract  negot iat ions for  the manufactur ing and 

supply of  the hul ls .    

 And then under C,  you are – you would be giving 

permission to Mr Burger to sign the cont ract  before the 

manufactur ing of  the hul ls.    10 

 So – and D, you were approving a recommendat ion and 

therefore you were going along wi th  the recommendat ion that  

– what is th is – contract ing LMT as a Single Source Suppl ier  

for the vehicle  hul ls near rear internal  f leet  and the 

backdoor.  

 E:   Af ter the complet ion of  the jo int  pass for design,  that  

they d id not  therefore vehicle hul l  near rear internal  f leet  and 

backdoor be contracted on the same pr inciples.    

 So I  guess,  i t  is  not  just  negot ia t ions that  you were 

approving,  should be embarked upon.  There may have been 20 

negot iat ions but  there was a lot  more,  including concluding 

some contract ,  is i t  not? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    So maybe just  to then go back to  

Mr Kennedy’s quest ions because you did not  delete or  

encircle any of  the two words,  approve or reject .   You now 

conf i rm that  you were approving what you have said you are 

approving,  in l ine wi th the recommendat ions? 

MR SALOOJEE :    In l ine wi th the recommendat ions and the 

mandate to cont inue wi th the negot iat ions as wel l  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   But  of  course,  B,  D,  D and 

E are separate paragraphs.   A starts wi th the Group CEO of  10 

Denel  approves that  DLS recommended select ion of  a hul l  

suppl ier.   That  was VR Laser,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   So whether or not ,  u l t imately,  

there were negot iat ions wi th,  for  example,  LMT and whether 

or  not  they were appointed to produce the rear door,  et  

cetera.   You were approving VR Laser ’s  appointment  for  the 

Plat form Hul l  components,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And th is is a mandate entered 20 

into contract  negot iat ions wi th the manufactur ing supply of  

the Hoefyster Plat form Hul ls for 183 armoured vehicles to  

ensure that  the tota l  contract ’s pr ice f i ts wi th in the DLS 

budget.  

 Now this seems to rather put  th ings back to f ront .   
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Should one not  be approving something as Group CEO, 

namely the award of  VR Laser as the successful  tenderer on 

the basis that  they have produced a pr ice,  that  they have 

produced a bid which involves a pr ice that  you then approve.  

 This seems to be back to f ront  to say:   I  am approving 

their  appointment  but  negot iate wi th them just  to make sure 

that  the pr ice comes down to f i t  in wi th the budget.  

 This does not  seem to me to record wi th what normal 

legal  and fai r  procurement processes requi re,  is i t?  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  in any t ransact ion of  th is nature,  10 

there wi l l  a lways be a d iscussion about the pr ice,  r ight  up to  

the end in terms of  what is the fai rest  pr ice you wi l l  be able 

to get .   

 And that  is what I  understand here.   Is that  they have 

got  a  certain budget and they have got to f i t  i t  in wi th th is 

budget.  

 And Mr Burger was very adamant  and clear here that  

that  was the r ight  th ing to do in terms of  choosing VR Laser.   

But  i f  we had to choose VR Laser,  he had to then make sure 

that  he negot iates a pr ice that  was wi thin his budget.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And does that  not  mean that  VR Laser 

would have a rather st rong negot iat ing posi t ion?  They would 

be approached by Mr Burger to say:   Guys,  you have got  the 

contract .   Mr Saloojee,  good news, has awarded you the 

contract .   But  I  have just  got  to br ing your pr ice down a b i t .    
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MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  mean, i f  you look at  th is 

document.   Before i t  came to me,  i t  has gone through the 

ent i re process as I  have ind icated,  f rom.. .   I t  says even 

there.   I t  went  through the technical  – thei r  Execut ive 

Commit tee,  thei r  Supply Chain.  

 In fact ,  the person – the or ig inator of  th is document wi th  

obviously Burger ’s instruct ion,  came from Ms Malahlela.   She 

is the f i rst  one to i t    

 A lbert  Af r ica,  who is the Head of  Infantry Systems.  

Infant ry System is  where they actual ly bui ld  or take 10 

responsibi l i ty for the programme management of  these hul ls.  

 Teubes is the COO.  Burger,  Wessels,  Mhlonthlo.   Then 

i t  comes to me.  I t  has gone through an ent i re process of  

some of  the most  senior people in the organisat ion.  

 And obviously by the t ime i t  gets to  me, i t  has had to go 

through a thorough process and that  is  my understanding of  

th is document.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  Mr Saloojee.   You cannot always hide 

behind the fact  that  a number of  people hold a certain view 

when you are asked to just i fy your own decision.   You have 20 

got  to say,  th is was a correct  decis ion because of  A,  B,  C,  D 

i rrespect ive of  who held what view.   

 And i f  you cannot  just i fy your decis ion or  your view, the 

fact  that  your view that  you cannot  just i fy happens to be held 

by other people,  does not  necessar i ly make i t  correct  or 
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r ight ,  you know.  They might  al l  be mistaken.    

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  agree wi th you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SALOOJEE :    But  surely,  i f  you look at  the level  of  the 

execut ives who are here.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR SALOOJEE :    As a Group CEO, I  was to rely on the 

advice and informat ion that  was provided by the most  senior 

people wi thin the organisat ion.   That  is how organisat ions 

work.    10 

 You cannot have f ive people,  s ix people who have 

signed this document being wrong about i t .   And when they 

br ing – they brought the mot ivat ion to me, obviously,  I  

l istened to them very careful ly based on al l  the arguments 

that  they have proceeded and I  said yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Up to a certain point  you take into account 

what they have to say and what the ir  v iews are,  but  there is  

a reason why you are the CEO and they are not .   And that  is 

why ul t imately the power is given to  you to make the 

decision.  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  agree wi th you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Thank you,  Chai r.   

Mr Saloojee,  I  am interested in your  answer.   You say that  al l  

of  these people signed and they were very senior  people.  
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So you had to take them ser iously and you acted on thei r  

advice.    

 What I  f ind interest ing is that  Ms Malahlela’s  name and 

signature appear here as the Execut ive Manager for the 

Supply Chain.   Nowhere do you see any reference to 

Mr Mlambo signing here or being asked to sign,  to say where 

he supports the recommendat ion or not .  

 Now i f  Ms Malahlela was so important  to give you advise 

at  a div is ional  level  where she is  report ing to Mr Burger.   

What you seem to have omit ted in saying that :   These are al l  10 

the senior people that  I  was able to rely on their  advice.   Is  

an acknowledgement that  Mr Mlambo’s name is nowhere to  

be seen.  

 There is no reference here at  al l  to Mr Mlambo having 

ra ised concerns and that  Mr Mlambo had been engaged and 

had an agreed to anything to resolve these concerns or that  

he had been overruled for good reason or what  those 

reasons were.   There is just  nothing.  

 So I  just  want to  point  out  what Mr Mlambo has said 

before this Commission,  both in his aff idavi t  and in his oral  20 

test imony.    

 He said – can I  take you back to page 793?   

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He said that  he thought that  at  least  

some of  his concerns had been relayed by the posi t ion paper 
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which would at  least  have given LMT some part  of  the work.   

Nobody came back to him af ter that .    

 Nobody came back to h im to show him this submission 

at  page 797.   And that  i t  is s ign i f icant ,  I  suggest  to you 

Mr Saloojee,  that  when we go back to th is heading I  took you 

to a moment ago,  page 797.  

 There is a heading to th is document,  as one would 

expect .   The heading is that  i t  comes f rom Denel  Land 

Systems, Supply Chain submission.  

 I t  comes f rom the DLS Exco.   I t  comes f rom the divis ion.   10 

And then i t  contains on page 804,  as we have seen,  the 

signature f rom Ms Malahlela f rom the divis ion.    

 From Mr Teubes,  page 805.   And also Mr Burger,  f rom 

the divis ion.    Mr Wessels f rom head off ice.   Mr Mhlonthlo 

f rom head off ice.   But  not  once has anybody ment ioned 

Mr Mlambo or his concerns.    

 He said he thought that  his concerns had been resolved.   

And he said he found out  later to h is shock and dismay that  

al l  of  th is document – al l  that  is contained in th is document 

was prepared and submit ted to you behind his back and that  20 

you then signed i t  on the 16t h of  October 2014,  despi te his  

ser ious object ions.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  mean, I  cannot comment on 

whether he saw the document or not .   I  would imagine that  

Mhlont lo ’s signature here,  who he reported to,  was the 
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appropriate signature.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is i t  not  st range that  al l  of  you,  yoursel f ,  

Mr Mhlonthlo,  Wessels,  Teubes,  Mr Burger – al l  of  you 

happened to be avai lable on the same day,  the 

16t h of  October 2014 but  th is one man who had strong v iews 

that  – against  th is ,  one,  is not  there.    

 Two, nobody seems to say:   Hang on.   What about  Mr 

Mlambo and his concerns?  At  th is stage,  everybody just  

s igns.   I t  is – i t  ra ises some issues.   I  am not  saying 

ul t imately what one makes of  them but  i t  just  seems strange.    10 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  take your point  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you accept  the point? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  accept  the point .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you agree that  i t  is st range? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And there is no explanat ion for i t?  

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Otherwise,  i f  there is an explanat ion,  

th is is your opportuni ty to give i t .  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    Wel l ,  as I  have indicated Mr Kennedy and 

Chai r.   That  I  would have imagined that  i f  he was report ing to 

Mr Mhlont lo,  i t  was generated f rom the divis ion that  that  was 

suff ic ient .   And I  would be surpr ised – I  am surpr ised that  he 

said he was not  aware of  th is document.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    At  least  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  you agree at  least  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR SALOOJEE :    At  least  his counterpart .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  why would you say – because I  th ink 

that  is what you are saying – you would not  have seen,  at  

least  at  stage anything st range about his absence because 

his superior,  Mhlont lo was there.    

 And yet ,  I  th ink Ms Malahlela who was in the same – or 

maybe I  am get t ing my facts wrong.   Was she not  in the 10 

same l ine of  author i ty wi th Mr Burger?  Both were there.    

 In other words,  i t  does not  look l ike i t  was a si tuat ion 

where i t  was said each uni t  or whatever must  be represented 

by one person.    

 Here was a si tuat ion where a junior  and a senior both 

signed.   And therefore,  why should Mr Mlambo not  be there 

and sign as wel l  even i f  Mr Mhlont lo  was there.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  mean, I  th ink Ms Malahlela is  the 

one who generated i t .   That  is my understanding.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    I t  is generated,  th is,  on behal f  of  the 

divis ion,  Head of  Supply Chain wi th in the divis ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR SALOOJEE :    And again,  I  would be surpr ised 

Mr Kennedy that  given the fact  that  al l  the Supply Chain 
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people talk al l  the t ime, that  Mr Mlambo would not  have been 

aware f rom Ms Malahle la that  th is – th is document existed.   I  

am just  – I  am speculat ing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you suggest ing that  Mr Mlambo 

l ied under oath when he . . . [ intervenes]   

MR SALOOJEE :    No,  I  am not .   I  am not  at  a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  he was never  – that  they never  

came back to him.  

MR SALOOJEE :    I  am not  saying that  Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Then what are you saying? 10 

MR SALOOJEE :    A l l  I  am saying is  that ,  I  am surpr ised that  

he was not  aware of  th is document.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    That  is al l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Because you would expect  

Ms Malahlela to go back to him.  

MR SALOOJEE :    I  am not  suggest ing that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You are not  suggest ing that? 

MR SALOOJEE :    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   I  just  want to touch very br ief ly  20 

in conclusion on this leg of  the quest ion ing before we wrap 

up wi th a few other issues.   This Hul l  -  Plat form Hul ls  

contract .    

 You said that ,  ear l ier,  i f  I  understood your evidence,  you 

were saying,  you did in fact  go through an exercise where 
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you considered a l l  of  Mr Mlambo’s object ions and bel ieved 

that  they had no meri t .   Is that  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  d id not  say Chair  that  they had not  

meri ts.   I  said when we had the meet ing wi th  the senior 

execut ives and wi th the CEO and CFO. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    When they explained how they just  – al l  of  

those issues,  f rom the f inances to the BEE stuff  and the 

process that  they had gone through, I  had sat isf ied mysel f  

that  they had resolved these issues.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  Now you read out  to us ear l ier 

f rom Mr Wessels’ aff idavi t  where he referred to i t ,  but  in very 

broad general  terms.  There is no document anywhere that  

we have been able to obtain wi th the vice powers that  th is  

Commission has had to get  documents and informat ion f rom 

var ious wi tnesses.  

 We have got  al l  of  these documents that  we see,  

including Mr Mlambo’s repeated emai ls in great  detai l .   

Nowhere do we see anybody,  whether you or anybody else 

saying,  Mr Mlambo says in relat ion to B-BBEE cert i f icate,  i t  20 

was unfai r  because LMT’s B-BBEE cert i f icate was rejected 

because i t  was out  of  date and they did not  –  nobody 

bothered to check wi th HR what the t rue credent ia ls were.  

 Whereas VR Laser,  a lso had something that  was out  of  

date and yet  that  was al lowed in.   Nowhere have you said or  
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anybody e lse said in a document that  we are aware of ,  to  

say:   Mr Mlambo is wrong on those facts.   For example,  VR 

Laser ’s cert i f icate was not  out  of  date and LMT’s cer t i f icate,  

there was no basis on which we could have gone to HR and 

found out  the facts.    

 Or we d id go to HR and we found out  that  the facts are,  

to just i fy LMT is scor ing very l i t t le  on BEE.  Nowhere have 

we seen that .  

 Now I  am not  going through the exerc ise of  going point-

by-point  through Mr Mlambo’s emai l  but  I  just  wanted to  10 

dwel l  on that  for a  moment.    

 Sorry,  I  rather  to  hold a lot  of  quest ions in one,  which is  

a bi t  unfai r  to you.   Let  me just  unpack i t .    

 Is i t  correct  that  you did not  put  down in wri t ing 

anywhere an answer or  your conclusion as to an evaluat ion 

of  Mr Mlambo’s concerns? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  I  should have acknowledged receipt  

of  Mr Mlambo’s . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is not  the quest ion.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Ja.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  d id not  ask you i f  you acknowledged 

receipt .   We have al ready deal t  wi th  that .  

MR SALOOJEE :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  have asked you.   Have you ever put  

down in wri t ing any analyses to  just i fy your  conclus ion that  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 326 of 397 
 

each one of  Mr Mlambo’s concerns was properly answered? 

MR SALOOJEE :    No,  we have not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Why not? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Because I  fe l t  the way in which we have 

deal t  wi th i t  was going into the organisat ion,  going down to 

the other senior execut ives that  that  was suff ic ient  to deal  

wi th.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now, nowhere in these documents is 

there any other document f rom anybody other than yoursel f ,  

Mr Saloojee in which that  analysis has been done, other than 10 

the vague emai ls  that  Mr Burger  keeps sending back to  

Mr Mlambo, where he said:   But  you do not  address the B-

BBEE issue,  for example,  for the fo l lowing reasons. 

 He never actual ly deals wi th that .   Correct? 

MR SALOOJEE :    From my understanding,  they responded to 

him but  Mlambo was not  happy wi th the response.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  yes.   And in fact ,  Burger  – i f  we 

had the t ime, I  would l ike to go through a l l  of  that  is,  to go 

show you exact ly why Mr Mlambo seems to have been 

just i f ied.  20 

 Now,  nowhere in  Wessels ’ aff idavi t  is there anyth ing 

speci f ic,  for example,  that  actual ly Mr Mlambo in point  3 of  

his emai l  on the 9 t h of  September 2014 or whatever is wrong 

factual ly  or is wrong legal ly  because he has overlook this 

provision clause whatever of  the procurement pol icy.  
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 None of  that  is deal t  wi th.   What you happi ly read out  to  

the Chai rperson,  again,  is b lessed with complete general i ty  

and vagueness.    

 We discussed al l  of  these issues including B-BBEE and 

they – and we then persuaded Mr Saloojee that  everything 

was in order that  DLS had in fact  sat isf ied what  was requi red 

legal ly under the procurement pol icy.  

 They do not  say that  and you have never said that .   So 

on what basis can you ser iously expect  the Commission to  

accept  your word that ,  A,  you went through this analyses and 10 

B,  you had good reason for coming to your conclus ion that  

every single one of  those concerns raised by Mr Mlambo had 

no substance or could not  be taken to just i fy  what he was 

saying?  Start  th is  process again.     

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  as I  have indicated.   On the balance 

of  everything that  was brought  before me, the discussions 

wi th the senior execut ives and that  th is is how things 

unfolded and that  is how the decis ion was made.  And I  have 

said that .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We know that .  20 

MR SALOOJEE :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You have told the Commission how i t  

unfolded.   My quest ion was not  how did i t  unfold 

Mr Saloojee.   My quest ion was:   Have you – how can you be 

ser iously bel ieve when you say to th is Commission under 
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oath:   I  actual ly did go through i t  po int  by point ,  Mr Mlambo’s 

concerns and I  was sat isf ied.    

 Let  me ask you for example just  to test  how sure you are 

of  th is.   The B-BBEE issue.  Mr Mlambo has sa id.   LMT was 

given no points for BEE on the basis that  i ts BEE cer t i f icate 

had expi red.  

 Now was Mr Mlambo correct  or  not  correct  on the facts 

there? 

MR SALOOJEE :    From what I  read,  he was not  correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He was not  correct? 10 

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  what had – had i t  not  expi red? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I t  had expired.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  had expired? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   His next  point  was then,  that  as a 

Senior Procurement Special ist ,  I  know how these things have 

to be implemented and on the basis of  my special ist  

knowledge, and no doubt on some of  the case law and so 

forth which bears him out  to an extent .  20 

 I f  you can easi ly obtain knowledge about BEE 

credent ia ls,  apart  f rom the cert i f icate,  whether or not  i t  has 

expired,  you should do that  as a matter of  fa i rness.  

 Was he wrong or r ight  in that  legal  opinion? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Sorry,  just  repeat  that  Mr Kennedy.  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 329 of 397 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The fact  that  a BEE cert i f icate has 

expired,  even i f  i t  has expi red,  does not  mean that  you have 

to give that  person a zero rat ing.   You have to f ind out ,  i f  you 

can easi ly f ind out  the informat ion,  whether or not  they have 

BEE credent ia ls.   Was he wrong or r ight  in that  v iew? 

MR SALOOJEE :    Chai r,  my view is that ,  i f  you apply i t  for  

any tender and i f  you do not  have a val id BEE cert i f icate,  

that  is the law.  There is no val id BEE cert i f icate.   You 

cannot go to the HR Department  and f ind out :   Are you 

compl iant?   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did you ever te l l  that  to Mr Mlambo? 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  never engaged with Mr Mlambo.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did you. . .   Exact ly.   Did you ever  ask a 

lawyer who was r ight  and who was wrong?  You are not  a  

lawyer.   I  accept  Mr Mlambo is not  a t rained lawyer,  as far as 

I  understand his CV.   

MR SALOOJEE :    Sorry,  just  repeat  that  Mr Kennedy. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did you ever  go back to Mr Mlambo or 

did you ever go to  an outside lawyer to check whether  in fact  

his view was r ight  or wrong or whether your view was r ight  or 20 

wrong? 

MR SALOOJEE :    No,  I  d id not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You just  knew this.    

MR SALOOJEE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You just  knew i t?  
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MR SALOOJEE :    But  I . . .   Chai r,  wi th respect .   I  mean, we 

tender al l  the t ime with government departments and we are 

fami l iar wi th. . .   I f  you are going to say that  you are BEE 

complaint  and you submit  a  tender wi thout  a va l id BEE 

cert i f icate,  i t  is not  val id.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

MR SALOOJEE :    That  is the t ruth.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Wel l ,  in fact ,  the law is a l i t t le bi t  more 

complex than that  Mr Saloojee.   I  happened to pract ice in  

that  area and the case law in part icular,  is a lo t  more 10 

complex than you suggest .  

MR SALOOJEE :    I  am sure Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE :    I  am sure.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And in re lat ion to VR Laser,  he was 

saying:   Why could you exclude LMT because their  document  

had expi red and yet  by the same token,  admit  VR Laser ’s 

cert i f icate even though i t  was submi t ted af ter the due date? 

 Do you know whether they submit ted thei r  – a cert i f icate 

before or af ter the due date? 20 

MR SALOOJEE :    I  am not  sure when but  the cert i f icate was 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You do not  know when.  

MR SALOOJEE :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   So you cannot say now whether  



26 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 313 
 

Page 331 of 397 
 

in fact  Mr Mlambo’s concern was correct  or not .  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  cannot .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You cannot .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  you can  say,  o f  course ,  i f  they  

thought  –  i f  they  cou ld  accept  VR Laser ’s  cer t i f i ca te  a f te r  

the  due date  the re  is  no  reason why they cou ld  no t  g iven 

LMT an oppor tun i ty  to  submi t  o r  what  wou ld  you say?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  my unders tand ing  was  tha t  an 

ex tens ion  was g i ven to  bo th  pa r t ies  and tha t  the  one came 

and then the  o the r  d id  no t  come.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Okay,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  le t  us  move  

on f rom the  p la t f o rm hu l l s  cont rac t ,  i f  we may,  and there  

are  some o ther  i ssues tha t  we need to  touch on but  b r ie f l y.   

In  re la t ion  to  the  s ing le  source  supp ly  ag reement ,  I  

unders tand tha t  was u l t imate l y  approved by  Mr  Ntshepe 

once he had rep laced you as  Group CEO,  is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  do  no t  know wh ich  one you a re  

re fer r i ng  to .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The s ing le  source ,  s ing le  supp l ie r  20 

agreement  be tween DLS and VR Laser.   You d id  no t  g ive  

the  f ina l  approva l  fo r  tha t ,  tha t  was g i ven by  Mr  Ntshepe 

a f te r  you had been suspended,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    There  are  two.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    DLS I  am ta lk ing  about ,  no t  DVS.  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Dene l  Land Systems as d i s t inc t  f rom 

Dene l  Veh ic le  Systems.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  what  I  unders tand tha t  the re  were  

two ag reements .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Agreements  be tween DLS and VR 

Laser.  

MR SALOOJEE:    VR Laser  the re  was one,  tha t  was done  

jus t  be fore  I  was suspended.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    And then there  was anothe r  one tha t  was  

done by  Ntshepe.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Be tween?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Be tween DVS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    DVS,  yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Ja  and VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  r igh t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am ask ing  you about  the  DLS  

cont rac t  w i th  VR Laser,  w i th  s ing le  supp l ie r.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    That  was done May.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  was done in  May.   The ac tua l  

f ina l  approva l  was g iven.   I f  I  can  take  you in  bund le  1 ,  

page 825.   Jus t  check you have got  the  r igh t  bund le ,  i t  is  

no t  the  bund le  10  tha t  we were  look ing  a t  ear l i e r,  i t  i s  
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bund le  1 .   You go t  tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Bund le  1 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you,  page 825.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  was the  memorandum tha t  

was s igned by  Mr  Ntshepe as  we see on page 825.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  tha t  admi t ted l y  had fo l lowed 

some h is to ry  where  the  t ransact ion  had in  fac t  been  

approved and imp lemented w i th  the  cont rac t  be ing  issued 10 

to  VR Laser  by  DLS the  prev ious year  and Mr  Mlambo then 

ra ised ser ious ob jec t ions and so  fo r th .  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  do  know,  I  d id  no t… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You were  no t  par ty.  

MR SALOOJEE:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  th is  par t i cu la r  p rocess.  

MR SALOOJEE:    No.   Cha i r,  I  was not  par ty  because by  

th is  t ime I  was suspended,  obv ious ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You were  suspended,  tha t  was my  

po in t  ea r l ie r.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you were  par ty  to  the  approva l  o f  

the  award  to  DLS  in  the  f i rs t  p lace .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Not  th is  over r id ing  o f  Mr  Mlambo as  
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i t  were .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  wha t  we have d i scussed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry?  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  you say I  was  par ty  to…? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The  approva l  the  prev ious year  to  

award  the  cont rac t  to  VR Laser  fo r  s ing le  source .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  we have jus t  d iscussed tha t ,  

ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  we have jus t  been d iscuss ing  is  

the  p la t fo rm hu l l  cont rac t ,  no t  the  s ing le  source  con t rac t .  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  maybe I  am get t ing  a  b i t  

confused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  la te  in  the  day.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  we are  a l l  a  b i t  t i red ,  Cha i r.  Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR SALOOJEE:    Can you p lease jus t  repeat  tha t ,  Mr  

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We are  f in ished w i th  d iscuss ing  the  

hu l l  …[ in te rvenes ]  

MR SALOOJEE:    The hu l l  cont rac t ,  yes .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:  The p la t fo rm hu l l s  cont rac t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We have been th rough a l l  o f  those  

documents .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  wrap up w i th  a  few 

s ide  issues.   The s ing le  supp l ie r  cont rac t ,  no t  fo r  the  

p la t fo rm hu l l s  bu t  s ing le  supp l ie r  fo r  s tee l  fabr ica t ion ,  tha t  

was g iven by  DLS  to  VR Laser,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  there  was a  memorandum of  

agreement  tha t  was s igned between them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     I t  was in i t ia l l y  an  MOU and  then i t  

became an MOA.  10 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you u l t imate ly  s igned tha t ,  no t  

so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  s igned the  MOU.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You s igned the  MOU and  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  s igned a  memorandum tha t  came to  me 

request ing  tha t  they engage in  an  MOU.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Subsequent ly  to  tha t  they ac tua l l y  –  Mr  20 

Burger  s igned an MOA.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Wi th  VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was approved by  you,  you 

gave h im a  mandate  to  s ign  i t  ra ther  than hav ing  to  come 
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back to  you to  s ign  the  MOA,  no t  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  the  MOU,  my unders tand ing  was –  

and remember,  th is  was in  May.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  in  June the  o ld  board  was leav ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  2015?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes and in  Ju l y  the  new board  was 

appo in ted  in  August  was the  handover  pe r iod  where  I  d id  

the  hand –  I  mean,  o r i en ta t ion  o f  the  new board .   In  

September,  on  the  10  September  we had the  f i r s t  board  10 

meet ing .   The week a f te r  tha t  I  had gone to  the  Un i ted  

K ingdom wi th  the  Min is te r  and w i th  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the 

board .   That  week when I  came back I  was suspended.   So 

tha t  i s  the  contex t  in  wh ich  th is  happened.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  tha t  MOU,  my  unders tand ing  was tha t  

he  was g iven a  mandate  to  go  and negot ia te  an  MOU. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Subsequent ly  I  d iscovered –  tha t  was in  

Apr i l .   In  May o f  tha t  year  he  s igned an MOA w i th  VR 20 

Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   But  you gave h im the 

mandate  to  go  and conc lude a  s ing le  source  cont rac t  w i th  

VR Laser,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    To  engage in  an  MOU.   That  i s  the 
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app rova l  I  gave,  the  mandate  I  gave h im.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and i f  those negot ia t ions  in  th is  

engagement  p rocess proved f ru i t fu l  he  wou ld  then be 

ent i t led  to  s ign  an  agreement  b ind ing  Dene l  Land Systems,  

cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  am not  –  I  cannot  say  fo r  sure  tha t  tha t  

i s  what  was there .   My unders tand ing  was tha t  I  had g i ven  

h im the  mandate  to  negot ia te  an  MOU.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Negot ia te  and s ign .  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The mandate  you had g iven h im was i t  to  

negot ia te  and s ign?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  cannot  reca l l  whether  the re  was an 

issue o f  the  s ign ing  bu t  my unders tand ing  but  my 

unders tand ing  was tha t  he  shou ld  have b rought  i t  back to  

me,  the  MOU.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now were  you aware  tha t  Mr  Mlambo 

when he became aware  o f  what  had happened,  s t renuous ly  

res i s ted  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  th is  agreement  on  the  bas is  20 

tha t  i n te r  a l ia  there  had been no  compet i t i ve  procurement  

p rocess.   You are  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  am not  aware  o f  a  fo rmal  document  tha t  

I  have seen.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am not  ask ing  about  a  fo rmal  
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document ,  I  am ask ing  you a re  you aware  or  were  you a t  

the  t ime tha t  you  were  Group CEO aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  

Mr  Mlambo ra ised ob jec t ions to  the  ag reement  whether  i t  

wou ld  be  an MOU or  an  MOA appo in t ing  VR Laser  on  the  

bas is  tha t  there  was no compet i t i ve  procurement  p rocess 

fo l lowed?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  to  the  best  o f  my knowledge I  

cannot  reco l lec t  whethe r  tha t  was the  case.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Do you accep t  tha t  a  

p rocu rement  cont rac t  such as  th i s ,  par t i cu la r ly  one  tha t  i s  10 

go ing  to  invo lve  m i l l ions  and mi l l ions  o f  pub l i c  money has  

to  fo l low a  compet i t i ve  procurement  p rocess?  Were  you a t  

leas t  aware  o f  tha t  in  te rms o f  the  law app l i cab le  to  s ta te  

en t i t ies?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  mean,  we s igned many s t ra teg ic  

par tner  ag reements  w i th  many compan ies  wh ich  is  aga in  

mot iva ted .   I f  we go th rough the  mot iva t ion ,  there  is  very  

s t rong mot iva t ion  as  to  why they wanted to  do  th is  in  te rms 

o f  who faced the  cont rac t ,  in  te rms o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  

dura t ion  o f  the  cont rac t  was over  a  cer ta in  per iod ,  the  fac t  20 

tha t  they needed a  s teady and  re l iab le  supp l ie r  wh ich  

wou ld  no t  en ta i l  go ing  to  many d i f fe ren t  o ther  supp l ie rs  

where  the  qua l i t y  o f  the  product  cou ld  no t  have been f rom 

an eng ineer ing  perspect ive  t rea ted  the  same.   So they 

were  -  aga in  there  was a  who le  mot iva t ion  tha t  came wi th  
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the  fac t  tha t  they  wanted to  p lace  –  we l l ,  no t  p laced,  tha t  

they wanted to  en ter  in to  a  s ing le  supp l ie r  cont rac t  w i th  VR 

Laser.   So i t  was not  in  i so la t ion ,  i t  was not  because -   

there  was a  mot iva t ion  tha t  came wh ich  made sense.   I  

sa id  tha t  they can go ahead and engage in  a  memorandum 

of  unders tand ing .   A memorandum of  unders tand ing  is  jus t  

to  say we want  to  ag ree tha t  we exp lore  coopera t ing  w i th  

one anothe r.   Tha t  was in  Apr i l ,  okay?   

And the re  is  a  l o t  o f  background  to  th is  as  we l l ,  

Cha i r.   There  were  two d ra f ts  o f  tha t  memo tha t  10 

…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  

bu t  p lease excuse me,  I  do  no t  mean to  be  rude.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  very  l a te  in  the  day,  in  fac t  in  

the  even ing  and  my quest ion  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  

var ious dra f ts  o f  documents .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    My quest ion  was very  s imp le  and 

very  spec i f i c .   Were  you aware  a t  the  leve l  o f  GCEO of  20 

Dene l  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  law requ i red  tha t  be fore  you  

awarded any such cont rac t  tha t  you wou ld  have to  fo l low a 

compet i t i ve  process?  That  i s  t he  s imp le  quest i on ,  no t  

whethe r  there  were  dra f ts ,  no t  whether  there  was a  good 

reason,  no t  whether  you d id  th is  a l l  the  t ime w i th  var ious 
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peop le ,  no t  whether  you a lways memorandums mot iva t ing  i t  

in  de ta i l ,  none o f  tha t .   D id  you know tha t  you,  be fore  you  

award  a  cont rac t ,  g iv ing  bus iness to  somebody on  

par t i cu la r l y  a  s ing le  supp l ie r  bas is  you wou ld  have to 

fo l low a  compet i t i ve  process?  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  yes or  a  no  

answer  tha t  we are  rea l l y  look ing  fo r.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  i f  you  may indu lge  me.   Th is  was 

an agreement  fo r  a  s ing le  supp l ie r,  i t  was not  a  cont rac t  

took p lace,  a  cont rac t  to  manu fac ture  o ther  hu l l s  o r  

whatever  e l se ,  so  i t  was an agreement .   I t  was  not  a  10 

cont rac t  wh ich  sa id  we are  p lac ing  a  cont rac t  to  the  va lue  

o f  x  amount  on  VR Laser.   That  was my unders tand ing  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Kennedy sa id  what  he  was  

ask ing  is  what  you were  aware  o f  in  te rms o f  the  lega l  

requ i rements .   Of  course  i f  you  may have been aware  tha t  

tha t  was the  requ i rement  o r  you may say bu t  tha t  was not  

the  requ i rement .  

MR SALOOJEE:    From my unders tand ing  i t  was not  the  

requ i rement .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now is  tha t  because o f  the  con tent  o f  20 

the  agreement  o r  because what  you approved was  s imp ly  

an  in i t ia l  s tep  wh ich  was rea l l y  a  memorandum of  

unders tand ing  wh ich  i s  rea l l y  jus t  a  s ta tement  o f  b road  

in ten t  tha t  you cannot  be  he ld  to?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r,  tha t  was …[ in tervenes]  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  o f  the  two?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I t  was the  la t te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The la t te r,  yes .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  unders tand tha t  bu t  can  I  jus t  

unders tand then,  i f  tha t  i s  the  case,  once you gave tha t  

approva l ,  as  you  d id ,  everybody seems to  agree tha t  you 

gave approva l ,  you gave a  mandate  fo r  Mr  Burger  and co  to  

en ter  in to  negot ia t ions  w i th  VR Laser  to  en ter  in to  a  

memorandum of  unders tand ing .   I f  they  succeeded in  10 

d ischarg ing  tha t  mandate  and fu l f i l l i ng  tha t  mandate ,  those  

negot ia t ions  succeeded and an MOU was then s igned,  tha t  

d id  no t  have the  s ta tus  o f  an  MOA which  wou ld  b id  the  

corpo ra t ion .   Do I  unders tand your  ev idence co r rec t l y?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   But  in  your  m ind,  once you  

gave tha t  mandate  and once tha t  was fu l f i l l ed  and an MOU 

was then conc luded,  p resumably  tha t  wou ld  then be 

fo l lowed by  an  MOA in  due course ,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  have had to  come back to  20 

corpo ra te ,  we wou ld  have had to  cons ide r  i t  be fore  an  MOA 

cou ld  have been s igned.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  qu i te  r igh t .   And my f ina l  

quest ion  on  th is  i s  when tha t  came back to  co rpo ra te ,  

wou ld  a  p rocu rement  p rocess then have to  been fo l lowed?  
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A compet i t i ve  p rocurement  have to  be  fo l lowed? 

MR SALOOJEE:    I  wou ld  imag ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You wou ld  imag ine  so?  

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  I  wou ld  hope tha t  i t  wou ld ,  i t  w i l l ,  i t  

wou ld  have to .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  wou ld  have  to .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  a  b i t  d i f fe ren t  f rom I  wou ld  

imag ine  so .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wou ld  you  agree w i th  me as a  CEO 

who unders tood tha t  there  was such a  th ing  as  PFMA and 

Treasury  regu la t i ons …[ in tervenes ]  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  agree w i th  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    …that  a  compet i t i ve  process  has to  

be  fo l lowed befo re  a  s ta te  en t i t y  awards any ag reement  

tha t  i s  b ind ing?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  agree w i th  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t .   A l r igh t ,  thank you.   Was i t  a  

mat te r  o f  shock to  you la te r  to  hear  tha t  tha t  was then  20 

done a f te r  your  t ime by  o thers  w i thout  any procurement  

p rocess hav ing  been fo l lowed?  

MR SALOOJEE:    O f  course ,  Cha i r,  I  mean now,  when I  

re f lec t  over  the  las t  few years  as  to  what  has happened  

par t i cu la r l y  a f te r  my suspens ion  and coming in to  –  w i th  the  
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appo in tment  o f  the  new board .   I  mean,  I  have gone 

th rough my prev ious tes t imony about  the  c i r cumstances  

around the  new board ,  the  cont rovers ies  around the  new 

board ,  i ssues a round how we were  t rea ted ,  what  was the  

reasons fo r  our  suspens ion  and the  process tha t  we had 

gone th rough.   I f  I  look  a t  rea l l y  where  a l l  o f  th is  had 

emanated f rom was lead ing  up to  an  env i ronment  where  

then they wou ld  have been an unfe t te red  ab i l i t y  to  do 

bus iness in  th is  ins tance w i th  VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  answer  –  i s  you r  answer  tha t  you  10 

were  shocked when some t ime a f te r  you were  gone o r  

dur ing  your  suspens ion  you learn t  tha t  an  agreement  was 

conc luded w i thou t  a  compet i t i ve  process?  

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Sor ry,  I  was not  shocked.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  no t  shocked.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Because tha t  was the  log i ca l  conc lus ion  

as  to  what  I  th ink  they were  want ing  to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now whose  idea was i t  to  exp lo re  a  

s ing le  supp l ie r  ag reement  w i th  VR Laser  f rom -  fo r  DLS? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  tha t  emanated f rom DLS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:  From DLS.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  Burger  pa r t i cu la r ly.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Mr  Burger  spec i f i ca l l y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  Now aga in  I  do  no t  want  to  go  

in to  de ta i l  un less  you fee l  the  need but  the  quest ion  is  

s imp ly  th is .   You  are  aware  tha t  Mr  Burger  has sa id  in  h is  

ev idence both  in  lengthy  por t ions  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  as  we l l  as  

in  h is  o ra l  tes t imony tha t  ac tua l l y  the  in i t ia t i ve ,  the  idea  

and the  in i t ia t i ve  and the  pressure  to  pursue th is  l ine  o f  

s ing le  supp l ie r  agreement  w i th  VR Laser  fo r  DLS came 

f rom you,  no t  f rom h im.    10 

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  ca tegor ica l l y  deny tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Mr  Kennedy is  say ing  tha t  in  Mr  Burger ’s  

tes t imony he says tha t  the  in i t ia t i ve  to  en te r  in to  an  

agreement  w i th  VR Laser,  the  pressure  was put  on  h im and  

there  was then an ins t ruc t ion ,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  you  ins t ruc ted  h im.  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  I  ins t ruc ted  h im to  en ter  in to  th is  

agreement  and I  am say ing  tha t  I  ca tegor i ca l l y  deny tha t  I  

d id  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Wel l ,  i f  you  approved tha t  Mr  

Burger  shou ld  negot ia te  and conc lude the  memorandum of  

unders tand ing ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  no t  tha t  the  memorandum of  

unders tand ing  tha t  was conc luded wou ld  be  incons is ten t  

w i th  in i t ia t ing  a  compet i t i ve  process a f te r  tha t ,  d id  i t  no t  
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necessar i l y  mean  tha t  you e i ther  needed to  have no such  

memorandum and  then embark  on  a  compet i t i ve  p rocess or  

have such a  memorandum and then embark  on  a  s ing le  

source  agreement?  

MR SALOOJEE:    So ,  Cha i r,  tha t  was the  who le  pu rpose o f  

say ing  go  and engage in  a  memorandum of  unders tand ing .   

What  i s  the  scope o f  the  coopera t ion  tha t  you want ,  how 

wou ld  you manage th i s ,  what  were  the  parameters  tha t  

wou ld  a l low you to  do  th is?   That  i s  my unders tand ing  o f  a  

memorandum of  unders tand ing .   A memorandum of  10 

agreement  says we w i l l  do  th is ,  x ,  y  and z .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  memorandum of  unders tand ing  

does i t  no t  say  –  I  have not  re f reshed my memory  on  i t ,  

does i t  no t  en ta i l  tha t  bus iness wou ld  have to  be  done w i th  

them? 

MR SALOOJEE:    They wou ld ,  f rom my unders tand ing ,  

Cha i r,  there  s t i l l  have to  be  compet i t i ve  pr ic ing ,  they s t i l l  

had to  go  ou t  in to  the  market  to  see what  o ther  capab i l i t ies  

there  were ,  what  i s  the  pr ic ing  in  the  market  be fo re  they 

can have a  s t ra teg ic  pa r tne r ing  agreement  w i th  them.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  why engage in  a  p rocess tha t  leads 

to  tha t  memorandum of  unders tand ing  i f  indeed you are  –  

you in tend to  have a  compet i t i ve  process?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  f rom my unders tand ing ,  i s  tha t  

aga in  f rom a  DLS perspect ive  they wanted to  secure  a  
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re la t ionsh ip  fo r  a  longer  per iod  w i th  VR Laser  and  tha t  i s  

what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  why I  am ask ing  you the  

quest ion  because my unders tand ing  is  tha t  the  

memorandum of  unders tand ing  a l ready po in ts  towards  

hav ing  a  re la t ionsh ip  or  g i v ing  bus iness to  VR Laser  so  bu t  

you have sa id  you expected a  compet i t i ve  tender  p rocess 

to  happen a f te r  the  memorandum of  unders tand ing  then  

before  the  memorandum of  ag reement .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  my unders tand ing  i s  tha t  i f  VR 10 

Laser  met  a l l  the  requ i rements  tha t  were  se t  ou t  in  a 

memorandum of  agreement  o r  a  memorandum of  

unders tand ing  then they wou ld  be  appo in ted  as  a  s ing le  

source  supp l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi thout  a  compet i t i ve  process.  

MR SALOOJEE:    I f  –  no ,  i f  they  had gone out  in to  the  

market  and they had looked a t  o ther  p r ices  and they had  

looked a t  o ther  capab i l i t ies  my unders tand ing  is  tha t  they 

wou ld  have g iven  pre ference,  and tha t  i s  what  they wanted,  

to  VR Laser  i f  they  had met  the  m in imum cr i te r ia  fo r  a  20 

par t i cu la r  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was your  unders tand ing  tha t  they wou ld  

g ive  pre fe rence a f te r  an  open compet i t i ve  p rocess  or  tha t  

they wou ld  g i ve  pre ference w i thout  an  open compet i t i ve  

process?  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  –  ja ,  they had to  go  to  the 

market ,  whether  i t  was –  and I  may cor rec t  myse l f ,  whethe r  

i t  was fo r  compet i t i ve  process o r  no t  bu t  they had to  do  an  

ana lys is  o f  the  market .   So I  agree w i th  you,  no t  

necessar i l y  th rough a  compet i t i ve  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So there fore ,  jus t  par t  o f  what  one  

is  t ry ing  to  do  is  what  you env i saged wou ld  happen when  

you approved tha t  they shou ld  negot ia te  and conc lude the  

memorandum of  unders tand ing .   So am I  cor rec t  in  say ing  

the  e f fec t  o f  what  you are  say ing  is  tha t  i f  they  conc luded – 10 

i f  a  memorandum of  unders tand ing  was conc luded,  what  

you d id  have in  m ind was tha t  a  compet i t i ve  –  open  

compet i t i ve  process,  tender  p rocess,  m ight  no t  be  

invo l ved.  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  wha t  they were  suggest ing ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So,  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  

d id  you then assume tha t  they had gone to  the  market  to  

tes t  the  market  be fore  they en tered in to  the  MOU? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  assume tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  what  d id  you be l ieve?  I  want  to  

go  back to  the  quest ion  f rom the  learned Cha i r,  what  i s  the 

rea l  po in t  o f  a  memorandum of  unders tand ing  i f  i t  does not  

g ive  somebody someth ing?  Now le t  me put  the  quest ion  
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perhaps a t  i t s  most  bas i c  fo rm.  

 I f  you  were  go ing  out  to  somebody to  say we are  

go ing  to  en ter  in to  a  memorandum of  unders tand ing  w i th  

you wh ich  may lead to  bus iness coming up la te r,  sub jec t  to  

a  compet i t i ve  p rocess,  shou ld  tha t  no t  ac tua l l y  be  a  

process in  wh ich  you go out  to  the  market  and ask  anybody 

who may be in te res ted  to  compete  to  be  awarded the  MOU,  

le t  a lone the  MOA at  a  la te r  s tage? 

You see,  the  who le  th ing  seems to  be  manoeuvr ing  

in to  a  s i tua t ion  where  VR Laser  w i thout  a  fa i r  compet i t i ve  10 

process ge ts  g i ven an MOU and thereaf te r  w i thou t  a  fa i r  

compet i t i ve  p rocess ge ts  an  MOA and tha t  then g i ves  them 

the  r igh t  as  a  s ing le  supp l ie r  fo r  those components  to  

p rov ide  tha t  fo r  DLS.   Do you see the  po in t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  take  the  po in t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  what  i s  the  answer  to  i t  then?  

MR SALOOJEE:    So  the  answer  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Where  does,  where  does –  you sa id  

i t  may or  may  not  necessar i l y  invo lve  a  procurement  

p rocess,  you have accepted a l ready tha t  there  has  to  be  a  20 

fa i r  lega l  compet i t i ve  process be fo re  you award  a  cont rac t  

tha t  i s  b ind ing  on  DLS,  cor rec t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   So where  in  th is  scheme o f  

th ings,  go ing  th rough th is  c rea tu re  ca l led  the  MOU tha t  
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m igh t  la te r  resu l t  in  an  MOA,  where  wou ld  the re  have been 

a  fa i r  compet i t i ve  process ra the r  than say ing  to  VR Laser  

we l i ke  you guys ,  le t  us  s ign  an  MOU,  tha t  then seems to  

ge t  them a t  leas t  a  foo t  in  the  door  where  a f te r  they then  

get  an  MOA?  Where  wou ld ,  i f  a t  a l l ,  wou ld  the re  be  a  

compet i t i ve  p rocess?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  a  s t ra teg ic  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  

agreement  i s  exact ly  tha t .   I f  you  can mot iva te  s t ra teg ica l l y  

why th is  i s  a  c r i t i ca l  i ssue,  why i t  impacts  on  your  

bus iness,  why i t  impacts  on  your  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ions 10 

and why the  s t ra teg ic  na ture  o f  i t  fo r  bus iness cont inu i t y,  

there  have  been ins tances where  agreements  l i ke  th is  have 

been s igned in  the  past  in  my unders tand ing  and th is  was 

to  de f ine  the  paramete rs  tha t  i f  they  were  go ing  to  be  the  

fabr ica tor  o f  those hu l l s  over  a  ce r ta in  pe r iod  tha t  they,  i f  

they  were  compet i t i ve ,  i f  they  had met  the  ob l iga t ions,  i f  

they  had invested  more  in  equ ipment  and so  fo r th ,  tha t  

they wou ld  be  a  pre fe r red  supp l i e r  and tha t  i s  a  fac t ,  Mr  

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  how do you know tha t  they wou ld  20 

be compet i t i ve  i f  you  do not  have a  compet i t i ve  p rocess?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  DLS,  fo r  

example ,  who wou ld  manage  th is ,  wou ld  have an 

unders tand ing  o f  what  the  market  has –  what  the  

th resho lds  a re  in  the  market .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wi thout  go ing  ou t  to  a  compet i t i ve  

tender  o r  RFO p rocess?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  mean,  my unders tand ing  is  tha t  they 

wou ld  have because they have been in  the  bus iness fo r  so  

many years .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    They wou ld  have what?  

MR SALOOJEE:    They wou ld  have had an unders tand ing  

o f  what  wou ld  be  compet i t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why –  i f  you  accept  tha t  there  is  a  need  

to  know what  the i r  compet i to rs  may have to  o f fe r,  why not  10 

make i t  open ins tead o f  le t t ing  DLS jus t  contac t  them 

wi thout  anybody knowing and say ing  what  wou ld  be  your  

p r ice  fo r  th is ,  o r  what ,  what ,  what .   I f  you  do need to  know 

what  the i r  compet i to rs  can o f fe r,  VR Laser ’s  compet i to rs ,  

why not  pu t  i t  t ransparent ly  open and say pu t  you r  

p roposa ls  on  the  tab le ,  le t  VR Laser  pu t  the i r  p roposa ls  on  

the  tab le ,  then we w i l l  dec ide  who w i l l  emerge  as  the  

pre fe r red  supp l ie r.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  you and I  th ink  aga in ,  

i f  you  look a t  the  mot iva t ions tha t  DLS had put  fo rward  in  20 

te rms o f  what  they ca l l  secu r i t y  o f  supp ly  to  guarantee  

supp ly,  to  guarantee workmansh ip  qua l i t y,  there  was a  

who le  mot iva t ion  aga in  as  to  why they th ink  tha t  i t  was 

impor tan t  fo r  them to  en ter  in to  th is  th ing .   And I  agree  

w i th  you,  I  ag ree w i th  you tha t  in  a  sense i t  was to  
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es tab l i sh  a  pre ferent ia l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  VR Laser.   I  mean  

tha t  was what  the  mot iva t ion  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  you th ink  VR Laser  wou ld  be  such  

a  good supp l ie r,  i f  you  th ink  VR Laser  w i l l  no t  have a  

ser ious contender  o r  compet i to r,  why not  pu t  i t  open,  le t  – 

because they w i l l  emerge v ic to r ious anyway,  they w i l l  w ind  

anyway.   

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  your  sent iment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   In  fac t  the  10 

Cha i rperson is  suggest ing  to  you  a  very  s imp le ,  sens ib le ,  

log ica l  bus iness reason why you do not  do  i t .   I  want  to ,  

w i th  respect ,  add to  tha t  to  say tha t  whether  o r  no t  you  

th ink  i t  i s  a  good reason or  no t ,  i t  is  what  the  law requ i res .   

Nowhere  tha t  I  have p icked up in  the  Sect ion  217  o f  the 

Const i tu t ion  o r  anywhere  in  the  PFMA or  anywhere  in  the  

Treasury  regu la t ions or  anywhere  in  the  supp ly  cha in  

management  po l i cy  o f  Dene l  a t  head o f f i ce  or  DLS,  a l l  o f  

those documents  are  ava i lab le  to  us  here .   Nowhere  have I  

found anyth ing  tha t  suppor ts  tha t  your  suggest ion  tha t  20 

we l l ,  i f  a  d iv is ion  th inks  tha t  they have got  a  good 

unders tand ing  o f  how compet i t i ve  somebody ’s  p r i ces  m ight  

be ,  we can then  commi t  ourse l ves,  nowhere .   In  fac t  the  

very  po in t  tha t  the  Cha i rpe rson makes is  you f ind  ou t  f rom 

the  market  by  fo l low ing a  compet i t i ve  p rocess.    
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 So  may I  jus t  take  you back fo r  a  moment  to  the  

p la t fo rm hu l l s  cont rac t .   You say  you assumed tha t  the  

d iv is ion  wou ld  have known how they wou ld  be .   The f i rs t  

po in t  wh ich  is  rea l l y  one o f  the  po in ts  tha t  the  Cha i r  has 

ra ised w i th  you is  how do you know tha t  un t i l  you  have  

gone out  w i th  tender  p r i ces  be ing  submi t ted  whether  a  

pub l i c  tender  o r  an  RFO,  le t  us  leave tha t  as ide ,  bu t  a  

compet i t i ve  p rocess?   

 But  what  I  want  to  add to  tha t  i s  th is ,  you were  

aware ,  as  was DLS,  tha t  jus t  a  few months be fo re  th is  o f  10 

en ter ing  in to  an  MOU,  they had gone out  in to  the  market ,  

DLS.   Not  fo r  a  s ing le  supp l ie r  bu t  fo r  the  p la t fo rm hu l l s  

manufac ture  and guess what  came out  o f  tha t  compet i t i ve  

process?  Not  tha t  VR Laser  was ve ry  compet i t i ve  w i th  

p r ices .   On the  cont ra ry  the i r  b id  was fo r  260 mi l l ion  and 

LMT was fo r  about  160 mi l l ion .   Mass ive  d i f fe rence,  a lmost  

doub le .  

 And then when Mr  –  h is  own ev idence,  tha t  you may 

have heard ,  Mr  Burger,  was he thought  th is ,  rea l l y  they are  

t ry ing  to  push the i r  luck  he re .   So what  do  I  do?  I  phone  20 

them up and I  say  I  am rea l l y  unhappy,  how can you tender  

so  much and they say do  not  wor ry,  Mr  Burger,  we w i l l  

reduce i t  f rom 260 to  195 mi l l ion ,  s t i l l  a  major  amount  more  

than LMT.  

 So what  I  am suggest ing  and I  am not  ask ing  you to  
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de fend the  dec i s ion  o f  DLS u l t imate ly  to  s ign  the  MOA but  I  

am ask ing  fo r  your  comment .   Is  i t  no t  a  b i t  na ïve  to  

suggest  tha t  a  d i v is ion  such as  DLS on the  s t rength  o f  your  

mandate  can go out  and award  an  MOU on the  bas i s  tha t  

they th ink  tha t  the  market  i s  such tha t  VR Laser  i s  no t  on ly  

the  best  to  do  th is  bu t  p robab ly  has the  best  p r i ce .   We 

know here  tha t  i t  d id  no t  g ive  the  best  p r ice  a t  the  very  las t  

occas ion  tha t  bus iness was awarded to  them.   You get  the  

po in t ,  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  ge t  the  po in t  Mr  Kennedy,  I  mean the  10 

issue o f  knowing  the  market  i s  no t  jus t  one e lemen t  tha t  I  

had to  ra i se ,  the  more  impor tan t  e lement  tha t  I  wanted to  

ra ise  was the  fac t  tha t  they mot iva ted  tha t  fo r  s t ra teg i c  

reasons th is  was an impor tan t  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease jus t  repeat  tha t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  sa id  the  issue o f  the  market  was jus t  

one e lement ,  i t  wasn ’ t  the  mot iva t i ng  fac to r.   The issue tha t  

they were  mot iva t ing  spec i f i ca l l y  was the  issue  o f  the  

s t ra teg ic  capab i l i t y  and what  they ca l l  gua rantee o f  supp ly,  

tha t  they need . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  why,  why is  tha t  a  jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  

no t  go ing  ou t  on  open tender,  because tha t  fac tor  can s t i l l  

be  taken in to  account  I  wou ld  imag ine  even i f  i t  i s  an  open 

compet i t i ve  process,  to  say we won ’ t  take  tha t  supp l ie r  

because i t  doesn ’ t  p rov ide  the  s t ra teg ic  advantage tha t  VR 
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Laser  wou ld  prov ide  to  us .   I  may be miss ing  someth ing  bu t  

tha t  i s  –  and I  don ’ t  unders tand someth ing  in  the  de fence 

as  secur i t y  bu t  he lp  me unders tand.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Chai r  I  agree w i th  you,  bu t  i f  you  read  

the i r  mot iva t ion  there  is  a  lo t  o f  eng ineer ing  te rm ino logy  

tha t  they use there  in  te rms o f  jus t i f y ing  the  p rec i s ion  

we ld ing ,  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  they m ight  jus t  be  us ing  words and  

words w i thout  substance.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Whatever,  bu t  they are  eng ineers  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  they may be us ing  tha t  and i t  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SALOOJEE:    But  I  do ,  I  mean I  agree w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you say i t  i s  l i ke  a  –  you know when 

I  was a t  un ivers i t y  fo r  my degree non- law s tudents  used to  

say law s tudents  a t  s tudent  meet ings w i l l  th row in  a  lo t  o f  

La t in  words to  confuse everybody,  even when there  is  no 

substance,  so  i f  VR Laser  i f  i t  –  i f  they  thought  i t  wou ld  be  

good to  g ive  th is  job  to  VR Laser  because VR Laser  wou ld  20 

g ive  DLS a  ce r ta in  s t ra teg ic  advantage tha t  wou ld  come 

wi th  hav ing  a  cont rac t  w i th  them,  tha t ’s  a  fac tor  t ha t  can 

s t i l l  be  taken in to  account  when  there  are  many  o ther  

compet i to rs ,  you accept  tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  don ’ t  want  to  engage in  a  lega l  

debate  w i th  you because tha t  wou ld  be  unfa i r  to  you but  I  

jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  someth ing  tha t  has been s t ressed by  

our  h ighest  cou r ts ,  bo th  the  Cons t i tu t iona l  Cour t  and the  

Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l ,  and tha t  i s  th is ,  yes  

requ i rements  o f  p rocu rement  p rocesses are  o f ten  qu i te  

techn ica l  and o f t en  qu i te  complex  and may take some t ime,  

bu t  there  is  a  good reason fo r  tha t ,  f i rs t l y  i t  i s  what  the  law 

prov ides and one  has to  comply  w i th  the  law.   Not  on  the  10 

bas is  o f  we l l  i f  there  i s  someth ing  s t ra teg i c  we th ink  i t  

wou ld  be  good to  have o r  whatever.    I f  the  law says you  

have to  fo l low tha t  p rocess you have to ,  so  the  law is  an  

end in  i t se l f ,  bu t  second ly  in  re la t ion  to  p rocu rement  there  

are  reasons why  the  law is  so  spec i f i c ,  par t i cu la r ly  fo r  

S ta te  Depar tments  and S ta te  Ent i t ies ,  one o f  the  ob jec t i ves  

is  to  ensure  tha t  you ac tua l l y  do  ge t  the  very  best  dea l  fo r  

the  S ta te ,  because you are  dea l ing  w i th  pub l i c  money  

wh ich  i s  l im i ted  and the  needs o f  the  na t ion  a re  mass ive ,  

bu t  there  is  a  fu r ther  reason tha t  the  Cour ts  have s t ressed,  20 

tha t  there  needs  to  be  compl iance w i th  these processes  

and tha t  i s  to  ensure  tha t  the re  i s  accountab i l i t y,  because 

i f  these th ings ge t  b lu r red  when you th ink  as  an  o f f i c ia l ,  

we l l  I  th ink  we shou ld  do  i t  because I  th ink  i t  i s  good fo r  

the  organ isa t ion ,  even i f  you are  genu ine  in  tha t  i t  jus t  
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a l lows room for  a  lack  o f  accountab i l i t y  and a  lack  o f  

t ransparency and i t  then a l lows a  s i tua t ion  in  wh ich  

cor rup t ion  a  fes te r.  

 Now do you unders tand  tha t  ob jec t i ve  o f  the  

leg is la t ion?  And  what  I  want  to  –  I  don ’ t  want  to  debate  

the  lega l  p r inc ip le ,  i f  you  accept  tha t  what  I  am s imply  

pu t t ing  to  you is  th is ,  i t  i s  a l l  very  we l l  fo r  DLS and  

manager ia l  leve l  to  be  ta lk ing  in  techn ica l  language and 

ta lk ing  about  s t ra teg ic  ob jec t i ves  there  i s  a  s imp le  

quest ion  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  can you do i t  in  te rms o f  the  10 

law or  can ’ t  you?  You accept  tha t  tha t  i s  a  fundamenta l  

po in t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and th ings l i ke  s t ra teg ic  

supp l ie rs  and mak ing  sure  tha t  you get  a  commi t ted  supp ly  

f rom a  par t i cu la r  supp l ie r  tha t  i s  a l l  dea l t  w i th  in  the  Pub l ic  

Procurement  Leg is la t ion  and Supp ly  Cha in  Management  

Po l i cy.   A f te r  Dene l  had two Supp ly  Cha in  Management  

Po l i c ies ,  a t  g roup leve l  and a t  d iv is iona l  leve l ,  tha t  cou ld  

make prov i s ion  fo r  exact ly  tha t ,  no t  so?  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes you can make prov i s ion  fo r  s t ra teg i c  

par tnersh ips .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  yes ,  and i f  there  i s  no  such  

prov is ion  tha t  a l l ows you to  do  someth ing  you cannot  do  

tha t  th ing  un less  and unt i l  you  change your  supp ly  cha in  
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management  po l i cy,  co r rec t?    

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  fo r  example  there  is  a  

s i tua t ion  in  wh ich  there  is  a  monopo ly  there  is  one s ing le  

supp l ie r  o f  a  par t i cu la r  i tem in  the  count ry  and in  the  wor ld  

and i t  i s  imposs ib le  to  go  ou t  on  a  compet i t i ve  p rocess o r  i t  

wou ld  be  comple te ly  s i l l y  to  go  ou t  on  a  compet i t i ve  

process,  the  law recogn ises tha t ,  and says prov ided these 

cond i t ions  a re  met  and you fo l low these fo rmal i t ies  and  

you repor t  and g ive  reasons and so  fo r th  you then don ’ t  10 

have to  go  ou t  to  tender.   Th i s  was not  such a  s i tua t ion  no t  

so  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  I  mean I  th ink  i f  you  look a t  the  

mot iva t ion ,  tha t ’s  why they ca l l  i t  a  s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r  

agreement ,  tha t  they sa id  even the  k ind  o f  capab i l i t ies  tha t  

a re  vested  in  tha t  o rgan isa t ion ,  the  k ind  o f  eng ineer ing  

requ i rements  to  meet  the  very  exact  and cr i t i ca l  m iss ion  

s tandards o f  the  Defence Force  w i th  equ ipment  o f  th is  

na ture  they saw i t  as  a c r i t i ca l  supp l ie r  o f  th is  serv ice ,  so 

you know . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The quest i on  was not  whether  they 

saw i t  tha t  VR Laser  was a  c r i t i ca l  supp l ie r,  the  quest ion  

was cou ld  anybody e lse  have done the  work?  

MR SALOOJEE:    In  South  A f r i ca?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Anywhere?  
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MR SALOOJEE:    No o f  course .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O f  course  and we know tha t  Dene l ,  

your  peop le ,  a t  the  t ime you were  CEO for  the  huge ly  

impor tan t  p la t fo rm hu l l s  cont rac t  had seen f i t  qu i te  r igh t ly  

to  go  ou t  on  an  RFO,  whether  they shou ld  have gone 

fu r ther  to  a  pub l i ca l l y  adver t i sed tender  i s  debatab le ,  bu t  

a t  leas t  they d id  tha t .    Now th is  wasn ’ t  done here ,  no t  

even tha t  was done,  so  you seem to  be  suggest ing  tha t  

because VR Laser  wou ld  be  a  good supp l ie r  o f  a  s t ra teg i c  

i tem so we cou ld  depend on them le t ’s  go  the  rou te  o f  VR 10 

Laser,  bu t  in  the  process you  haven ’ t  asked anybody e lse  

wou ld  they l i ke  to  do  i t ,  wou ld  they l i ke  to  t r y  and compete  

and sa t is f y  you tha t  perhaps they do  have the  capac i ty,  

ra the r  than the  d iv is ion ,  leav ing  i t  to  the  d iv is ion  to  say bu t  

we know these th ings.   The who le  po in t  o f  a  compet i t i ve  

process is  to  a l low everybody who may be in te res ted  and  

capab le  to  pu t  in  the i r  tenders ,  pu t  in  the i r  b ids  and  i f  they  

are  techn ica l l y  incapab le  o r  un t rus twor thy  o r  too  expens ive  

or  whatever  they can be e l im ina ted  or  re jec ted ,  bu t  none o f  

tha t  was a l lowed fo r  here  in  a  process in  wh ich  you 20 

approved tha t  one ent i t y  shou ld  be  approached by  DLS,  

namely  VR Laser,  an  en t i t y  wh ich  by  the  way you knew was 

connected to  a  very  cont rovers ia l  fami ly  and bus iness 

ne twork .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  I  can say  tha t  w i th  the  mot iva t ion  
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tha t  was sent  to  me I  sa id  go  and exp lo re  the  poss ib i l i t y  

based on your  requ i rements  and  MOU,  and tha t  i s  what  

happened.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:     I s  tha t  i t?    

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Mr  Sa loo jee .    I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  touch on jus t  a  coup le  o f  i ssues to  comple te  the  LSSA 

acqu is i t ion ,  you have se t  tha t  ou t ,  i f  you  look in  Bund le  10 ,  

Bund le  10  to  go  back to  your  a f f idav i t ,  page 803.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say page 803?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Page 803 yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  runs to  page 805,  and there  is  a  

head ing  the re  i f  you  have got  the  r i gh t  document ,  the  

purchase o f  BAE LAN Systems South  A f r i ca ,  LSSA,  by  

Dene l ,  you have dea l t  w i th  tha t  in  the  next  two and a  ha l f  

pages.   I  don ’ t  p ropose to  ask  you any quest ions in  re la t ion  

to  th is  i ssue,  I  th ink  your  a f f idav i t  i s  c lea r,  i s  there  

anyth ing  you want  to  add in  re la t ion  to  tha t  i ssue  fo r  the  

benef i t  o f  the  Cha i rperson before  we move on? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Cha i r  I  mean th is  i s  se l f -exp lana tory  bu t  

th is  i ssue was the  reason why the  incoming board  w i th in  a  

space o f  a  few weeks used to  suspend us  and then  

eventua l l y  ex i ted  us  f rom the  organ isa t ion .   As  you are  

aware  we had cons is ten t ly  asked fo r  a  d i sc ip l inary  process 
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to  take  p lace,  tha t  never  happened.   The two  o ther  

co l leagues,  the  Company Secre tary  and the  CFO,  Mr  

Mhlont lo ,  they se t t led  ear ly  on  I  th ink  i n  about  March/Apr i l  

o f  tha t  yea r,  2016.   I  then cont inued ask ing  them for  a  

d isc ip l ina ry,  show me what  I  have done,  they re fused to  

take  me to  a  d isc ip l ina ry,  they had invest iga t ions done,  I  

am not  sure  whether  those invest iga t ions have been  

conc luded,  bu t  I  do  know tha t  r igh t  a t  the  onset ,  and tha t  

was a lso  in  my prev ious a f f idav i t ,  the  then Cha i rperson o f  

the  Board ,  Mr  Mantsha,  had d i rec ted  the  then lega l  person  10 

in  Dene l  to  ask  the  company tha t  d id  invest iga t ion  to  

change the  repor t  to  suppor t  the i r  charges.   I  went  th rough 

the  who le  o f  2016,  I  took  them to  the  CCMA and eventua l l y  

my issue was reso lved a t  the  CCMA and fo r  the  record  I  

never  go t  the  se t t lement  f rom them,  I  was jus t  pa id  ou t  

what  was due fo r  me fo r  the  res t ,  the  remainder  o f  my 

cont rac t  wh ich  was exp i r i ng  in  a  few months t ime a f te r  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you reca l l  how many months were  

s t i l l  to  run? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Probab ly  about  four / f i ve  months  were  

le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.   Yes Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you  Cha i r.   Whi le  we are  on 

tha t  top ic  Mr  Sa loo jee  can I  ask  you p lease to  re fer  to  
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Bund le  –  i t  i s  in  f ac t  marked Exh ib i t  W4B,  i t  doesn ’ t  have a  

bund le  number,  th is  was before  the  cu r ren t  bund le  

number ing  sys tem I  be l ieve  was in t roduced Cha i r,  be fore  

my t ime,  bu t  i t  i s  pa r t  o f  the  or ig ina l  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  o r  par t  o f  the  annexures to  tha t ,  so  i f  your  

reg i s t ra r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  wou ld  be  the  one tha t  has  go t  Mr  

Sa loo jee ’s  two s ta tements?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    No,  those are  the  recent  ones,  i t  i s  

the  prev ious one f rom the  prev ious year  when the  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  I  mean  las t  year  when he gave 

ev idence . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  were  two s ta tements  tha t  he  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Oh I  see wha t  you mean yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  tha t  one?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  and i t  i s  ca l led  

Exh ib i t  W4B.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  jus t  the  one tha t  has go t  Mr  

Sa loo jee ’s  s ta tements .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  i t  i s  the  second vo lume o f  those.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you go ing  to  h is  s ta tements  or  a re  

you go ing  to  somebody e lse ’s  s ta tements?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am go ing  to  an  annexure  to  h is  

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay g ive  me the  one tha t  has go t  

h is  s ta tements ,  they are  bo th  in  the  same f i le .   Wha t  page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Page RS499 and a t  tha t  s tage they 

were  no t  the  two d i f fe ren t  se ts  o f  page numbers ,  there  

seems to  be  j us t  the  one on the  r igh t  hand s ide  in  b lack  

Cha i r,  RS499.  

CHAIRPERSON:    RS499,  o r  i s  i t  page 499?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  co r rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  R –  yes okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  the  document  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  

a re  you not  there  ye t ,  sor ry.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Have you got  i t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  the  document  headed 

te rm inat ion  o f  employment  ag reement  be tween Dene l  and 

Sa loo jee .   Have we got  the  same document  in  f ron t  o f  us?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  thank you.    Now Cha i r  I  want  

to  apo log ise ,  in  a  prev ious hear ing  I  gave you a  t runcated 

vers ion  o f  the  fu l l  fac ts  re la t ing  to  th is  wh ich  may have  

crea ted the  wrong impress ion ,  I  was in  fac t  under  the  

wrong impress ion .   As  I  unders tand i t  Mr  Sa loo jee  when  
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you –  when your  se rv i ces  were  te rm inated you were  

suspended fo r  a  lengthy  per iod ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Ja ,  f rom September  o f  2015 and we 

reso lved the  mat te r  in  I  th ink  towards November  o f  2016.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    2016,  so  i t  was a t  leas t  a  year  tha t  

you were  on  suspens ion?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you were  on  pa id  suspens ion  

th roughout  tha t  per iod?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now u l t imate ly  and we have heard  

some ev idence about  th is  in  some deta i l ,  par t i cu la r ly  f rom 

Mr  Mhlont lo  d id  you l i s ten  to  h is  ev idence as  we l l?  

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  some o f  i t ,  no t  a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Some o f  i t ,  no t  a t  a l l ,  have you los t  

in te res t  ha l fway th rough.  

MR SALOOJEE:    No,  no ,  no  I  had o ther  respons ib i l i t i es  as  

we l l .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sure .   Mr  Sa loo jee  Mr  Mhlont lo  

gave ev idence tha t  over  many months  you and he and Ms 

A f r i ca  a t tempted  to  ge t  documents  to  substant ia te  the  

charges,  to  ge t  de ta i l s  in  re la t ion  to  the  charges and to  ge t  

the  d isc ip l ina ry  p rocess under  way,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Does tha t  app ly  to  you?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you and  your  lawyers  expressed 

f rus t ra t ion  somet imes in  cor respondence say ing  i f  you  want  

to  charge us  charge us  and run  i t  to  i t s  d isc ip l inary  end so  

tha t  we can be heard ,  ge t  f ina l i t y  in  the  mat te r  because we 

be l ieve  tha t  we are  innocent  and  w i l l  be  v ind i ca ted ,  does  

tha t  app ly  to  you? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And u l t imate ly  they never  ac tua l l y  

s ta r ted  the  d isc ip l inary  process.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  was a  pre l im inary  i ssue where  

a  ru l ing  was made,  never  d id  they  ac tua l l y  ge t  to  the  s tage  

o f  p resent ing  ev idence aga ins t  you?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes tha t ’s  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Or  g i v ing  you an oppor tun i ty  to  g ive  

your  ev idence,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    That  i s  co r rec t  yes .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And u l t imate ly  your  serv ices  were  

then te rminated?  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Cha i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now a t  tha t  s tage as  I  unders tand 

the  fac tua l  pos i t ion ,  p lease cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  a t  
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tha t  s tage there  was no se t t lement  agreement  conc luded,  

th is  se t t lement  agreement ,  the  te rm inat ion  o f  the 

employment  i s  someth ing  tha t  came somet ime la te r,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?   Can you not  reca l l?    I t  i s  in  fac t  in  November  2016,  

page 514.  

MR SALOOJEE:    I  jus t  want  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was s igned on the  8 t h  o f  November  

2016 by  bo th  s ides.  

MR SALOOJEE:    This  was a t  the  end o f  the  CCMA 

process.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The end o f  the  CCMA p rocess?   

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  rea l l y  where  I  am t ry ing  to  go  

to .   

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  in i t ia l l y  you le f t  employment  and 

they agreed to  pay you to  the  end o f  your  cont rac t  wh ich  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SALOOJEE:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Not?  20 

MR SALOOJEE:    Th i s  was conc luded wh i le  my cont rac t  

was s t i l l  va l id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Whi le  your  cont rac t  was s t i l l  va l id ,  I  

see.   

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see  and a f te r  you had gone to  the  

CCMA? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Had gone to  the  CCMA to  cha l lenge your  

suspens ion?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha l lenge  the  suspens ion ,  no t  the  

ac tua l  te rm inat ion ,  your  employment  was s t i l l  go ing  a t  tha t  

s tage.  10 

MR SALOOJEE:     Ja ,  i t  was s t i l l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   A l r igh t  thank you.    And the  

payment  fo r  the  ba lance o f  your  employment  cont rac t  was 

tha t  the  payment  tha t  was prov ided fo r  in  th i s  se t t lement  

agreement?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes,  ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i f  we take  you p lease to  page  

505,  th is  p rov ides fo r  the  se t t lement  o f  the  d isputes  and 

te rm inat ion  o f  employment ,  505 are  you w i th  me,  c lause 4 .    

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    C lause 4  is  headed “Set t lement  o f  

D isputes  and Terminat ion  o f  Employment ” .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And paragraph –  C lause 4 .2  i t  i s  

recorded tha t  a l l  d isc ip l ina ry  p roceed ings aga ins t  the  
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employee have been te rm inated.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and then we see in  C lause 6 .1 :  

“Set t lement  

The employer  sha l l  pay  to  the  employee an ex  

gra t ia  amount  o f  R2 362 492 be ing  an amount  

equ iva len t  to  50% of  the  employee ’s  annua l  

remunera t ion . ”  

And d id  th is  cover  you fo r  the  res t  o f  your  employment  

cont rac t?  10 

MR SALOOJEE:    That  was my unders tand ing  o f  i t  yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you –  I  unders tood you to  say you 

d idn ’ t  ge t  any se t t lement ,  you were  jus t  pa id  fo r  the  

ba lance o f  your  cont rac t ,  now I  accept  tha t  you are  no t  a  

lawyer  there fore  your  unders tand ing  o f  some te rm ino logy  

m ight  no t  be  the  same as tha t  o f  a  lawyer,  bu t  in  C lause 

6 .1  you and the  employer  agreed tha t  you wou ld  be  pa id  an  

ex gra t ia  amount ,  an  ex gra t ia  amount  as  you wou ld  know 

is  an  amount  tha t  the  employer  i s  no t  ob l iged to  g ive ,  tha t  20 

is  d i f fe ren t  f rom an amount  tha t  they wou ld  be  ob l iged to  

g ive  to  you anyway,  you unders tand tha t .  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes Cha i r  I  unders tand tha t  pe r fec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  does g ive  the  impress ion  tha t  

the  pa r t ies  were  se t t l ing  the  mat te r,  the  employer  d idn ’ t  
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want  to  say I  am pay ing  you your  sa la ry,  o r  the  res t  o f  the 

cont rac t  what  you  were  go ing  to  ea rn ,  bu t  i t  may be tha t  in  

the  end in  rands and cents  i t  amounted to  what  wou ld  have 

been your  sa la ry  anyway fo r  a l l  those months  bu t  tha t  i s  

how they pu t  i t .    

MR SALOOJEE:    Chai r  I  mean the  issue o f  ex gra t ia  o r  I  

spec i f i ca l l y  sa id  to  them tha t  I  want  the  remainder  o f  my 

sa la ry  and I  want  whatever  e lse  has accrued to  me in  te rms  

o f  leave and whatever  e lse  and tha t  was what  I  agreed w i th  

them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and what  you got  re f lec ted  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SALOOJEE:    Ref lec ted  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .what  wou ld  a t  tha t ,  the  te rm ino logy  

m ight  have meant  someth ing  e lse  bu t  what  you got  was 

what  you demanded?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   And o f  course  as  we 

have seen the  se t t lement  was on the  bas i s  tha t  e f fec t i ve ly  20 

your  employment  came to  an  end by  mutua l  agreement  w i th  

a l l  d isc ip l inary  charges aga ins t  you  dropped.  

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now the  a l legat ion  has been 

made in  the  var ious documents  t ha t  were  issued to  you a t  
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the  t ime o f  your  suspens ion  and then the  charges tha t  were  

issued tha t  these were  ex t remely  ser ious charges and 

a l legat ions o f  d isc ip l ina ry  m isconduct  wh ich  cou ld  lead to  

your  d ismissa l .   Do you have any comment  on  the  fac t  tha t  

u l t imate ly  no t  on l y  were  those d i sc ip l inary  charges dropped  

comple te l y  desp i te  more  than a  year ’s  de lay  and your  

f requent  requests  fo r  the  process to  be  under taken and 

f ina l i sed,  bu t  in  add i t ion  they pa id  you fo r  the  ba lance o f  

your  cont rac t ,  do  you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SALOOJEE:    Wel l  Cha i r  I  mean a l l  I  can  say  is  tha t  10 

you know a  new Board  tha t  comes in  i t  i s  hard l y  there  s i x  

weeks,  we have taken them through an or ien ta t ion  

programme,  we are  br ie f ing  them on th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r,  

they  are  no t  fu l l y  unders tand ing  the  na ture  o f  the  

t ransact ion ,  there  is  jus t  no  way  tha t  you cou ld  empower  

yourse l f  w i th in  tha t  sho r t  per iod  o f  t ime to  take  such a  

ser ious v iew o f  ge t t ing  r id  o f  th ree  o f  you r  most  impor tan t  

peop le  in  the  organ isa t ion .    

 You know for  me  i t  was jus t  a  ruse to  ge t  us  ou t ,  

and immedia te ly  we le f t  and in  fac t  i f  I  –  I  don ’ t  know i f  I  20 

can make a  comment  he re  Cha i r.    I f  you  look rea l ly  what  

happened to  Dene l  a f te r  we le f t ,  I  mean up to  tha t  po in t  

Dene l  was a  very  successfu l  o rgan isa t ion .   They  had a  

s t rong o rde r  book,  we had pro f i ts  year  on  year,  we had  

c lean aud i ts  f rom the  Aud i to r  Genera l .   The f i rs t  th ing  tha t  
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happened a f te r  we le f t  was the  issue o f  the  VR Laser  As ia  

and then we know what  has happened in  the  precedent .    I t  

has  a l so  come to  my knowledge tha t  there  is  a  huge  

amount  o f  beh ind  the  scenes work  tha t  was go ing  on wh i ls t  

I  was s t i l l  a t  Dene l  to  es tab l i sh  VR Laser  As ia  okay,  and 

tha t  a  p r imary  mot ive  fo r  ge t t ing  r i d  o f  myse l f  and Mhlont lo  

was spec i f i ca l l y  because o f  the  fac t  tha t  they saw us as  an  

obstac le  to  the  fu r the r  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  As ia  pro jec t  

and br ing  i t  to  i t s  log ica l  conc lus ion  because then tha t  

wou ld  have c losed the  loop comple te l y  in  te rms o f  VR 10 

Laser ’s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Dene l .  

 And a l l  I  can  say  is  tha t  i f  there  was an impress ion  

tha t  was crea ted or  a  nar ra t i ve  tha t  has been c rea ted tha t  

g iven my ro le  and respons ib i l i t y  w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  

and w i th  the  issue o f  the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  VR Laser  

agreements ,  I  am s t i l l  th ink ing  to  myse l f  tha t  i f  ind iv idua ls  

l i ke  myse l f  had been captured and remember  the  contex t  

w i th in  wh ich  we are  ta lk ing  here ,  tha t  dur ing  tha t  per iod  

the  en t i re  count ry  was engu l fed  in  the  no t ion  o f  S ta te 

Capture ,  whethe r  i t  was Law Enforcement  Agenc ies ,  20 

whethe r  i t  was our  po l i t i ca l  p r inc ipa ls  who were  be ing  

imp l ica ted ,  there  was a  sense o f  –  a lmost  a  sense  o f  fear  

as  to  how you conduct  you rse l f  in  these t imes,  you know 

and I  t r ied  to  do  the  best  o f  my ab i l i t y  to  keep Dene l  in tac t ,  

I  t r ied  to  the  best  o f  my ab i l i t y  to  manage the  k ind  o f  
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re la t ionsh ips  tha t  we were  engaged w i th  and i f  I  was 

compl ian t  a f te r  hav ing  done l i fes ty le  aud i ts ,  hav ing  

invest iga ted  me,  whatever  e l se ,  i f  I  had done anyth ing  tha t  

was wrong,  i f  I  had mater ia l l y  benef i t ted  f rom th i s  ro le  i t  

sure ly  wou ld  have come out ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing .   And the  

second th ing  is  tha t  the  very  pe rson who has been  a t  the  

fo re f ron t  o f  peop le  who have been a t  the  fo re f ron t  o f  the  

VR Laser  As ia  th ing  were  the  ones  who were  pu t  in  charge 

o f  runn ing  Dene l  a f te r  I  le f t ,  I  was suspended.   Ntshepe 

who was cent ra l  to  th is  who le  process becomes the  Act ing  10 

CEO and then he  becomes the  CEO,  and I  know now f rom 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  was cent ra l  w i th  Burger  in  the  who le  

As ia  th ing  o f  es tab l i sh ing  As ia  and par tner ing  and s ign ing  

Memorandums o f  Agreement  w i th  Ind ian  compan ies  in  Ind ia  

in  p repara t ion  fo r  th is  even before  they go t  board  approva l  

fo r  i t .  

 So  the  po in t  tha t  I  am t ry ing  to  make is  tha t  yes  

there  were  some o f  us  who were  pu t  under  huge pressure ,  

okay,  and I  have  dea l t  w i th  i t  in  my p rev ious a f f idav i t ,  we  

had to  manage i t  to  the  best  o f  our  ab i l i t y  and I  t r ied  to  20 

manage i t  to  the  best  o f  my ab i l i t y.    I  t r ied  to  be  as  fa i r  as  

poss ib le ,  even dur ing  the  hu l l  con t rac t  th ing ,  and we have  

gone in to  a  lo t  o f  techn ica l  de ta i l  about  tha t .   I  t r ied  to  

c rea te  the  best  s i tua t ion  fo r  Dene l  w i th  secur ing  the  

in te res t  o f  LMD for  example .  
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 The i ssue o f  genu ine ly  the  memorandum of  

unders tand ing  was tha t  they wou ld  have had to  b r ing  i t  

back to  me to  cons ider  bu t  i t  was jus t  a t  the  po in t  a t  wh ich  

we were  go ing  to  be  suspended and the  new Board  was 

coming in ,  so  tha t  p rocess was out  o f  my cont ro l .  

 In  fac t  a f te r  I  le f t  they  used tha t  same th ing  to  then 

enter  in to  the  k ind  o f  agreements  tha t  they want  to  w i th  VR 

Laser.   So the  po l i t i ca l  contex t  w i th in  wh ich  a l l  o f  th is  

go ing  on  was one in  wh ich  th is  who le  S ta te  Captu re  th ing  

was tak ing  p lace.   Dene l  i s  a  c lear  example  o f  tha t ,  tha t  i t  10 

was a  ta rge t  o f  S ta te  Capture .   We were  ta rge ts  o f  S ta te  

Capture ,  and we had to  manage i t  in  the  best  way poss ib le ,  

to  the  ex ten t  tha t  –  and aga in  I  ask  a  s imp le  ques t ion  i f  I  

was compl ian t ,  i f  I  was co l lud ing  why wou ld  I  have been 

suspended.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no  tha t  quest ion  remains  and i t  

i s  a  quest ion  tha t  needs to  be  con f ron ted,  cer ta in l y  when I  

wr i te  my repor t ,  when I  need to  make f ind ings.   I  have got  

to  ask  the  quest ion ,  your  suspens ion  w i th  the  o ther  two 

was fo r  a  long t ime,  w i thout  any ev idence be ing  l ed  in  a  20 

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  to  susta in  any a l legat ions o f  

m isconduct  and u l t imate ly  w i th  a  se t t lement ,  a  conc lus ion 

o f  agreements  tha t  you go,  i f  there  was no bas i s  fo r  in  

te rms o f  m isconduct ,  i f  there  was no ev idence,  why  was –  

why were  the  suspens ions e f fec ted  and why were  you not  
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a l lowed to  come back and comple te  your  t e rm once  i t  was  

–  i f  i t  was accepted tha t  there  was no ev idence and  

there fo re  you shou ld  no t  have been suspended in  the  f i rs t  

p lace  why was tha t  no t  done.  

 Of  course  Mr  Mantsha has not  f in ished h is  ev idence  

and he has sa id  tha t  there  was misconduct  a r is ing  f rom 

your  conduct  I  th ink  two o f  you,  in  regard  to  th is  

t ransact ion ,  I  th ink  in  regard  to  what  –  i t  is sa id i t  is 

something else I  am not  sure.   So I  am interested in  hear ing 

what he wi l l  put  on the table.   I  d id  say to  him when he was 10 

here that  i t  is a p i ty that  he says this now and yet  f rom last  

year he was given your aff idavi ts which said exact ly how you 

were suspended and how you – you were kept  out  of  the 

company unt i l  you lef t  and 

1.  He did not  f i le  any appl icat ion to chal lenge your  

evidence to say I  want to lead evidence and chal lenge 

Mr Saloojee’s evidence that  he and the other two were 

t reated l ike th is because they stood for what is r ight  

and they were kicked out  because they were not  

compl iant .   He did not  do that .  20 

He had the opportuni ty to apply for leave to cross-examine 

you.   He did not  use that  opportuni ty.   He was given al l  your  

bundles and aff idavi ts and i f  I  am – and he was invi ted to f i le  

aff idavi ts last  year by the commission he did not .    

 And even now he comes before the commission 
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because he has been as far as I  recal l  been compel led to  

come.  I  do not  know whether I  am mistaken in that  regard 

but  he did not  show much enthusiasm certainly last  year and 

ear ly th is year to come in and chal lenge your evidence.  

 So – but  he wi l l  g ive his evidence and i t  wi l l  be  

examined – he wi l l  be quest ioned about the al legat ions of  

misconduct  because I  am interested in hearing evidence that  

re lates to the al legat ions that  the – you had misconducted 

yourselves in the way you – or you had not  performed your  

job properly.   I  want  to hear that  i f  that  is the posi t ion.    10 

 But  one wi l l  have to bear  in mind that  i t  comes very 

late when there had been such a lot  of  opportuni ty to have 

brought i t  much ear l ier.  

 So – ja I  thought I  would say that .  

MR SALOOJEE:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Before we leave this  

bundle Chair  and leave the issue of  the set t lement may I  just  

ask you as I  understood i t  you said that  only once you 

referred the suspension dispute to  the CCMA did you then 20 

reach the set t lement agreement and once the set t lement 

agreement was reached you were then paid out  for the 

balance of  your contract .  

MR SALOOJEE:   That  is what I  understand Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You understand?  Can you not  recal l?  
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MR SALOOJEE:   No that  is what I  know.  No that  is what I  

know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is what you know okay.   Because I  

just  want to understand th is then i f  you look in the same 

bundle at  page – page 492 there i f  a form referr ing a dispute 

to the CCMA for conci l iat ion inc luding Conarb – do you have 

that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then at  page 495 i t  has been 

signed by yoursel f  as I  understand i t  and your at torney? 10 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  the at torneys’ s ignature under 

the name pr inted name Shahied Dol ly is that  r ight? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes I  would – ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then next  to that  is the pr inted 

name Riaz Saloojee and your signature? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  is dated the 23 August  2016,  

correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  was then accompanied by an 

annexure which we f ind at  page 496 and that  is a statement 

set t ing out  as the heading indicates the detai ls  of  what you 

contended to be an unfai r  labour pract ice,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then at  page 497 we see pr inted at  

the bot tom Riaz Saloojee and your signature.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you sign this document? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   What interests me is on the 

previous page 496 paragraph 4.   Or in fact  can I  start  at  

paragraph.   You were suspended on the 23 September 2015.   

Paragraph 3 on the 23 December 2015 you were informed of  

the charges against  me, that  is correct  so far is i t?  10 

MR SALOOJEE:   Sorry just  where are you? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Page 496.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Paragraph 3.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   On the 23 December 2015 I  was 

informed of  charges against  me.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is factual ly correct  is i t?  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r ight  paragraph 4 says:  

“On the 17 March 2016 before the 

discipl inary proceedings could commence I  

was informed that  my cont ract  of  employment 

would not  be renewed for a per iod beyond 
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January 2007 – 17 I  beg your pardon.   I  was 

further paid out  unt i l  the end of  my contract  

per iod being unt i l  the end of  January 2017 

during Apri l  2016 but  I  was not  in formed as 

to how such payment was made up. ”  

 That  seems to be saying in Apri l  2016 you were 

actual ly given the payment to pay you out  for the rest  of  your 

contract  per iod,  is  that  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Sorry – yes ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   So then what I  do not  understand 10 

i f  I  take you back to page 506 your  evidence ear l ier that  the 

set t lement amount the ex grat ia amount of  6.1 – sorry in  

Clause 6.1 the amount of  R2 362 492.00 being an amount 

equivalent  to 50% of  your annual  remunerat ion why that  was 

actual ly the same as what you had al ready been paid in 

Apri l?  

MR SALOOJEE:   So – no Chai r  sorry.   I t  is a mistake – i t  i s  

a mistake on my part .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Your evidence was a mistake.   This was 

in addi t ion to being paid to you.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:   No,  no,  no.   When … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The CCMA document did not  ta lk about… 

MR SALOOJEE:   March 16 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry Mr Saloojee what?  March 16.  

MR SALOOJEE:   No i t  says before the discipl inary hearing I  
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was informed [00:07:09] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You at  page 496 paragraph 4 are you? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Okay so that  was in March.   I  was further 

paid out  unt i l  the end of  my cont ract  be ing the January 2017.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   So i t  – so ja i t  may have been  lapse of  

memory but  what  happened is that  Denel  uni lateral ly said 

that  they are not  go ing to renew my contract  in January 

2017.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And they paid you out .  

MR SALOOJEE:   And they paid me up to that  point .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In  Apr i l .  

MR SALOOJEE:   And uni lateral ly put  that  money which was 

the remaining part  of  that  hal f  a year 50% of  my salary.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  get  that .  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So they took i t  upon themselves whi le  

you were st i l l  suspended.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Uni lateral ly to  say by the way we tel l ing 

you we are not  going to  renew your  cont ract  in January 

2017.  

MR SALOOJEE:   And they put  the money… 
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   P lease do not  ta lk over me.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Sorry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Unt i l  – which expi res in January 2017 

and then whether  you l iked i t  or  not  they put  the money in 

paying you unt i l  the end of  January 2017.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   But  then there was… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was your cont ract  ending – going to  end in 

January 2017? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   And then you – when they 

did that  you had not  referred your suspension dispute to the 

CCMA or had you al ready referred i t  to CCMA? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No because I  was st i l l  saying them 

cont inue wi th the discipl inary hearing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So you referred the suspension 

dispute to the CCMA af ter that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We note – sorry Chai r.   May I  cont inue? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We know that  because we have al ready 

shown you Mr Saloojee at  page 495 you signed that  on the 

23 August  2016,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And your – that  was accompanied by 

the statement that  says al ready before the – before I  

referred this dispute whi le  I  was st i l l  suspended which is the 

subject  of  my referral  as an unfai r  labour pract ice I  have 

al ready had my contract  terminated and I  have been paid out  

as far back as Apr i l  2016 that  was four months before the 

referral  was to the CCMA? 

MR SALOOJEE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Correct .   Then you pursue the 

complaint  -  the dispute at  the CCMA and you then set t le that  10 

dispute,  not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I t  was agreed that  we set t led.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  was then set t led in terms of  the 

set t lement agreement that  was then signed in November 

2016.   We have seen that  at  page 514.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Sorry 59? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   514.   8 November 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the agreement that  we looked at  20 

ear l ier.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Correct .    

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   The Chairperson actual ly read out 

the date to you ear l ier when you were taken to this.   So at  
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page 505 in th is set t lement agreement that  you conclude in 

November 2016 af ter you have referred the dispute and af ter 

you have al ready been paid in Apr i l  for the balance of  your  

contract .   You are then – you then agree to a set t lement  

amount an ex grat ia amount of  R2.36 mi l l ion and then there 

is provision in Clause 7 as to when that  is to be paid and 

how.   

7.1  They wi l l  render payment into a bank account  of  your  

choosing and  

7.22 Sorry 7.21 is  deduct  income tax and 10 

7.22 Make any payments due by no later than 30 November 

2016.  

 I t  seems to me Mr Saloojee that  th is R2.36 mi l l ion 

must  have been on top of  not  as the balance of  the contract  

that  you had al ready been paid in  Apr i l  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So maybe the pr ior quest ion should be 

what happened to the money that  the company put  into your  

account uni lateral ly? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  that  was – that  was my 

understanding was my monthly salary unt i l  my contract  20 

expired.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  return i t  to the company? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay when you signed the set t lement  

agreement that  you signed with the company in November 

2016 this amount  that  is ment ioned in that  agreement of  

R2.something mi l l ion was i t  in addi t ion to the money that  

they had put  into your account uni lateral ly?  Were you going 

to get  another amount? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  were they talk ing about the amount that  

had been put  into your account uni lateral ly? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  I  know that  the total  amount that  I  10 

got  was about R3.6 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About how much? 

MR SALOOJEE:   R3.6 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Total  wi th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you count ing now the money that  they 

put  into your account uni lateral ly  plus the money that  is  

ment ioned in the agreement put  together came to R3, 

something mi l l ion? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Perhaps I  can help Mr Saloojee? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes please do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  you received R3.6 mi l l ion that  is 

obviously di fferent  f rom the R2.36 mi l l ion in Clause 6.1 on 

page 505.   I t  seems one possible way of  looking at  th is but  I  

am speculat ing we need evidence on this is that  you 
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received something maybe R1.something mi l l ion in Apri l  

2016.  

MR SALOOJEE:   And then this was… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then you – then you received a further  

R2.36 mi l l ion in November 2016 in terms of  the set t lement 

which was obviously a win for you because you brought the 

claim in the CCMA.  You came out  of  i t  wi th more money not  

so? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you not  receive a payment in  10 

November 2016? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.   Yes i f  I  do recal l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You do recal l?  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you also as your statement  ear l ier  

said you had received an amount in  Apri l  2016,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes,  ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So that  – so in total  you received R3.6 

mi l l ion made up part ly  of  what was the amount that  was paid 

in Apri l  2016.  20 

MR SALOOJEE:   And then what was paid there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then the R2.36 mi l l ion in  November 

2016, is that  r ight? 

MR SALOOJEE:   And includ ing – and including the accrued 

leave.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Including accrued leave I  see.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  Mr Saloojee i f  you – i f  the company put  

into your account  un i lateral ly in March or Apri l  of  2016 put  

an amount that  would cover the rest  of  your cont ract  per iod 

that  would mean that  i t  was an amount that  would have 

covered about twelve months or  c lose to twelve months.   

Because you said your cont ract  was going to end in January 

2017.  10 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  r ight .   So i f  they were put t ing in – i f  

they put  into your  account in March an amount that  you say 

covered the rest  of  your cont ract  per iod that  would have 

been about ten months and ten months would not  have been 

R1 mi l l ion,  something i t  would have been much more than 

that  i f  R2.3 which is wri t ten I  th ink in the set t lement  

agreement amounts to 50% of  your  annual  salary.  Can you 

see that?  That  is  what the agreement says.   I t  is R2.3 or 2,  

something and that  is – they say that  is 50% of  your annual  20 

salary.   So that  must  mean your annual  salary must  have 

been about R5 mi l l ion or thereabouts.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes,  yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i f  they put  in – i f  they put  into your 

account in March or so 2016 an amount which was – which 
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would cover the rest  of  your cont ract  per iod that  is – that  

would have been amount that  covered about at  ten months.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe n ine or ten months.   So that  would 

not  have been R1, something.   That  would have been 

certainly over R3 mi l l ion I  would imagine.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  wi th your permission I  mean I  can 

get  al l  that  informat ion and send i t  to the commission  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  you understand what I  am saying/  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes you r ight  I  do understand what you 10 

saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  i f  the amount that  they gave you in 

March 2016 was never returned to them and the amount that  

is wri t ten in the set t lement agreement was in addi t ion to the 

amount that  was put  into your account then in total  the 

amount that  you got  could not  have been less than I  th ink R6 

mi l l ion.   

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  as I  say I  wi l l  get  al l  the informat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   And send i t  to the commission.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  must  be r ight  more – you know in 

terms of  how I  arr ive at  that  – the f igure might  be… 

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chair  you are r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  mean I  – my own – let  me get  the 
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informat ion and I  wi l l  send i t  to the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no,  no that  is f ine.   Okay alr ight  Mr 

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   There is one f inal  

topic I  would l ike to deal  wi th.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  ar ises in your – both in your latest  

aff idavi t  as wel l  as your or ig inal  aff idavi t .   I  am not  going to  

take you to the actual  content  of  i t  I  just  want you to conf i rm 

and then explain certain things.   I  just  want to remind you 10 

what you sa id.   You referred to var ious meet ings that  you 

had set  up by Mr Essa wi th the Gupta’s,  correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you said  

“ I  was eventual ly summoned to again another  

meet ing wi th the Gupta ’s by Essa.   I  cannot  

recal l  the speci f ic  date of  th is meet ing save 

that  i t  was in  the lat ter part  of  2012.   In th is  

meet ing I  was told in no uncertain terms that  

I  was not  cooperat ing and that  my lack of  20 

cooperat ion was a ser ious issue.”  

Tony said – that  is  Tony Gupta presumably correct? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“That  he did not  want to elevate i t  further.   I  
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took the statement as a threat  and the 

purpose of  the meet ing as means to st rong 

arm me into cooperat ing wi th Essa and the 

Gupta ’s.   I  re i terated what I  had said in al l  

the previous meet ings namely that  proper 

process must  be fol lowed.  Al l  business had 

to be commercial ly v iable and add value to  

Denel . ”  

Then there is reference to Tony Gupta saying that  

they were working hard to  have the blackl ist ing of  Denel  in  10 

India l i f ted.   And then – then there is reference to the need 

to support  the New Age Newspaper.   And then crucial ly you 

have said this in your or ig inal  aff idavi t  and you have 

conf i rmed i t  in your latest  one.    

“When that  meet ing ended as we walked out  

Tony asked me why I  do not  take money and 

that  I  should take money because everyone 

does.   I  categorical ly stated that  I  do not . ”  

Now you conf i rm that  evidence? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And where did that  take place?  At  the 

Gupta residence in Saxonwold? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Or one of  the Gupta residences.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now when he said why you do not  

take money had he offered you money already? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No i t  was a comment that  he made.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  I  am t rying to understand i t .   Do 

you understand i t  because when somebody says why do you 

not  take money i t  suggests that  you had al ready been 

offered money and you had rejected the offer.   Had you 

previously been offered money by Mr Gupta? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No I  was never offered money by him.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So how did you understand the 10 

quest ion why do you not  take money?  And then to fo l low up 

you should take money because everyone does.   Was he 

actual ly offer ing you money now? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chai r  he was – the context  was 

cooperat ing and whatever else okay.   And I  th ink i f  the 

discussion had gone in the way in  which I  was amenable to  

that  th ing that   is the context  wi thin  which I  thought he made 

the comment.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was any speci f ic amount ever  

suggested to you that  i f  you do certain things you could 20 

expect  to get  paid? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  d id  you understand that  the 

quest ion here based on the ear l ier discussion then and 

previous meet ings was real ly to th is effect .   I f  you are 
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amenable and you should be amenable we wi l l  pay you 

money to ensure that  the business comes to us.  

MR SALOOJEE:   That  was my understanding Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And you re jected that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Suggest ion.   Was this the only occasion 

on which there was any talk by Mr Gupta or any of  his  

associates that  you should be taking money? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  see.   And did you understand what  10 

you would have to do i f  you took the money in exchange for 

doing something what would that  something be? 

MR SALOOJEE:   My own view is that  there was the India 

issue that  was looming that  they wanted access to the India 

market .   There were obviously the VR Laser issue was an 

issue.   And then of  course the Middle East  was a bi t  th ing for 

them you know.  So they wanted to get  involved in the 

defence indust ry via Denel  into those envi ronments as wel l .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  want  to  remind you of  the wording that  

you used in your aff idavi t ,  the latest  one that  is at  page 8-1 20 

in Bundle 10 Chai r  but  I  am not  – I  do not  th ink i t  is  

necessary for you necessari ly to page to i t .   I  wi l l  read i t  out  

i f  I  may?  Paragraph 10 you sa id:  

“During this per iod there was both signi f icant  

publ ic debate and media speculat ion 
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concerning the re lat ionship between the 

Gupta ’s and senior people in government 

that  included the then President”  

Not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  was a lready part  of  the publ ic 

controversy.   I t  is part  of  the reason for the publ ic 

controversy not  so? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then you say this:  10 

“Consequent ly I  was genuinely wary of  who I  

could turn to,  conf ide in or discuss such 

matters wi th.   I  a lso was of  the view given 

my history and experience that  I  was strong 

enough to be able to manage these 

advances. ”  

Now did you in fact  conf ide in anybody else when you 

were being approached repeatedly by the Gupta’s to make 

sure that  business comes thei r  way and for example give – 

give work to New Age Newspapers and for  example to assist  20 

them in the – in the Asian market  etcetera.   Did you conf ide 

in any of  your col leagues at  Denel  that  such approaches and 

insinuat ions were being made? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chair  I  d id not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you conf ide in anybody outside the 
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Denel  organisat ion such as the Minister or DG of  Publ ic 

Enterpr ises? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Why not? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  mean my own view is that  – that  they 

were support ing the Gupta fami ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .    

MR SALOOJEE:   And that  i f  I  had elevated i t  to that  level  I  

do not  know what my si tuat ion would have been.  I f  fact  

f rankly as I  have indicated there I  d id not  know who to turn 10 

to.   And I  was… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry just  repeat  that? 

MR SALOOJEE:   I  d id not  know who to turn to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SALOOJEE:   And I  was also – I  was – I  was concerned 

about my own posi t ion and my wel fare.  

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.   And who was the Minister responsible 

for Denel  at  the t ime? 

MR SALOOJEE:   F i rst  i t  was Minister  Gigaba and then i t  was 20 

Minister Lynne Brown.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  I  am ta lk ing about that  t ime where 

you had to decide whether you could ta lk to… 

MR SALOOJEE:   2014 i t  was Min ister Brown then? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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MR SALOOJEE:   Minister Brown was there in 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you consider and I  am not  t ry ing to 

cross-examine you on this but  did  you consider when you 

said you did not  know who to turn to perhaps that  the Publ ic 

Protector who at  that  stage was Advocate Thul i  Madonsela 

might  have been somebody you could have approached and 

conf ided in? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  must  say I  d id not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You did not  th ink about that? 10 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   And the Audi tor Genera l? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  I  d id not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Just  to  complete this sect ion of  

your aff idavi t  you say:   

“These advances were not  normal  business 

pract ices and I  kept  resist ing them during a 

very di ff icul t  per iod in our col lect ive pol i t ical  

h istory.   Again I  repeat  I  was of  the view that  

I  could manage the si tuat ion.   I  must  20 

acknowledge that  I  was genuinely concerned 

by the turn of  events and concerned for my 

future.   I  might  add I  was also concerned for  

my and my fami ly ’s personal  securi ty having 

regard to the apparent  reach and ambit  of  
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the Gupta inf luence.”  

 Did you have any actual  threat  made  to you or  did  

you just  feel  uncomfortable that  there might  a  r isk to 

yoursel f?  

MR SALOOJEE:   No Chai r  I  mean you know you always 

worr ied about is  there a possib i l i ty that  something could 

happen – a lways.   And in fact  you know you – at  some point  

you can become paranoid about some of  these th ings as 

wel l .   I  mean we l ived in a very di ff icul t  t ime during that  

per iod.   I  was being put  under pressure on this side.   I  was 10 

st i l l  t ry ing to manage Denel .  I  was t ry ing to address al l  the 

issues that  have [00:25:09]  here whi lst  t ry ing to keep my 

head above water you know.  So of  course i t  was a very 

di ff icul t ,  very st ressful  per iod in my l i fe.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In retrospect  do you think that  perhaps 

you could and should have conf ided in somebody such as 

the Publ ic Protector? 

MR SALOOJEE:   No at  that  point  I  thought what I  was doing 

was protect ing my own interest .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  what about  the nat ion’s interests? 20 

MR SALOOJEE:   Shoo I  mean I  was t ry ing to manage i t  the 

best  way that  I  can.   You know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course Mr Kennedy there is the 

quest ion whether  you can conf ide in the Publ ic Protector 

because I  guess you ei ther lay a complaint  in which case i t  
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wi l l  be deal t  wi th t ransparent ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  you do not .   So I  am not  sure i f  you can 

conf ide.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No I  accept  that  i t  may not  have been 

possible.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  is  just  a  suggest ion that  I  am raising 

for his comment .   I  understand your predicament Mr 

Saloojee.   Chai r  may I  just  have a moment to confer wi th my 10 

team to see i f  there is anything further? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Thank you Mr Saloojee,  

thank you Chair  we have no further quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There is one quest ion which I  want to 

check.   Mr Ntsepe I  do not  know whether Mr Burger as wel l  

but  Mr Ntshepe said that  you and Mr Sal im Essa had known 

each other for  qui te some t ime and had your own 

re lat ionship outside of  Denel  for some t ime.  Because when 

he gave evidence he sought to say you may have 20 

downplayed your own role in what  happened.  So did you 

have a relat ionship of  – or did you know Mr Sal im Essa 

outside of  Denel  before you met h im at  the I  th ink you – I  

understood your evidence to say you met him at  the – before 

you met him I  th ink before he took you to the Gupta 
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res idence?  When did you get  to know him for the f i rst  t ime 

Mr Sal im Essa? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Chair  i f  I  recal l  f rom some of  the evidence 

that  was led i t  was Mr Mantsha who said that  I  had known Mr 

Essa for a long whi le because we come from the same 

local i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr Mantsha may have sa id that  but  I  

am under the impression that  Mr Ntshepe also said 

something.  But  I  may be mistaken but  some witness said you 

and Mr Sal im Essa had known each other.  10 

MR SALOOJEE:   Ja we have never known each other.  We 

have never been f r iends.   We do not  come f rom the same 

local i ty.   We come from di fferent  communit ies.   I  have been 

brought up in the Western – in the old Western Transvaal  in 

Johannesburg.   I  th ink he comes f rom Pretor ia i f  I  am not  

mistaken.   I  have never  known him.  I  have never  in teracted 

wi th him social ly at  a l l .   I t  was just  dur ing this  per iod that  he 

made my acquaintance.    

CHAIRPERSON:   So did you meet him for  the f i rst  t ime a 

short  whi le before he took you to the f i rst  meet ing [ ta lk ing 20 

over one another.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I t  was in the f i rst  quarter of  about  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The f i rst  quarter o f  2012? 

MR SALOOJEE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before that  you did not  know him? 
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MR SALOOJEE:   I  mean I  knew about h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You knew about him.  

MR SALOOJEE:   I  used to see him in the st reets and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   A lr ight .   Thank you.   Mr  

Kennedy is you recol lect ion the same as mine that  Mr 

Ntshepe may have said something simi lar? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  th ink he may have Chai r  but  I  am 

afraid I  cannot be certain about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .   Thank you very much Mr 

Saloojee for coming back to deal  wi th the matters that  you 10 

had to deal  wi th .   I  appreciate the fact  that  you were 

prepared to give evidence unt i l  so late in the evening.  Thank 

you very much.  I f  the need ar ises we wi l l  ask you to come 

back but  hopeful ly  i t  wi l l  not  be necessary.  

MR SALOOJEE:   No thank you Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes thank you very much you are excused.   

I  must  also thank you Mr Kennedy and everybody al l  the staff  

for being prepared to stay and – to so late.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  we could f in ish Mr Saloojee’s 20 

evidence.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So we are going to adjourn for the day and 

tomorrow I  wi l l  hear in the morning the evidence of  Mr 

Makhubo the Johannesburg Mayor and in the af ternoon I  wi l l  
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cont inue wi th the evidence of  Mr Ramosebudi  who gave 

evidence ear l ier today.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 27 NOVEMBER 2020 
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